Haringey Council

NOTICE OF MEETING

Cabinet

TUESDAY, 16TH OCTOBER, 2007 at 19:30 HRS - CIVIC CENTRE, HIGH ROAD, WOOD
GREEN, N22 8LE.

MEMBERS: Councillors Meehan (Chair), Reith (Vice-Chair), Adje, Amin, Basu, Canver,
Diakides, Haley, B. Harris and Santry

Please note: This meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chair will confirm if all or
part of the meeting is being filmed. The images and sound recording may be used
for training purposes within the Council.

Generally the public seating areas are not filmed. However, by entering the
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being
filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound recordings for
webcasting and/or training purposes.

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Cabinet Committees
Manager (Committee Clerk) at the meeting.

AGENDA

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
(if any)

2. URGENT BUSINESS
The Chair will consider the admission of any late items of urgent business. (Late
items will be considered under the agenda item where they appear. New items will be
dealt with at item 18 below. New items of exempt business will be dealt with at item

21 below).

3. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST



A member with a personal interest in a matter who attends a meeting of the authority
at which the matter is considered must disclose to that meeting the existence and
nature of that interest at the commencement of that consideration, or when the
interest becomes apparent.

A member with a personal interest in a matter also has a prejudicial interest in that
matter if the interest is one which a member of the public with knowledge of the
relevant facts would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice the
member's judgment of the public interest and if this interest affects their financial
position or the financial position of a person or body as described in paragraph 8 of
the Code of Conduct and/or if it relates to the determining of any approval, consent,
licence, permission or registration in relation to them or any person or body described
in paragraph 8 of the Code of Conduct.

MINUTES (PAGES 1-10)

To confirm and sign the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 18 September
2007.

DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS/QUESTIONS
To consider any requests received in accordance with Standing Orders.

MATTERS, IF ANY, REFERRED TO THE CABINET FOR CONSIDERATION BY
THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT - END AUGUST 2007 (PAGES 11 - 22)

(Report of the Chief Executive — To be introduced by the Leader) To provide highlight
reports for all the Council’s corporately significant projects, covering the period
August 2007.

THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - AUGUST 2007 (PAGES 23 - 54)

(Joint Report of the Chief Executive and the Acting Director of Finance — To be
introduced by the Leader and the Cabinet Member for Resources): To set out an
exception report on the finance and performance monitoring for August 2007 using
the balanced scorecard format. To agree virements as set out.

CABINET RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY REVIEW OF IT SERVICES PROJECT
MANAGEMENT (PAGES 55 - 60)

(Report of the Director of Corporate Services - To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Resources): To propose a response to the recommendations of the
Scrutiny Review Panel of IT Services Project Management.



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

ADMISSIONS TO SCHOOLS - APPROVAL TO CONSULT (PAGES 61 - 102)

(Report of the Director of the Children and the Young People’s Service — To be
introduced by the Cabinet Member for Children and Young People): To seek approval
to consult on admission arrangements for community, primary and secondary schools
in Haringey and St. Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled School.

DRAFT LAWRENCE ROAD PLANNING BRIEF (SPD) & SUSTAINABILITY
APPRAISAL (PAGES 103 - 174)

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Regeneration and Enterprise): To report the outcome of the public
consultation exercise in respect of the draft Lawrence Road Planning Brief and
accompanying Sustainability Appraisal and adopt a supplementary planning
document.

DEVELOPMENT OF THE UPPER LEE VISION NORTH LONDON'S WATERSIDE
(PAGES 175 - 186)

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Enterprise and Regeneration): To propose working together with the
London Borough of Enfield and the London Borough of Waltham Forest to develop
and implement a vision led approach to the Upper Lee Valley — North London’s
Waterside, improve co-ordination of sub-regional funding and mainstream activity and
to agree a structure to undertake this.

HARINGEY'S GREENEST BOROUGH STRATEGY (PAGES 187 - 230)

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Environment and Conservation): To consider a report and cover paper on
the Council’'s Greenest Borough Strategy.

CABINET RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY REVIEW OF IMPROVING ROAD SAFETY IN
HARINGEY (PAGES 231 - 244)

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Environment and Conservation): To propose a response to the
recommendations of the Scrutiny Panel Review of Road Safety.

HOMES FOR HARINGEY PERFORMANCE REPORT APRIL - AUGUST 2007
(PAGES 245 - 260)

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment — To be introduced by the Cabinet
Member for Housing): To provide a quarterly update on Homes for Haringey
Performance and Finance.



16. URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET MEMBERS
(PAGES 261 - 266)
(Report of the Chief Executive): To inform the Cabinet of delegated decisions and
significant actions taken.
17. MINUTES OF SUB-BODIES (PAGES 267 - 270)
Procurement Committee — 4 September 2007
18. NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any items admitted at item 2 above.
19. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
The following item is likely to be the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public as it contains exempt information relating to the business or financial affairs of
any particular person (including the Authority holding that information).
20. MINUTES (PAGES 271 - 272)
To confirm and sign the exempt minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 18
September 2007.
21. NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS
To consider any items admitted at 2 above.
Yuniea Semambo Richard Burbidge
Head of Local Democracy Cabinet Committees Manager
and Member Services Tel: 020-8489 2923
5" Floor Fax: 020-8489 2660
River Park House Email: richard.burbidge@haringey.gov.uk
225 High Road
Wood Green
London N22 8HQ 8 October 2007.



Page 1 Agenda ltem 4

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

Councillors *Meehan (Chair), Reith (Vice-Chair), *Adje, *Amin, *Basu, *Canver,
*Diakides, *Haley, *B. Harris and *Santry

*Present

Also Present: Councillors Bevan, Bull, Engert, Gorrie and Newton

MINUTE ACTION
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

CAB43. | APOLOGY FOR ABSENCE (Agenda Item 1)

An apology for absence was submitted on behalf of Councillor Reith.

CAB44. | DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Agenda ltem 3)

A declaration of interest was made by Councillor Santry in respect of HLDMS
items 17 — Changes to the Management Agreement with Homes for
Haringey and 18 — Repairs Procurement (see Minutes CAB.57 and
CAB.58 below).

CAB45. | MINUTES (Agenda Item 4)

In response to a question concerning Minute CAB.29 of the meeting held
on 17 July, it was confirmed that a letter had now been received from
Beverly Hughes, Secretary of State for Children, Young People and
Families about the availability of funding for Children’s Centre in
2008/09.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet held on 17 and 26 | HLPMS
July 2007 be confirmed and signed.

CAB46. | MATTERS, IF ANY, REFERRED TO THE CABINET FOR
CONSIDERATION BY THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE
(Agenda ltem 6)

Scrutiny Review of IT Projects (Agenda ltem 6 (a)):

We received a presentation from Councillor Bull who had chaired the
Scrutiny Panel which had reviewed IT Projects.

Having answered questions which we put to him, our Chair thanked
Councillor Bull and other members of the Scrutiny Panel for the Review
and we

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and, in accordance with the | DCS
requirements of the Constitution, officers be requested to submit a




Page 2

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

Cabinet response to our meeting on 16 October 2007 including a
detailed tabulated implementation action plan.

Scrutiny Review of Improving Road Safety in Haringey (Agenda ltem
6(b))

We received a presentation from Councillor Bevan who had chaired the
Scrutiny Panel which had reviewed Improving Road Safety in Haringey
and noted that recommendation 10 in the Review which related to the
Walking Bus Scheme had not been endorsed by the Overview and
Scrutiny Committee.

Having answered questions which we put to him, our Chair thanked
Councillor Bevan and other members of the Scrutiny Panel for the
Review and we

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and, in accordance with the
requirements of the Constitution, officers be requested to submit a
Cabinet response to our meeting on 16 October 2007 including a
detailed tabulated implementation action plan.

DUE

CAB47.

CABINET RESPONSE TO SCRUTINY REPORT ON WI-FI
INSTALLATION IN SCHOOLS (Report of the Director of the Children
and Young People’s Service - Agenda ltem 7):

Having considered further representations in support of the
recommendations made by the Overview and Scrutiny Committee we re-
iterated that the installation of Wi-Fi networking facilities in schools was
ultimately at the discretion of each school’'s own Governing Body and
Head Teacher. The Council’s role was to provide advice and support to
schools based upon best guidance and good practice. The Council
lacked the skills and resources to independently assess the scientific
evidence relating to the safety of Wi-Fi, nor did schools have such
expertise.

We noted that the Health Protection Agency (HPA) existed to provide an
integrated approach to protecting UK public health through the provision
of support and advice to the NHS, local authorities, emergency services,
other Arms Length Bodies, the Department of Health and the Devolved
Administrations and it was widely regarded as the definitive source of
information and advice in the UK about Wi-Fi safety. The HPA guidance
said that there was no reason why schools and others should not use
Wi-Fi equipment and in the light of this advice the Department for
Children, Schools and Families (DCSF) had recently updated their
guidance and recommended the deployment of Wi-Fi in schools.

RESOLVED:

1. That, apart from schools using wi-fi systems being asked to
ensure that they are switched on only as necessary to reduce

DCYPS




Page 3

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

energy waste and costs the recommendations from Overview
and Scrutiny be not approved.

2. That the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service
write to all schools drawing attention to the current Department
for Children, Schools and Families advice on this matter.

DCYPS

CAB48.

PROGRAMME HIGHLIGHT REPORT END JULY 2007 (Report of the
Chief Executive - Agenda Item 8):

We noted that the report provided highlights for all the Council’s
corporately significant projects up to the end of July and we received a
verbal update on the progress of a number of the projects since that
date.

In response to a question about the more detailed highlight report which
was formerly submitted, we noted that this was still produced for
consideration by the respective Project Boards. We also noted that from
October the Programme Highlight report would reflect the planned new
corporate programme structure with its three programmes of work,
Achieving Excellence’, ‘Regeneration’ and ‘Better Haringey’.

With regard to the Tottenham High Road Strategy we were informed that
officers were working on projects which could take up a possible short
fall on the output for area of space improved. We were also informed
that with regard to the Mortuary the funding gap in the overall project
budget had now been bridged and the contract awarded by the
Procurement Committee.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted.

CAB49.

THE COUNCIL'S PERFORMANCE - JUNE AND JULY 2007 (Joint
Report of the Chief Executive and the Acting Director of Finance -
Agenda ltem 9):

We noted that this was the second report of the current municipal year in
the new style with a scorecard illustrating progress against Council
priorities. As at July 2007, 84% of indicators were achieving or close to
achieving target, in addition to which 84% of indicators had maintained
or improved performance since the end of last year. Monitoring showed
that good progress was being made across all the priorities with 84% of
indicators achieving green or amber status.

We also noted that the overall revenue budget monitoring, based on the
July position, showed a forecast net balanced position. This was largely
made up of a number of budget pressures relating to Asylum, care
packages and Alexandra Palace which were largely offset by a projected
surplus on the Housing General Fund, an earmarked reserve for asylum
and a back-dated one off grant claim. The aggregate capital projected
position in 2007/08 was currently projected to under spend by £0.3




Page 4

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

million.

Arising from our consideration of the report reference was made to the
recent award to Homes for Haringey of two star status and to the green
flag status award to Finsbury Park, the eighth park in the Borough to
achieve this status. We asked that our thanks and congratulations be
placed on record to all those involved in securing these achievements.

RESOLVED:

1. That the report and progress against Council priorities as shown
in the appendix to the interleaved report be noted.

2. That the virements as set out in Section 21.5 of the interleaved | ADF
report be approved.
CAB50. | ITS CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2007/11 (Report of the Director of the
Corporate Services - Agenda ltem 10):
Concern having been expressed about some of the figures contained in
the report and about overall objective of the Programme, we were
advised that more detailed reports were considered by the appropriate
Project Board and further information about the programme was
available to Members on request.
RESOLVED:
That approval be granted to the allocation of capital to allow DCS
projects to continue or to commence and to move on to the
scoping stage on the understanding that individual business
cases would be endorsed by project sponsors and the relevant
senior management team to ensure that project objectives added
sufficient value to the Council and were achievable.
CAB51. | ANNUAL REPORT FOR 2006- 07 ON THE HANDLING OF
COMPLAINTS AND MEMBERS ENQUIRES (Report of the Assistant
Chief Executive (Policy, Performance, Partnerships and Communication)
- Agenda ltem 11):
RESOLVED:
1. That the annual report the performance and the key
achievements in the year 2006/07 be noted.
2. That the Local Government Ombudsman’s annual letter and
the Council’s response also be noted.
CAB52. | ADULT, CULTURE AND COMMUNITY SERVICES - ANNUAL

COMPLAINTS REPORT 2006-07 (Report of the Director of Adult,
Culture and Community Services - Agenda Item 12):

At this juncture we were informed that Mary Hennigan (Assistant Director




Page 5

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

— Adults) would be retiring from the Council’s service at the end of
September. We asked that our thanks for the service she had given the
Council be placed on record as well as our best wishes for a long and
happy retirement.

RESOLVED:

That the Adult Social Care Annual Complaints Report the
performance for 2006/07 and the proposed initiatives for
performance improvements be noted.

CABS53.

CHILDREN ACT COMPLAINTS REPORT (Report of the Director of the
Children and Young People’s Service - Agenda ltem 13):

RESOLVED:

That the performance for the period April 2006 to March 2007 on
complaints made under the Children Act procedures be noted.

CAB54.

DOWNHILLS PARK COMMUNITY INVESTMENT COMPANY (CIC)
(Report of the Director of Adult, Culture and Community Services -
Agenda ltem 14):

We noted that at present there was no guaranteed capital funding for the
scheme. We also noted that the total capital cost was estimated at
£340,000 in respect of which a bid of £250,000 had been made to the
Big Lottery Community Buildings Fund (BIG). Final awards of the BIG
were awaited but if the BIG funding for the proposal was agreed then
viable funding options for the balance would need to be identified. In this
respect we noted that capital funding would need to be prioritised
through the current budget setting process.

It having been confirmed that the Friends of Downhills Park group had
been consulted about the proposals, it was

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted in principle to the replacement of the
former bowls pavilion in Downhills Park with a new building on the
same site to provide a café, public toilets, and arts and community
facilities;

2. That approval be granted to the progression of the Community
Interest Company (CIC) in seeking capital and revenue funding to
construct, maintain and operate the café in Downhills Park;

3. That approval be granted in principle to the project as a priority
commitment in the forthcoming budget setting process, the
application for Council capital funding of £90,000 being matched
funding for the construction of the building.

DACCS

DACCS

DACCS

CABS55.

COMPULSORY PURCHASE OF 115 TOWER GARDENS ROAD N17




Page 6

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

1.

(Report of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda Item 15):

We noted that the property had been reported to the Council on several
pccasions and the efforts made by officers to encourage the owner to
oring the property back into use and we asked that a press release be
ssued to explain the delays involved in the Council taking action.

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to the use of compulsory purchase
powers to acquire the property known as 115 Tower Gardens
Road, Haringey, London N17 (shown edged red on Plan No.
EGL229898) compulsorily under section 17 of the Housing Act
1985 and the Acquisition of Land Act 1981.

That the Head of Legal Services be authorised to make and seal
the Order for submission to the Secretary of State for
Communities and Local Government for consideration and
approval and to confirm the said Compulsory Purchase Order in
the event of the Secretary of State returning the Order.

That upon confirmation of the Compulsory Purchase Order to
proceed with the acquisition.

That, subject the confirmation of the Compulsory Purchase
Orders by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local
Government or the Council, approval also be granted to the
disposal of the property to a Registered Social Landlord in the first
instance, or to a Private Developer (in which case the sale would
be by way of auction) with covenants applied to bring the property
back into use as soon as possible.

That a capital provision of £200,000 be approved from capital
receipts, to fund the purchase of this property and this sum be
repaid once the sale has been executed.

DUE

DUE/
HLS

DUE/
HLS

DUE/
HLS

DUE

CAB56.

1.

c)

REVIEW OF PARKING ENFORCEMENT POLICY (Report of the
Director of Urban Environment - Agenda ltem 16):

RESOLVED:

That the following changes to parking enforcement policy be
noted -

That legislative and new statutory guidance were to be introduced
on the 31 of March 2008 under the Traffic Management Act 2004;

That clamping was restricted to persistent evaders only in the
short term and in the longer term was to be ceased in favour of
removals;

That the change to the removal policy in line with the Mayor’s




Page 7

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

caveat be endorsed so that removals focussed on vehicles
causing obstructions including those parked on yellow lines,
parked illegally in disabled bays, persistent evaders, those parked
for extended periods or those parked illegally in designated bays
which displaced legitimate permit holders onto yellow lines;

d) That a PCN might only be issued when a pay & display ticket had
expired by a minimum of five minutes;

e) That a five minute observation period be introduced for private
vehicles parked on yellow lines subject to waiting restrictions,
where an exemption might apply. This observation was intended
for an exemption that applied to the regulations and was not
intended as a grace period and would not apply to those clearly in
contravention;

f) That a ten minute observation period should be applied to
commercial vehicles parked on a yellow line subject to waiting
restrictions;

e) That the forty minute time limit to loading and unloading be
endorsed;

f) That the implications in terms of representations and appeals
handling and in particular the requirement to take mitigation into
account be noted.

2. That the financial and resource implications of these changes be
noted and it be agreed that these be addressed as part of the
2008/09 business planning process.

DUE

CAB57.

CHANGES TO THE MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT WITH HOMES
FOR HARINGEY (Report of the Director of Urban Environment - Agenda
ltem 17):

Councillor Santry declared a prejudicial interest in the item and withdrew
from the Chamber during its discussion.

Details of the revised legal comments which were contained in an
addendum tabled at the meeting were the subject of a motion to exclude
the press and public from the meeting as they contained exempt
information relating to the business or financial affairs of any particular
person (including the Authority holding that information) and in respect of
which a claim to legal professional privilege could be maintained in legal
proceedings.

RESOLVED:

1. That the interpretation contained in the addendum in relation
to the management fee provided by the Council to Homes for
Haringey be confirmed.

DUE




Page 8

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

2. That the Management Agreement be amended to reflect that
all future responsive repairs contracts would be Homes for
Haringey contracts and authority for procurement and
management of the contracts would be fully delegated to
Homes for Haringey including specifically authority for all
action taken from the outset of the current procurement
relating to the repairs and voids contract and to note that a
further report on contractual matters in relation to Homes for
Haringey would be brought forward by officers in due course.

3. That it be noted that any future amendments to the
Management Agreement would need to be agreed by the
Cabinet.

DUE

CABS58.

REPAIRS PROCUREMENT (Report of the Director of Urban
Environment - Agenda ltem 18):

Councillor Santry declared a prejudicial interest in the item and withdrew
from the Chamber during its discussion.

Details of the bids which were set out in an Appendix to the interleaved
report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and public from
the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to the
business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

Clarification having been sought of a number of the statistics contained
in the report, Members advised that more detailed information was
available from the report author on request.

RESOLVED:

1. That the Homes for Haringey Board recommendation of 10
September 2007 to award both the east and west contracts to
carry out the repairs service from 1 January 2008 to 31 March
2013, with an option to extend for up to two years to 31 March
2015, to Homes for Haringey’s direct labour organisation,
Repairs Operations be noted.

2. That, in respect of the call centre, the variant bid for call
handling including out of hours be accepted and that the
current arrangements with the Adult, Culture and Community
services be terminated at the commencement of the
contract(s).

3. That, in respect of vehicles, the variant bid for vehicles to be
provided by the repairs contractor from December 2009 (on
expiry of the current Council contract with Accord) be
accepted and negotiations be continued with Accord with a
view to returning vehicles as individual leases expire which
might provide better value for money.

DUE

DUE

CAB59.

CONSULTATION RESPONSE TO THE BARNET, ENFIELD &




Page 9

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

HARINGEY CLINICAL STRATEGY 'YOUR HEALTH, YOUR FUTURE;
SAFER, CLOSER BETTER' (Report of the Director of Adult, Culture
and Community Services - Agenda Item 19):

RESOLVED:

That consideration of the report be deferred to enable further
discussions to take place and the Director of Adult, Culture and
Community Services be authorised to finalise the Council’s
response in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Adult Social
Care and Wellbeing and the Leader.

DACCS

CABG60.

URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET
MEMBERS (Report of the Chief Executive - Agenda Item 20):

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved.

CAB61.

DELEGATED DECISIONS AND SIGNIFICANT ACTIONS (Report of the
Chief Executive - Agenda Item 21):

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and any necessary action approved.

CAB62.

MINUTES OF OTHER BODIES (Agenda ltem 22):

We noted that with regard to Minute HSP.27 of the Haringey Strategic
Partnership meeting of 19 July that Councillor Bob Harris had been
appointed as Vice Chair of the Haringey Well Being Partnership Board
and not Mun Thong Phung as shown.

RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the following meetings be noted and any
necessary action approved —

e Haringey Strategic Partnership Board — 19 July 2007
e Procurement Committee — 24 July 2007

HLDMS

CABG63.

NEW ITEMS OF EXEMPT URGENT BUSINESS — HORNSEY
CENTRAL DEPOT (Report of the Director of the Corporate Services -
Agenda ltem 25):

Our Chair agreed to accept the report as urgent business. The report
was late because of the need to formalise the corrected figures. The
report was too urgent to await the next meeting because the decision of
the Cabinet in relation to this matter was subject to confirmation at the
meeting to which these minutes relate.

The interleaved report was the subject of a motion to exclude the press




Page 10

MINUTES OF THE CABINET
TUESDAY, 18 SEPTEMBER 2007

and public from the meeting as it contained exempt information relating
to the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

RESOLVED:

That the revised figures in relation to the second stage
assessment of the short listed parties for the development of the
former Hornsey Central Depot as set out in the interleaved report
be noted.

GEORGE MEEHAN

Chair




Page 11 Agenda ltem 7

Haringey Council
Agenda item:

Report Title: Programme Highlight Report End August 2007

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): n/a

Report of: The Chief Executive

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To set out the Corporate Programmes for August 2007 and to provide current project
updates.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 This monthly progress report forms part of Haringey’s Project Management
Framework.

2.2 From October this report will reflect the planned new corporate programme structure
with its three Corporate Programmes, ‘Achieving Excellence’, ‘Regeneration’ and
‘Better Haringey’.

2.3 In preparation for this restructure the ‘Well-being’ and ‘People’ Stream Boards have
been disbanded and the governance arrangements for the projects within these
streams will be reviewed for next month’s report. The projects within the ‘Children
and Young People’s’ Stream will be integrated into the ‘Regeneration’ programme.
The ‘Value for Money’ Stream Board will continue for the foreseeable future.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To note the report and progress against the Corporate Programmes as shown in
Appendix 1.

Report Authorised by: Dr Ita O’Donovan, Chief Executive

Contact Officer: Christel Kirk, Policy & Performance
Tel: 020 8489 3373

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 1



Page 12

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 The Acting Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and comments are
as follows:

e This report for period 5 (August 2007) shows that in 2007/08 the capital budget is
projected to underspend by £4.2m This is mainly in respect of the BSF capital
programme that is currently projecting an underspend in 2007/08 of £4.4m, although it
is planned that this sum will be fully committed over the life of the BSF programme
and is purely a profiling issue.

e The total project variation shown in this report shows a net overspend of £0.2m
although it is expected that this will be contained and revised next month.

e Work continues on the local negotiations for ‘single status’ pay arrangements review
(incorporating former manual staff): a Pay and Conditions Proposal has been
submitted to Union representatives in accordance with the terms of the NJC for Local
Authorities agreement and a base budget contingency sum has been provided. The
costs arising from backdated or compensation payments will be contained within
either unsupported capitalisation (subject to Government approval) and/or the
Council’s reserves. It is difficult at this time to place a reliable estimate on the likely
backdated cost. The council has had a request for capitalisation in 2007/08 approved
by the DCLG.

e Value for Money — the procurement programme delay in award of contracts puts
pressure on the achievement of the target savings. This will be kept under review by
the VFM Stream Board.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 There are no specific legal implications to comment on in this report.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1Report to Cabinet on 21 February: Programme and Project Management — Response
to the Audit Commission Review of Project Management.

6.2Detailed project highlight reports.

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 2




7.1

7.2

8.1

9.1

10.

10.1

10.2

11.

Page 13

Strategic Implications

The programme is the vehicle for the Council to deliver corporately
significant projects and projects that are key political priorities. It
underpins the Council’s corporate planning process, ensuring that the
projects we undertake reflect and help to deliver Community Strategy
and corporate priorities.

This report provides an opportunity to monitor, challenge and support
the Council’s key projects to ensure that they finish on time, to budget
and deliver the outcomes for the community.

Financial Implications

A key driver in developing the programme structure has been to
improve financial oversight of the Council’'s key corporate projects.
Accordingly, projects are required to report detailed financial
information in their project highlight reports each month and a budget
summary for each project is shown in Appendix 1 ‘Programme Highlight
Report’.

Legal Implications
There are no legal implications
Equalities Implications

This report deals with the way that we manage projects many of which
have an impact on different sections of our community. Improved
management of these projects will therefore improve the services we
provide to all sections of our community.

The Equal Pay Review is a crucial element towards the Council
achieving levels 3 and 4 of the Equalities Standard for Local
Government. It is important that we have undertaken an Equal Pay
Audit and have an implementation plan in place to retain our present
standard.

Background

The programme highlight shown in Appendix 1 provides details of all
the Council’'s corporately significant projects that report through the
Council’s programme structure. The information in the report is taken
from detailed project highlight reports for each project that have been
agreed by the respective Project Boards. Due to the reporting cycle,
there is a time lag in the information presented and this report shows
projects’ status at 31 August 2007.

For each project, there is a management summary that sets out
progress over the reporting period. A traffic lights system, like the one
used in the Council’s Performance report, shows the project status
against key indicators, including:

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 3



11.3

12.

12.1

12.2

12.2.1

12.2.2

12.2.3

Page 14

Overall Status
Timescales
Budget
Resources
Issues

Risks

The traffic light annotation is used as follows:

Green Status: Project progressing to plan and scheduled to deliver
on, or ahead of, time. All risks and issues under control and none
outstanding requiring Cabinet/Senior Management attention.
Committed costs on track and within sanctioned budget

Amber status: Project is progressing but subject to small delays.
Issues outstanding which could pose significant threat to the
Project. There may be a budget variance but it is less than
£50,000, or 5% of the total budget, whichever is the more
appropriate.

Red status: Project progress is well off track and implementation
date will be delayed. There are major issues/risks which could
pose immediate threat to the project. The project has stalled
because of lack of project resources and / or there is a budget
variance in excess of 5% of the total budget.

Report
In addition to the highlights provided for each project in appendix 1,

key information about the progress of projects are shown below on an
exception basis.

Regeneration Stream Board

Tottenham High Road Strateqy

Seven of the ten European Regional Development Fund (ERDF)
projects are now complete. The remainder will complete by 30
November 2007. The Programme has already provided over 9,500
square meters of upgraded or new commercial space including a total
of more that 50 shops front enhancements located on Seven Sisters
Road, Tottenham High Road, Park Land and Fore Street. In addition,
there were enhancements to over 25 full listed buildings facades as
part of the Programme. New commercial space has been created at
the former Blue School site, former Stoneleigh Road Depot,
Rangemoor Road industrial estate and a formerly disused block at the
N17 Studios. Improvement and upgrade works to Tottenham Green
Enterprise Centre have also been completed.

The two new Haringey Council owned workspaces will be formally
opened at launch events on October for 19" for the new build at
Stoneleigh Road and October 30™ at Rangemoor Road. Key funding

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 4



12.2.4

12.2.5

12.2.6

12.2.7

12.2.8

12.2.9

Page 15

partners will be invited along with Ward Councillors, officers from
other areas of the Council, North London Business, the North London
Chamber of Commerce and other local business representatives.

The AMBER status at the end of August reflects a small percentage of
unallocated grant money (£50k against an overall ERDF grant
allocation of £1.927m) and a possible claw back due to a shortfall in
output targets. These issues have been resolved during September.
The remaining grant will now be taken up as match for the site value
of the former Stoneleigh Road Depot; the grant will go towards the
cost of the redevelopment project. Additional projects have also been
identified to bring a number of units up to a let-able standard at
Rangemoor Road, the Stonebridge Centre and Markfield Road and a
shop unit at Park Lane. These will make a significant contribution to
achieving the output required by the grant and we are confident that
the output target will be achieved. The final total is subject to
confirmation by Property Services from their records.

Growth Area and Community Infrastructure Funds (GAF/CIF)

Markfield — The contract for the café was approved by the
procurement committee on 04 September.

The RED risk status at end August reflects very tight timescales for
completion of the café and spend of GAF monies by end March. To
reduce this risk, a revised schedule of work was produced in
September, maximising time efficiencies by bringing forward and
rescheduling the order of activities, where possible. This will reduce
the RED risk status as at end of August to amber in next months’
report.

Timescales will remain at amber next month, but is expected to return
to green once the project board has approved the revised schedule of
work in October.

Resourcing issues have now been resolved and will return to green
next month.

12.2.10 Mortuary — The overall rating has improved from red to AMBER this

month and is expected to return to green next month.

12.2.11 The funding gap of £769k has been found and was approved by

Cabinet 18 September. The AMBER status at end August reflected a
total spend of £3.149m against a previously agreed budget of £2.38m.
Budgets will therefore return to green next month.

12.2.12 The updated project plan indicating a final completion in late July

2008 has been sent to and approved by GolL. This also details the
commitment to spend the £1.5m GAF funding by 31 March 2008.
Timescales will therefore return to GREEN next month.

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 5



Page 16

12.2.13 The final costs of the project (the Agreed Maximum Price) which will
be entered in the contract with the builders are expected over the mid-
October. There will be a short mobilisation time for them and the
anticipated start of work on site during the first week of November
should be achieved.

12.2.14 Hale Village — The overall status has changed from AMBER to
GREEN this month following approval of the revised programme plan
by GoL. The revised programme plan delivers the project and the
Growth Area Fund spend of £2.5m by March 2008, within required
timescales.

12.2.15 Heartlands Spine Road —The overall status remained unchanged at
AMBER at the end of August. We obtained verbal confirmation from
National Grid that they will meet £400k of the cost of de-contamination
in August, but required a signed agreement to reflect a green status
against the project. This has been obtained in September and on this
basis, we would expect the overall status to return to GREEN next
month

12.2.16 Council Owned Land

12.2.17 All of the schemes have progressed during the past month which will
result in greater certainty over the delivery timetable. The timetable for
each of the schemes is being reviewed and will be presented for
approval. In the meantime the overall status remains AMBER due to
slippage in the original timescales.

12.2.18 Hornsey Town Hall - The timeline for selecting a developer partner
was extended due to the new procurement process adopted which
involves a longer period of engagement with short listed bidders. This
approach has been reviewed and we have now started competitive
dialogue with three selected developers. The length of time for
competitive dialogue has also been extended with a view to
completing the whole exercise by January 2009, when the developer
will be in a position to start on site. A new technical adviser for the
project is being engaged in order to ensure the project remains on
track.

12.2.19 Tottenham Town Hall — The Heads of Terms with Newlon have been
signed and negotiations are in progress to sign the Development
Agreement by the end of October. Newlon and their professional team
are making progress on the scheme design and are scheduled to
attend a Design Panel meeting on 11 October with a more detailed
scheme design. Newlon are continuing to engage key stakeholders
and they are making preparations to commence public consultations
on their proposed scheme during November.

12.2.4 Hornsey Depot — The Heads of Terms and Development Agreement
will be signed as soon as the detailed specification is agreed.

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 6



Page 17

12.3 Children and Young People Stream Board

12.3.1 Building Schools for the Future

12.3.2 Good progress is being made on the MSP (Managed Service Provider)
procurement and the transformation / change management activities
with schools to achieve the education outcomes we are seeking to
deliver. Procurement Committee has approved the appointment of the
Educational Advisors to the Framework contract.

12.3.3 The overall programme status remains unchanged at AMBER this
month. The first four wave 2 schools continue to report delays against
the planned schedule. It is not anticipated that new baseline
timescales will be drawn up for these schools and it is therefore likely
that delays will be reported against these four schools until the start of
the construction works in 7-10 months.

12.3.4 As at 01 October, the anticipated delay to the projects is as follows: 14
weeks at St Thomas More Roman Catholic School, 9 weeks at
Woodside High School, 5 weeks at Gladesmore Community School
and 15 weeks at Park View Academy. In addition, the Pupil Support
Centre is reporting a twelve week delay due to extended consultation
periods.

12.3.5 These delays have an impact on the cost of each of these projects
through inflation. This has been managed by “value engineering” on
each project, i.e. through altering the scope, time and cost parameters.
The planned construction periods are currently indicative and will only
be confirmed once contractors are appointed on each project. The
programme is still on track to deliver the transformational objectives of
the schools within the cash limit, and the overall budget for the
programme remains at GREEN.

12.3.6 All other schools are proceeding on time or ahead of schedule.
12.3.7 Work continues to revisit the validity of key assumptions and decisions

underpinning our cash limit budget; we will provide a further update on
this next month. The PFl/ DOV negotiations are also ongoing.

12.3.8 Primary Schools Capital Programme

12.3.9 The associated works following the Crowland Primary School fire
reinstatement project is now complete.

12.3.10 The overall status has remained unchanged at AMBER this month,
due to risks and issues associated with the Tetherdown and Coleridge
projects. Phase 1 of the Coleridge project has been completed and
the first expanded cohort is in place.

12.3.11 The project team is working to identify additional funding from within
existing known resources to cover the projected overspend for this

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 7



Page 18

year of £250k and it is expected that the budget will be re-profiled
from next month to reflect these changes.

12.3.12 Children’s Centres

12.3.13 Welbourne and Earlsmead construction completed 14 September,
and both are scheduled for handover Friday, 05 October.

12.3.14 At Earlsmead, the school has now taken partial possession of the
Nursery. The AMBER status at the end of August reflects the three
weeks delay in the constructions works for this and the Welbourne
centre.

12.3.15 We submitted revised projected milestone and expenditure profiles to
The DCFS (The Department for Children, Schools and Families) and
these have now been approved.

12.4 Wellbeing Stream Board

12.4.1 E-care

12.4.2 This project is currently on target to hit the go-live date of 26
November.

12.4.3 The e-care project was included in the recent IT Scrutiny Review
carried out by SOCITM Consulting. In general, project management /
governance (based on the 4 projects examined) was considered to be
very good and certainly in the top 10% of local authorities of which
SOCITM have experience.

12.4.4 Furthermore, the project manager and business change manager have
been asked by the suppliers of Framework-i (Corelogic), to speak at
the CORELOGIC National Finance User Group event, which is being
hosted in Haringey during October. Both have been chosen by
Corelogic to provide a "best practise" example to other local authorities
on how to successfully manage and deliver a structured IT Systems
implementation within a social services / local government
environment.

12.4.5The AMBER status at the end of August reflects some resourcing
issues some of which have now been resolved, as well as technical
issues identified during testing. This is no more than what would be
expected within an IT project of this kind and we do not foresee any
significant impact on go-live at this stage.

12.4.6 There is a risk that the interface may not be developed and fully tested
in time for go-live and will instead need to be implemented shortly
thereafter. This is a known risk to the project identified during project
initiation and accepted by the project team.

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 8



Page 19

12.5 Better Haringey Stream Board

12.5.1 Better Haringey Estates Improvement Programme

12.5.2 The overall status of this programme has changed from GREEN to
AMBER this month. This is due to the anticipated costs regarding the
Campsbourne landscaping project. The costs submitted by the lowest
tenderer for the work exceeded the budget provision by £19k, this in a
contract estimated to cost a total of £60k. Actions are being taken to
contain this cost.

12.5.3 The total value of the Estates Improvement Programme for this
financial year is £1,209k and is projected to come in on budget.

12.5.4 Improving Green & Open Spaces

12.5.5 Sports and Leisure Strategic Renewals — Negotiations between project
management consultants (AYH) and build contractors (Crispin & Borst)
is proceeding to schedule.

12.5.6 Officers met with AYH 18 September to review and respond to C&B
final account position. There is no significant change in value /
variation from the current approved contract sum. We sent a formal
response together with a reissue of the final account to C&B w/e 28
September; making clear that this is our final position and that the next
step would be formal dispute resolution.

12.5.7 Officers and AYH believe that the Council has clear an audit trail and
therefore a robust defence against any future claim. We expect this to
be resolved by the end of the calendar year and the project will report
RED until then.

12.5.8 Associated revised investment needs and related capital bid have been
submitted as part of 2008/9 Pre Business Plan Review. In the interim
renewals work is limited to the Changing Room Accommodation
Refurbishment at Park Road Leisure Centre. Work commenced on site
w/e 21/9 and is due to complete by 10 December.

12.5.9 Usage and income continue to improve in line with business plan
targets following the phase 1 investment in new health and fitness
facilities and as reported in the Council’s Performance Report.

12.6 People Stream Board

12.6.1 There are no exception reports for People Stream Board this month.

12.7 Value for Money Stream Board

12.7.1 Assets Strategy

12.7.2 Phase 1 of the accommodation plan is substantially complete resulting
in the reduction of buildings and completion of refurbishment projects

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 9



Page 20

which has enabled significant relocations to Wood Green. However, the
growth in demand for space in the past two years has resulted in the
vacation of the Town Halls and Civic Centre being delayed. This has
resulted in the reassessment of space requirements and long term
solutions are being planned. This includes the introduction of flexible
working and consideration of options to intensify the use of existing
spaces through refurbishments and revised space standards. In the
meantime some additional space is being acquired from within the
Council’s portfolio to provide interim solutions. Alternative
accommodation is also being actively considered for those voluntary
sector groups and council functions that will be displaced from the
Town Halls and need to remain in the locality. Options and solutions
are being investigated in conjunction with work on Phase 2 of the
Accommodation Strategy. The overall status of this project is shown as
AMBER pending agreement of a revised timetable with achievable
timescales.

12.7.3 Procurement Programme

12.7.4 Since the last report, spend data has been produced for all categories
of spend and meetings have taken placed with all category managers
to brief them on ongoing progress and to begin planning the next steps
of the procurement programme.

12.7.5 A meeting has taken place with a potential training provider to plan a
training programme for category managers on appropriate
management tools and techniques. A draft training plan will be agreed
in November and training sessions for Category Managers should
commence in December 07, subject to final agreement

12.7.6 The Councils Contract Management System (CMS) has been
implemented and populated with over 700 contracts. This gives the
Council a single corporate view of all commercial contracts; this
information will be wused to further develop the procurement
programme.

12.7.7 The reported RED status reflects the current shortfall of £316k across
the Procurement Programme (2006 to 2009). Lead officers (category
managers) have been identified and the Corporate Procurement Unit
will work with the category managers between now and December to
identify and agree the projects that will be taken forward.

12.7.8 It is expected that this project will remain RED until this work is
complete; the overall status will therefore remain red until December
and reviewed for January 08. It is expected that savings to meet the
target will be identified by this time.

13. Use of Appendices

13.1  Appendix 1: Programme Highlight Report

Cabinet20071016Agendaltem07ProgrammeHighlightsAugust20070.doc 10



Page 21

Inq ‘padoos aq 0} 104 sey g Ued ‘Z aseyd,
"L Ued ‘Z 9SBYd, 81eD-3 10} S| 810 pajonb ajep pu3

SIX"0XI 00 611y 1/0wal[epuabyg L0+ L00ZIBUIqED
0 000°169°L 000°65€ 000°06€ 000°8€6 [eloL pieog wealls buiag 119M
2% | SHed ‘¢ oSeyd S1an0d 1abpnq
oaloid 8002 93 11U U I JEL PRIEWISS) 000°169° 000'6S€  |000°06€E 00086 £095a | 90-Bny woisoy MaIpUY | U suiaLIe) D3| toam

pleog weaus Buy

“palyuapl uaaq sey 186png 108foid mau [ewo) oN

sjuswwoy

souelen
pajoaloid
109foid |ejo

1ebpnq
109[o0.d |e}O)

1eak 10} aouBLIEA

pajoaloud

ajep 0}
ainyipuadxa
lenjoy

ajep
0} 136pnq pajyoid

18bpnq
aeak Juauuny

sjeq pu3 [ajeq beis

196png
sysiy
sanss|
s
aoinosay

1e se s)joaloud Jo snjels

210 | abeg

snjels by
[TEIEIN

/ BfeISNIN BJUS

1abeuepy
awuweiboid
/8loid

Josuods j0aloid

000052 6cL'6Leere [(000°022'y)  [8/2°¥88°6  [00E°60S°02 212'eL9°6E [ejo pieog weals 31doad Bunoj 3 uaipiyd
0 000'920°9 (000°02) 000°€22 000°00S'Y 000°LOY'Y 60-des | 90-Bny 2100 pireQ faireg ue| 11 9S8y 1S211U8D S,UAIPIYD|  E0dAD
“spsemio} A1ied|
Buiunoo-a|gnop pIoAE 0} papuale uaaq sey Jabpng
8UL 7023 J0 4eak siuy) Joj puadsieno pajosfoid| 000052 000°€65°9€ 000052 000'GIS'}  |000°28S°E 000'04+9'8 80-100 | 90-Aen suleg anelg felreg ue| swuweiboid [eyded Alewiid| 20dA9
By} JoA0D 0} $80IN0SAI UMOUY BUNISIXS UIYIM WOy
Buipuny jeuonippe Ajuapi 0} Buikl) ase wes] 108loid
‘ . . ‘ . ‘ . . . . aIning
0 6€1°009°'66 (000°00%¥) 8/2'9¥1'8 |00€ECeh Ct 2le'e99'9e L1102 90-1eIN unws uopion ueAouoq,0 el a4} 10} 5{0040g Bu 10dAD)|
0 008°Z1£°92 08v°'6S'L  [100'V8S°L 009'800°v [E]0L pie0g Wealls uoljesauabay
*Ajuo Juswsje DAN s! 186png
dVS uaung ay] 's}sod Buiyels swos snid wWs 03 esko;
51 UOINGLAUOD 5,0UN0Y BUL ek [EUBUY POU WS L3(0 0000002 005 eeeeel 000008 20z | sorew v 196108 [IeIN 1ouI00 SpIEM|  LONDY
pue Jeak [eloueul iyl ul w03 paseyd w3 s 1obpng :
(DAN) semuNWwWo) [eag MaN ay} 0} 1S00 810} 8y
"Sa)IS Ko 8WOS 10} S}S00 [es0dsIp buneatl . K . . uonelauabay
PUE |[EH UMO]. WeyusNo | Bunues-ap 10} 1 196png |0 000'69Z G61°L9 L91'62k 000°0S¥ 110z 9002 U810y Ysauiq Joxied ayne pUE" paUMG flounog| 2ONOH
peoy auidg
‘WP |'E3 40 S1S02 108(0id (10} Wil }sale| 1o1en onolg| SBEIIA oleH
ay) 109)j81 0} PasIAGI usaq sey 1aBpnq ay) - Alenpop (a0t ‘ ¢ - : Spun4 ainjonssesu|
puads 186png pue uogaidwoo|® 000°158°S €67'67€ Gel'9se 00€°'66¥°01 80N | 90-idy \mumowﬁo@ _Sm_ pr— IN| yunwwon pue easy ymoig| SONOH)
|eaisAyd Joj sejeosawin Wb A1ap - ploIsueN cl - / BJEISNIN BUUS W
- PleIpeN
0102
‘ f ¢ ‘ ‘ f ‘ ‘ 'SH3IH g uonejuswaldw| ABarens
0 000'529°L c6e'8eh’'t  [6GY9€0° L 005'28%'¢ 100z 1deg| SOUEr foren uarey sbuiuusy pineq peoy ybi weyueyoy | TONOY
4043
0 008°LL 0 L1662 008°LZ 80-1e|N | 90-rON Keleo uaiey sBuiuusH pineq 2JJU8D UMO| USBIS) POOM| €ONDY
‘va1 Aq 1aw pue Aioyine Bujuueld se sapnp Aloinjels PI0J|OO\ UE| anuan
1B 1500 HE "V Aq paiojuow g pjay 196png Iy 9toz 900z | V/IN / BJRISN BIUS sbuiuueH pinea ueqin efeH weyuepoy| ONOY
‘sjuawalinbal 82inosal ay) Buissasse si wWes), L0100 UE
108(01d "s}ebpnq Buiisixa wouy Jow Buieq awi 48210 0102 90-dvy | W¥/N PiojlooMm uel Ksouneq wiy spuejpesH AsbuieH| LoNoOY|

199loid

pieog weaus uonesauabay

uoday wbiybiH sawweiboid




Page 22

000961

6£6'S6£°082

(000‘022‘t)

v20'v0L‘VL

SIX"0XI|

€18

CLL'eSL 19

120! Bv9104£00210UIGED

(-196.1e)} UO J1 UsaIB “JaN0 %G -/+ PUE 0J3Z U3BMIA] JI JaqUIE ‘%G -/+ AQ Jan0 pajdaloid Ji pay - snjels HyY 10N)

pieog weal)s ajdoad

(000°%S) 000869 0 000°982°L  [000°9t6°L 000'G€6°C [e10) pleog weans Asuoyy 10} anjep
ESIEEIE] P oy oo ¢ ‘1ot SINIDON BIne
Jeuonoesue1, pajfes Ajsnomaid sem josfoid siy |0 000'0te’e 0 000°6Z+}  |000°€8}"+ 0o0o0‘oke’e Buiobuo | go-unp / Kouo By, 19¥d ANNe asudiolug dvs| vowsa
*£0-080 Aq paynuap! &q o} joeloid [euonppY

“Jobue) Buies JsuieBe |[ejioys %913 B Apuaing 60-dy | 90-9o4 | V/N H H POOM [9BYIIN yiosawy plesen awweiboId JUBWSINO0Id|  Z0NA|
(000°+S) 000'8EL'Y 0 000°209 000°€9. 000'GeL‘}L 80-020 | tO-Inf Byo8J0Y ysauig 193 ANNe ABoreng s1essy| Lowdn|
0 000°9kL 0 098°8 00522 00568 1210 pieog weaxs ajdoad
0 000°k} 0 00S 005 005'6 £0-92Q | 9o-unp _ _ _ _ BuMOY UaJey| 51d0ag Ul SI0}SaN 203d|
0 000°G0+ 0 09€'8 00022 00008 60-uer | Go-lew SaIABQ OABIS Asouneq wiy mainey Aed [enb3|  toad

1e se s)joaloud Jo snjels

240 g obeg

0 000°601°€ 0 9Sv'9LS 2v0'v09 00+'601°€ 1e10) pieog weans AsbulieH Janeg
's10afoud Buijokoas mau Joy Buipuny JHN|0 000°Ste 0 9v9'HL 005°29 000'512 808N | £0-idy uospaqoy 907 I9UUOQI aAdlS 1SNS| oM
*18q0100
ul uonnjosal andsip o} ob o} 1861e)} uo Ajuaung
‘uonnjosai Buipuad Jeak [eroueuly Juaund ul pjay . ‘ . . . . . . A3 Ined / uosme saoedg
Buleq uoisinoid 106png "papn|ou0d JouU ||1iS JUBLISOA 0 000°09}°k 0 8£G'96 £91°66 0007094} 80-1dy £0-1dy = uo( / sbbug Apuy SHIO uyor uadQ % usain Buiroidw| vOHg
ainsig| | Jeak 10} JUNOJDE [BUI "SWBY} SI9E|d
Jaljeg Japun Buipuny Bumo.iog [enuapnid/40SS
‘uresl uesp 0 szﬂw_ 9 JusWaoIoju
alIgow pue sdn-Jesjo AYunwwod 1o} sway} saveld|Q 000082 0 9G¥'€8 999'91 1 000082 80BN | 90-teN g m_wg_u__\,._z W pineq euueop 2 SSOUILESID [EIUBWUOJ) \ﬁm €0Hgl
Janeg Japun Buipuny pung [emauay pooyinoqybiaN / UoSLEqOY 807
'SjusAe pue ‘ ¢ ‘ ‘ JUSWIBAJOAU|
SuoIROILINWLLIOD Hg Jo} 196png anuaaai weansurepy| O 000'Sve 0 92588 60L°€ct 00v'Sve 80BN | L0-4dy aqnio uor PIAEQ BULEOR 9 sseuasemy Buisiey| 8
“awwelboid [ended| swweibol
1UN0DDY BNUBASY BUISNOH BU} UIUHIM WOy S82IN0S3l|Q 000'602° L 0 1629k 000202 000'602‘+ £0-PO | 90-dy Keunpy Asjueiy Ssiem qog Juewoenoidu memmn_ L0Hg|
[euoippe 108}j8. 0} pajsnipe uaaq sey 1obpng | 3
pieog weans Asbuuey Jeneg
=
ou:m__‘_mm 18bpngq 1eak 10y souepen| _ V%P om ajep 196pngq 2 X @ W m. snjeis oy ._om«:ME " ; i
sjuswwod| pajoafoi - ainypuadxa ajeq pu3 [aleg vels| S @ 4 ® 2 swweiboid Josuods 109foid 109loid
1osload [e1o) 109[o0.d |e}O) pajoaloud [enioy 0} 1abpnq pajyo.d| Jeak yuauny EW 3 8 m W [TEIEYYeY / 100l01d
Ll @

uoday wbiybiH sawweiboid




Page 23 Agenda Item 8

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

CABINET On 16/10/2007

Report Title: The Council’s Performance — August 2007

Report of: The Chief Executive and Acting Director of Finance

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To set out an exception report on the finance and performance monitoring for August
2007 using the balanced scorecard format and showing progress against
achievement of council priorities.

1.2 To agree the virements set out in section 21.5 of the report.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Performance Management (Clir George
Meehan)

2.1 Members of the Cabinet will be pleased to note that 85% of indicators are achieving
or close to achieving target as at August ‘07, the best performance in the year to date.
This illustrates that good progress is being made against the council priorities. In
addition 84% of indicators in our scorecard have maintained or improved performance
compared to last year. This improvement is endorsed in our performance information
profile received from the Audit Commission which shows that 81% of indicators have
improved over the last three years above the average for single tier authorities.

3. Introduction by Cabinet Member for Resources (Clir Charles Adje)

3.1This provides Members with the financial position for the month of August and | draw
members’ attention to paragraphs 20 and 21 respectively and that the proposed
virements be approved.

4. Recommendations
4.1 To note the report and progress against council priorities as shown in the appendix.

4.2 To agree virements set out in section 21.5.




Page 24

Report Authorised by: Dr Ita O'Donovan — Chief Executive

Contact Officers:
Margaret Gallagher — Performance Manager
Telephone 020 8489 2553
John Hardy — Head of Finance — Budgeting, Projects and Treasury
Telephone 020 8489 3726

5. Head of Legal Services Comments
There are no legal implications

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
6.1 Budget management papers

6.2 Service Pl returns including unit cost data

7. Strategic Implications

7.1 This report monitors Haringey’s position in relation to a number of indicators that will
be used to assess the Council in the Comprehensive Performance Assessment
(CPA). Performance against these measures will determine Haringey’s rating in 2008.
The report also gives an indication of the level and quality of services delivered on the
ground.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 The overall revenue budget monitoring, based on the August position, shows a
forecast net overspend of £0.9m. This is made up of a number of budget pressures
that largely relate to Asylum and adult social care. These are partly offset by a
projected underspend on the Housing general fund and an earmarked reserve for
asylum.

8.2 The aggregate capital projected position in 2007/08 is currently projected to
underspend by £4.5m. This is made up of £3.7m in Children and Young People and
£0.8m HRA.

8.3 The BSF capital programme is currently projecting an underspend in 2007/08 of
£4.4m, although it is planned that this sum will be fully committed over the life of the
BSF programme and is purely a profiling issue.

8.4 The Children’s capital budget has a cost pressure of £0.7m excluding BSF. The
projected overspend on the Triangle Children’s Centre has reduced from £670k to
£549k since that reported last month due to additional funding being secured from



8.5

8.6

Page 25

Sure Start grant and is not expected to be contained at this time. In addition the
primary capital programme is projected to overspend by £200k, the Crowland project
by £50k in respect of uninsured additional costs and these are offset be a projected
underspend on the Children’s Centres phase 2 project of £70k .This remaining
projected net overspend of £0.2m is expected to be contained and revised next
month.

The latest forecast position for the HRA capital outturn is an under spend of £0.8m as
reported by HfH to their board.

This projected overspend differs from that shown in the Programme Highlight report
because the £0.5m projected overspend in respect of the Triangle Children’s Centre
project and the projected HRA underspend of £0.8m do not report through the latter
report.

9. Legal Implications

9.1

There are no specific legal implications arising from this report.

10.Equalities Implications

10.1 Equalities is a central thread throughout the council’s performance and performance

updates on key equalities indicators are reported on in this report.

11.Consultation

11.1 The scorecard includes a number of resident and staff satisfaction measures to show

how well the Council is perceived. The results show the level of satisfaction with the
Council currently and should provide a baseline as well as informing action to improve
satisfaction levels.

12.Background

12.1 This is the regular finance and performance monitoring report for August 2007.

It is based on the financial monitoring reports prepared for the budget management
meetings held on 24 September for period 5 and the service submission of the
basket of performance indicators that have been agreed for 2007/08.

12.2 Members have agreed the Council Plan and five priorities for Haringey. These

are.

e Making Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs
e Creating a better Haringey: Cleaner, Greener and Safer



Page 26

e Encouraging lifetime well-being
e Promoting independent living
e Delivering excellent services

12.3 This report focuses on monitoring and reviewing performance against those
priorities and against key objectives as set out in our Council Plan. The indicators
included have been categorised according to the priority under which they sit and
progress is illustrated against indicators achieving, close to or failing to achieve
agreed targets for 2007/08.

12.4 The reporting continues to be in the form of a balanced scorecard. The
scorecard looks at performance across four dimensions: service excellence,
financial health, customer focus and organisational development. The scorecard
consists of corporate and service performance measures.

12.5 The report continues to include routine monitoring of unit costs so that
performance and costs reflecting activity allow us to make judgements around
whether we are delivering value for money services.

13. How the reporting works and interpreting the scorecard

13.1 Performance data is shown in Appendix 1. Performance is reviewed against a
representative basket of 104 indicators at least 55 of which are updated monthly.
Where specific indicators do not lend themselves to monthly reporting, they will be
reported at the appropriate frequency. The scorecard illustrations in the summary
are based on year to date traffic lights and reflect progress as at the month being
reported i.e. this report is based on performance as at August ‘07. Where data is
unavailable for particular indicators at a specific point in time e.g. survey data,
these still feature in the scorecard illustrations with our assessment of progress as
at that time. The latest available data and traffic light awarded is incorporated into
the calculations and the numbers shown both on the balanced scorecard and in the
graphs showing progress against council priorities.

13.2 Progress on indicators continues to be tracked on a monthly and year to date
position against the 2007/08 target using a traffic light annotation where:

e green: = target achieved / performance better than planned

e amber: = just below target (normally a 5% tolerance)

e red: = target not achieved / below expectation

In addition, trend arrows depict progress since the last financial year, so whilst an

indicator may receive a red traffic light for not achieving target, it will show an
upward trend arrow if performance had improved on the previous year’s outturn.



Page 27

Between them, the lights and arrows indicate current progress and predict the
likely annual position.

13.3 This year’s scorecard appendix also includes some graphs to illustrate monthly
progress on some key indicators over time and against target.

13.4 The latest all England top quartile data (for 2006/07) also features in the
scorecard along with an indication of our quartile position in 2006/07. This enables
progress to be assessed not only against the targets we set but in terms of how we
compare with others and how close we are to attaining what we ultimately are
aiming to achieve.

\ 14. Making Haringey One of London’s Greenest Boroughs

Urban Environment

14.1 Recycling and composting performance has remained strong with 24.5%
achieved in the year to August with a slight improvement in August. Despite this
performance is just short of the 25% target set for 2007/08. To ensure that the
target is met the recycling service will be improved this year by rolling out an
additional commingled round in November/ December ’07 , introducing recycling on
private estates in January ‘08 and generally by improving participation rates across
all existing schemes. The services Communications Plan and Waste Minimisation
Plans are both expected to impact on reuse, recycling and composting.

14.2 The waste tonnage collected for August reduced to an annual equivalent of
366Kg of household waste collected per head hitting the target. This is top quartile
performance and with the residual tonnage for the year to date below the
equivalent figures for 2006/07 it is expected that the target of 370Kg per head will
be met. Also, communications work around waste prevention is planned this year
which should help reduce household waste.

14.3 There are no financial issues to report within this priority.

\ 15. Creating a Better Haringey, Cleaner, Greener and Safer

Urban Environment

15.1  Performance in August for street cleanliness was better than target but worse
than recent months. This decline is due to an increase in the levels of detritus
(noted in the August inspections). Waste Management and Haringey Accord will
focus on this as an area for improvement in the coming months.

15.2 Performance for Fly posting and Graffiti based on our in-house monitoring
remains below target. In August the high scores for graffiti in four of the nine land
use classes and for fly-posting in five of the nine land use classes caused this.



Page 28

They included recreation land, other highways, main roads, industrial land and
primary and secondary retail. A pro-active graffiti cleansing service has now been
agreed with Proud Industrial targeting two of the land use classes. The Waste
Management Service will be working with Parks to improve performance in
recreation areas and the remaining land use classes will be cleaned by Haringey
Accord through normal contract activity and the street cleaning washing service.
The BV199 Cleanliness Action Plan will also be expanded to include these areas
for improvement. The Encams, Capital Standards tranche 1 results are expected
imminently.

15.3 The Enforcement budget is projected to spend at budget after allowing for the
£390k one-off successful grant claim to be spent on the Mortuary capital project.
The current pressure on the parking account has marginally reduced to £0.1m
made up of a projected net income shortfall against current budget assumptions. It
is anticipated that this net deficit can be contained within the Streetscene and/or
Urban Environment overall approved budget.

Safer Communities (PPPC)

15.4 The number of British Crime Survey (BCS) comparator crimes reported in
August fell again to 1,456. When projected up this performance remains short of
our challenging target of 17,211 (1395 fewer offences than in 2006/07) for 2007/08.
The performance in the period April to August with 7,820 crimes committed is 2%
higher than the same period in 2006.

\ 16. Encouraging Life Time Well-being

Children and Young People

16.1 A key driver for improving life chances and well being are results at GCSE and
continued gains have been made since 2001 in the percentage of pupils gaining 5+
A*-C grades. Since 2001 Haringey has improved from 30.9% to 51.7% in the 5+
A*-C indicator with provisional results for 2007 showing further progress with 57%
of pupils gaining 5 GCSEs at grades A*C. This closes the gap with the national
result from 19.1% in 2001 to a provisional 4% in 2007. The plan is to reach the
national average next year. This will take considerable work on everyone’s behalf
to increase by another 6%.

16.2 Good progress is being made with Haringey’s Healthy schools programme with
28 schools or 36% having achieved Healthy School status as at July ’07. This puts
us on track to achieve our LAA target of 47 schools or 60% by December ’07.

16.3 Haringey’s NEETs remain considerably higher than those in comparator
boroughs. As at August '07 there were 424 or 13.9% of young people not in
education, employment or training, an increase of 23 (6%) from last month although



Page 29

a drop of 191 (31%) compared with last August. This rise was anticipated owing to
the overhang of currency expiration (young people whose activity is unknown) from
June. There were 90 NEET joiners this month, down from 102 last month, 28 of
these as a result of currency re-establishment. However there have been a total of
196 NEET leavers in the last 3 months due to currency expiration but only 76 with
currency re-established as NEET over the same period. A further increase in
NEETSs in September is therefore expected as it would appear that there are still
large numbers of young people for whom currency has to be re-established.

16.4 Connexions North London has led on actions to reduce NEET levels. Strategies,
evaluations and actions are in place to tackle the comparatively high NEET levels.
This includes improved access to personal development programmes, improved
cross boundary tracking, developing the Haringey Guarantee for young people and
better systems to track those at risk of dropping out of programmes at the earliest
possible point.

16.5 The BSF capital programme is currently projecting an underspend in 2007/08 of
£4.4m, although it is planned that this sum will be fully committed over the life of the
BSF programme. Full details are included in the BSF Board highlight report.

16.6 Haringey’s Children in Care did extremely well in their GCSEs this year; 31%
achieved at least five A*-Cs compared with 10% in 2004/5; 53% achieved at least
five A-Gs compared with 35% in 2004/5 and 64% achieved at least one A-G
compared with 30% in 2004/5 — significant progress over the last three years.
Fourteen of our young people in care achieved Level 3 national qualifications, 10
of whom are continuing their education at university whilst one young person has a
place at the London College of Fashion. Five care leavers graduated from
university this year with degrees in Medicine, Law, Aeronautical Engineering,
Nursery and Cinematics.

Adult, Community and Culture

16.7 The number of seasonally adjusted annual equivalent visits to our sports and
leisure centres increased in August to over 1 million and the position in the year so
far with 546,020 visits (1.2 million annual equivalent) is above our target of 1.18
million.

16.8 The cost per visit to our leisure centres reduced to £1.18 in August with a cost of
£1.32 in the year to August remaining below our target of £2.09 for 2007/08.

16.9 The commissioning budget for adult social care is currently projected to
overspend by £1.1m. Part of this is in the learning disabilities service where there
is a significant pressure from the number of people known by the service, who may
potentially require support in this financial year. There has been an increase of 15
clients since May. It also includes physical disabilities where actual client numbers
are 18 above the budget assumption. The service is reviewing high cost care
packages to ensure costs are minimised.



Page 30

16.10 The capital programme is projected to spend at budget.

| 17.

Promoting Independent Living

Children and Young People

17.1 Excellent performance has been sustained with looked after young people in
employment, education or training (BV161/ PAF A4) and care leavers are achieving
above that of the local population of 19 year olds in education, training or
employment. Monthly monitoring must be interpreted with caution as the cohort of
children increases as the year progresses and monthly percentages vary often
reflecting a very low number of young people. As at August '07 63.3% of care
leavers (aged 16) were engaged in employment, education or training at the age of
19 against a target of 72% for 2007/08.

17.2 There have been 16 adoptions or special guardianship orders granted in the
year to July (5%) against a target of 24 (7%) by the end of March ’07. It should be
noted that this is a cumulative indicator which will increase throughout the year.
Current performance suggests that the 2007/08 target should be achievable.
(BV163/ PAFC23)

17.3 The Children and Young People’s budget (excluding Asylum and DSG) has up
to £0.8m of projected pressures relating to the commissioning budget (Looked After
Children) that the service are working to manage. A line by line budget review is
currently taking place to identify possible savings. The DSG element of the overall
Children and Young People’s Service budget is projected to underspend by £0.4m
and is in respect of the Network Family support budget that needs to be carried
forward to meet the summer term 2008 commitments.

17.4 The Asylum position relating to Children is projected to overspend by a net
£0.5m. This projected overspend is over and above the additional base budget
allocated to the service. However, a contingency has been assumed to offset the
projected asylum overspend in Children and Young People and in Adults, Culture
and Community. When the matter of disputed cases is fully resolved, all those
where there is not an eligibility for grant claim will be reassessed to identify if there
is still a need to provide a service. Consideration will be given to undertaking full
‘Human Rights’ assessments to identify if it is possible to reasonably cease
support.

17.5 The Children’s capital budget has a cost pressure of £0.7m excluding BSF. The
projected overspend on the Triangle Children’s Centre has reduced from £670k to
£549k since that reported last month due to additional funding being secured from
Sure Start grant and is not expected to be contained at this time. In addition the
primary capital programme is projected to overspend by £200k, the Crowland
project by £50k in respect of uninsured additional costs and these are offset be a



Page 31

projected underspend on the Children’s Centres phase 2 project of £70k . However,
the service has already identified savings within the budget which will be used to
manage the pressures noted above. This will move the variance from an
overspend to an underspend and will be reported next month.

Adult, Community and Culture

17.6 As at August we have helped 97 older people per 1,000 populations to live at
home bringing performance much closer to our target of 101. This improvement
reflects the inclusion of clients in receipt of telecare as helped to live at home and
the service expect that the 2007/08 target will be exceeded. (BV54/ PAF C32)

17.7 96.3% of equipment was delivered within 7 working days in August exceeding
our 90% target on this key threshold indicator.

17.8 140 adults and older people per 100,000 population have received a direct
payment in the year to August exceeding the monthly profiled target of 137. There
are currently 19 pending clients being counted towards this indicator and the
service are working with the Direct Payments team to get progress reports on all of
these cases. With these clients counted the service are on track to hit their 150
target by the end of the year. (BV201/ PAF C51)

17.9 An area where performance has improved significantly in the first five months of
this municipal year is the waiting times for assessment. This indicator is the
average of new older clients receiving an assessment where time from initial
contact to first contact with the client is less than or equal to 48 hours (part a) and
the percentage where time from first contact to completion of assessment is less
than or equal to 4 weeks (part b). The average of the two is 96.2% and continues to
exceed our 90% target. (BV195/PAFD55)

17.10 Performance on waiting time for care packages has improved further in August
with 91% of new older clients receiving their care package in less than 4 weeks.
(BV196/PAF56)

17.11 The cost of intensive social care per client reduced to £653.10 as at August, just
above our revised and tougher target of £640.

17.12 Asylum that relates to the Adults, Community and Culture budget is projected to
overspend by a net £0.4m. There are currently 133 clients that have no recourse to
public funds who are supported by the authority. Members have agreed a report
that seeks a more robust approach to managing more clients in a cost effective
way. Following a planned review of clients eligibility for services, the Asylum team
will look to move clients out of the service. There is an expectation that the
projection will fall during the financial year. As previously mentioned a contingency
for asylum in reserves has been assumed to offset the projected asylum overspend
in Children and Young People and in Adults, Culture and Community.



Page 32

Benefits

17.13 The average number of days to process a benefit claim increased further to 40
days in August reducing our performance in the year so far to 35 days against a 32
day target. This is a common trend seen by other Authorities following
implementation of a new Document Management System (Comino W2). Areas of
delay have been identified and strategies are in place to address the dip in
performance (BV78a). It is expected that this will improve significantly in the next
two months.

Housing Strategy (Urban Environment)

17.14 The average length of stay in hostels, increased further with a year to August
figure of 82 weeks against a target of 60 weeks. The count for this indicator
measures the entire history of all stays in hostels where the family has been
permanently re-housed in the period.

17.15 The Housing general fund ring fenced budget is currently projected to have an
underspend of £1m due to the Council's strategy to reduce temporary
accommodation numbers not being on target. The number of households in
temporary accommodation is remaining at higher levels than estimated. The actual
number at the start of the year was 5,709. The target for end of 2007/08 is 4,824.
The actual at period 5 is 5,699 compared to a profiled position of 5,340. The budget
figures were set taking account of Government reduction targets in respect of
homelessness numbers and achievement of these this year is proving to be very
challenging.

| 18.

Delivering Excellent Services

People and Organisational Development (POD)

18.1 The average number of working days lost to sickness per full time equivalent
employee reduced significantly to 6.81 days in August. Performance in the year to
August at 9.18 days remains above our 8.8 day target. The graph in appendix 1
shows that up until August sickness levels reported in 2007/08 were higher than
those for the same period in 2006/07. However this remains an area that needs to
be closely monitored.

18.2 The Local Democracy budget is projected to underspend by £50k and this is
partly due to vacancies that are in the process of being filled.

10



Page 33

Policy, Performance, Partnerships and Communication (PPPC)

18.3 Performance on complaints handling in timescale remains above the target. In
August with 58 of the 61 (92%) complaints at stage 1 (local resolution) responded
to within the 10 working day timescale. For the more complex service investigation
(stage 2), performance has improved in recent months and 92% were responded to
in time in August. In the year to August of the 79 stage 2 cases, 63 were resolved
within the 25 working day timescale and performance at 80% is now hitting the
target set for 2007/08.

18.4 25 of the 28 (89%) stage 3 (independent review) complaints closed in the year
to August were completed within the 20 working day timescale, just short of the
95% target.

18.5 Of the 146 Members' enquiries cases closed in August, 131 (89%) were handled
within 10 working days, just short of the 90% target although performance in the
year to date at 93% still exceeds target.

18.6 The PPP&C budget is projected to underspend by £71k and this is due to
vacancies that are in the process of being filled.

Children and Young People

18.6 Performance on handling Children’s Act Complaints at stage one declined with 3
of the 6 cases closed in August meeting the timescale and reducing performance in
the year to August to 70% below the 80% target. This represents 14 of the 20
cases responded to in the 10 day timescale. Action has been taken to improve this
performance.

Adult, Culture and Community Services

18.7 The cost per visit to our libraries at £2.55 is just above our local target of £2.50.
This is amongst the lowest costs in London with unit costs ranging from between
£1.90 to £4.20 per visit.

18.8 The Libraries Service has been asked to make all efforts to meet its income
target but if this is not possible the service will need to find savings elsewhere. This
is required to contain the forecast non achievement of income that is mainly due
from previously providing a consultancy service.

11



Page 34

Corporate Resources

18.9 On telephone answering our council wide performance is that 78% of calls
received in the year to August were answered within 15 seconds, just short of our
target of 80%.

18.10 48% of calls to the call centre were answered within 30 seconds in August (56%
year to date), a reduction on the 64% achieved in July and short of the 70% target.
This is due to an increase in the number of calls answered which compared with
the same period in 2006 is a 26% increase. This volume increase was due to an
increase in calls in response to specific letters being sent by two service areas and
new services being undertaken by the call centre in respect of preventions and
options. Action is being taken to address the impact on this in the future.

18.11 The percentage of customers seen within 15 minutes in our Customer Service
Centres was 70% in August, sustaining the significant improvement on the
corresponding period last year, and whilst the position in the year so far at 66% is
not quite achieving the 70% target, the target was met for the second time this year
in August.

18.12 The level of performance on invoice payments dipped again in August with 89%
of invoices paid in 30 days bringing the position in the year so far to 90.7%
remaining short of the 92% target.

18.13 93.77% of council tax was collected in the year to August '07 with collection
rates having dipped in July and August. Although performance is only just short of
our target of 93.85% for 2007/08 this places us in the bottom quartile when
compared with other authorities.

18.14 The overall sundry debt (211 day debt) reduced in August and although the
monthly profiled target was not quite achieved, we are on track to hit a revised
target of £4.16m by the end of 2007/08.

18.15 As previously reported the revenue budget has a number of budget pressures.
£0.4m is in respect of Property Services where there are higher electricity charges
for River Park House (£0.1m) and the impact of high vacancy/voids at Technopark
(£0.3m) which will continue to challenge achievement of the income target. A
management plan is in place to reduce this deficit which includes a drive for new
tenants. However, this intervention is unlikely to produce results early enough to
allow budgeted income to be fully achieved this year. Other savings will be
identified to remain within the budget.

18.16 Legal land charges income is projected to be £0.3m below budget as the
number of searches is lower than anticipated in the current volatile market
conditions. Local land charges search numbers increased against a three year
average in June 2007 and this is likely to be attributable to an increased number of
houses being sold prior to the introduction of home information packs (HIPs).

12



Page 35

Search numbers have since dropped by around 18% in July and August and this is
likely to be the combination of several factors such as; HIPs now required for 3
bedroom properties, rising interest rates and loss of confidence in the housing
market. The outlook for the remainder of the year is very uncertain but search
numbers seem unlikely to increase in the short term and a shortfall in local land
charges income is almost certain to occur.

18.17 A key issue for Procurement is achievement of the £0.5m corporate
procurement savings by developing projects in a timely fashion. It is likely that
some of this saving will be delayed, however other savings will be identified to
balance the budget overall. This is being managed through the Procurement
Project Board under the Value for Money Stream Board.

Urban Environment

18.18 The net cost of service per parking ticket issued (surplus) increased to £17.51
exceeding the target and bringing the year to date position very close to the target
£14. It is anticipated that the 2007/08 target will be met this year.

18.19 The residual waste collection costs per tonne at £86 in August increased owing
to a reduction in the residual tonnage, but the year to date figure remains at £86
which is below the slightly revised target of £90.

18.20 The recycling costs per tonne increased slightly to £162 in August owing to a
reduction in recycled tonnage mainly from the kerbside commingled and estates
collection service. This tonnage profile is common for August with participation
rates down owing to residents being on holiday. This was the first month above
target but the end of year target remains in reach.

18.21 As previously mentioned in partnership with the South African embassy and in
consultation with the Oliver Tambo family, local schools and community groups, the
London Borough of Haringey will be organising a high profile event to
commemorate the life of Oliver Tambo in October 2007.

18.22 The South African embassy has already provided its commitment to finance key
elements of the event and contributions from other external sources are currently
being pursued.

18.23 Capital is currently projected to spend at budget. The previously reported
overspend on the Hornsey public mortuary re-location project has been funded
from the Directorate’s revenue budget and the balance from capital receipts. This
was approved by Cabinet on 18™ September.

18.24 The NDC capital budget for 2007/08 is £4.396m and has recently been
transferred to Urban Environment. There is currently an underspend against the
profiled budget amounting to £1.1m. The majority of the budget has now been
allocated to projects and spend is expected to increase significantly during the
second half of the year.

13



Page 36

Homes for Haringey

18.25 Performance on rent collection improved this month with 97.29% of rent due
collected in the year to August ‘07 moving us closer to achievement of our 97.5%
target.

18.26 The percentage of tenants with more than seven weeks rent arrears remained
at 15.9% in August still short of our 10% target for 2007/08. The drive to serve
Notices of Seeking Possession (NOSPs) has seen an increase in the number
served and the 15% target was reached in July. The service plan to continue to
serve NOSPs as appropriate with the aim of increasing income collection.
Exercises focusing on tenants owing between 7 and 20 weeks rent are nearing
completion and it is hoped that this will result in a further increase in both the
NOSPs served and in the collection rate.

Non Service Revenue (NSR)
18.27 The NSR budget is projected to underspend by a net £0.3m.

18.28 As previously reported there are some budget pressures in respect of Council
costs regarding Alexandra Palace as follows:

e £240k additional cost in the Alexandra Palace business plan (£740k) compared
to £500k in our budget,

e £65k is the approximate loss per month whilst the Firoka deal has still not been
signed. The latest projection is to the end of August (£325k).

The extent of future loss will be determined by the outcome of current judicial
review proceedings and it is hope that an expedited hearing will take place in early
October.

18.29 The NSR budget shows the £0.9m earmarked reserve for Asylum that has been
previously referred to for funding the currently projected Asylum budget pressure.

19. Performance Summary

19.1  Good progress is being made across all the priorities with 85% of indicators
achieving green or amber status as at August ‘07. We continue to make good
progress on promoting independence (93.3% or 14 indicators green or amber),
making Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs (85.7% or 6 indicators green
or amber) and delivering excellent services 89% or 48 indicators green or amber).

19.2  In summary the balanced scorecard shows that for service delivery 82% of
indicators are on target or close to the end of year target as at August ‘07. For 12 of
the 15 (80%) customer focus measures, performance targets are being met or
close to being met. For financial health 29 of the 30 traffic lighted measures

14



Page 37

achieved green or amber status, meaning for 96.7% of traffic lighted indicators
performance levels are achieving target or being maintained at an acceptable level.
Our organisational development /capacity indicators show that for 6 of the 8 (75%)
measures, performance is meeting or close to expectation. In addition 84% of
indicators have maintained or improved performance since the end of last year.

Summary - Budget Monitoring

19.3 Overall revenue budget monitoring, based on the August position, shows a
forecast net overspend of £0.9m. This is made up of a number of budget pressures
that largely relate to Asylum and adult social care. These are partly offset by a

projected underspend on the Housing general fund and an earmarked reserve for
asylum.

19.4 The aggregate revenue projected position in 2007/08 is as shown in the
following table.

General Fund revenue Approved | Projected
Budget variation
£m £m
Children and Young People 228.1 0
- Asylum 0.5
Adults, Culture & Community 73.7 1.1
- Asylum .
Corporate Resources 10.9 0.3
Urban Environment 48.3 (1.0)
Policy, Performance, 11.6 (0.1)
Partnerships &
Communications
People, Organisation & 0.1 0
Development
Chief Executive 0.5 0
Non-service revenue 11.4 (0.3)
Total 384.6 0.9

19.5 The DSG element of the overall Children and Young People’s Service budget is
projected to underspend by £0.4m and is in respect of the Network Family support
budget that needs to be carried forward to meet the summer term 2008
commitments.

19.6 In relation to the HRA, the net current revenue projection is a surplus of £0.4m
against the approved budget as agreed by Council in February 2007. This latest
forecast position was reported by HfH to their Board on 18" Sep 2007. The net
surplus arises because rent and service charges income is projected to be above
budget mainly resulting from a 53" rent week falling into 2007/08, but this is partly

15



Page 38

offset by additional costs pressures which have emerged, such as increased bad
debt provision to give a net projected surplus of £0.4m.

20. Capital

20.1 The aggregate capital projected position in 2007/08 is as shown in the following
table.

Capital Approved | Spend to Projected
Budget date variation
£m £m £m

Children & Young People 43.9 11.5 (3.7)
Adults, Culture & Community 7.6 1.3 0
Corporate Resources 9.1 3.3 0
Urban Environment — General 31.6 2.9 0
Fund
Urban Environment - HRA 19.8 5.7 (0.8)
Policy, Performance, 0.3 0.1 0
Partnerships & Communications

Total 112.3 24.8 (4.5)

20.2 The latest forecast position for the HRA Capital outturn is an under spend of
£783k as reported by HfH to their board. The capital programme contains a level
of over programming of £1.345m (6.8% of confirmed resources). The current
projected underspend represents an under utilisation of this allowance, which
will be addressed as part of the normal processes of the management of the
capital programme to ensure that full or near full spend is achieved by the end of
the year.

21.  Financial administration
21.1 Financial regulations require proposed budget changes to be approved by
Cabinet. These are shown in the table below. These changes fall into one of
two categories:

) budget virements, where it is proposed that budget provision is to be
transferred between one service budget and another. Explanations are
provided where this is the case;

) Increases or decreases in budget, generally where notification has been
received in-year of a change in the level of external funding such as
grants or supplementary credit approval.

21.2 Under the Constitution, certain virements are key decisions. Key decisions are:

. for revenue, any virement which results in change in a directorate cash
limit of more than £250,000; and

16



Page 39

for capital, any virement which results in the change of a programme area
of more than £250,000.

21.3 Key decisions are highlighted by an asterisk in the table.

21.4 The following table sets out the proposed changes. Each entry in the table
refers to a detailed entry in the appendices, which show the budgets that it is
proposed to change. There are two figures shown in each line of the table and the
detailed sheets. The first amount column relates to changes in the current year’s
budgets and the second to changes in future years’ budgets (full year). Differences
between the two occur when, for example, the budget variation required relates to
an immediate but not ongoing need or where the variation takes effect for a part of
the current year but will be in effect for the whole of future years.

21.5 Proposed virements are set out in the following table:

Period

Service

Key

Amount
current year
(£°000)

Full year
Amount
(£°000)

Description

UE, ACC

Rev

70

Groundwork core funding transfer to
Urban Regeneration.

C&YP

*

Rev

1,094

Updating the budget to agree with
approved 2007/08 DCSF Standards
fund grant.

UE

*

Cap

1,675

Additional TFL funding mainly for
A406 road (£1.157m), bus priority
network and bridge works (£41k) and
NLTF (£447k).

ACC, UE

Rev

46

46

Transfer of Arts & Culture post from
Economic Regeneration to ACC.

UE

Cap

769

Funding of Mortuary project
additional costs from the UE revenue
budget (£390k) and from capital
receipts (£379K).

ACC

Rev

79

79

Mental Health Grant adjustment to
bring budget in line with 2007/08
allocations

UE

Rev

95

Recycling collection from Housing
Estates. The Balance of an 18 month
pilot scheme.

ACC

Cap

132

Re-phasing into 2008/09 of retention
monies in respect of the Older
People’s Strategy project for Osborne
Grove.

ACC

Cap

174

Some re-phasing into 2008/09 in
respect of the E. Care project.

17



Page 40

22.Use of Appendices

Appendix i. August balanced scorecard and performance summary

18



Appendix 1

Page 41

August 2007

How we perform against the Council Priorities

Year to date position - August 2007

Make Haringey one  Create a better
of London's Haringey: Cleaner,
greenest boroughs Greener, and Safer

Encourage Lifetime
well being

Deliver excellent
services

Promote
independent living

Performance is reviewed against a representative basket of 109 indicators at least 58 of which are updated monthly.
Comparative performance for most BVPIs is shown against provisional 2006/07 all England quartiles from the Audit Commission.
Monthly and year to date position progress are tracked against the target using traffic lights and arrows showing change from last year

where:

Same as last year
Performance missing target

A

Better than last year
Performance close to target

Worse than last year
Performance on target

Each of the 109 indicators' year to date position is counted in the appropriate Council Priority.

Haringey's balanced scorecard

The balanced scorecard looks at performance across four dimensions: service excellence, financial health, customer focus and organisational
development with each indicator's year to date position against target scored in the appropriate dimension. The balance between cost and service

delivery represents Value for Money (V.F.M.)

Excellent/Services

Targets
Less than 20% Red (O
At least 50% Green O

If we are meeting the targets the Red
sections will be contained within the
inner circle, with the Green sections
extending inwards into the green circle

Okganisational Development

Customer Focus

Financial Health




,002/01/S0 vl Jo z abed L0 Bny g LA piedslods sjesodiod
T O x
Le'LL Swm 2) 9Sv'lL LLG'L €65°L 799°L 96S°l 909‘8lL 20
89/°81 50
| poy | pay pay pay pay ERCES
"240jaq Jeak e pouad swes ueyj Jaybiy 9%z si 200 Isnbny 0} [udy pouad ay} ul sswid 0Zg8‘ /. Yim ajep 0} Jeak ay) = D W
ul @ouewopad ay| ") 1@8w 0} padinbal si (S8ouayo Jama} GE L) uononpal 9,G /. Buibua|eys e pue 19b.e} g0z Sy} 40} JedA |eul 8y} si 80/2002 M RO
Qo 5 D
J0jesedwod AdAIng awild) ysijug - awnd papodal ul uoionpay VAV m. 3
uojedsunwwo?) @ sdiysiaujied ‘@oueuLioyiad ‘Aaijod
Jajes pue Jaudalib ‘Jaued|d :AabulieH J19)}aq e ajeal)
(1€ lenyoe) | (¢ [enoe) | (L€ [enjoe) | (e¢ [enjoe) | (o€ [enjoe) a|iuend <
028 8.¢ 99¢ 16S 08¢g /8¢ 98 09¢ %) =
doy g eI
"a)sem pjoyasnoy sonpai djay pinoys yoiym Jeak siyy pauueld st uonusaaid| zo/900z |3 w m.
9)SEM PUNOJE YIOM SUOIBOIUNWIWOD ‘0S|y "19W aq ||IM peay Jad By0/¢ Jo 196.e) ay} jey) paioadxa si Jl 0s /0/9002 04 sainbiy jusjeainba ay} mojaq S @ @
Qa 96¢ 9 II1s sem ajep o} Jeak ay} Joy abeuuo) [enpisal ay| ‘19bie} uo sem aouewlopad Buiuesw ‘uononpas e pamoys isnbny Joj abeuuo) |enpisal ay | ? m M
<f| eimeno doy saulpeap buipoda. 0} anp abueyo Jouiw 0} }oslgns aie sainbij )seje] "bx8/€ uey) ssaj 90/500Z djienb doy uopuoy m =
al 20/9002 (s39yoeiq Ul [EN)OE - JudjeAlnba jenuue pajsnipe Ajjeuoseas) peay Jad pajoa||0d ajsem pjoyasnoy jo By B8 Ad =
[ e ge4 uep 29Q AON 190 dag Bny ine unp Repy idy 10/9002 M
al %001 >
%0°S1 m,um
%002 m.
80/.0 umm._m._. —_— —— %0°G¢ (0]
poob s| souew.lopad ybiH ) =
%0°0€ e
= @
o
%S¢ %Ly vT %€ VT %0'vC %LvC %1'GC %€ T %V'€C pm. w
"3
‘(Ayonignd pue yiom suoiesiunwwod Buiobuo ybnouyy) sewayos Bunsixa ay) Jo |le ssoloe sajes uonedionied|  90/6002 e
Buinoiadwi Aq Ajjesauab pue (g uer) sajeiss ajeald uo BulpAoas Buonpoaul ‘0 99Q/AON Ul punod pajbullwod [euonippe ue jno Buijol 2
vLE Aq Jeah siy) panoiduil aq |Im 8a1A1as BulpAoal ay) 1ab.e) 9,6z 8y} 198w 0} JBPJo U] "%¢ HZ 01 %€ 0 Aq 1snbny ul Apybis panoidwi aouewlouad m
(]
sjipend doy sauljpeap buipioda. o) enp abueyd Jouiw o} }oalqns aJe saunby jseje7| 194+1€C8 =
90/5002 pajsodwo9 10 pajaAsal uaaq sey Ysiym ajsem pjoyasnoy jo 9, Ng a
JuswuoJIAUg ueqgin
sybno.oq }sauaalb s,uopuo- jo auo AabulieH aje
B
80/20 396ue mwmn._h._.mi go-leW | ded uer 23 AON 10 dog Bny Inp unp Kew ady £0/90 oy | Mo
L00Z ¥snbny 80/2.00Z - M3IAdY dduewIoudd A|YJuo




£002/01/S0 vl Jo ¢ abed L0 Bny 27 LA pJedaloos sjelodio)
%S %l | %L | %L1 %L %E | %2 %S openo | oS
DO DOY DO DO DO DOY 1SIOAA PUZ %%..
>
‘) apnjoul 0} papuedxa aq [|IM UB|d UONOY SSaUIUES|D) BE6L Ad OUi Jojesipul siy} 1o juswanoidwi| £0/900C o g w.
10} seale pue SuUoljoe 8y} U0 SNO0) 0} JopJO U] "Seale uoljealoal Ul souewlopad aaoidwi 0} syled Yyum Buijiom aq |[Im 99IA19S Juswabeuey g @ o
81SeM\ 8L "sSONT @say Jo om) sjeble) siy] “[elisnpu] pnoldd Yiim pasibe usaq mou sey aolAlas Buisues|o niyeld aAnoe-oid y ‘|euisnpul pue speol 2 m g
%L 9 ulew ‘sAemybiy Jayjo ‘uonealosl {siyy pasned sONT 6 40 1IN0 Ul elb 1oy 8100s ybiy ay) 1snbny ) 1eb.ie} mojag ag 0} Senujuod aouBwWIoNSd 2 W
speny doy %L L SBM 90/G0 Ul UOPUOT 40} 8100S 8belony 'sse|) asn pue] = N7 m. mw_u
20/900¢ 1jijels) - SSauljued|d JUSWUOIIAUS pue }3831)s [ed07| J661 Ad =
%62 %02 %VC %L1 %81 %Ll %9¢C %0V ®I
o 20
&9
£0/900¢ |% T
o ‘syjuow Buiwiod ayj ul Juswanoidwi Joj BaJe UB SB SIY} UO SNJ0} ||IM pIoddy AsbBulieH pue juswabeuely aisep) (suonoadsul 3snbny ay} L o
<| %0z Ul pajou) SNiJep JO S[aAS] 8Y) Ul 8Sealoul Ue 0} anp SI auljosp SIY| "SYIUOW Jusdal uey) 8siom Ing jablie) ueyl Jenag sem isnbny ul souewlousd M w m
Q oppenp doy poob si eouewuopad moT m,. m £
nﬂqu 10/9002 SNJLIJOp R 19T - SSaUIjURS|D JUBWIUOIIAUS pue Joal)s 20| eesL A9 |
at O
29Q AON 10 des Bny e unp Rep Jdy Jepy ged 10-uer 9002 3
: 0 )
T
] / — 05 oo
~ 200z 1obreL 00l g e
POOD SI 80UBWIOLad MO’ 3 0
05} S op
83
Loozwell] (o) ov Wzl | (es (9) 85 ZiL ameno | 2 3
seg puz_| 22
L/ 98 NON 120 deg Bny inp unp Ae Jdy Je go4 uer 9002 s00¢ -9
spend doy ‘lensn uey) Be| Jaylny Buisned ae swajqoid || 921104 ‘Jeuoisinoid aie pue Ti| WOlf paAIeod. jSaje| 8y} ale umoys sainblj ey | m
G002 1eak Jepusje) "(sja)oeiq ul sjenjoe) juajeainba jenuue pajsnipe Ajjeuoseag ‘painful Ajsnouias 1o paj|iy ajdoad jo JaquinN| I1e66 AG =Y
R4 81°¢ 86°'L 76°L 6L¢C 6v'¢ €e'e 88l s|iuenp Q
doj oF s
® S O
gce ‘Jow ueaq sey jobie} LA pue Alyuow ayl| 20/9002 |8 a9
®© @ T
ajipeny doj 9 s 2
10/9002 (ON@ 2u3 jo |013u0d ul A|ddns samod o} Bunjejas syney ydaoxa) syney bunybi| y39a13s Jiedas 0} sAep abelsaay| egLz Ag g
juawiuoJiAug ueqin
80/20 3061 mmMWE 80-eW | qod uer 09 AON 190 dog Bny Inp unp few ady £0/90 OV R




£002/01/50 vl Jo ¥ abed L0 Bny Z' LA pJedalods sjelodio)
%LS %025 %L 1S 4
o)
55
%8°L9 £00¢ 10} synsal [euoisinold|  £0/900C o> m
o)
ajen doj a =
jJuajeainba W.
10/9002 10 9 -,y sapeub je s3g99 aiow 1o dAl Buiaaiyse Ajaoyine uoljeonpad [eao] ay) Aq paurejuiew sjooyss ul sjidnd pjo ueah G| jo 9, 8E Ad o
9oIAI9G so|doad BUNOA pue s,uaipliyd
Bulag-||om awiayl| abeinoosuy
%6¢ %C€ %VE %S¢C %9¢C %9¢C %09 %099 nm% m,wn o
DY D @ m w
- - =}
3§ 2
M__ﬂ SNj1ap JO S|9A9| 8|geidasdeun Yiim pue| Jo %¢eG pue Jall| %G| wodl dn apew si %p¢ s,isnbny w ,nAu )
N [eLasnpu| w 3 &
F b3e
[ saoIAlas Aladoud - puej [eLysnpu] - (SnLlep R 19)31]) SSauljuea|d JUSWUOIIAUS pue }aaJ)s [edo]| B66L AG |@ =
al $921n0Ssay 9jes0dio)
(@)
%6¢ %81 %LC %6 %0¢ %0 %€E %0V o O
o @
DO > I
L85
aoueIEa|D snjlap 0} uonuaje Jajealb aalb 0} pamainal Bulaq swwelboid yiom sualbAH syled 1snbne Buunp snjujep JO S|9AS| pasealou| 9 m ©
poob s1 eouewiouad mo] Siied w 2 M
= [0}
sooeds uadQ pue syled - (SNJJOp @ 193}]) SSAUIJUBS|D JUSWUOIIAUL pue Jaass [edo]| B66L A ] -
Ajunwwo? @ ainyny synpy
%l %S’S %S Y%V %S %S %8 %S o Q
o 8
ST
. 20/900¢ o o
J10}e2IpuUl SIY} @pnjoul 0} papuedxa aq |[IM Ue|d UOIIOY SSauljues|d egalL Ag @Y} Jo1edipul siy} o} JusawaAoiduwl 1o} Seale pue suoioe v g
8y} UO SNJ0} 0} Joplo U] "821A18s Bulysem 19a1)s ay) pue AJIAIIOE J0BJUOD [ewlou ybnouy) pioddy AsbueH Aq paues|o aq |im sON T Bululews. o % =
ayl “Jom nyelb aanoe-oud vy ybnouyy sAemybiy Jayio, yum [esp [|Im |euisnpu] pnold ‘sAemybiy Jayjo pue speol uiew ‘Buisnoy Ayisusp g o W
%0 9 luBiy ‘peyas Asepuodass pue Asewnd (siy) pasned sONT 6 40 1o G ul Buysod Al Jo [9A8] ybiy ay) 1snbny u| "1ob1e) mojag 8q 0} SeNUIIUOD SoUBWIONSd & o
@ 3
epend dog %€ SeM 90/G0 Ul UopuO] J0j 8109S abelony 'Sse|D asM pue] = oN7 2%
10/9002 Bunsod A|4 - SSauUljUBS|D JUBWUOIIAUD pue }934)s |e207| 966] Ad =
3
80/20 3061 mmmwmi 80-eW | qod uer 09 AON 190 dog Bny Inp unp few ady £0/90 OV R




1002/01/S0 71 JOo G abed /0 Bny Z LA piedalods ajesodio)
o
o | (020°9FS) (Log'ee) [(ocL'sol) |(9v9'0l) | (¥B8'0LL) | (68L°'SO0L) ey ¢ 5]
o
0008k 1€8'90C°) €0C'/6Ll°L | ¥.6'6.6 [618°06¢C°| |v.2°2GC°L | 90€°€9E’L Lh0erhl =
&
g o
=
‘abesn opl| 1964e) mojaq pue Jayjeam juawsaoul 0} anp Anl ur dip Buuaaooal ‘joble} [enuue jsuiebe yoel) uo ¥oeq aduewloed Qe g
3
=
(s39x)9oe4q Ul sjenjoe ‘yuajeainba jenuue pajsnipe Ajjeuoseas) abesn ainsio] @ spodg [e307] L
_.An__ 60°C3 ceL3 8L'L3 V.3 G603 y0'L3 AN c0'¢c3 =
- &3
(@)] sjuswAed YANN Sopnjoul mou ainbi4 Ainp m wa. 2
[ | @) o
0 58
a1juan ainsia e 0} UsIA Jad }so) [e007]
L13 00813 00813 00'8L3 00'8L3 00'8L3 00'8L3 00°8L3 Cm
POC o oy 3
=] m M nnV
LF>E9'LLF e <3
Buipueg uinal L HH 8y Buipuad JequiaroN |nun abueys jou m siyy | 448 4vd ol ®
Jjed dojy jualod Jad ased awoy jo 3so09| 1s0D uun
Alunwwo) @ ainyn) sjinpy
%0€°CL %6°€l %C'El %8¢l %8'vl %0€ L %C° €L m
>
Q
‘paysi|ge)se-al aq 0} spasu Aouauind woym Joy aidoad BunoA jo siequinu abie| m
|Ins ale alay} ey} Jeadde pjnom )i se Jaquuadag ul pajoadxa s 8sealoul Jaypuny e pue aunp wodj (umouun st 8jdoad 6unoA jo uoiodoud e jo - =
AuAnoe yuauino ay) alaym) uoneaidxa Aoualind jo Bueysano ayy Jo asnoeaq pajedidiue sem S 3N Ul 8Sealoul Siy]l "%/ 91 sem ] 33N abejusoiad @ W
ay) usym jsnbny i1se| mojaq ||i1s ybnoyije (%9) £z Jo asealoul ue ‘yzi sem isnbny Joy ainbly s] 33N [BNIOY “200Z SaAIT Buibuey) jo uonenjeas a W
3y} Ul 8Je S|Iejap Jayln4 "] 33N O} Sjueljud mau uo shoo} pasealoul ue pue yoddns aAisuajul Buipsau ajdoad BunoA auy Jo uoneoyuapl JaiJes 3
%L1 pue Japaq sapnjoul yoiym ‘Buiuiely Jo JuswAojdwas ‘uoneonpa ojul yoeq ajdoad BunoA 186 0y sayoeoidde jo abuel e payjuspl sey suoIxauuo?) M
jobie] o
jeuonenN (S133N) Buiuiesy 1o juswAhojdwa ‘uoieanpa ul Jou spjo J1eak gL-9} Jo abejuaaiad y¥Aas
3
80/20 3061 mmm_wmi 80-eW | qod uer 09 AON 190 dog Bny Inp unp few ady £0/90 OV R




£002/01/S0 vl Jo g ebed L0 Bny Z' LA pJedalods sjelodio)
L0L L6 16 €88 v1'88 ¥2'68 €88 L9°€6 m.
[0
3D
3 o
g 2
+00} 1861} Z€D 80/2002 SH PaX® ||im AsBulieH ‘9sau} JO| o Juy =g
buipueg uoIsSn[oul Y} YUM Jey) pajewsa si ]| "awoy Je aAl| 0} padijay se a1eds|a) Jo 1diadal ul sjualo Buiunod Jo ssaoold ay) ul ale wes) aouewlopad ay | MH
Jjed doj JaAo0 10 g9 pabe uonendod oo} 12d awoy je aalj o} padjay ajdoad 1ap|0| #S Ag Q
0v93 01°€G93 0L'€G993 | 69°CLL3 | 62'6C83 | 99°LL/3 | ¥SV9.3 02°6893 =
_gD
AV =% E
>Z6hF B33
buipueg 0897 wouj pasiral jobuey | €18 4vd m ®
Jed doy jual|d Jad aied |eIo0sS dAIsudlul JO 3s09| 1S0D Nun
Ajlunwwo) @ ainyn) Ynpy
T
%L1 %0°S %S %V %Y'€ %0 %0 %0°L o
s
d ‘8002 YoJe\ Jo pus ay} Aq 1z s 18bue) ay] -eiep 0} Jeak ayy ul diysuelpienb [eroads e pajuelb 1o paydope usaq aAey ualp|iyo 91 < m.
A | "8J0W 10 SYJUoW 9 40} Jole paxoo| uaipjiyo je 3 g
aQq Gec=8 4o uoipodoud e se ueaf ayj ul pajuelb siepio diysuelpienb jeroads pue suoidope Jo ebejusaiad ayj Je S}00| YoIym J0jedIpul aAe|NwNd e Si Siy | ®
P buipueg ajep ey} Je alow IO SYjuowW g 104 Jajje pPayoo| usaq pey oym yaiep Lg| ¢zo 4vd W
% Jed doy JE J9)Je PaYOoO| UBIP[IYD JO "OU 3y} JO Y, & sk Jeak ay} burinp pajdope uaip|iys J1a)e paxyoo] JO "ou 3y ] :1a)je payoo] uaip|iyo jo suondopy| ¢g| Ag =3
lepy ged uer 2aQ AON 10 des Bny Inr unp Re 1dy £0/9002
%0
= %02
~80/.0190/8 — %0 o
- %09 o
%08 3
%00L T
%cCL %€°€9 %S %EY %.S %88 %08 %089 m
g
[oX
Buiuiely pue uoneonpa ‘quawAojdwa ul alaym aidoad BunoA 4 jo 1no | 1snbny ‘7 Jo 1no ¢ A|np ¢/ Jo 1no § aunr m
ajdoad BunoA jo Jaquinu mo| A1an e 109)ja4 Aay) se Alea |im sabejuadiad Ajyjuow pue =
sassalboid Jeah ay) se sasealoul Uap|iyd JO YOYOD 8y} S uoined yum pajaldiaiul aq isnw Buuojuow Ajyiuoly JuswAojdws Jo Buiuiely ‘uoizeonpa m.
ul spjo JeaA g jo uoneindod |e20| 8y} JO Jey) aA0ge BUIASIAIYOE Sie SI9ABS| 818D pue Bale S|y} Ul paule)sns uaaq sey aouewlopad jJus||aox3
61 Jo abe ayj je Juswlojdwa Jo Buluies} ‘uoneonpa ul pabebus asam oym ‘(91| PV 4vd
pabe) deak Y3z 219y} ul judy | uo Ja)e payoo] alam oym ajdoad BunoA asoyj Jo 9, :si1aAed| aied uoj Bujuiesy pue uoneosnpa ‘yuswAhojdwz| 191 Ad
20IAIag S,0]d08d BUNOA pue uaipliyd
BuiAl] Juspuadapul ajowold
80/.0 Jobuey mwM_._“.wM._n_ 80-1el qod uer 28Q AON 190 deg Bny inp unp Aew ady 10/90 1oy aﬁv__i




1002/01/S0 1 Jo ) abed /0 Bny Z LA piedalods ajesodio)
ce G¢ oy 8¢ 1> 4% 4% (114 m
Py Py 3 pY
uopuo "aouewopad ul dip sy} ssaippe 0} a2e(d ul aJe saibajel)s pue payiuspul uaag aney Aejap Jo sealy (g oulwo)) walsAs|  /0/9002 W m
(o} A Juswabeuel JuswnNdod Mau e jo uoiejuswa|dwi Buimo||o) S8IIIOYINY JBYJ0 AQ USSS pusl) UOWWOI B SI SIY| '1snbny Jo) paddip sey aouewlopusad 3 m,
sypend doj poob sI MOT <
20/9002 swie|o g19/gH mau Buissasoud 1oy awiy abelany eg/ a
$921n0Say djetodion
%96 %016 %016 %098 %€'38 %098 %8 %81°06 T
o
3
o
_ @
"Jeak Bunuodal sy Jo 18l 8y} JOJ SNUIRUOD 0} PA3U [|IM SHOBYD [BNUBL JOASMOY ‘POMO||0} 8le Sassao0id Aljus ejep 1081100 8y} aInsus 0} m 2
S92IAIBS Ylm Buiyiom ase aduewlIopad “1ojedlpul siy) uo joedwi aAlisod e pey sey Siyl '9|edsawi} 10841090 8y} ysiigelsa 0} wea} aouewiopad ay) @3B
N 001=>06 Aq payoayo usaq sey podal sy} uo Buueadde ased yoes yjuow siy| "Joyedipul siy} ul uinjino Jood e ul pajnsal Ajsnoinaid aney sanssi Ajus eleqg| 9540 4vd m
buipueg *'S)9aMm ¥ 0} |enba 1o uey) ss9| SI ©
Jjed dojy abeyoed aied ayj ul S92IAISS || Jo uoisinoid 0} Jusawssasse Jo uoipajdwod woly awil 3y} woym Joj abejuassad ayj ‘sjualjd 19p|o Mau 104 961 -
) —
Dnnm‘r %06 %2C 96 %C 96 %C 96 %856 %S 6 %56 %S56°08 m
ST
00L=>06 "1o6.e)} J99W 0} 8S4N02 UO Ajjua.ing siJoedlpul siy]| GSA 4vd | = m,
buipueg S)}99M { 0} |enba 10 uey} ss3| S| JUsWISSASSE JO UOIB|dWOD 0} JOBJUOI JSAI} WO dWI} d1dYMm % (11) ® sinoy S6l z
Jjed dojy g uey) ssa| si Juswssasse Jo Bujuuibag 0} }oe3UO0D JSAI} WOy dWI} dIdYM 9 (]) Jo abelsane -jusawissasse 1o} awi} Buiiem sjqeydassy a
o
0sl (414" 44" 1G9¢€L clogl 8'0¢€L LEL 8¢l o
DO DO DO & W..
0Gl 6Vl YA Syl el 574" 6€L L€l o€l mammhmm Alyjuoy = m.
3§
+0G ) 16O dvd ®
Buipueq *J10}e21IpUl SIY} SpJemo) pajunod Buiaq syualp Bulipuad g1 Apusling ale aiay | W
Jjeqd dojy (pasipJiepue)s abe) Jano 10 g pabe uonendod gpo‘00L 42d yaiepy Lg je sjuswdied joauip Buialeoal ajdoad Japjo pue s}npy| 10zZAg =l
%06 %SG°G6 %€"96 %.'G6 %0°€6 %086 %09 ¥6 %088 =
2 7
=%
001=>G8 B33
buipueg 60 dvd MUa.. @
Jjeqd dojy ‘sAep Bupiom 7 uiyym palaalap suonejdepe pue juawdinba jo sway jo abejuadiad| 95 Ag
80/.0 Jobuey mwM_._“.wM._n_ 80-1el qod uer 28Q AON 190 deg Bny inp unp Aew ady 10/90 1oy aﬁv__i




£00Z/0L/S0 vl Jo g abed L0 Bny Z' LA pJedalods sjelodio)
0S5'C3 GGC3 GG'C3 GG'C3 1G'C3 0G'¢3 e/u ov'z3 m
2o
3 3
‘1enjoy glA 8yj jou ‘burioyuoyy j8bpng ur pepnjoul 31s09 pajosfoid sesh [in) ey} s1 esay buipoda. aie em ainbly Ajyjuow ey | @ m
(saueaqi]) uonoesdjulsiA 1ad 3sod pajoafoid| 1s0DH wun =1
0613 v.'2813 6C€LL3I | 89°/G3 | 06'¥V9€3F | SO'LLL3 | G8'E€ECI (42 ZA%; m
8 g
2o
3 a
'J1S00 e se pajuasaid A|snoinaid |4 ‘enjeA snujwl e se UMoys 8q pjnom }sod jau Y @ m
uoijewaltd 1ad snjduns jJaN| 150D Nun =1
Ajunwwo? @ ainyny synpy
Tepy CEE| uep %a@ AON 1°0 des Bny Inp unp Aep 1dy £0/9002
S
5 ; 7
N —
a yuow Aq 2090 _ N\, - m 5
(@) 80/.0 1ob1e Vﬁ V\ 6 o
% pooB sl - 0l 8
L o)
=
88 18'9 19'6 96 96 G9'/ 1’6 a|eny o
PO Y PO PO PO Y }$89 pug m.
%18 20/900¢ @
jipenp doy
20/900¢ -9afojdwa 3] 4 J1ad aouasqe ssauyols 0} anp }so| spys/sAep Bupiom jo -ouayy| 2L AgG
— do pue ajdoag
S92IAI3S JUD||9IXD J3AIIBQ
09 LE'Z8 3
[0
3
0 20/900¢ W m
apend dog 9 uonsenb uy ypuow oy} ul .1 Y| pjoyssnoy ejqedljdde ou jey) suesu JiN, = mf
‘paau AQjuold ul pue ssajowoy Ajjeuojuajujun aie ysiym pue M”
20/9002 uewom jueubBaid e 1o uaip|iys Juapuadap apnjoul Yaiym spjoyasnoy jo (S)yaam) uoljepowwiodse |aysoy ui Aeys jo yjbua| abesane ay| qaesl @
JuawiuoJiAUT ueqgdn
80/20 y0Bue] mmMWE go~eW | 9o uer 28 AON 120 dog Bny Inp unp few ady £0/90 OV R




1002/01/S0 71 JOo 6 obed /0 Bny Z LA piedalods ajesodio)

|
%06 %€6 %68 %€6 %56 %96 %C6 %0°'¥8 m
Jsnbny Ul awiy uo /12 Jo ¥61 ‘dLA Ul seinbus gee’l m e
B8
sAep Q| ul jJuas sajjdai jo abejuaaiad ‘sauinbug ,siaquapy |eo0] m
%56 %68 %€8 %001 %19 %001 %001 %026 m
8 g
1snBny Ul XIS 1N0 aAl} ‘@)ep 0} Jeak ay} ul g 4O 1IN0 GZ m o)
B8
ajeasawi) (Aep gg) j39b.e) uiyyim jjeap sjuiejdwos aiqnd ¢ abejg |e00] m
%08 %08 %0°C6 %56 %61 %0¥ %C6 %0°LL m
0 <
(o) m )
< 1snBny ul swij uo ¢ N0 gL 9
q b3
op ajeasawi) (Aep Gz) j9b.e) uiyyim jjeap sjuiejdwos aiqnd g abejg |eo0] m
all
%08 %68 %C6 %56 %88 %8 %18 %0°LL m
83
"Je} 0S JeaA ay} Ul awWi} UO SBSED 0B/ 40 N0 €0/ m o)
58
ajeasawiy (Aep 1) j3ob.e} uiyyim jjeap sjuiejdwos aiqnd | abejg |eo0] m
8l Ll 8l vl 6l 6l Ll V'8l m
w <
@ @
29
o X
® O
5@
sauinbua uewspnquwQ 0} puodsai 0} uaye)} sAep Jepudjed jo JaquinN 2007 m
uojjesjunwwo?) @ sdiysiaujed ‘@duewdopadd ‘Adijod
%08 %06 %68 %001 %cC6 %98 %SG . %0'¥9 m
DO m m
aul|peap papusdlxa dy} JOpUN SWI} UIO PajpuBy Uda(g dABY f N0 g UOKIpPE U| =)
58
sAep 0| ulyym o) papuodsal | abejs - sjurejdwo) Joy aie) AJlunwwod ® SHN |00 m
3
80/20 3061 mmm_wmi 80-eW | qod uer 09 AON 190 dog Bny Inp unp few ady £0/90 OV R




,002/01/S0 vl Jo 0l abed L0 Bny g LA pieoalods sjesodio)
%cC6 %.°06 %1 68 %126 %. 06 %t 06 %Z6 %0°L8 m
8 3
%0°L6 20/900¢ m Y
& 8
ojipenp doy =
10/9002 sAep ¢ 10 swia) ulypm pred sasloAul Jo abejuadiad 8 Ag =3
$921n0Say 9jes0dio)
0883 1183 16,3 96.3 [AYK] GeL3 0,183 m
DO m m
g 5
L a8
al 10}
o P11y Jaye payooj Jad adJAIas JO 30| 1S0D Nun 2
( N : : 0 0 ,
al 461 0v3 L€6°LEF | 1E6°LEF | LE€6LEF | LE6G LET 1€6°,€3 m
sjuswaded 314 29 =)
D O
o
KeQ - sjuswaose|d NIS syoS Juapuadapul| 1s0D Jun m
1/9'v93 €8Y'€93 | €8¥'€93 | €8V'€93 | €8¥'€93 | €8¥'€93 m
8 g
sjuswadeld 31 4 € =)
D O
.
|enjuapisay - sjusawade|d NIS sYyos yuapuadapuj| 1s09 1un m
%08 %01 %09 %98 %.9 %001 %.9 %0°€9 W
DN DO @ M.
"9]eoSaLWI) POPUBIXS 8U) JApUN SWI} U0 pajpuey usaq aAey sjuie|dwiod ¢ uonippe U] "swi} Uo Jej 0s Jeak ay) ul 0Z 1IN0 | m m
58
ajeasawiy Aep g} ul 0} papuodsal | abejg - sjuiejdwos joe s,ualpjiyd [2007] m
9oIAJag S,9]d0ag BUNOA pue uaip|iyd
3
80/20 3061 mmmwmi 80-eW | qod uer 09 AON 190 dog Bny Inp unp few ady £0/90 OV R




1002/01/S0 ¥1 jo || abed /0 Bny g LA pJedaloos sjesodion
00€3 C1'9623 CL’'9623 | CL'96C3 | ¢L'9623 | ¢L'9623 | Cl'9623 8G°65€3 m
8 a
2o
o X
® O
5@
(Ayaadoud 9jesodiod) asjow bs yad uonepowwiosse asyo Jo 3so0n| S0 Jun m
%S8°€6 %LL'€6 %C9€C6 | %8LE6 | %LL'VE | %8L'E6 %98'€6 %8°€6 m
8 a
%G'86 "1snbny Joj 196.e) Jo poys isnf sem aouewlopad uoiods|od|  20/9002 m o)
3 8
ojipenp doy =
20/9002 p9)23]|02 anp |ejo} jo abejuaaiad - uo1}03j|09 Xe} [IPUNoH 6 N9 2
%08 %81 %8'LL %6'9. %€ LL %982 %0°LL %V LL m
8 a
19b6.e) Buibus|ieyo Ajpwalix3 -eouewlopad Buuamsue auoyds|a) Jioy) arosdwi 0} S,Ng OM] JO BUO Ylm Bunjopp m o
- &8
ot S||ed |e}0} JO 9, B SB SpU0I3s G| Ul paiamsue s|jed auoydaja] pajjelp Aj3oaig -apIA [12Uno) [e001] m
m\ %0.L %099 %01 %cL %€9 %69 %89 %8V S
Dl DO DO DON % M
2o
AInp ur swy 3su1y 8y} Joy 1061eY %0/ PaISRed 3 %
w0
g
s9jnulw G| uey) ssa| Buiiem sidwolsny 9, — SaIUI) 9JIAISS Jawolsn) [E307] ~
ged uep %9(Q AON 100 Bny oy unp Aep Jdy £0/9002
%0

= %02 %

| 80/,0 19611 —— %400 W

poob s mocmc:o_._m“7m\l/l %09 o

%08 3

g

%01 %98 %8V %V9 %9 %09 %99 %6€ @

o)

<

9002 isnbny - |udy yym palsedwod %9z pasealdul Sey paIamsue s||ed Jo slaquinu ay | m

pojussaid s|jed |je jo abejusstad e sk SpUOISS OF Ul PaJIMSUE S|je) — aJjjua) Jeg| 189071
3

80/.0 Jobuey mmM_._.M._n_ 80-1el qod uer 28Q AON 190 deg Bny inp unp Aew ady 10/90 1oy aﬁv__i




£00Z/01/S0 ¥l jo | abed 10 Bny g7 LA paedaloos ejelodio)

%S'66 %€ 66 %€'66 %€ 66 %€ 66 %€ 66 m
2o
o X
8 8
pai = %004 49/0 Uoquie %00} O} %S 66 UdSIB %G 66 UlyIM ulewal @ =
J09p |eutd)xa 1o} Azepunoq jeuoijesado s,[1ouno) ay] - Juswabeuew Ainseal]| o ul4 =1
%16 %9°G6 %9'G6 %9°G6 %9'G6 %956 m
n <
S 2
2o
o X
% 8
pal %00/ 4810 ‘Uoquie %00L O} %/6 ‘Usaib 9 /6 UlyiIm urewsl @ =
}g9p |eu1d)Xd 10} Hwi] pasuoyijny - Juswabeuew Ainseal]l| gy ulg =
NS.L3 NO03 NO3 NO03 NO03 NO3 m
n <
S 2
2o
Q\ 8 3
L paJ Uoljjiu 06 L F 49A0 “Jaquie Uoljjil 06LF O} G/LF ‘UsaiD NG/ LF 49puf) @ W
m_u sojel }satajul 9|geliep o} aunsodxy -juswabeuew Ainseal)| ey ulq =1
Dn” %0¢ %00 %00 %00 %00 %00 %0°CL m
8 g
2o
o X
8 8
pai %0 19A0 UBquiB %0F 0] %0Z ‘Usdaib %0z 1epun @ =
sdoue|jeq Jo asnh pauuejdun pajoafoid — saatasal puny |esaudb pajoaload e ulg =1
%S0 %000 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 S
25
20
pai %Gz L 19A0 Jaquie %Gz L O] %G/ 0 ‘Udslb %G/ 0 Jepun aaueLieA puadsiapun jJoN m w
Pal %0 L 19A0 UBqUIEB %0 L 0] %G 0 ‘UdaIb %G 0 48pun 8oueLIBA pusdsiono JoN W
Buniojiuow jabpnq jeyded |jesdAQ Z uig =
%S0 %€C 0 %0L°0 %00°0 %00°0 %00°0 %000 S
o <
o @
20
pai %Gz L 18A0 Jaquie %Gz L O] %G/ 0 ‘Udslb %G/ 0 Jepun aoueLieA puadsiapun jJoN m w
9 Pal %0 L 19A0 UBqUUE %0 L 0} %G 0 ‘UdaIb %G (0 4opun 8oueLIeA pusdsiano JoN )
Buniojiuow j3abpnq anuaAal ||eJdAQ ] ui4 2
3
80/20 3061 mmmwmi 80-eW | qod uer 09 AON 190 dosg Bny Inp unp few ady £0/90 OV R




£002/0L/50 ¥l Jo g1 abed 10 Bny g~ LA pJedalods sjelodio)

Jep ged uer 29Q AON 10 deg Bny Inp unp Rep Jdy £0/9002
%6
%L1 m
80/.0 19618 ] — %eL 3
£0/900Z Emm poob si souewsopad Mo - %G1 m
%Ll =
=)
%01 %6°GL @
2
o (@]
%t 20/900¢ D
ajipenp doy 9
10/9002 slealle Jual S}a9Mm J ueyj aiow YJIm sjueud) jo abejuaaiad| qog Ag
o %S"L6 %¢E€°L6 %€’ L6 %996 %S'96 %S"L6 %656 %G"96
L] g
a ‘payoeal usaq sey Jobue)[ 20/900¢ ? m
(o) 2y} pue paAlas SJSON JO Jaquinu ul asealoul ue usas sey ajelidoidde aloym (SJSON) UOISSESSOH Buiyeas JO S921J0N dAISS 0} SALIP 8y '[9A9) m o
% %66 awes ay) Je sulewal siealle SYoaM USASS UeY) aJow Yim sjueus) Jo abejusolad ay) Ing ybiy JesA e o) uiebe paroidwi sey ajel UOI08[|00 8y | & 8
0}
sjipeny doj =
20/900C P3393]]02 aNnp judl JO 9, - UOIJID|0d JUdY| B9y Ag
juawiuoJiAug ueqin
Jey ged uer 29 AON PO deg Bny Ine unp Rey Jdy £0/9002
, wo 3
80/.0 1D —="—
wo'G3
£0/900¢C =11 poob siI souewopad Mo @)
T wo's3 -
3
wo'L3 =
(0]
3
wol'v3 WgG's3 [ w/993 | wey 93 V/IN V/N wg9 93 [enjoy ol
WolLy3 | Whev3 | WEGPF | WLLPI | W68 Y3 | WLO'GE | WIZ'SF | Wip'G3 | WHpe'G3 | WS0'93 V/IN V/IN w3 jabie) m
(800Z uoteN Ag woz 3 Aisnoinaud) ‘poday Bny Joj pasinal pue pamalAal uaaq sey }abie | )
"9d Ul anoidwi Z
pinoys uonisod Ing 1oyap 1sabb6iq aney synpy “Jaquie Buiasiyoe say dio) pue (aoed ul }abie) HiH pasinal) 3N ‘1ebuey Bumiy Apualing s,ualpjiyd
yjuow Jad 0813 = palinbai g U4
uoloNPaY "8//007 4O Pud Aq W9 3 0} pud 1edk //900Z @ W89 93F Wolj 1gap Aep | |z JOAQ JO uolonpay jqap Aipung |jesaAQ - A19A0231 399 )
80/.0 Jobuey mmM_._“.mM._n_ 80-1el qod uer 28Q AON 190 deg Bny inp unp Aew ady 10/90 1oy aﬁv__i




£00Z/01/S0 ¥l Jo t| abed 10 Bny g7 LA paedaloos ejelodio)

0C'¢cv3 LLLWY3 LLU'LY3 LULbv3 | L0'WY3 | 22 L3 S0'LY3 €T IV3 m

8 8

2o

o X

D O

qlSH @ %

uoljepowiwoddy pajey ApybIN Jad 3son| 1s0D un =1

1063 6£°€683 6€'€683 | 011683 | 86'0683F | 86'6883F | €¥'6883 | 009883 m

DO % m

2o

o X

D O

BlSH W

9sea 10}03g djeAld Jad 3so)| 1s0D uun m

8Gl3 €613 2913 0SL3 LGL3 €hL3 PALK; 00°'S¢CL3 o

J o1
LC] 0 <
al ‘Aepijoy uo Bulaq sjuspisal 0} Buimo umop sajel uonjedioied m o
(@)] ypm 1snbny Joj uowwod si ajiyoid abeuuo) siy| "991AI8S UOID9||00 SB)B)SS pue pajbulwwod apisqiay ay) wolj Ajulew abeuuo) psjohoal w. S
m 9 Ul uoionpal e 0} pajnquile g Ued asealou| "yoeal Ul sulewsal [|3s 1o6ie) Jeah Jo pus ay) Inq ‘10b1e) G| F 9A0ge Yluow 1Sl 8y} sem jsnbny @ W
>3

auuoj} Jad 3s09 Bulohaay| 1509 Nun

00'vL3 V8°€L3 A ov'clL3 0L¢Cl3 0eclL3 0€vL3 8EVLI

“1eaA jse| panaiyoe sem 1obie} ay)
se Jeah siy) 1aw aq [|Im 1ob.e) ay) 1ey) pajedionue si j| "Jeak sy} Jo pus 8y} SPJeMO) INO USAS [|IM pue [euosess s| @ouewlopad ay| "uibiew molieu
e Ag passiw sem jobie) QLA 9yl Isnbny ul UOI}08||00 BNUBAS] Ul 8SEaIOUl UB SB JINSal B Sem Siy] ‘paroldwi sey aouewuopad Alyjuow ay |

S80IAISS
1U8||80X8 JaAljaQg

(snjdans) panssi 383213 Bupyied sad 391A13s JO 3S02 J9N| 150D HUN

063 €€'983 €0°983 1697183 00683 00°€83 00063 L3

‘abeuuo)] psjokoal sy ul asealoul ue yum pajdnoo jou sem siy; ‘Aj@reunuoun “ebeuuoy
[enpisal 8y} Ul 8SeaI09p B SeM 9SBaIOUl 8Y) Jo) uoseal ay] "18bie) 063 Ul Mojad [[11S SeM JI 1snBny Joj S]S0D JIUN Ul 8SBaIoUl UB Sem 818y I1S|IUAA

9 "paXIy SI LOIJO8Jj0D 8]SEM JO ]SOO 8Yj] JO ]SOy "auuo] Jad S}S09 UOI)08|j0d BuljoAda. JoJ JOJedIPUI 8} )M UOOUN[UOD Ul peal 8q pinoys
auuo} Jad S)S0 UO01}29]|0 d)SeM [BnpISay| 10D 1IuUN

S80IAISS
1U8||90X8 JaAleg

mww._mo._ K
g0/2030BreL]| T 4| go-rem | aeq uer 09 AON 190 dog Bny Inp unp few ady £0/90 1oy i

N4




Page 55 Agenda ltem 9

Haringey Council

Agenda item: [NO-]

Cabinet Meeting On 16™ October 2007

Report Title: Cabinet Response to the Scrutiny Review of IT Services Project
Management

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: Director of Corporate Resources

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Non-Key Decision

1. Purpose (That is, the decision required)

1.1 To agree the Cabinet’s response, as proposed in this report, to the recommendations
made by the Overview & Scrutiny Committee as a result of its Scrutiny Review of IT
Services project management.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

2.1 The review of project management undertaken by the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee, whose report was received by the Cabinet at its meeting on 18"
September 2007, focused on the performance of IT Services in this area.

2.2 Therefore the recommendations coming out of that review are initially being
addressed by IT Services with regards to the projects with which it is involved, with
support being provided by other central Council functions where necessary.

2.3 However, it is to be noted that most major projects with which IT Services is involved
originate outside of IT Services and Corporate Resources, therefore wider Council
support for implementing these recommendations is to be welcomed.

3. Recommendations

3.1 To welcome the recommendations made in the report of the Overview & Scrutiny
Committee (O&SC) into its review of IT Services project management, as they further
support the project management improvement initiatives already under consideration
by IT Services and other central Council functions.

3.2 To direct IT Services, working in conjunction with other relevant Council departments,
to factor the O&SC recommendations into the development of the initiatives already
under consideration — please see the Appendix to this report for details of these
initiatives and how they might implement the O&SC recommendations.




Page 56

3.3 To direct IT Services, working in conjunction with its Council project customers, to
reconsider the benefits and benefits realisation plans of existing key projects,
redefining them as necessary to allow them to be meaningfully assessed as part of
the recommended post-implementation reviews.

Report Authorised by: Julie Parker, Director of Corporate Resources

Contact Officer: Jay Paramanathan, PMO Manager, IT Services, @ 020 8489 4628

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 The Director of Finance notes the contents of this report and has no additional
comments to make.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 The Head of Legal Services notes the contents of the report and advises that there
are no specific legal comments.

5.2 The Head of Legal Services will provide advice to IT Services and other client
departments during the contract reviews, and will also assist in developing standard
supplier contracts in accordance with the recommendations contained in the appendix
to this report.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 This report has been created in response to the report of the Scrutiny Review of IT
Service Project Management, which was presented at the Cabinet meeting of 18"
September 2007 and is publicly available via the Council Website.

7. Strategic Implications

7.1The recommendations made in the original Scrutiny Review report, and the Cabinet’s
responses to them, will affect all major Council projects involving IT, which in turn are
key to delivering the Council’s overall strategy and department-specific strategies.

7.2 Applying the proposed project management improvements to strategic projects might
add to their duration and cost by some small percentage, but the benefits of reduction
in risk and improvement in quality are expected to outweigh this cost.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 57

8. Financial Implications

8.1 As noted above, some of the measures proposed in the Appendix to this report, in
response to the recommendations made in the Scrutiny Review report, are expected to
add to project costs, but the percentage increase is expected to be low and might not
apply to all projects.

8.2There may also be additional central costs, e.g. for bodies to provide additional reviews
of governance and management, but these costs cannot be quantified at this stage and
further consideration will be given to whether these costs, once known, are justified by
the benefits before any action is taken.

9. Legal Implications
9.1 See para 5 for legal comments.

10.Equalities Implications
10.1There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report.

11.Consultation

11.1 As an internal Council initiative, this report is based on consultation within IT
Services, and with Corporate PMO, Legal Services and Corporate Finance.

12.Background

12.1 This report has been produced in response to the recommendations arising from the
Scrutiny Review of IT Services project management, presented to Cabinet in the form
of a report at the Cabinet meeting of 18" September 2007.

12.2 The responses are restricted to actions to be taken in relation to current and future
projects managed by IT Services, although some of the actions require the input and
support of other departments and functions within the Council.

13. Conclusion

13.1 The initiatives set out in the Appendix to this report are considered appropriate
measures for addressing the recommendations made in the Scrutiny Review report,
given the practical circumstances within the Council now and in the foreseeable future.

13.2 These initiatives should be reviewed and revised in light of experience of their
effectiveness at a suitable point in the future.

14. Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

14.1 There is a single Appendix, “Initiatives to Address the Recommendations Arising from
the Scrutiny Review of IT Services Project Management”.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Appendix

Page 58

Initiatives to Address the Recommendations Arising from the
Scrutiny Review of IT Services Project Management

Recommendation

Initiatives Addressing Recommendation

1.

That the Cabinet ensures that
Project Sponsors, Project Boards
and Project Managers have the
skills, knowledge and access to
information to allow them to work
effectively in order that projects
are managed better in their
totality.

e Project Managers — all ITS PMs have extensive experience
in project management, and many have the internationally
recognised PRINCE2 Practitioner project management
qualification; it is planned that PMs will gain further skills
and knowledge as part of their professional development
plans through receipt of relevant internal/external training
and through coaching by more experienced staff

e Project Managers/Staff — Corporate PMO has revised and
piloted the in-house “Introduction to Project Management”
course to ensure that those beginning a career in project
management, or playing a support role in projects have a
secure foundation in this discipline

e Project Sponsors/Boards — the Corporate PMO is
developing training/guidance in various formats to provide
project sponsors with a better understanding of their roles
and responsibilities within a project

e Corporate PMO and IT PMO are working with all relevant
parties to strengthen information sharing through project
reports, budget reports, etc, which will continue through the
remainder of FY07/08

. The Cabinet adopts and allocates

5% of total budget, as a ‘norm’,
for project governance and that
this only be exceeded when it can
be justified.

It is to be noted that:

e Project governance includes project management in this
context, and the costs are primarily internal staff costs

o The 5% target is intended as a proxy measure for the
appropriate amount of management and governance time
being applied to projects

¢ The amount of project management and governance effort
that is appropriate varies from project to project as a
function of more than just the project budget, e.g. criticality,
risks and complexity

Thus:

e Consideration will be given to whether appropriate Council
bodies can be tasked with verifying that an appropriate
amount of management and governance time is being
applied to each project

e The effectiveness of project governance will be
strengthened by:

o making more regular use of stage-based planning,
allowing gateway judgements to be made between
stages by project sponsors/boards

o improving sponsor/board guidance and budget
reporting — see measures for 1 and 4

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 59

Recommendation

Initiatives Addressing Recommendation

3. That the Cabinet ensures that
Post Implementation Reviews are
carried out on all appropriately
sized Council
programmes/projects and that
they be carried out
independently, by personnel
unconnected with the project
board/team, (a suggestion being
the Improvement Team in Policy
and Performance), and that they
be carried out 9/12 months, or
longer if appropriate, post full
implementation, to allow benefits
to be more accurately measured
and reported to the Cabinet. PIR
should cover changes in the
tangible and measurable metrics
used in the original business case
or justification for the projects.

Subject to support from its customers, the following measures

will be introduced by ITS by the end of FY07/08:

e Clearly identified, measurable project benefits and an
agreed benefits realisation plan will be required for each
project as prerequisites for effective PIRs

e For high value / high sensitivity projects, a Council body
independent of project managers and sponsors/customers
will be engaged to carry out formal, in-depth PIRs

o A standardised, less costly “PIR-lite” process will be
implemented for low value projects, e.g. those costing
under £25,000

e The cost of a project’s PIR will be met from within the
project’s own budget, which may lead to some additional
budget provision being required

Assistance is likely to be required from Corporate PMO in

implementing PIRs, but this will be dependent on sufficient

resourcing being available within this team

4. That the Cabinet ensures greater
consistency in the budget
monitoring of all Council
programmes/projects, by
implementing the SAP Project
Systems and Investment
Management Modules.

¢ Working with Corporate Finance, Corporate PMO has
developed a new finance protocol for those projects
reporting through the Corporate Programme, and now
work to ensure that the budget figures in the Programme
Highlight Report align with those in the monthly budget
monitoring packs; the Programme Highlight Report format
has also been revised to assist senior management and
Members in monitoring project budgets

e Corporate PMO has also developed, in collaboration with
Corporate Finance, a syllabus for a new ‘Finance for
Project Managers’ course, with the first cohort expected in
January 2008

e ITS will develop a standardised budget monitoring
methodology and toolset, based on the work carried out
above, for use with non-Programme, IT-related projects, to
be introduced by end of FY07/08

o  Working with all relevant parties, ITS will revisit the
business case for implementation of SAP Project Systems
and Investment Management modules in light of the
scrutiny recommendation, which will then be assessed by
the Corporate Prioritisation Board in relation to other
potential Council IT projects — the decisions as to whether
and when to adopt these modules will depend on the
outcome of this assessment

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 60

Recommendation

Initiatives Addressing Recommendation

5. That the Cabinet, while
recognising that addressing the
issues identified with supplier
management in the review is
about more than just the
procurement process,
implements additional measures
in the procurement process to
ensure that:

e Claims made by suppliers
are challenged and verified.

e Payment schedules are
linked to key milestones.

e Penalties for non delivery
and poor performance are
part of supply contracts,
whenever feasible.

e Penalties are consistently

imposed, where it is justified.

Over the course of FY07/08 and early FY08/09 ITS will
analyse the Council’s ability to obtain improved value for
money from IT suppliers given the existing market
conditions, and work with Legal Services to develop
standard supplier contracts that maximise opportunity to
extract this value

Based on this analysis, ITS will develop a value-for-money
strategy for IT procurement and supplier management for
implementation in FY08/09

ITS will liaise with Corporate Procurement throughout this
exercise, and benchmark against other local authorities
and industries where appropriate

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 61 Agenda ltem 10

Haringey Council

APPENDIX A

REPORT TEMPLATE

Agenda item: [No_]

Cabinet On 16 October 2007

Report Title: Admissions to Schools — Approval to consult.

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):

Report of: Director of the Children and Young People’s Service

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key

1. Purpose

1.1 To request Cabinet’s approval to consult on the arrangements for admission to
community primary and secondary schools and to St Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled
School for the 2009/10 school year.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 This report concerns the admission arrangements to be published and implemented
for the 2009/10 school year by the Council as the admission authority for community
and voluntary controlled schools in Haringey.

2.2 It includes admission arrangements to nursery classes in Haringey community
primaries and St Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled primary school, and admission
arrangements to Sixth Forms in Haringey community secondary schools and the
Sixth Form Centre. It does not include the admission arrangements for Fortismere
School following the governing body’s decision to change its status to foundation
which means that the governing body has become the admission authority.

2.3 Consultation on admission issues is an annual requirement for local authorities under
Section 89 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 as amended by the
Education and Inspections Act 2006.

2.4 This report has been brought forward from December in order for the Authority to
consult with governing bodies of community and voluntary controlled schools before
full consultation in January 2008, in accordance with current Regulations.




Page 62

3. Recommendations

3.1 To approve the proposed admission arrangements for consultation for all community
primary and secondary schools and St Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled Primary School.

3.2 To approve the proposed admission arrangements for consultation for sixth form
provision in Alexandra Park School, the Highgate/Hornsey Consortium and the Sixth
Form Centre.

3.3 To approve the proposed consultation for Qualifying Schemes for the co-ordination of
arrangements for admission to reception classes in all maintained primary and
secondary schools in Haringey. At secondary level, this entails the Council’s
continued participation in the Pan-London Scheme.

Report Authorised by: : Sharon Shoesmith, Director of the Children and Young
People’s Service

Contact Officer: lan Bailey, Deputy Director (020 8489 4601) and Sheila Locke, Head
of Admissions (020 8489 8350)

4. Director of Finance Comments
4.1 [click here to type]

5. Head of Legal Services Comments
[click here to type]

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Section 89 of the Schools Standards and Framework Act 1998

The Education Act 2002

The Education and Inspections Act 2006

The Education (Co-ordination of Admission Arrangements) (Secondary Schools)
(England) Regulations 2007

The School Admissions Code (2007)

e Education (Co-ordination of Admission Arrangements) (Primary Schools)
(England) Regulations 2007

7. Strategic Implications

7.1 Section 89 of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, as amended by
the Education and Inspections Act 2006 and associated Regulations require
admission authorities to consult annually on their admission arrangements for
the following academic year. Haringey Education Services gives advice to

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 63

governing bodies who are the admission authorities for other maintained primary
and secondary schools in Haringey (i.e. St Thomas More Catholic School, The
John Loughborough School, Fortismere School and Greig City Academy).
Consultation for all admission authorities should be completed by 1 March 2008,
and determined by 15 April 2008. The new arrangements will then come into
effect from the September 2009 intake.

8. Admission arrangements for the 2009/10 school year — secondary schools

8.1

The current oversubscription criteria for admission to mixed community
secondary schools in Haringey are attached as Appendices 1 and 2, and are
fully compliant with advice given in the current and proposed Codes of Practice.
We are not proposing any changes.

9. Admission arrangements for the 2009/10 school year — primary schools

9.1

9.2

Appendix 3 shows the oversubscription criteria applied to nursery classes
attached to primary schools. These arrangements are used where there are
more applications than places for full time provision to ensure children most in
need are targeted.

The current oversubscription criteria for admission to community primary schools
in Haringey is attached as Appendix 4, and are fully compliant with the School
Admissions Code of Practice. No changes are proposed for the September 2009
intake.

10. Casual Admissions

10.1

The current arrangements for ‘casual’ admissions (i.e. admission at stages other
than at entry to reception classes or on transfer from primary to secondary
school) will use the same oversubscription criteria described in appendices 1
and 2 (Hornsey School for Girls will follow the same oversubscription criteria as
other Haringey community secondary schools). Priority for admission to
secondary schools (not primary) is normally given to children without school
places over those transferring from other schools. This policy is to ensure
priority is given to the most vulnerable children. We are not proposing to make
any changes to this arrangement.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



Page 64

11. Co-ordinated Admissions — secondary schools

11.1

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

The Pan-London co-ordinated scheme for children transferring from primary to
secondary school is about to enter its fourth year. The preference success rate
for Haringey residents in the last two years is shown below (these figures are
correct — there has been no change in the success rate).

School Year
% of all applicants
2006/07 2007/08

offered their first preference 70 70

offered one of their preferences 92 92

allocated a place at the nearest

secondary school with places available

This compares favourably with, for example, Hackney whose percentage of first
preferences for 2007/08 was 63.7% achieving their first preference and 87.9%
achieving one of their preferences. For the 2006/07 intake, 63% of Hackney
residents achieved their first preference.

Under the Education and Inspections Act 2006, local authorities are required to
establish Choice Advisers who are independent of admissions departments.
They will be accredited officers and training and qualifications will be organised
through DCFS. In Haringey, appointments to these posts (named School
Transfer Advisers in Haringey) have been made (two 0.5 officers at grade PO3),
and they will take up their posts in September 2007.

There was a significant fall in the number of appeals when co-ordination was
introduced in 2005. Last year the number of appeals increased. The reasons for
this are complex, including the fact that admissions circles for the most popular
schools were smaller than the year before. The number of appeals upheld also
appears to have sharply risen, but it must be remembered that 17 of these
appeals relate to Fortismere School alone. The figures for secondary schools
are as follows:

2006/07 | 2007/08

Number of appeals heard 123 171




Page 65

Number of appeals upheld 10 19

11.4 There is still a significant number of parents who make unrealistic preferences
despite the information and guidance widely available. It is anticipated that this is
an area where Secondary Transfer Advisers will have an impact in the future.

11.5 The proposed scheme for the 2009/10 school year is attached as Appendix 5.

12. Co-ordinated admissions — primary schools

12.1 The co-ordination of admission to reception classes in Haringey is about to start
its third year. Figures below show the preference success rate in Haringey. A
small number of parents are still not achieving any of their preferences This can
be because their applications did not have sufficiently high priority under the
published arrangements, parents had only named one preference, limiting their
chances, or the parents had made unrealistic preferences.

School Year
% of all applicants

2006/07 2007/08

offered their first preference 81 82

offered one of their preferences 97 96

allocated a place at the nearest

secondary school with places available

The proposed scheme for the 2009/10 school year is attached as Appendix 6.

12.2 Although the number of appeals heard for the 2007 intake increased, none was
upheld demonstrating the effects of Infant Class Size legislation on admission
appeals. The figures for 2006 and 2007 are as follows:

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



12.3

Page 66

School Year

2006/07 | 2007/08

Number of appeals heard 39 55

Number of appeals upheld 1 0

The planned admission numbers for each community primary and secondary
school and St Aidan’s voluntary controlled school will be included in the
consultation documents.

13. eAdmissions

13.1

13.2

The government required that the facility for parents to apply for school places
on line was put into place by September 2006 for the 2007 intake. It does not
apply to all admissions, but for those children entering school in the ‘normal
admission round’, that is applications for places in reception classes and transfer
from primary to secondary schools. The eAdmissions system (a single system
developed centrally across the entire Pan-London area) went live on 4
September 2006 and parents accessed the on-line applications through the
Haringey website. The first year’s target for on-line admissions was 5% and 10%
in the second year. This equates to 265 and 530 applications respectively. At the
closing date for all applications, the total number of on-line applications received
was 567. This position has been achieved through very effective advertising
across the borough.

The government target for the September 2008 intake is 10%, but we are aiming
towards 20%.

14. The In-Year Fair Access Protocol.

141

14.2

14.3

The In-Year Fair Access Protocol has been drafted and headteachers consulted.
The latest version is shown as Appendix 7.

The protocol is a particularly important mechanism for ensuring that pupils are
admitted to schools where they would normally be refused because there were
no available places. The protocol applies outside the normal admission
arrangements, and enables schools to admit pupils above the published
admission numbers.

All maintained schools in Haringey have agreed to participate in the protocol.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 6



Page 67

15. Entry to Sixth Forms (Years 12 and 13).

15.1

Appendices 8, 9 and 10 outline the proposed admission arrangements for sixth
form provision in Haringey, namely Alexandra Park School, the Highgate /
Hornsey Consortium, and the new Haringey Sixth Form Centre. The School
Admissions Code permits that elements of academic selection in admission
arrangements at this level. Haringey Council is the admission authority and
therefore must approve the admission arrangements.

15.2 Applications from prospective students are made directly to each individual

provider who will administer the agreed admission arrangements.

16. Conclusion

17.

18.

19.

16.1

16.2

The Education and Inspections Act 2006 and implementing Regulations require
Local Education Authorities to consult on their admission arrangements
annually.

The recommendations included in this report incorporate advice contained within
the DCSF School Admissions Code which includes the duty for authorities to
make appropriate preparation for the introduction of eAdmissions and to consult
on and implement a In-Year Fair Access Protocol as per current advice from
DCSF.

Recommendations

17.1

17.2

17.3

18.1

19.1

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

To approve the proposed admission arrangements for consultation for all
community primary and secondary schools and St Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled
Primary School.

To approve the proposed admission arrangements for consultation for sixth
form provision in Alexandra Park School, the Highgate/Hornsey Consortium
and the new Sixth Form Centre.

To approve the proposed consultation for Qualifying Schemes for the co-
ordination of arrangements for admission to reception classes in all maintained
primary and secondary schools in Haringey. At secondary level, this entails the
Council’s continued participation in the Pan-London Scheme.

Comments of the Director of Finance (excludes sixth form entry)

The Director of Finance has been consulted on the contents of this report and
has no comments to make as there are no financial implications arising from the
report.

Comments of the Head of Legal Services

The Head of Legal Services has been consulted on the content of this report. Section
89(2) of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998 requires all admission
authorities to consult on the content of their admission arrangements. Regulations
require that, for the school year commencing September 2009, such consultation shall
be completed by 1 March 2008 and the arrangements determined by 15 April 2008. The
report sets out the statutory framework for the admission arrangements proposed for



20.

21.

20.1

Page 68

consultation, including the statutory School Admissions Code, which came into force in
February 2007. These arrangements comply with the statutory framework. In particular
the priority given to looked after children reflects the duty on an admission authorities to
give such children the highest priority. In addition the authority is required to have an In-
Year Fair Access Protocol in place from September 2007. The proposals referred to in
the report concerning the appointment of Choice Advisers reflects the new duty on the
authority, under Section 86(1A) of the School Standards and Framework Act 1998, to
provide advice and assistance to parents regarding their expression of preferences
within the admission arrangements for that area.

Equalities Implications

The current oversubscription criteria for Haringey community schools and the
advice given to governors of schools who are their own admission authority
(Appendix 1) complies with the advice given in the DfES School Admissions
Code of Practice. The Code has due regard to the provisions of the Sex
Discrimination Act 1975, the Race Relations Act 1976 (as amended by the
Race Relations (Amendment) Act 2000), and the Disability Discrimination Act
1995 (as amended by the Special Educational Needs and Disability Act 2001).

Use of Appendices

Appendix 1 Oversubscription criteria for Haringey mixed community secondary

schools for the 2009/10 school year. (NOT Hornsey School for Girls)

Appendix 2 Oversubscription criteria for Hornsey School for Girls for the 2009/10

school year

Appendix 3 Oversubscription criteria for nursery classes in Haringey community

primary schools and St Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled School.

Appendix 4 Oversubscription criteria for Haringey community primary schools and St

Aidan’s voluntary controlled primary school for the 2009/10 school year.

Appendix 5 Draft Qualifying Scheme for the co-ordination of admission to Year 7 in

Haringey maintained secondary schools in the 2009/10 school year

Appendix 6 Draft Qualifying Scheme for co-ordination of admission to reception

classes in Haringey maintained primary schools for the 2009/10 school
year

Appendix 7 In-Year Fair Access Protocol to place students in Haringey Secondary

Schools

Appendix 8 Arrangements for admission to Alexandra Park Sixth Form

Appendix 9 Arrangements for admission to the Highgate/Hornsey consortium

Appendix 10 Arrangements for admission to the Haringey Sixth Form Centre

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec



Appendix 1

Page 69 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Oversubscription criteria for Haringey mixed community secondary
schools for the 2009/10 school year. (NOT Hornsey School for Girls)

o))

o)

)

o))

Children with a statement of special educational needs which name the school will be
admitted in accordance with section 324 of the Education Act 1996.

If the number of applicants without statements of special educational
needs naming the school is higher than the number of places available,
the following criteria are applied, in the order set out below to decide
who is offered a place:

Children who are looked after by a local authority.

Children who the Authority accepts have an exceptional medical,
social or educational need for a place at the school. Applications
will only be considered under this category if they are supported by a
written statement from a doctor, social worker or other appropriate
independent professional. In each case, the connection between
the child’s need and the specific school applied for must be clearly
demonstrated.

Children with a brother or sister already attending the school and
who will still be aftending on the date of admission. This category
includes foster brothers and sisters, half brothers and sisters or
stepbrothers and sisters. Parents should note that in all these cases,
the brother or sister must be living at the same address as the child for
whom the application is being made.

Children living closest to the preferred school (distance is measured
in a straight line using a computerised mapping system).

The tie-breaker for all criteria is children living closest to the school (measured in a
straight line from the home address point to a central point on the school site using a
computerised mapping system).

e P PRy e BHARINGEY COLUIMNCILE




Page 70

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 71 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 2

Proposed admission arrangements for Hornsey School for Girls for

o))

o)

C)

o))

the 2009/10 school year.

Children with a statement of special educational needs which name the school will be
admitted in accordance with section 324 of the Education Act 1996.

If the number of applicants without statements of special educational
needs naming the school is higher than the number of places available,
the following criteria are applied, in the order set out below to decide
who is offered a place:

Girls who are looked after by a local authority.

Girls who the Authority accepts have an exceptional medical, social or
educational need for a place. Applications will only be considered
under this category if they are supported by a written statement from
a doctor, social worker or other appropriate independent professional.
In each case, the connection between the child’s need and Hornsey
School for Girls must be demonstrated.

Girls with a sister already attending the school, and who will still be
aftending on the date of admission. This category includes foster
sisters, half sisters and stepsisters. Parents should note that in all of these
cases, the sister must be living at the same address as the child for
whom the application is being made.

Girls allocated places in proportion to the applications received from
each primary school. If there are more requests from girls attending a
particular primary school than the proportionate allocation, places will
be allocated to those girls living closest to Hornsey School for Girls. If a
place becomes available but there are no remaining requests from
that particular primary school, (school A), the place will be added to
the proportion allocated to the primary school (school B) which is the
primary school with the highest unmet demand. Girls who attend
independent schools or who move into the area and who are
unplaced in a primary school will be assigned to their nearest
community primary school.

e P PRy e BHARINGEY COLUIMCILE




Page 72
The waiting list for Hornsey School for Girls will be held in this order until
the start of the autumn term September 2009 when, after criteria a), b)
and ¢), criterion d) will be replaced by criterion e) below:

Appendix 2 (cont)

e) The remaining places will be allocated to those girls who live closest to
Hornsey School for Girls. (Distance is measured in a straight line using a
computerised mapping system).

The tie-breaker for all criteria is children living closest to the school (measured in a

straight line from the home address point to a central point on the school site using a
computerised mapping system).



Page 73 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 3

Oversubscription criteria for nursery classes in Haringey community
primary schools and St Aidan’s voluntary controlled primary school for the
2009/10 school year.

Children can begin in the nursery class from the September following their child’s third
birthday. If there are more requests than part-time places available, the criteria shown
below for full fime places will be applied.

If the number of applicants is higher than the number of full-time places available, the
following criteria are applied:

o children with special educational needs

o children with a social or medical need, for example a child in the care of the
local authority and children on the risk register

o chﬂdren who are residents of Haringey and who:

are housed in temporary accommodation

are cared for by a lone parent

are refugees or asylum-seekers

are from a family receiving Income Support

have English as an additional language

are from a family with a number of pre-school-age children.

If a child has one or more of these needs, there is no guarantee of a full time place,
however your child may be given a higher priority for a place. If you think your child
has any of these needs, please contact your preferred school or centre to discuss this
in deftail.

Parents/carers should note that admission to a nursery class in a school does not
guarantee a place in the reception class at the same school, and separate
application forms must be completed for the nursery and the reception class.

Early admission to nursery
Some places may be available to children for one or two terms before the school year
in which they have their fourth birthday. Priority for these places is given to children in

greatest need. Please ask at your local school/centre for informnation in the first
instance.

e P PRy e BHARINGEY COLUIMCILE




Page 74

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 75 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 4

Oversubscription criteria for Haringey community primary schools and
St Aidan’s voluntary controlled primary school for the 2009/10 school
year.

Children with a statement of special educational needs which name the school will be
admitted in accordance with section 324 of the Education Act 1996.

If the number of applicants without statements of special educational needs which
name the school is higher than the number of places available, the following criteria are
applied, in the order set out below to decide who is offered a place:

D) Children who are looked after by a local authority.

2) Children who the Authority accepts have an exceptional medical, social
or educational need for a place at the school. Applications will only be
considered under this category if they are supported by a written
statement from a doctor, social worker or other appropriate independent
professional. In each case, the connection between the child’s need and
the specific school applied for must be clearly demonstrated.

3) Children who will have a brother or sister attending the school (or its
associated Infant or Junior school) at the fime of admission. This category
includes foster brothers and sisters, half brothers and sisters or steplrothers
and sisters. Parents should note that in all these cases, the brother or sister
must be living at the same address as the child for whom the application
is being made. (However, this does not include younger siblings in the
school’s nursery class).

4) Children living closest to the preferred school. (Distance measured by
straight line using a computerised mapping system).

The tie-breaker for all criteria is children living closest to the school

(measured in a straight line from the home address point to a central point
on the school site using a computerised mapping system).

e P PRy e BHARINGEY COLUIMNCILE




Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 77 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 5

Qualifying Scheme for co-ordination of admission to Year 7 in Haringey maintained
secondary schools for the 2009/10 school year.

The Haringey Children and Young People’s Service proposes carrying forward the
co-ordinated arrangements currently in place for admission to maintained
secondary schools in September 2008. The Qualifying Scheme outlined below
incorporates all admission authorities for maintained secondary schools in Haringey
as required under current legislation. These are:

The Children and Young People’s Service is the admission authority for the
community secondary schools in Haringey, specifically :

Alexandra Park School,

Gladesmore Community Schoal,
Highgate Wood School,

Hornsey School for Girls,

Northumberland Park Community Schoal,
Park View Academy

Woodside High Lane School

The respective governing bodies are the admission authorities for the following
schools:

e Greig City Academy

e  Fortismere School

e StThomas More RC School

e The John Loughborough School
Applications

i) Parents applying for all maintained secondary schools in Haringey at the
primary-secondary transfer stage will be required to complete the secondary
tfransfer form for the area in which they live, regardless of the location of the
secondary schools they are applying for.

i In accordance with paragraph 1.73 of the School Admissions Code other
admission authorities within Haringey (i.e. Greig City Academy, Fortismere, St
Thomas More RC School and The John Loughborough School) will not use
supplementary forms except where the information on the Common Application

e P PRy e BHARIMGEY COLIMCILE




Form is insufficient for consideration against the school’s published admission
criteria. Page 78

i)  Applicants will be able to express up to six preferences on the Common
Transfer form, and this will include all maintained secondary schools whether
situated in Haringey or not, as well as Academies and any City Technology College
that has agreed to participate in their Authority’s scheme.

iv) The order of preference given by parents on the Common Application Form
will not be revealed as admission authorities do not require this information in order
to apply their oversubscription criteria. However, the preference information will be
given to another authority where a parent has applied for a participating
secondary school in that authority’s area to enable that authority to run their co-
ordination scheme.

Processing (Timetable)

v)  Applicants living in Haringey must return the completed Common Application
Form which will be available to be submitted on line to Haringey Admissions
Service by 17 October 2007. The October closing date is recommended by the
School Admissions Code is 24 October, or the next working day, however, 24
October often falls during the half term break.

vi)  Application data relating to applications to schools in other Participating
Authorities will be up-loaded to the Pan-London Register by 10 November 2008. In
any year when this is not a working day, the deadline will be the next working day.
The last date for uploading late applications that are accepted as ‘on-time’ to the
PLR will be 12 December 2008.

vii) The timetable for processing applications in accordance with oversubscription
criteria for all admission authorities in Haringey (please see proposed
oversubscription for Haringey community secondary schools under point 1 in the
consultation document) will be as follows:

¢ 21 November 2008 - Deadline for Haringey Admissions Service to send details
of applicants (without preference information to Greig City Academy, Fortismere,
The John Loughborough School and St Thomas More RC School.

¢ 24 November 2008 to 9 January 2009, admission authorities in Haringey
consider applications using their respective published admission arrangements.

¢ 14 January 2008 - Deadline for Greig City Academy, Fortismere, The John
Loughborough School and St Thomas More RC School to return lists of all
applicants, in rank order, to the Haringey Children’s Service.

viii) It is proposed that late applications should be accepted only where they are
late for a good reason. This carries forward the current published arrangement for
Haringey community schools which states that:

‘Applications received after the closing date...................... will only be considered
with those submitted before the closing date where there are exceptional
circumstances. This can be where the family moved (in which case evidence of the



change of address will be required) or there are other exceptional reasons which
prevented the family from applying &ag@ﬂe each case, supporting evidence will
be required.’

iX) Where a parent moves from one participating home authority to another after
submitting an on-time application under the terms of the former home authority’s
scheme, the new home authority will accept the application as on-time up to 12
December 2008, on the basis that an on-time application already exists within the
Pan-London system.

x) Haringey will participate in the application data checking exercise to be
scheduled between 17 December 2007 and 1 January 2008 in the Pan-London
fimetable.

xi)  The latest up-load of late applications to the PLR is 12 December 2008.

xii)  Haringey Children and Young People’s Service will up-load the highest
potential offer to an applicant for a Haringey maintained school 1o the PLR by 4
February 2009 . The PLR will transmit the highest potential offer made by the
Maintaining LEA (the LEA where the school is situated) to the Home LEA (the LEA
where the applicant lives).

xii)  Haringey’s Local Admissions System (LAS) will eliminate all but the highest
ranked offer where the applicant has more than one potential offer across
Maintaining LEAs. This will involve exchanges of information between LAS and the
PLR until a steady state is achieved (which PLR will indicate). Haringey will then
fransmit to PLR information about which final offers have and have not been made
at least 5 working days before 1 March. The PLR will fransmit this information to the
LAS of the relevant Maintaining Authorities for their information.

Offers

xiv) Notfification will be sent to parents concerning the outcome of their
applications on the Prescribed Day, this being 1 March (or in any year where this is
not a working day, the next working day). For the September 2009 intake, this will
e 2 March 2009.

xv) On the same day, Haringey residents who have not been offered one of their
preferred schools will be allocated a place at an alternative school. This will usually
e the nearest community school, but, with the agreement of the governing
bodies, this may be either of the voluntary aided secondary schools or the
academy, provided they have places available.

xvi) Haringey Admissions will participate in the offer data checking exercise to be
scheduled between 20 and 27 February 2009 in the Pan-London timetable.

xvii) For the purposes of Paragraph 2(e), 4 (d) and 4 (e) of the Schedule to the
Regulations, the Home LA (Haringey Children and Young People’s Services) will



inform applicants living in the area of their highest offer of a school place and,
where relevant, the reasons why hiBb@@r&fbrences were not offered, irrespective
of whether they were for schools in the Home LA or in other Participating LAS.
Where a place has been refused at a Haringey school where the governors are the
admission authority, parents will be advised to contact the school concerned for
detailed reasons why their application was refused.

Post-Offer

xviii) Haringey Children and Young People’s Services will contfinue to co-ordinate
admissions after 1 March notifications have been sent until a steady state is
achieved. This will be until September 2009. At that stage, the LA will notify Greig
City Academy, Fortismere, The John Loughborough School and St Thomas More RC
School.

xix) Haringey Admissions will request that resident parents accept or decline the
offer of a place by 16 March 2009.

xx) Where a parent resident in Haringey accepts or declines a place in a school
maintained by another authority by 16 March 2009, we will forward the information
to the maintaining authority by 23 March 2009. Where such information is received
from parents between 16 March and 31 August 2009, we will pass it to the
maintaining authority as it is received.

xxi) In the period T March to 31 August 2009, Haringey Admissions will seek to
ensure that a place is not offered at a school in its area which is ranked on the CAF
as a lower preference than any school already offered to a parent.

xxii) In the period 1 March to 31 August 2009, Haringey will inform the home
authority, where different, of any change to an applicant's offer status as soon as it
OCcCurs.

xxii) In the period T March to 31 August 2009, Haringey Admissions will accept new
applications (including additional preferences) for its schools from home authorities.

xxiv) It is proposed that waiting lists for Haringey community secondary schools will
be kept in the order of the oversubscription criteria. From September 2009, the
waiting list for Hornsey School for Girls will be altered and the proportionality
category will cease. In its place, applicants under this category will be placed in
order of distance of the home address to the school. Applicants remain only on
waiting lists for higher preferences than the one offered. (This will not affect parents’
right fo appeal against any decision to refuse a place).

Number of places
The current admission limits for year 7 pupils in each Haringey community

secondary schools is as follows:

Alexandra Park 216
Gladesmore Community School 243



Highgate Wood School 243

Hornsey School Page 81 243
Northumberland Park Community School 210
Park View Academy 243

Woodside High School 243



Page 82

This page is intentionally left blank



i)

Page 83 The Children and
Young People’s

Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 6

Qualifying Scheme for co-ordination of admission to reception classes in Haringey
maintained primary schools for the 2009/10 school year.

Children who have their fifth birthday on or between 1 September 2009 and 31
August 2010 are due to start in reception classes in Haringey in September 2009.
The current arrangements for admission to Haringey community primary schools
and St Aidan’s voluntary controlled School do not provide for children of other
age groups to start in reception in September 2009. Parents will be required to
show documentary evidence of their child’s date of birth.

The proposals outlined below incorporate all admission authorities for maintained
primary schools in Haringey with reception classes. These are:

Haringey Children and Young People’s Service as admission authority for the
community primary schools in Haringey.

The Governing Bodies of the following voluntary aided primary and infant schools:

St Francis de Sales RC Infants’ School

St Ignatius RC Primary St John Vianney RC Primary
St Martin of Porres RC Primary St Mary’s RC Infants” School
St Peter-in-Chains RC Infants” School

The Green CE Primary St Ann’s CE Primary

St James CE Primary St Mary’s CE Infants” School
St Michael’s CE Primary (N6) St Michael’s CE Primary (N22)

St Paul’s & All Hallows CE Infants” School
Application Forms

For the September 2009 intake, parents applying for all maintained primary
schools in Haringey in the normal year of entry (i.e to reception classes) will be
required to complete the Haringey common application form, regardless of the
applicant’s borough of residence. All preferences named on the common
application form will be valid preferences.

In accordance with paragraph 1.73 of the School Admissions Code other
admission authorities within Haringey (i.e. the voluntary aided primary and infant
schools listed above) will not use supplementary forms except where the
information on the common application form is insufficient for consideration

e P PRy e BHARINGEY COLUIMCILE




against the school’s published admission criteria. (This will usually be where schools
require evidence of religious confPaigyeged4as part of their admission
arrangements).



Page 85

However, Governors will be required to state in their admission arrangements that
these are not application forms, and the completion of a supplementary form
alone is not a valid application. Where supplementary forms have been returned
directly to the schools, they must notify the Haringey Admissions Service to check
whether the common application form has been completed, and if not, contact
the parent and request them to complete one.

The Children’s Service is proposing that applicants should be able to name up 1o
four schools on the common application form in order of preference, and this will
include all maintained primary schools in Haringey (but not primary schools in any
other authority’s area). Parents will also be invited to give reasons for their
preferences.

Confidentiality of preference information

The Authority will forward information about all applicants to the relevant
admission authorities within Haringey, but will not give the preference ranking.

The Equal Preference System

Preferences for maintained primary schools (including voluntary aided schools)
will be considered without reference to the parent’s order of preference.
Admission authorities should supply a list of all applicants in criteria order to the
Admissions Service who will apply the ranking information to offer the highest
possible preference.

Governing bodies of voluntary aided schools in their capacity as admission
authority for that school will be responsible for applying their own determined and
published admission arrangements, and these should make clear that
preferences will be considered equally, and without reference to the preference
order stated by the parent. The only exception to this for 2008 may be St Martin of
Porres RC Primary School. The governing body of this school, in their capacity as
admission authority will detfermine whether this arrangement is proposed for the
2008/09 school year. However, they will need to, bear in mind that the draft Code
advises that this criterion should not be used except in an area where all schools
in the area also apply first preference first..

Haringey’s Local Admissions System (LAS) will eliminate all but the highest ranked
offer where the applicant has more than one potential offer across admission
authorities within the authority’s area.

Determining the offers in response to the common application form.
The closing date for applications is proposed as 7 November 2008, and the

deadline for changing preferences should be the same date. The forms must be
returned to Haringey Admissions Service by this date.



Page 86

It is proposed that there is a frequent exchange of data relating o schools where
the governing body is the admission authority (i.e. voluntary aided primary and
infant schools in Haringey) both before and after the closing date to ensure that
application procedures have been followed correctly and the necessary forms
have been completed).

The Haringey Admissions Service will act as a clearing house for the allocation of
places by the relevant admission authorities in response to the application forms.
The Authority will only make any decision with respect to the offer or refusal of a
place in response to any preference expressed on the common application form
where:

a) itis acting in its separate capacity as an admission authority, or
b) an applicant is eligible for a place at more than one school, or
c) an applicant is not eligible for a place at any school that the parent has nominated.

By 6 January 2009, the Haringey Admissions Service will notify the admission
authority for each of the schools of every nomination that has been made for that
school, including all relevant details and any supplementary form received by this
date which schools require in order to apply their oversubscription criteria.

By 13 February 2009 the admission authority for each school will consider alll
applications for their schools, apply the school’s oversubscription criteria (if
appropriate) and provide the Haringey Admissions Service with a list of those
applicants ranked according to the school’s oversubscription criteria.

The LA will match this ranked list against the ranked lists of the other schools
nominated and:

e where the child is eligible for a place at the nominated/only one of the nominated
schools, that school will be allocated to the child

e where the child is eligible for a place at two or more of the nominated schools,
they will be allocated a place at whichever of these is the highest ranking
nominated school for which they are eligible for a place

e where the child is not eligible for a place at the nominated school/any of the
nominated schools, the child will be allocated a place at the nearest appropriate
school to the child’s home address with a place available. They will also be given
information on other schools in the LEA’s area which still have places available.

On 9 March 2009 the Admissions Service will inform schools of the pupils to be
offered places at their schools

On 16 March 2009 the Admissions Service will post letters to parents notifying them
they are being offered a place at the allocated school. This letter will give the
following information:

e the name of the school at which a place is offered;

e the reason why the child is not being offered a place at any of the other schools
which may have been nominated on the common application form;



e information about their statutory righRE@@i8561 against the decisions to refuse
places at other nominated schools;



Page 88
e contact details for the school and LA (and those nominated VA schools where they
were not offered a place so that they can lodge an appeal with the governing
body);

e if the child has been refused a place at a nominated school that was a higher
preference than the one offered, an invitation for the child’s name to be placed
on a waiting list for reallocation if places become free after the offer date.

On 16 March 2009 the LA will also inform neighbouring LAs of any offers of a place
at its schools made to neighbours’ residents

30 March 2009: the deadline for parents to accept the place offered. If they do
not respond by this date, it will be assumed that they do not accept the place.

After offers have been made

The Admissions Service will continue co-ordinated procedures for a time after the
14 March 2008 notifications have been sent until a steady state is achieved. This is
because duplicate offers will be possible where applicants have applied to
schools in another authority’s area, or parents decide to accept a place for their
child in the private sector. It is anticipated that this will be until September 2009.

Waiting lists should be kept in the order of the oversubscription criteria and in
order to avoid duplicate offers, applicants remain only on waiting lists for higher
preferences than the one offered. (This will not affect the parents’ right to appeal
against any decision to refuse a place).

Timetable

The proposed timetable for processing applications in accordance with
oversubscription criteria for all admission authorities in Haringey is suggested as
follows:

Deadline for receipt of completed application forms — 7 November 2008

Community and voluntary aided schools advised of all applications received for
their schools — 2 January 2009

Voluntary aided schools to send lists of all applicants in criteria order to Haringey
Admissions Service — 13 February 2009

Letters notifying parents of the outcome of their applications — 16 March 2009
Late applications

The closing date for receipt of completed common application forms is 7
November 2008. Applications received after this date will be accepted only
where they are Iate for a good reason. This is in line with the School Admissions

Code.

Further guidance on exceptional circumstances will be given in the new primary
school booklet.



Applications made directly to any school on the common transfer form must be
forwarded fo Haringey Admissions $éagyee 88mediately. Where only the
supplementary form is received, the school must inform the authority immediately
so it can verify whether a common application

form has been received from the parent, and if not, contact the parent and ask
them to complete one. The Authority will enter the details onto its central
database and affer consultation with the relevant admission authority, offer a
place at the nominated or highest ranking school with a place available, or if this
is not possible, at the nearest appropriate school with a place available.

Applications received after 1 September 2009 (Casual admissions)

Applications received after 1 September 2009 and applications for places in a
year group other than the normal year of entry to primary school will be treated
as casual admissions, and referred to the relevant admission authority for
determination. Individual admission authorities will operate arrangements for
casual admissions. In the case of the Children’s Service, the waiting lists for
community primary schools and St Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled School will be
kept in the order of the oversubscription criteria, but with priority normally being
given to children without a school place.

Waiting lists.

The waiting lists for reception classes in Haringey community primary schools and
St Aidan’s Voluntary Controlled School will be kept in the order of the
oversubscription criteria..

Alexandra JMI 30 Lordship Lane

Belmont Infants 56 Mulberry Q@0
Bounds Green Infant 60 Muswell Hill 60
Broadwater Farm 60 Nightingale 60
Bruce Grove 60 Noel Park 81
Campsbourne Infant 60 North Harringay 81
Chestnuts Primary 60 Rhodes Avenue 60
Coldfall Q@0 Risley Avenue

Coleraine Park 60 Rokesley Infant 90
Coleridge 120 St Aidan’s VC Primary 30
Crowland 60 Seven Sisters 60
Devonshire Hill 60 South Harringay Infant 60
Downhills 60 Stamford Hill 30
Earlham 60 Stroud Green

Earlsmead 60 Tetherdown 60

Ferry Lane 30 Tiverton 60
Highgate 56 Welbourne 60

Lancasterian Infant58 West Green 30

90

90

60



Lea Valley

60

Weston Park

Page 90

30



Page 91 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 7

Protocol for the Admission of In-Year Fair Access Protocol to place students in

Haringey Secondary Schools

Infroduction
1. Paragraph 3.15 of the new Schools Admissions Code says that all admissions authorities and
Admissions Forums must have a protocol for Fair Access (formerly called a *Hard to Place
Protocol) in place by September 2007 and that all local schools and Academies must
participate. This In-Year Fair Access scheme complies with that requirement and is based
on the review of the two-term ftrial *Hard-to-Place’ protocol.

2. Its aims are to:

acknowledge the real needs of vulnerable young people who are not on the roll of a
school to be dealt with quickly and sympathetically;

fairly share the burden of admitting vulnerable students across all schools & Academies,
taking account of their capacity to support each student;

arrange such admissions openly through a process which has the confidence of all.

Students within the scope of this scheme
3. The admission to school of the following students falls within the scope of this scheme:

Children in Public Care / Looked-After Children;

those permanently excluded, in particular those seeking reintegration from the Pupil
Support Centre;

those who have been out of education for more than 6 weeks (half a term);
asylum seekers and refugees not in accommodation centres;

homeless children and young people;

those with unsupportive family backgrounds where a place has not been sought;
those known to the police or other agencies such as the Youth Offending;

those returning from secure units;

those without a school place and a history of serious attendance problems;
Traveller/Gypsy/Roma children

4. The Fair Access Panel will also consider applications for managed moves.

Composition of the panel
5. A panel, consisting of three headteachers, the Head of Admissions and the Head of
Inclusion (chair), will meet once a month (or as necessary) to ensure the prompt and fair

e P PRy e BHARINGEY COLUIMNCILE




allocation of young people to schools. The quorum will be three, where there are at least
two headteachers and one local dRgfgeitdBpresentative.

6. Headteachers’ representation on the panel will be agreed annually at the secondary

heads meeting.

The decision-making process

7.

8.

Cases will be brought to the panel by the Haringey Admissions team.

The Panel will be supported by the Pupil Placement Officer who will administer the panel
and provide data and information on past decisions, including allocations by school, year
group and points weighting.

The Panel will also have available to it the number of students with statements of special
educational need allocated over number through the SEN procedures and the number of
vacancies by year group.

10. Where a young person is known to a particular service or agency, an officer with

knowledge of that young person will be invited to the allocation panel, or a short written
statement may be submitted.

11.Where a school is requesting agreement to a managed move then the headteacher (or

representative) will attend with documentation as set out in the managed moves protocol.

12.When making the decision as to appropriate placement for the child, the panel will take

info account:

e the parents’ views (including religious affiliation);

¢ the distance from home to school;

e the extent to which the school has itself recently excluded students;

e the number of ‘points” accumulated by schools that have already admitted students

under the protocol (please see explanation below);

the needs of the student, where this is known;

e any capacity/capability reasons why the school may not be able to respond to the
needs of the student.

13.The panels will award points for each pupil admitted under the protocol. Points can range

from 1 to 3, with 3 allocated to those pupils who, in the view of the panel, represent the
greatest challenge to the schools to which they are allocated.

NOTE: The panel will also award points to a school where a young person or their family
refuses to take up the offer of a school place under normal admission procedures and
where a School Attendance Order process has been instigated.

14.The points allocation for The John Loughborough School will be multiplied by four to bring it

into line with other schools.

156. Decisions regarding placement of students under the Fair Access scheme will be made by

the panel, and will be final. Admission must take place within 16 school days of the school
receiving nofification of the decision.

16.The school may appeal against the panel’s decision only where the school has prior

knowledge of the specific young person which was not known to the panel at the fime of



decision, which makes the placement inappropriate. The appeal should be made in writing
within 5 school days of the school redyey 88tification of the decision.

17.The appeal will be considered at the next panel meeting, or an extraordinary meeting of
the same panel members may be called to consider an appeal where a delay to the
following panel would be inappropriate, for example in the case of looked-after children.

18.The admission of a young person through the fair-access panel will on occasion take the
school above the planned admission number for that year group. This allocation by the Fair
Access panel will never exceed one per class per year group. Note: This does not include
allocations made through the SEN panel that take a school over planned admission

number or where a school which is its own admission authority has chosen to admit over
number itself.

19. 1t is recognised that for young people seeking in-year admission to school there is often little
information easily or readily available. To ensure fair access and avoid accusations of
‘'selection’ there needs to be a balance of the degree of information to make a best
placement whilst avoiding an unreasonable delay in allocation or admission.

20.Consequently, where a young person has been allocated a school place and the school
awarded points based on the best information available at the time, and this subsequently
proves to be inappropriate/inaccurate, the school may bring the case back to the panel
for a change in points allocation or, in very rare and extreme circumstances, reallocation.

Relationship with appeals

21.Where young people are admitted to a school above the planned admission number in
any year group, under the protocol, this should not undermine the admission authority’s
case which is founded on prejudice 1o the school and efficient use of resources.

22. Appeal panels will be made aware of the conditions of the scheme, and that the
admission of an additional student under this scheme is quite different fromn a school
voluntarily exceeding its admission limit. Panels will also be made aware that any decision
they make to allow appeals will place further pressure on a school’s resources.

Monitoring the operation of the protocol

23.The anonymised details of all decisions will be made available to the Admissions Forum as a
standing agenda item to demonstrate that the Protocol is being applied appropriately.



Page 94

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 95 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 8

Arrangements for admission to Alexandra Park Sixth Form

Total number of students to be admitted in September 2009 = 250

Total number of students to be admitted from outside the school = 100

To study AS/A levels students must have at least five Grades A* - C at GCSE.
Some subjects have specific entry requirements and for many AS/A level
subjects a B grade in that subject at GCSE is a strong preference.

Students without five Grades A* — C at GCSE, are able to apply for our
Intermediate courses — OCR National in Science, OCR National in Business
and BTEC Music providing that their performance at GCSE indicates that
they will be able to cope with the demands of the course.

Students wishing 1o join the Sixth Form after having completed their AS levels
at another institution may be able to complete A2s in Year 13 at Alexandra
Park School. To do so they must have secured satisfactory passes in their AS
levels, and their course choice is compatible with our timetable.

The Alexandra Park Sixth Form will normally be able to offer places to all applicants
provided they meet the minimum entry requirements. In the unlikely event that this is
not possible due to the number of applications, priority will be given in the following
order to students who meet the minimum enftry requirements:

. To students in the care of a local authority under the provision of the Children Act
1989, or who have statements of Special Educational Needs specifically naming the
institution;

. To students who will have a sibling attending the school at the point of admission .
This category includes foster brothers and sisters, half brothers and half-sisters or
stepbrothers and stepsisters. They must also be living at the same address as the
applicant.

. To students living closest to the school. Distance will be measured in a straight line
from the student’s home address to the school.

e P PRy e BHARINGEY COLUIMNCILE




Page 96



Page 97 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 9

Arrangements for admission to Hornsey/Highgate Wood Sixth Form

Consortium

Total number of students to be admitted in September 2009 = 300
Total number of students to be admitted from outside the school = 100
Years 12 and 13 (600 students) are based in separate accommodation. For a

number of years at post 16 both schools have existed as a joint sixth form.
General entry requirements are as follows:

A/S and A2 Level - Four GCSE passes at A* - C. Some subjects will
require a pass at grade ‘B, for example Maths and
Sciences.
GNVQ Intermediate - Four GCSE passes two of which should be at
grade ‘D’ or pass with Merit (2 yr course)
or Distinction at Level 1 GNvaQ.

GNVQ - Foundation -  Preferably mainly G - E passes at GCSE
(2 yr course)

All students will be invited to an informal discussion about their subject
choice.

The Hornsey/Highgate Wood Sixth Formn Consortium will normally be able to offer
places to all applicants provided they meet the minimum entry requirements. In
the unlikely event that this is not possible due to the number of applications,
priority will be given in the following order to students who meet the minimum
entry requirements:

. To students in the care of a local authority under the provision of the Children Act
1989, or who have statements of Special Educational Needs specifically naming the
institution;

. To students who will have a sibling on roll at the school where the applicant will be
enrolled at the point of admission. This category includes foster brothers and sisters,
half brothers and half-sisters or stepbrothers and stepsisters. They must also be living at
the same address as the applicant.

e P PRy e BHARIMGEY COLUIMCILE




3. To students living closest to the school. Distance will be measured in a straight line
from the student’s home address 1@ tgenGBution where they would be on roll.



Page 99 The Children and
Young People’s
Service

Ve want every child and
young person to be happy, healthy

and safe with a bright future.

Appendix 10
Arrangements for admission to Haringey Sixth Form Centre

The aim of the new Sixth Form Centre is to provide opportunities for all those
who have the desire and determination to succeed. Different types of
courses have different entry requirements but we aim to provide a course
for all students with the necessary degree of commitment regardless of
their starting point. The Centre will provide courses at entry to Level 3 and
will be fully inclusive.

Total number of students to be admitted in Septemiber 2009 = 580

To study AS/A levels students must have 5 or more GCSEs at grades A*-C.
Some subjects have particular entry requirements which typically would be
a grade B in the subject to be studied.

For a Level 3 Vocational programme such as BTEC National students will
need to have 4 or more GCSEs at Grade A*- C or an equivalent L2
qualification such as BTEC First.

To study a Level 2 programme, such as BTEC First, students will usually need
to have GCSE passes at Grade D or above though experience, ability and
interest in the chosen vocational area will be taken into account.

To study a Levell programme, such as a BTEC Infroductory Diploma,
students will need to have GCSEs at Grade E-G or an equivalent
qualification although the key to obtaining a place on these courses is the
student’s commitment to do well in the area of study.

To study an entry or pre —entry level programme students do not need any
formal qualifications but do need a personal commitment to further study
in the area.

Students wishing to join the Sixth Form Centre after successfully completing
the first year of a Level 3 course may do so if their course choice is
compatible with the centre’s timetable.

The Sixth Form Centre will normally be able to offer places to all applicants
provided they meet the minimum entry requirements. In the event that this is not
possible due to the number of applications, priority will be given in the following
order to students who meet the minimum entry requirements:

e P PRy e BHARIMNGEY ':I:'Llhli:lLl\




Page 100

1. To students in the care of a local authority under the provision of the Children Act
1989, or who have statements of Special Educational Needs specifically naming
the institution.



4.
5.

Page 101

. To students on roll in Year 11 at one of the following schools:

Gladesmore Community School

The John Loughborough School
Northumberland Park Community School
Park View Academy

Woodside High School

. To students who will have a sibling attending the Sixth Form Centre at the point of

admission. This category includes foster brothers and sisters, half brothers and half-
sisters or steplbrothers and stepsisters. They must also be living at the same address
as the applicant.

To students on roll in Year 11 at other Haringey secondary schools.

To students living closest to the Sixth Form Centre. Distance will be measured in a
straight line from the student’s home address to Centre.



Page 102

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 103 Agenda ltem 11

X

=

Haringey
Agenda item: [No ]
Cabinet 16™ October 2007

Report Title: Draft Lawrence Road Planning Brief (SPD) & Sustainability Appraisal

Forward Plan reference number

Report of: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment

Wards affected: Tottenham Green Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To report the outcome of the recent public consultation exercise in respect of the
Draft Lawrence Road Planning Brief (and accompanying Sustainability Appraisal)

1.2 To proceed towards adoption of the amended Draft Lawrence Road Planning Brief
as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD)

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 This report is brought to the Cabinet to agree proposed amendments to the draft
Lawrence Road Planning Brief.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That Cabinet notes the proposed amendments to the Draft Lawrence Road Planning
Brief.

3.2 That the amended brief and accompanying sustainability appraisal be adopted by
Cabinet as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).

Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment

SIONEA. .. e Dated.............October 2007

Contact Officer: Jimmy Jemal, Team Leader Projects. (020) 8489 5527




Page 104

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 This report concludes that a planning brief based on mixed-use development is the

best way forward as regards meeting the Council’s regeneration, investment and
sustainability aims. Future firm proposals for site development should try to ensure
maximum benefit for the Council in terms of planning gains for environment /
infrastructure improvements. The costs of developing the planning brief will need to
be contained within the approved cash limit for Planning, Policy and Development
business unit.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 The Acting Head of Legal Services supports the recommendation and in particular
the inclusion of a requirement for a Section 106 obligation for each planning
application that B1 space will be occupied for a minimum of 5 years. The
incorporation of industrial or commercial elements into the proposals, and 100%
occupancy will be important in achieving success in this initiative.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 Background documents include:
e The Mayor’s London Plan (2004)

L.B. Haringey Adopted UDP (July 2006)

Draft North London Sub-Regional Development Framework

Lawrence Road Baseline Business Survey (May 2005)

PPS 1 Delivering Sustainable Communities (2005).

PPS 3 Housing (2006).

PPG 4 Industry, Commercial development & Small Firms (1992).

PPS 12 Local Development Frameworks (2004).

DCLG Sustainable Appraisal of Regional Spatial Strategies and Local

Development Frameworks: Consultation Paper (September 2004).

e DCLG Making The System Work Better - Planning At Regional And Local
Levels (July 2002).

e The Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations
2004.

e The Environmental Assessment of Plans and Programmes Regulations 2004.

e Sustainability Appraisal Report (October 2006).

e L.B. Haringey Local Development Scheme (April 2006).

6.2 These documents are located at 639 High Road, London N17 8BD. Anyone
wishing to inspect the background documents should contact Jimmy Jemal
on ( 020) 8489 5527




7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

8.1

8.2

8.3

Page 105

Executive Summary

Lawrence Road is a former employment area covering some 3.76 hectares, which

is under increasing pressure to change. This is due mainly to the decline in the
clothing industry, which has resulted in the loss of employment opportunities, and
left a high proportion of buildings vacant. The road has poor environmental quality
and suffers from fly-tipping, graffiti and anti-social behaviour. Lawrence Road is
clearly in need of regeneration. Following a change in planning designation, the UDP
considers the area suitable for mixed-use development; and that a planning brief
should be prepared to guide regeneration.

The draft planning brief was the subject of a six-week period of statutory public
consultation between 7" May and 18" June 2007.

The consultation attracted almost 250 written comments; in objection and support
from 33 respondents. The main issues included: height, density, design, affordable
housing, and the provision of public open space. In addition, 95 completed
questionnaire leaflets were returned. All comments have been considered and taken
into account, and where appropriate, the Planning Brief and Sustainability Appraisal
have been amended.

The results of the consultation exercise, along with an amended version of the draft
planning brief were reported to Planning Committee on 3" September 2007.
Planning Committee noted the amendments, and requested that one, non-
substantive change be made to the brief, prior to recommending it for adoption

as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD) by Cabinet.

Background Information

Location

The draft planning brief covers the land and buildings sited to the east and west of
Lawrence Road, along the stretch between Clyde Road to the north and West Green
Road to the south. The buildings comprise mainly multi-storey blocks; a significant
number of which are vacant and under utilised. The majority of occupiers are, or
were, in industrial manufacturing use, with live/work development at number 28
Lawrence Road. The Clyde Circus Conservation Area surrounds the site on all
sides. To the north of the site lies Philip Lane Local Shopping Centre, with West
Green Town Centre to the south.

Planning Context

Lawrence Road was originally designated as a Defined Employment Area (DEA) in
Haringey’s 1998 UDP. When the new UDP was adopted in July 2006, the area was
taken out of the DEA designation and put forward as ‘Site Specific Proposal 27’
which allows for mixed-use development; including employment and residential. It
also proposed that a planning brief should be prepared.

The Lawrence Road Baseline Survey (May 2005)



9.1

9.2

10

10.1

Page 106

A survey of Lawrence Road was completed in May 2005. The purpose was to gather
information about the characteristics of the established business community that
would be used to inform production of a planning brief. The survey concluded that:

e Given the high and increasing vacancy rates there is an urgent need for
regeneration.
e Road safety and environmental improvements are required.
e Significant investment is required to provide modern buildings and
facilities.
e Land uses should be diversified, with an emphasis on providing high-quality
residential and live / work units.
e Need to provide more continuous use and activity; leisure uses
should be expanded with the introduction of cafes, bars, restaurants
and community clubs.
e A critical mass of change is needed, which could be achieved by a
high-quality, flagship development at one of the sites that would act
as a catalyst to attract investment.
¢ Need to accommodate high-density, mixed-use business and
residential units, together with appropriate retail and leisure
facilities.
e Improve public realm and introduce a sustainable transport strategy.
e A planning brief is required in order to secure a comprehensive,
high-quality development.

The Draft Planning Brief

A draft planning brief for Lawrence Road was prepared that would provide an
overarching framework for residential-led, mixed-use development; which included
housing and commercial uses (employment, small-scale retail, leisure, education /
training, community, live / work etc.)

Once adopted, the brief would be used to assess any future planning applications
and help ensure that the Council’s objectives were met. It would provide detailed
advice on the acceptable form of development; which includes building heights,
residential density, the mix of uses, the appropriate housing mix including affordable
housing and provision of family-size homes, design guidance, requirements for
sustainable development, car-parking, S106 obligations and the mechanism by
which the redevelopment would be delivered.

Sustainability Appraisal

A sustainability appraisal, which meets the legislative requirements, was

undertaken and the impact of the draft planning brief assessed in respect of its
sustainability effects. The sustainability appraisal indicated that a mixed-use
scheme, as proposed in the draft planning brief, would result in a more sustainable
form of development as opposed to purely residential or commercial use. The
current uses along Lawrence Road are clearly unsustainable.



11.

11.2

11.3

11.5

Page 107

The public consultation process

At its meeting on 17" April 2007, Planning Committee was asked to consider the
public and stakeholder consultation strategy in respect of the Draft Lawrence Road
Planning Brief. The Committee agreed the consultation strategy, and Council officers
were given a mandate to undertake the required statutory consultation.

Statutory Consultation

The public consultation process in respect of the Draft Planning Brief commenced on
7" May and ended on 18" June 2007. The strategy undertaken complied the
Government’s statutory requirements, and with the Council’s Draft Statement of
Community Involvement. The consultation was extensive and wide-ranging, with the
main documents made available in different languages and formats upon request.
The strategy included:

e Advertisement (public notice) published in a local newspaper with borough-wide
circulation.

e Planning Brief and Sustainability Appraisal made available for inspection at 639
Tottenham High Road and three local libraries.

e Article in Haringey People Magazine, distributed to all households.

e Approximately 2,300 summary leaflet / questionnaires delivered to all addresses
with a defined area.

e Approximately 170 leaflets with a covering letter were posted to statutory
consultees, adjoining boroughs, ward and neighbouring ward councillors, local
community and amenity groups, businesses, land-owners and other
stakeholders.

o Exhibition material on display at Marcus Garvey Library for six-weeks.

e Webpage containing the draft documents along with details of how to comment.

e Public meeting / Q&A session for local groups, businesses and individuals held
on 24" May 2007 at the West Green Baptist Church Hall.

Consultation Responses

Around 250 separate written comments — both objection and support — were
received from 33 respondents; which included individuals, statutory consultees,
local businesses, developers, local environmental and amenity groups.

In addition, the Council received 95 completed questionnaires. The questionnaire
posed seven questions regarding the principles of redevelopment. The questions
and responses assisted in articulating the aspirations of the community and
generally reflected the comments expressed in the written responses.

Consultation - key issues raised

e The brief is welcomed, and mixed-use regeneration is a positive move.

e New development should be low-density, low rise which complements the
adjoining conservation area.



11.6

11.7

Page 108

Buildings must be of high quality design, using traditional materials.

New development must address issues of sustainability

Trees must be retained, with more provided.

Good quality, well managed open space, including allotments should be
provided.

Elizabeth Place Park should be expanded.

Lawrence Road has been run-down deliberately to force a change-of-use
Community / social facilities should be provided on-site.

Small, independent local shops should be encouraged.

There should be more / should be less affordable housing.

There should be more family-sized accommodation

High specification, private housing should be constructed.

Buy-to-let should be discouraged.

Some existing buildings are worthy of retention.

Parking and traffic issues must be addressed.

Live / work should be encouraged.

An element of employment must be retained, and the proportion stated.
Designing-out-crime must be integral to redevelopment.

Appropriate utilities and drainage must be provided.

Consultation — GLA / TfL / LDA main comments

The provisions of the planning brief are generally well supported
Provision of affordable housing should comply with the London Plan
References to the London Plan polices should be strengthened

The London-wide housing target is incorrect and should be amended
The issues around parking and cycle parking could be made clearer

Proposed changes to the draft planning brief

Various references to the London Plan polices have been incorporated.

PPG 17 (Open Space) and PPS 23 (Pollution Control) are added to the policy
context section.

UDP policies in respect of climate change have been included.

Acceptable uses have been revised to stipulate retail may only be appropriate
along the West Green Road frontage; and hotels are not an acceptable use.
Explain how proportions of social rented / intermediate housing will be
negotiated.

The brief clarifies that affordable housing provision will be based upon habitable
rooms and not units.

Development adjacent to the park will be designed to provide surveillance.

The brief will state it is a fundamental aim to encourage sustainable transport
Reference will be made to cycle parking standards and workplace facilities
Reference will be made regarding the submission of travel plans

The use of appropriate public art will be supported.



11.8

12.

12.1

12.2

12.3

Page 109

The Sustainability Checklist will be strengthened by the inclusion of London Plan
policies, the Mayor’s Energy Strategy, the GLA SPG on sustainable design and
construction, and Haringey’s UDP policies.

The section regarding drainage and utilities will include the requirement to
consult Thames Water.

Development of 70 -72 Lawrence Road will require a full desk-top contamination
study, as required by the Environment Agency.

The brief will make clear that development will be incremental, but within the
guidance set-out in the brief.

The requirement to provide a proportion of employment use will be clarified.

The list of requirements for planning applications will be increased.

The Planning Obligations section will include a reference to the tests of Circular
05/2005; and the requirement that each site should contribute towards a general
funding pool for physical / social infrastructure projects.

S106 will be used to seek a commitment by end users to occupy B1 space for a
minimum of 5 years.

S106 in respect of health and community facilities will include créche, after-
school and other uses.

Post-Consultation Planning Committee

Following the six-week period of statutory public consultation, the various
responses were analysed by the Council and the draft document amended as
appropriate. The amended brief was presented to Planning Committee for
approval on 3" September 2007. Committee requested that one, further
amendment be undertaken in respect of water efficiency measures. It was agreed
this non-substantive change would be included. Committee approved the brief,
and recommended it for adoption by Cabinet as a Supplementary Planning
Document (SPD).

Summary and Conclusion

The Planning Brief defines a vision for a new, residential-led mixed-used
development, and sets out how it will be realised. It provides a clear articulation of
what is required to bring about a successful, sustainable development that will
benefit the existing residents as well as an expanding residential community.

It will provide much needed homes; a significant proportion of which will be
affordable. These new homes will be integrated within a mix of other,
complementary uses; which could include employment and community uses.

The brief will seek to protect the limited employment that currently exists; whilst
presenting new job opportunities. It will help attract the investment required to
regenerate the area, by providing developers with greater certainty. It will help to
create a safe and secure environment, by encouraging uses that bring the area to
life and provide natural surveillance of public spaces.



12.4

12.5

12.6

13

13.1

14

141

Page 110

It will encourage development proposals which achieve high standards of
sustainability, and incorporate innovative design, technology and construction
solutions to the challenge of climate change.

The brief will ensure new development is of the highest design quality; providing
developers with the opportunity to create innovative schemes, which respect the
surrounding area and demonstrate a consideration of the design and
conservation principles.

The momentum for change in Lawrence Road is now well underway, with various
developers keen to submit planning applications. It is important that the Council
has an adopted planning brief in place which sets the parameters for
development and provides a mechanism by which the inevitable change can be
managed successfully.

Equalities Implications

The planning brief seeks to protect existing employment levels and create new
opportunities that may be accessible to local people. The brief seeks to increase
provision of a range of housing; including affordable housing, family housing and
Lifetime Homes. Community safety will be increased through high-quality, urban
design and improvements to the public realm. The planning brief offers prospects
for the existing and incoming population in terms of new community or leisure-
type facilities which may be provided.

Appendices

Appendix 1: Draft Lawrence Road Planning Brief, incorporating proposed post-
consultation changes.



Page 111

__

Haringey Councl

LAWRENCE ROAD

Planning Brief
Supplementary Planning Document

October 2007



Page 112

CONTENTS

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

1.

1
1.
1

w N =

4.1
4.2
4.3
4.4

5.

5.1
5.2
5.3
54
5.5
5.6
5.7
5.8
5.9
5.10
5.11

INTRODUCTION

Purpose of the Brief
The Vision
Objectives

ABOUT THE PLANNING BRIEF

Public Consultation
Status of the Planning Brief
Sustainability Appraisal

SITE AND LOCAL AREA INFORMATION

The Brief Site
Historical Context
The Surrounding Area
Transport and Access
Characteristics

PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

Government Planning Policy Guidance

The Mayor’s London Plan
Local Planning Background
Relevant Planning History

LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS

Current Land Uses
Future Uses
Mix and Balance of Uses
Density
Affordable Housing
Housing Mix
Accessibility and Lifetime Homes
Employment
Live/Work

Retail

Public Open Space

o1 Or O

NN

10
10
11
12

13
15
16
21

22
24
25
26
26
26
27
27
28
28
28



6.1
6.2
6.3
6.4
6.5
6.6

7.1
7.2
7.3
74
7.5
7.6
7.7
7.8

8.1
8.2
8.3

9.

9.1
9.2
9.3

10.

Page 113

TRANSPORT

Background

Car and Cycle Parking

Parking provision: Transport Assessments and Travel Plans
Pedestrians

Access

Disabled Access

DESIGN AND CONSERVATION CONSIDERATIONS

Context and Location

Building Heights, Building Lines and Boundary Treatments
Public Realm

Junction of Lawrence Road and West Green Road
Landscape

Crime Prevention

Materials And Typology

Sustainability Checklist

INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSIDERATIONS

Contamination
Noise
Utilities And Drainage

IMPLEMENTATION

The Approach to Development
Requirements for Planning Applications
Requirements for Planning Obligations

GLOSSARY

ANNEX : CONSULTATION STATEMENT

30
30
31
31
33
33

34
34
36
36
37
37
38
38

41
41
47

43
43
45
47

49



Page 114

This planning brief has been prepared by:
London Borough of Haringey

Strategic Sites and Projects Group

Urban Environment Directorate

639 High Road

LONDON

N17 8BD

The contact officers are:
Jimmy Jemal and Geoff Merry

telephone: (020) 8489 5527/5226
3



Page 115

fax: (020) 8489 5552
email: Jimmy.Jemal@haringey.gov.uk; Geoff.Merry@haringey.gov.uk




Page 116

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

This document is the planning brief for Lawrence Road. The road is situated
between West Green Road and Clyde Road, to the north of the West Green
Road shopping centre. Lawrence Road comprises of buildings used
predominantly for employment, of which a relatively high proportion is
vacant. The area has the potential to become a thriving community,
providing a mix of uses, with employment, residential and other uses co-
existing.

Lawrence Road has been identified in Haringey’s Unitary Development Plan
as an area suitable for mixed use; employment and residential. This is a major
change from past plans where the area was identified for employment use
only.

Following public consultation and revision, the brief has been adopted by the
Council to provide guidance for development control purposes. It will help
ensure that planning applications meet the objectives that have been set out
for the area.

The objective is to achieve the highest standards of sustainable urban design
and development, through an overall revitalisation of the road.

The brief addresses the economic and employment changes affecting the
areq; the lack of investment, the rise in crime on the road, the environmental
problems and the need to change the restraints on the use of land. The
Council aims to strengthen the road’s competitiveness, attract investment,
create safer communities, provide sustainable transport and housing, and
improve the overall environment. The brief is, therefore, part of a holistic
approach to transforming Lawrence Road.

In order to maximise potential and make more efficient use of previously
developed land, mixed-uses are appropriate. It is envisaged that there will
be residential and live/work developments together with more intensive
employment uses. Residential and the appropriate form of employment can
co-exist. Other uses may be acceptable providing they do not adversely
impact upon neighbouring residential amenity or the economic viability of
neighbouring fown centres.

Where appropriate, planning agreements will be negotiated for the provision
of affordable housing, education, environmental improvements and public
open space.

The re-development of Lawrence Road presents an exciting opportunity to
rejuvenate the area whilst working towards Haringey’s and London’s strategic
goals. The undertaking of a sustainability appraisal has ensured that the
guidance in this brief and any new development meets the objectives of
sustainable development in environmental, economic and social terms.

5



Page 117

1. INTRODUCTION

1.1 PURPOSE OF THE BRIEF

1.1.1 The Council has prepared this Planning Brief to guide the future re-use
and development of Lawrence Road. The road is in urgent need of
regeneration due to the increasing level of vacant and redundant
buildings. Competing business centres have benefited from significant
investment in modern buildings and facilities, whereas Lawrence Road
has not kept pace.

1.1.2 The purpose of the Brief is to provide clear planning guidance for the
sustainable regeneration and redevelopment of Lawrence Road. The
Brief will facilitate a co-ordinated approach to development that will
provide new jobs and homes. [t sets out the principles and parameters
for development to achieve the vision. This includes planning policy
advice for future planning applications, the nature of acceptable
development, potential re-uses, urban design requirements and
potential S106 Planning Obligations. It will help ensure that planning
applications meet the objectives that have been set for the area.

1.2  THE VISION
1.2.1 Lawrence Road is comprised of buildings predominantly in
employment use. There is a relatfively high proportion of vacant
floorspace, with increasing pressure for changes of use, particularly to
residential. The road also suffers from a poor environment, the fear of
crime, anti-social behaviour and fraffic problems.
1.2.2 Therefore, the Council’s vision for Lawrence Road is as follows:
"To make Lawrence Road a place where people want to live, work
and visit by promoting mixed-use development, improving the quality
of the environment and ensuring that any development is sustainable.”
1.3 OBJECTIVES
1.3.1 This vision is based on the following objectives:
e Development that is designed to high architectural, urban and
environmental standards; and meets the requirements for
sustainable design and construction

¢ Toretain employment generating uses on the road.

e The need to provide decent and safe homes, 50% of which should
be in the form of affordable housing, including shared



Page 118

ownership/key worker accommodation in accordance with
Council policy and having regard to the need to create a mixed
community.

The need to enhance and improve the local environment for the
benefit of the local and wider community.

To reduce crime and the fear of crime, and anti-social behaviour.

To encourage a mix of uses which helps promote economic
development,

To ensure a comprehensive approach to development where
each and every part of the road is dealt with in a co-ordinated,
coherent and integrated manner.

To ensure that any development takes into account any adverse
impact on the amenities of neighbouring and future residential and
business occupiers.

To ensure that schemes have sufficient value, so as to meet the
above objectives.



2.1.

2.1.1

2.1.5

Page 119

ABOUT THE PLANNING BRIEF

PUBLIC CONSULTATION

Haringey Council’s Planning Applications Sub-Committee (PASC)
considered a draft version of this planning brief for public consultation
on 17t April.  Statutory public consultation on the draft brief
commenced on 7t May and ended on 18th June 2007.

Following the consultation period, the Council considered all responses
and amended the draft document as appropriate. The results of the
public consultation exercise and the amended planning brief were
reported back to Planning Committee before being presented to the
Council’s Cabinet for adoption as a ‘Supplementary Planning
Document’ (SPD). The timetable for adoption is set-out below: -

Adoption Process Date

PASC for public consultation | 17t April 2007
approval

Public Consultation (6 weeks) 7th May - 18t June 2007

PASC for approval of amended | 3rd September 2007
brief

Council’'s Cabinet for adoption as | 16th October 2007
SPD

A separate report has been produced which includes a summary of
any representations received, the issues raised, the Council’s response
and any resulting changes to the planning brief.

The Consultation Statement which summarises the consultation
strategy and findings at the pre-production stage of the Lawrence
Road planning brief, as well as the formal consultation strategy, is
appended.

If any planning application is submitted, further public consultation will

take place as

2.2

2.2.1

part of the development control process before any decision is made,
and the public  will be able to make representations regarding the
specifics of any proposal.

STATUS OF THE PLANNING BRIEF

This planning brief has been prepared within the context of
Government guidance, the Mayor’s London Plan, the London Borough
of Haringey adopted Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and other



2.3

2.3.1

232

233

234

Page 120

relevant supplementary planning guidance notes. Following the
statutory consultation period, the draft brief has been adopted by the
Council as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). The planning
brief will be a strong material planning consideration and afforded
significant weight when used to determine planning applications at
Lawrence Road.

SUSTAINABILITY APPRAISAL

This brief has been prepared with a view to contributing towards the
achievement of sustainable development. In essence, this involves
ensuring a better quality of life for everyone; for present and future
generations.

The Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 requires local
planning authorities to carry out sustainability appraisals  for
Supplementary Planning Documents such as the Lawrence Road
Planning Brief. European Directive 2001/42/EC also requires that
Strategic Environmental Assessments be carried out for certain types of
plans, which set out a framework for future development consents and
that are likely to have significant environmental effects.

A sustainability appraisal report has been carried out in conjunction
with the preparation of this planning brief, which meets the above
regulatory requirements through a single appraisal process. Its main
purpose is to appraise the social, environmental and economic effects
of the brief, from the outset of the preparation process, so that
decisions can be made that achieve sustainable development.

The Council has also produced a sustainability checklist which
highlights the issues that should be addressed as part of any planning
application and development. The checklist is set out in paragraph 7.8
of this document.



3.1.

3.1.1

10

Page 121

SITE AND LOCAL AREA INFORMATION

THE BRIEF SITE

The planning brief area relates to the land and buildings on that part of
Lawrence Road which is situated between Clyde Road and West
Green Road. It has an area of 3.76 hectares and includes the following
buildings:

e Numbers 45 to 113 (odd) Lawrence Road.
¢ Numbers 28 to 80 (even) Lawrence Road.
e Numbers 1to 3 (inc.) Lawrence Yard.

A plan detailing the site boundary and location of the relevant
buildings is provided below in Figure 1.



11

Page 122

gt el i ‘! I__,r = .= :
AR < _f‘\ M 1l :
Bl

i

:

I

[

Jeetn

il

A
s
t%ii‘ii

%!

:

}I_.

it
i
T
R

; I'\-r
< i\{\{‘ \\ W
\\\‘\\\;\},\ 5 S

R
W
W=

il

i

Figure 1: Lawrence Road Planning Brief area



3.2

3.2.1

3.3

3.3.1

3.3.2

3.3.3

12

Page 123

HISTORICAL CONTEXT

The buildings at Lawrence Road were developed mainly between the
years 1968 to1970 and constructed of industrialised, pre-cast multi-
storey slab blocks. They were used intensely by the clothing industry
throughout the 1970s and early1980s. By the mid-1980s, the UK clothing
industry had begun to move to Eastern Europe and China to take
advantage of cheap labour costs. Ulfimately, the local market could
not compete and has been in decline ever since. In 2005, 34% of the
buildings were vacant, with vacancy rates continuing to rise as leases
expire.

THE SURROUNDING AREA

The Clyde Circus Conservation Area surrounds the site on all sides. This
area comprises a mix of mid-Victorian villas and later Victorion and
Edwardian terraces, with commercial streets to its northern and
southern edges. The conservation area is relatively well defined by main
roads and the railway. The northern and southern edges of the
conservation area are formed by Philip Lane and West Green Road
respectively. The eastern edge is defined by the boundary formed by
the railway cutting. To the western edge, the boundary is partly defined
by the distinction between Victorian housing and the mid-late 20t
Century housing on Mansfield Road.

The area was radically redeveloped in mid 20t Century, and does not
possess any buildings of architectural or historic interest that warrant
protection by listing. However, it can be argued that the most
significant building, in architectural and design terms, is No. 28
Lawrence Road, which was formerly used as a floor cloth factory.

There are residential units to the east, west and north of the brief site.
To the north at Philip Lane, lie Philip Lane West and Philip Lane East
Local Shopping Centres. The southern boundary is characterised by a
mix of residential and retail, including West Green Town Centre. This is
one of the six, main town centres in Haringey and the brief site is
situated adjacent to it. Local shopping and town centres provide
important services for the local community, and are of borough- wide
and local importance.



Page 124

Figures 2: Elizabeth Place Park

3.3.4 Elizabeth Place Park was recently opened and is located at the Clyde Road
end of Lawrence Road, at the northern boundary of the brief site. This public
open space provides an important local amenity.

!

P

)]

B
N
e =

i

!
i

!

il

f

i

Clyde Circus Conservation Area
Philip Lane Local Shopping Centre
West Green Town Centre
Lawrence Road planning brief site

e

i

AR

il

S e
]
e e e ——— =

;i

I

Figure 3: Boundaries of the conservation areqa, shopping centres and planning brief site

13



3.4.

3.4.1

342

3.4.3

3.4.4

3.4.5

3.5

3.5.1

3.5.2

3.5.3

14

Page 125

TRANSPORT AND ACCESS

The area is well connected to the established commercial areas at
either end of Lawrence Road. Access appears to be adequate to
service the multi storey factory blocks on either side of the road. Many
of the buildings have substantial areas of off- street parking at the front
and at the rear.

Public transport accessibility (PTAL) is ranked into six levels according to
the Unitary Development Plan. Six is the highest level of public tfransport
accessibility and one is the lowest. The northern end of Lawrence
Road is ranked four and the southern end three, which gives an overall
rating of medium accessibility to public fransport.

There are bus stops on West Green Road for the No. 41 bus, travelling
between Archway Station and Tottenham Hale Station. There is also a
bus stop on Philip Lane, situated to the north. Bus route No. 231 fravels
between Wood Green Station and Upper Walthamstow, and No. 341
tfravels between Waterloo and Northumberland Park.

Seven Sisters Underground Station gives access to the Victoria Line and
is situated to the south-east. It is approximately 10 minutes walking
distance from the site, along West Green Road. To the west, 20
minutes walking distance along West Green Road is Turnpike Lane
Station giving access to the Piccadilly Line.

Access to public transport is a particularly important factor in
determining the level of off-street car parking required and housing
density, for re-use and/or redevelopment proposals.

CHARACTERISTICS

The street has become quieter during the day with the decline of the
clothing industry over the past ten years and increasing levels of
vacancy. The predominant employment uses mean that at the close
of business each day, there is little evening activity or residential
population, and consequently little natural surveillance at night. There
have been complaints of burglary, vandalism, street robbery, other
anti-social behaviour (particularly at night), and a third of the buildings
have graffiti and are boarded up. Thus, there has been an increase in
crime and fear of crime on the road, due to a lack of evening use, and
security and safety measures.

The road suffers from poor environmental quality and public realm,
including fly ftipping and graffiti. There are also parking problems
caused by heavy delivery vehicles blocking business accesses and
double parking. There is a need for environmental and road safety
improvements.,

Lawrence Road has suffered from under investment, particularly over
the past 10 years, and is no longer considered economically viable for



15

solely employment use.

Page 126



4.1.

4.1.1.

16

Page 127

PLANNING POLICY CONTEXT

The planning policy framework in which the re-use / development of
the Lawrence Road brief area will be considered is provided by
relevant Government Planning Guidance, the London Plan, Haringey’s
Unitary Development Plan and Supplementary Planning Guidance.

GOVERNMENT PLANNING POLICY GUIDANCE

e PPST: Delivering Sustainable Development (2005)

e PPS3: Housing (2006)

e PPG4: Industrial, Commercial Development and Small Firms
(1994)

PPS6 Planning for Town Centres (2005)

PPS12:  Local Development Frameworks (2004)

PPG13: Transport (2001)

PPG17:  Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation (2002)
PPS22:  Renewable Energy (2004)

PPS23: Planning and Pollution Control (2004)

PPG24: Planning and noise (1994)

PPS1: Delivering Sustainable Development (2005) sets out the
Government’s national policies on different aspects of land use
planning. It outlines the overarching planning policies on the delivery of
sustainable development, and other aspects of planning including
high quality and inclusive design. It states that community involvement
is an essential element in delivering sustainable development and
creating sustainable and safe communities. It promotes economic
development to secure higher living standards while protecting and
enhancing the environment, and a more efficient use of land through
higher density, mixed use development and the use of previously
developed land and buildings. A draft Planning Policy Statement
'Planning and Climate Change' has been drawn up to supplement
PPS1. The Draft PPS sets out how planning, in providing for the new
homes, jobs and infrastructure needed by communities, should help
shape places with lower carbon emissions and resilient to the climate
change now accepted as inevitable

PPS3: Housing (2006) this replacement for PPG3 puts much greater
emphasis on  brownfield development, more flexibility for local
authorities, affordable family housing, good design and tougher
environmental standards. The key policy directions are:

e A continued focus on brownfield land, with local authorities
prioritising brownfield development

o Greater flexibility for local authorities to determine how and where
new homes should be built in their area, with greater responsibility to
ensure homes are built



17

Page 128

¢ A new emphasis on family housing, with consideration given to the
needs of children; which includes gardens, play areas and green
spaces

e Housing and neighbourhoods must be well-designed. Local
authorities should refuse planning applications for poor quality
schemes.

e Consideration must be given to the environment, sustainability and
the need fo cuft carbon dioxide emissions, fogether with wider
environmental and sustainability considerations

o Affordable housing is a priority

PPG4: Industrial, Commercial Development and small Firms (2001)
encourages continued economic development in a way which is
compdtible with environmental objectives. It emphasises careful
aftention to environmental issues makes good economic sense for
business and industry. It staftes that it is preferable for buildings to be
used appropriately than to stand wholly or partially empty. In older
buildings, particularly those containing retail uses at ground level, the
demand for the former mix of uses may have declined as a result of
changing circumstances. A flexible atfitude with respect to use may
therefore be required to enable suitable re-use or new uses to be
instituted in under-used space where this might contribute to the
preservation of the building or enhancement of the townscape.

PPS12: Local Development Frameworks (2004) this policy statement sets
out Government’s policy on the preparation of local development
documents, which includes the preparation of supplementary planning
documents. It gives advice on the carrying out of sustainability
appraisals.

PPG13: Transport (2001) provides advice on the integration of fransport
and land use planning to encourage alternative means of travel and
reduce reliance on the private car. Reducing the level of car parking
in new development is essential in promoting sustainable travel
choices, avoiding the wasted costs to business of providing too much
parking, and tackling congestion which might other wise detract from
the convenience of car use and other road based transport. It
emphasises the importance of taking a flexible approach to car
parking standards to achieve the objectives of sustainability, and sets
out maximum car parking standards as opposed to minimum.

. PPG 17: Planning for Open Space, Sport and Recreation (2002)

describes the role of the planning system in assessing opportunities and
needs for sport and recreation provision and safeguarding open space
which has recreational value. The guidance observes that it is part of
the function of the planning system to ensure that through the
preparation of development plans adequate land and water
resources are allocated for organised sport and informal recreation. It
says that local planning authorities should take account of the
community’s need for recreational space, having regard to current



Page 129

levels of provision and deficiencies and resisting pressures for
development which conflict with the wider public interest.

PPS22: Renewable Energy (2004) sets out the Government’s policy in
respect of the development of renewable energy resources. Positive
planning which facilitates renewable energy developments can
contribute to all four elements of the Government’s sustainable
development strategy:

Social progress which recognises the needs of everyone.

Effective protections of the environment.

Prudent use of natural resources.

Maintenance of high and sable levels of economic growth and
development.

It states that the wider environmental and economic benefits of all
proposals for renewable energy projects, whatever their scale, are
material consideratfions that should be given significant weight in
determining whether proposals should be granted planning permission.

PPS 23: Planning and Pollution Control (2004) is intended to
complement the new pollution control framework under the Pollution
and Prevention Act 1993 and PPC Regulations 2000.

4.1.10 PPG24: Planning and Noise (1994) advises on handling new

4.1.11

4.1.12

18

developments which may have a noise impact on existing uses. In
order to minimise the possible impact, local planning authorities are
advised to:

e Wherever possible, site noisy development away from noise-
sensitive land uses.

e Use conditions or planning obligations to control or reduce noise
levels where a separation of land uses cannot be achieved.

e Through development plans, developers and local communities
should be given a degree of certainty about the areas certain
types of development would be acceptable.

The Secretary of State considers that housing, hospitals and schools
should generally be considered as noise sensitive development, but
other developments and uses can be included within this definition
and, if so, these should be explained in the development plan.

The guidance introduces the concept of Noise Exposure Categories
(NEC), ranging from A to D. Category A represents circumstances
where noise is unlikely to be a determining factor, whereas category D
relates to a situation where planning permission should normally be
refused.



4.2.

4.2.1

4.2.2

4.2.3

4.2.4

4.3.

4.3.1

4.3.2

4.3.3

4.3.4

19

Page 130

THE MAYOR’S LONDON PLAN (2004)

The London Plan was adopted in February 2004, and has undergone
subsequent alterations. It provides the strategic planning framework for
Greater London within which the site’s future potential should be
considered. The Plan seeks to develop London-based policies on
inferwoven themes of strong, diverse long-term economic growth,
social inclusiveness and environmental improvements.

The efficient re-use of land and resources in a sustainable manner is an
important component of the Plan’s guidance. In it the Mayor seeks the
maximum provision of additional housing and promotes policies that
meet, or exceed, the targets set by him for the whole of London. The
Mayor expects London to provide 30,500 additional homes each year
until 2016; to which Haringey will have to contribute. London Plan Policy
3A.7 requires that 50% of those homes provided should be affordable.

The principles of inclusive design underpin the London Plan and are
fundamental in achieving the aim of social inclusion. Policy 4B.5 states
that all future development should meet the highest standards of
accessibility and inclusion. Policy 4B.6 seeks to ensure future
developments meet the highest standards of sustainable design and
construction. It is a key objective that the development at Lawrence
Road is sustainable. Policy 2A.1 promotes the concept of sustainable
development which underpins all of the proposals contained within this
planning brief.

GLA Sustainable Design and Construction SPG (2006) provides
guidance on the way that Policy 4B.6 can be implemented to meet
the London Plan objectives. Haringey Council will expect proposals to
employ environmental best practice to meet the Mayor’s preferred
standards as set-out in the SPG.

LOCAL PLANNING BACKGROUND
HARINGEY UNITARY DEVELOPMENT PLAN

The Unitary Development Plan (UDP) was adopted in July 2006. It sets
out the Council’s borough-wide statutory planning policies and should
be consulted in preparing any planning application. Section 54A of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 states that in determining
planning applications, such applications shall be determined in
accordance with the relevant development plan unless material
considerations indicate otherwise.

HARINGEY SUPPLEMENTARY PLANNING GUIDANCE NOTES
The Council has prepared a number of supplementary planning

guidance notes (SPGs) that provide additional advice on a particular
topic or policy areas, which stem from and expand upon UDP policies.



4.3.5

4.3.6

4.3.7

4.3.8

4.3.9

Page 131

The Council has also produced Code of Practice Notes 1 and 2. SPGs
are material considerations and will be taken info account when
assessing planning applications.

SITE SPECIFIC PROPOSAL

Schedule 1: Site Specific Proposals, of the UDP identifies large sites in
the borough where there is potential for development and where
development is likely to occur within the plan period (up to 2016). The
UDP designates Lawrence Road as Site Specific Proposal 27 (SSP) on
the UDP Proposals Map, for mixed residential and employment use with
a commitment to prepare a planning brief.

HOUSING

Policy HSG1: New Housing Development, of the UDP seeks to provide a
range of housing fenures, sizes and fypes within residential
developments and introduces the application of the Sequential Test for
selecting locations for new housing development in accordance with
PPG3. The policy also explains that where additional housing creates a
need for ancillary community facilities, such as education or health
facilities, a contribution towards meeting that need is provided. These
issues are explained in more detail by SPG 10c: Educational Needs
Generated by New Housing Development and Planning Obligation
Code of Practice No. 2: Health.

Policy HSG2: Change of Use to Residential, of the UDP allows the
change of use tfo residential, provided the building is not in a defined
employment area, open space is not lost, it is not within a primary or
secondary shopping frontage, and the building can provide
satisfactory living conditions.

4.3.10 Changes of use to housing allow the Council to work towards its

housing target whilst ensuring that there is no detrimental impact on
the borough in terms of loss of employment, retail and open space.

4.3.11 Policy HSG9: Density Standards, of the UDP encourages residential

densities within the range of 200 - 700 hrh. However, in areas with
good public tfransport accessibility (PTAL levels of 4 - 6, refer to
paragraph 6.2.1); for developments comprising predominately flats; or
within mixed used schemes the Council may allow up to 1100 hrh.

4.3.12 The Council’'s SPG 3a: Density, Dwelling Mix, Floorspace Minima,

20

Conversions, Extensions and Lifetime Homes, contains the
methodology used for calculating density. In the order to achieve the
objectives of this brief it is important that the form and mix of
development is balanced and consistent throughout the planning brief
site. Therefore, when calculating density for individual development
sites, the residential site area shall be taken to be the net area of the
actual site plus half the width of Lawrence Road, up to a maximum of 6



4.3.13

43.14

4.3.15

4.3.16

4.3.17

4.3.18

4.3.19

4.3.20

4.3.21

21

Page 132

metres.

Policy HSG10: Dwelling Mix requires an appropriate mix of dwelling
fypes and sizes in order to meet the housing needs of the local
community.

The requirements for dwelling mix are covered in more detail in SPG 3a.

Policy HSG 4: Affordable Housing, of the UDP states that housing
developments capable of providing 10 or more units will be required to
include a proportion of affordable housing to meet the overall
borough target of 50%.

Haringey is polarised both socially and economically, with high levels of
deprivation in eastern parts of the borough and relative affluence in
the west. Social rented accommodation is concentrated in the east of
the borough and there is an opportunity to redress the imbalance to
promote other types of affordable housing, in particular key worker
schemes, which can help to develop mixed and balanced
communities. Therefore, the Council will negotiate different proportions
of social rented and infermediate housing having regard to the existing
proportion of social rented provision in an area, the overall amount of
affordable housing proposed, the suitability of the site and location for
family housing, individual site costs, the availability of public subsidy
and other planning requirements.

The provision of new affordable housing to meet housing need is a key
priority for the UDP and the Council’s Housing Strategy. To achieve this
objective, it is proposed that a borough wide target of 50% social
rented and 50% intermediate be adopted as a guide to inform
negotiations on planning applications. Further guidance on targets for
different parts of the borough may be provided as part of the
proposed new SPD on housing.

The Council recognises that in some instances it may not be financially
viable to provide the full amount of affordable housing as required. In
these cases the Council will request that the developer provides a
financial appraisal of the scheme, e.g. using the GLA Three Dragons
Toolkit, so that a fair confribution can be agreed. More detail on
affordable housing can be found in SPG 10b: Affordable Housing.

EMPLOYMENT AND ECONOMIC ACTIVITIES

Policies EMP 2 and 3 of the UDP seek to protect and enhance existing
lond and buildings in commercial uses (use classes B1, B2, B8) to other
uses.

Policy EMP4 of the UDP states that planning permission will be granted
to redevelop or change the use of land and buildings in employment
generating uses under defined circumstances. That is, where the land
or building is no longer suitable for employment use on environmental,



Page 133

amenity and transport grounds and there is evidence of an
unsuccessful marketing / advertising campaign over a period of 18
months, or the redevelopment or re-use of employment generating
land and premises would retain or increase the number of jobs
permanently provided on the site, and result in wider regeneration
benefits.

4.3.22 COMMUNITY, LEISURE AND HEALTH FACILITIES

4.3.23 The Council’s objective is to increase the overall stock of good quality
community facilities in the Borough. It will seek to achieve this through
the protection of existing leisure facilities (Policy CLT2) and the provision
of new facilities where there is a local need (Policy CLT1).

4.3.24 The Council wishes to ensure that sufficient health facilities are
provided throughout the Borough and that they are in close proximity
to where people actually live. Policy CW1 of the UDP sets out a criteria
based approach in respect of the appropriate locations for the
provision of health facilities. Policy CW1 deals with the provision of new
community/health facilities, and Policy CW2 seeks to protect existing
community facilities. Detailed guidance is provided in SPG11b:
Buildings Suitable for Community Use.

4.3.25 TRANSPORT AND CAR PARKING

4.3.26 The Strategic Transport Policies of the UDP (Policies M 1-8) seek to
infegrate land use and transport policies. Within this, the Council will
prioritise the needs of pedestrians and cyclists, and will promote
existing public transport services and facilities. These objectives are set
against the aim of reducing the relative aftractiveness of the private
car.

4.3.27 Policy M10 of the UDP sets out the Council’s Parking Standards for a
variety of land uses, the specific requirements. Appendix 1 of the UDP
details the car parking standards for new development. SPG 7a
Vehicle and Pedestrian Movement, sets out detailed guidance on the
design of new carriageways, footways, parking spaces, lighting, refuse
and emergency access etc.

4.3.28 Policy UD1 of the UDP sets out the requirements for Transport
Assessments (TA) and Travel Plans, and table 2.1 explains this in greater
detail. Detailed guidance on the content of a TAs and Travel Plans is
set out in SPG 7c: Travel Assessments and SPG 7b: Travel Plans
respectively.

4.3.29 DESIGN QUALITY

4.3.30 Policies UD 1- 7 of the UDP promote inclusive and high quality design
for future development, and seeks to improve the quality of the built
environment. The key objectives are to support sustainable
development and promote high quality design, which is sustainable in

22



Page 134

terms of form, function and input that meets the principles of inclusive
design.

4.3.31 SPG la: Design Guidance, provides detailed design guidance on a
wide range of elements including context, building lines, form, rhythm
and massing, height and scale, fenestration and architectural style
detailing and materials.

4.3.32 MIXED USE DEVELOPMENTS

4.3.33 Policy UD6 of the UDP is relevant. It states that where appropriate,
developments should include a mix of uses in order to ensure
sustainable development, particularly where such developments are
located in fown centres, areas of high public transport access (PTAL 4-
6) and within major new developments.

4.3.34 TREE PROTECTION, TREE MASSES AND SPINES

4.3.35 Policy OP17 of the UDP seeks to protect and improve the contribution

of tfrees, tree masses and spines to local landscape character by;

¢ Making free preservation orders as appropriate.

e Encouraging tree planting wherever possible and appropriate.

e Ensuring that, when trees are affected by development, a
programme of tree replanting and replacement is approved by the
Council.

e Ensuring that tree planting does not damage utfilities infrastructure.

4.3.36 OPEN SPACE DEFICIENCY AND NEW DEVELOPMENTS

4.3.37 Policy OS15 sets out the Council’s policy in respect of new
developments in areas of open space deficiency. Proposals for major
new development will be expected 1o provide an appropriate area of
open space, or improve the access to or the quality of nearby open
space. Lawrence Road falls within an area identified as being
deficient in public open space.

4.3.38 LIVE/WORK UNITS

4.3.39 Policy EMP7 sets out the requirements for live/work units in the Borough

and provides that they will only be permitted where;

e They are outside the Industrial Location DEAs.

e The residential element complies with the Council’s standards on
dwelling and room sizes and other residential amenity standards.

e At least a minimum of 25% of the floor area is allocated for
workspace, and

o  Where appropriate, the proposal complies with policy EMP5.

4.3.40 NOISE POLLUTION

4.3.41 Policy ENVé states that new noise sensitive development should be
23



Page 135

located away from existing, or planned sources of noise pollution.
Potentially noisy developments should be located in areas where
ambient noise levels are adlready high and where measures are
proposed to mitigate the impact.

4.3.42 Further, where new noise-sensitive development is proposed in areas
already exposed to high ambient noise levels, the Council may require
an acoustic report to comply with PPG24: Planning & Noise. Mitigation
measures will be secured by planning conditions or planning
obligations.

4.3.43 MITIGATING CLIMATE CHANGE

4.3.44 Policy ENV9 (Energy Efficiency) encourages energy efficiency and a
reduction in
carbon dioxide emissions. This might be achieved through a range of
measures, which include: careful layout, design and landscaping.
avoiding mechanical/electrical  venfilafion  systems, providing
community heating and CHP where feasible, mixed-use developments
and reducing car-use.

4.3.45 Policy ENVI10 (Renewable Energy) the UDP requires all major

development
schemes to provide an energy assessment with their planning
application showing an on-site provision of 10% of their projected
energy requirement from renewable sources, where feasible. In
addition, all major schemes must demonstrate in their energy
assessment that the proposed heating and cooling systems have been
selected in the order of preference as set-out in the UDP.

4.3.46 CONTAMINATED LAND

4.3.47 Policy ENV11 of the UDP deals with contaminated land. All land
previously used for industrial, utility or commercial uses in the borough
will be regarded as potentially contaminated. For this reason,
development proposals on potentially contaminated land must be
accompanied by risk-based assessments of the risk to future site users
and other local receptors. SPG 8f Land Contamination provides
additional guidance on how the Council expects applicants to deal
with potentially contaminated land in the borough.

4.3.48 PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

4.3.49 Policy UD8 sets out the Council’s policy in respect of planning
agreements under section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act.
Refer to section 9.3 of this document.

4.3.50 HARINGEY’S CLIMATE CHANGE ACTION PLAN

4.3.51 Haringey Council has signed-up to the Nottingham Declaration and is
24



4.3.52

4.3.53

44,

Page 136

in the process of developing an action plan that will help the borough
play its part in mitigating climate change; as well as helping to adapt
to the impacts of climate change both now and in the future. Major
development at Lawrence Road presents the Council with an
opportunity to make an impact on future carbon emissions in the
borough through its planning controls and expects developers to work
pro-actively in assisting the borough make significant achievements in
this area.

HARINGEY’S COMMUNITY STRATEGY (2003 - 2007)

The purpose of the Community Strategy is to make changes that will
improve the quality of life for people living, working, learning, visiting
and investing in the borough. The priorities are to:

e Improve services

e Narrow the gap between the east and west of the borough
through:
neighbourhood development in the most deprived areas, better
access to jobs and training, supporting businesses and aftracting
investment, better housing for all and developing key sites such as
Lawrence Road

e Create safer communities and places

e Improve the environment by: developing civic pride, creating a
cleaner environment, improving transport, and promoting
opportunities for relaxation and enjoyment, and

e Raise achievement in education and create opportunities for life-
long success.

RELEVANT PLANNING HISTORY

4.4.1 Lawrence Road has a long history of planning applications dating back

25

to 1949. Recently, there have been a number of applications for
changes of use that were refused permission because they involved
the loss of employment uses and were contrary to the adopted UDP
policies. The following are recent planning applications that relate to
changes of use:

e No. 28 Lawrence Road: 07.02.01 - Permission was refused for the
change of use, conversion and alteration of 2nd, 3@ & 4t floors to
create 26 Live/Work units. This decision allowed at appeal.
(Planning References HYG/1999/1093 - appeal  details
APP/Y5420/A/00/1040019). This consent has been implemented.

e No. 28 Lawrence Road:19.01.05 - Full planning permission was
granted for partial change of use of property at ground level to
Café/Restaurant. Installation of new shop front and provision of
extract flue. (Planning Reference HYG/2004/2470). This consent has
been implemented.



26

Page 137

e No. 45 Lawrence Road: 04.07.00 — Full planning permission was
granted for change of use and conversion of property into a
community/worship centre. Creation of new access from
Lawrence Road. (Planning Reference HYG/2000/0186).

e No0.63 Lawrence Road: 19.09.95 - Full planning permission was
granted for a change of use from first floor B1 (offices) to A3
(restaurant and takeaways). (Planning Reference HYG/1995/0749).

Copies of the plans relevant to these permissions are available for
viewing at the Council’s offices at 639 High Road, Tottenham, N17 8BD.



5.

5.1.

5.1.1

Page 138

LAND USE CONSIDERATIONS

The Council has identified Lawrence Road as needing regeneration
due to its general economic decline which has resulted in relatively
high vacancy rates, underutilised brown field sites and the resulting
poor environmental conditions. The Council recognises that in order to
reverse this decline and create a positive environment, a flexible
approach needs to be taken in respect of the uses at Lawrence Road.
It is a predominantly industrial road (as that was all that was permitted
under UDP classification of DEA — Defined Employment Area), but the
Council infends on changing the use to include a mix of uses, including
residential and employment. However, any development proposals are
required to comply with the requirements of the Unitary Development
Plan, the London Plan, Supplementary Planning Guidance, and
guidance contained in this planning brief.

CURRENT LAND USES

The majority (68.5%) of businesses within the brief site, are in the clothing
production business or associated activities e.g. storage, distribution of
clothing, cleaning, and garment fittings zips (use class B2). Other
sectors include the storage and distribution of mail, CDs and Vinyl,
which accounts for 10.5% (use class B8). Education and Training, which
account for 15.7%, and Design and Printing accounts for 5.3%. There
are at least fwo small cafés on the road and also a live /work
development at no. 28 Lawrence Road.

Business Type

Storage & Eduction & Design &

Clothing Distribution Training Printing
ONumber 13 2 3 1
M % 68.50% 10.50% 15.70% 5.30%

27

Figure 4: Graph showing business types on Lawrence Road




Page 139

!

i

e

!

I

'/fu’a

CLOTHING MANUFACTURE, DISTRIBUTION,
CLEANING AND FITTING ETC. - DESIGN AND PRINTING

- STORAGE AND DISTRIBUTION - LIVE / WORK UNITS

- EDUCATION, TRAINING AND COMPUTERS - 100% VACANT

Figure 5: Lawrence Road business types

28



5.2

5.2.1

522

523

524

29

Page 140

FUTURE USES

There is demand to redevelop existing industrial buildings in Lawrence
Road for workspaces, live/work units, and residential uses. An example
of where this has already taken place is at No. 28 Lawrence Road,
where new live / work units occupy a former garment factory. There is
also development pressure for a variety of housing types, including
mixed-use business /residential schemes.

Figure 6: Live / Work at no.28 Lawrence Road

The Council is, therefore, seeking mixed-use schemes for the areq;
employment and residential that are viable, sustainable, respectful of
the surrounding environment, and which comply with planning policies.
It is envisaged that proposals for development will be housing-led.

The main aim is to ensure that all buildings are occupied with active
uses at day and night, so as to reduce crime and the fear of crime on
the road through greater footfall and visual surveillonce. This could
include not only employment uses on the ground floor and above, but
also residential and other uses.

The table below provides an indication of the potential uses for
Lawrence Road. The suggested uses are indicative only and do not
constitute a planning approval:



Page 141

Use Class Acceptable Use

Al* Small-Scale Retail

A2* Professional or Financial Services

A3* > Restaurants and Cafes

A4* Drinking Establishments

A5* Hot Food Takeaways

Bl Office Accommodation (including workshops)

C2 Residential Institutions

C3 Residential accommodation (including 50% affordable)

D1 Non-Residential Institutions:

education/training/health/community

D2 Assembly & Leisure: Arts/Sport

Sui Generis | Live / work

* ‘A’ class uses may only be acceptable on the West Green Road
ntage

Figure 7: Appropriate land-uses

5.3 MIX AND BALANCE OF USES

5.3.1

5.3.2

30

Mixed-use developments enhance the quality of urban areas by
ensuring a vital mix of uses, which improves the opportunities and
experiences of those living or working there. This can also aid other
planning objectives, such as providing employment and housing,
reducing the risk of crime, reducing the need to fravel and ensuring
that environments are not monotonous mono-functional places in
which to live. Due to the scale and content of regeneration required
to bring about a sustainable vibrant urban road, it is paramount that
an equitable distribution of residential and employment generating
uses is achieved throughout the brief area, and at each individual
application site.

The general principle is to ensure that the re-use of the site is
compdtible with the Council’'s aim to improve the quality of the
environment and that any development is sustainable. Developers will
have to take into account the fact that residential, employment and
other uses will be co-existing. The uses need fo be compatible with
each other to ensure there is no adverse impact on amenity. The aim
is that optimal use of land is made whilst sfill maintaining a decent
environment for all - in the present and the future. Therefore, any
adverse impact on residential amenity by reason of noise, activity or
disturbance needs to be designed out and mitigated against.
Intensive uses that are likely to be detrimental to residential amenity will



5.3.3

5.4

5.4.1

5.4.2

5.5

5.5.1

31

Page 142

be situated more appropriately in other areas, such as town centres
and industrial employment locations.

The Council will encourage a mix of uses that bring vitality to the road;
particularly at ground floor level. It is also important that the balance
of uses within the site complement each other and the surrounding
area, and that people are attracted to live, work and enjoy their
leisure at Lawrence Road. Hence, vertical integrafion is encouraged.

DENSITY

The UDP encourages residential densities in the range of 200 to 700
habitable rooms per hectare (hrh), and higher density up to 1100hrh in
areas with good public fransport accessibility (PTAL levels of 4 — 6), for
developments predominately comprising flats, or within mixed-use
schemes. Density ranges will be applied flexibly in light of local
circumstances. High-density developments have the advantage of
allowing for extra development without taking-up more land. Higher
density is also more appropriate to mixed-use development schemes.
However, it is important that the quality of design and mix of housing is
not compromised.

The Council will adopt a ‘design-led’ approach to density and will take
info consideration factors such as the existing character of Lawrence
Road, quality of design, range and mix of housing types, and car parking
provision. It is considered that Lawrence Road can accommodate
residential development of up to 700 hrh. A case will have to be made
for higher densities. The Council will not permit a density of less than 200
hrh in order to ensure the efficient use of previously developed land.
Given the existing character of the road, there will be a focus on flats
rather than houses to achieve maximum use of the site/s. Lawrence
Road is industrial in character and suitable for high density development.

AFFORDABLE HOUSING

In accordance with the London Plan and UDP, affordable housing
should be provided to meet an overall borough target of 50%. The
London Plan states that within that target, 70% should be social rented
and 30% intermediate. However, different proportions of social rented
and intermediate housing will be negotiated according to a number of
factors, which include:

Existing proportion of social rented provision in an area
Overall amount of affordable housing provided
Suitability of the site and location for family housing
Individual site costs



5.5.2

5.5.3

5.6

5.6.1

5.7

5.7.1

5.7.2

32

Page 143

¢ Availability of public subsidy and other planning requirements.

Developers should refer to the GLA Three Dragons Affordable Housing
Toolkit, which allows the user to fest the economic implications of
different types and amounts of planning obligation; including the
volume and mix of affordable housing sought and amount of public
subsidy. It should be noted that affordable housing provision will be
based upon habitable rooms and not units.

Key worker and other ‘infermediate’ housing will be promoted as part
of a broad mix to meet the spectrum of housing needs within the
borough.

HOUSING MIX

The suggested housing mix for the new development at Lawrence Rd. is
set out below. The suggested mix accords with the adopted UDP and
SPG3a. A mix of social rented and intermediate affordable housing is
required to meet housing needs in the borough. The precise housing
miX is a matter for negotiation in each case and dependant upon site-
specific factors. The Council will seek to maximise the provision of
family-size units in order to meet the borough’s housing needs. These
are as follows:

Dwelling Mix for Private Housing Percentage
1 Bed 37%

2 Bed 30%

3 Bed 22%

4+ Bed 11%
Dwelling Mix for Affordable Housing

1 Bed 22%

2 Bed 20%

3 Bed 26%

4+ Bed 32%

ACCESSIBILITY AND LIFETIME HOMES

Compliance with the National Disabilities Standards will be required, in
line with current Government guidance through the Disability
Discrimination Act and both current and emerging Council Guidance.
Current Council guidance on access and facilities for people with
disabilities is detailed SPG4: Access For All - Mobility Standards.

In addition to meeting Part M of the current building regulations, all
residential accommodation must be designed to Lifetime Homes
Standards, as established by the Joseph Rowntree Foundation, with
10% of all housing types and tenures designed specifically to accept



5.8

5.8.1

5.8.2

5.9

5.9.1

33

Page 144

wheelchair users or be easily adapted for residents who are wheelchair
users. This accords with the provisions set-out in the Mayor’s London
Plan and Haringey’'s UDP. Wheelchair accessible housing must meet
the standards set out in the "Wheelchair Housing Design Guide’. The
Council’s requirements for Lifetime Homes are set out in SPG 3a:
Density, Dwelling Mix, Floorspace Minima, Conversions, Extensions and
Lifetime Homes

EMPLOYMENT

Historically, the importance of protecting employment uses at
Lawrence Road was reflected in the Council’s UDP (1998), which
designated the road as an Employment Area. However, since then,
the viability of employment uses has progressively declined, which is
evidenced by the increasing rise in vacancy rates. The road is clearly
in need of major regeneration. This has signalled the need for a
different approach to planning policy. Consequently, the adopted
UDP now states that  mixed- use development including employment
and residential uses, will now be acceptable in principle.

Notwithstanding the above, the retention and creation of employment
generating uses is a high priority; and it is imperative that some of the
existing employment base at Lawrence Road is protected in order to
maximise job opportunities.  Therefore, it is important that each
individual planning application site conftributes towards meeting the
objectives of this brief, and provides employment generating uses.
Proposals for mixed- use developments will be supported at individual
sites currently used solely for employment, and for sites that are
vacant. The council will preserve and enhance the existing number of
employees within the planning brief site as a whole, and individual
development sites will be required to provide a proportion of
employment generating floorspace. The proportion of employment
floorspace will be determined on a site by site basis taking info
account the application site area in relation to the total number of
existing employees across the entire planning brief site that will need to
be preserved and enhanced.

LIVE / WORK

A live/work unit is a self-contained unit with separate living and working
floor-space. Such developments can reduce the need to travel, assist
start up and small businesses, and provide a more flexible and
sustainable way of living. The principle of Live/Work units has already
been established at No. 28 Lawrence Road and will be acceptable in
principle. However, the residential element must comply with
standards in respect of room sizes and other residential amenity
standards. A minimum of 25% of the floor area must be allocated for
the workspace.



59.2

5.10

5.10.1

5.10.2

5.11

5.11.1

5112

5.11.3

34

Page 145

To ensure that the work space is retained for its permitted use and not
converted to either residential or employment, planning conditions
and, or obligations will be applied. Also, the Council will require that a
Registered Social Landlord or other management agency manages
these units.

RETAIL

Lawrence Road is situated adjacent to the designated Town Centre
at West Green Road and close to the Local Shopping Centre at Philip
Lane; both of which play a key role in ensuring equal access to retail
and other services. It is important that any new development does not
adversely impact on the vitality and viability of these town centres; but
complements them and serve the needs of the anticipated new
residential and employment populations.

Therefore, the Council will only accept applications for retail uses;
including food and drink, which focus on the West Green Road
frontage of the brief site. Whilst this is outside of the town centre,
appropriate retail uses in this location will have the potential to make a
significant contribufion to the environment and quality of the
pedestrian experience. Any retail use should not adversely impact on
the amenities of neighbouring and future occupiers by reason of noise,
activity and /or disturbance.

PUBLIC OPEN SPACE

Lawrence Road is situated in an area identified as being deficient in
public open space. The importance of protecting and improving
existing open space, and the need for new space has increased in
importance because of the need to provide additional housing a
higher densities.  Therefore, proposals involving the provision of
residential dwellings will be required to provide public open space on
site or, and contribute to improving existing public open space through
planning obligations. Haringey Council’s SPG 10d: Open Space,
provides further details on planning obligations and open space. In
addition, developers should refer to the GLA’s Draft SPG: *Providing for
Children and Young People’s Play and Informal Recreation’

There may be opportunities to increase the provision of public open
space by extending the existing public open space at Elizabeth Place
Park or, create new open space elsewhere within or near the planning
brief site. Where appropriate planning obligations will be used to help
achieve this.

Any proposed development adjacent to Elizabeth Place Park will be
encouraged to take advantage of the opportunity to ‘design-out
crime’ by increasing the amount of natural surveillance which is
provided by the scheme.



Page 146

5.11.4 The provision of balconies and roof gardens will be encouraged,

35

provided they have no adverse impact on neighbouring and future
residential occupiers in terms of loss of privacy, and are acceptable in
design tferms. Balconies can provide important amenity space, but it is
important that any provided on the Lawrence Road frontage do not
adversely impact upon the canopies of the existing street trees.



6.1

6.1.1

6.2

6.2.1

Page 147

TRANSPORT

BACKGROUND

One of the fundamental aims of this planning brief is to encourage
development that reduces the need to travel by car, and promotes
more sustainable transport choices; which include walking and cycling.
This is consistent with the policy provisions of the Mayor’s London Plan
and Haringey'’s UDP.

Vehicular traffic should not dominate the environment and traffic
should be discouraged, as far as possible. Improvements to the
pedestrian environment, including highway safety, will be required to
increase footfall in the area.

Lawrence Road is situated within a 20 mph restricted zone. This zoning
serves to reduce vehicle speeds, and the severity of injury in the event
of an accident. They also reduce people’s perception of danger from
motor vehicles and can encourage walking and cycling.

Recently, raised tables have been placed at both ends of the road (at
the junction of West Green Road, and at Philip Lane). This will improve
highway safety by slowing traffic and reducing speeds on Lawrence
Road, which is particularly important given the use of heavy vehicles.

CAR AND CYCLE PARKING

The Council wants to promote more sustainable forms of transport and
one of the ways in which this can be done is through the application of
appropriate parking standards. Lawrence Road is situated in an area
identified as having a PTAL value of 3 — 4. Here, the aim is restraint
through limiting parking levels, in order fo minimise the local impact on
the environment. The Council will seek to achieve a sustainable
tfransport strategy by creating a policy that encourages trips to be
made by public fransport rather than private car. This is consistent with
the Mayor of London’s Transport Strategy, which states the reduction of
fraffic congestion as a key priority.

6.2.2 Up-to-date car parking standards are set out in Appendix | of the UDP.

6.2.3

36

For Bl1(Business), B2 (General industrial) and B8 (Storage and
distribution) uses the UDP requires a maximum of 1 car parking space
per 800 sg metres gross floor area (GFA). For residential development,
a maximum space of 0.33 is required per | bedroom flat and 1 space
per 2 or more bedroom flat. For larger developments a Transport
Assessment will be required.

Parking and enforcement have a significant role to play in reducing



Page 148

reliance on the private car. lllegally, or inconsiderately parked vehicles
create obstruction and foot way damage, causing severe hazards to
safety and problems for the mobility impaired in particular. The lack of
parking restrictions on Lawrence Road may be causing such problems
as delivery service vehicles double park and block access to premises.
It also attracts overnight parking by large delivery trucks, which may be
causing problems with rubbish tipping. These problems could all be
minimised by having stricter fraffic management and parking
regulations.

6.24 Lawrence Road is situated outside, but adjacent to the existing CPZ
which has parking restrictions from 08:00 until 18:30. Therefore, it is not
currently considered to be an appropriate location for car free
developments. If the CPZ is reviewed and extended in the future to
include Lawrence Road, car free schemes may be acceptable.

6.2.5 Cycle parking should be provided as a minimum in accordance with
the standards set-out in the UDP. For new housing developments 50 per
cent of the total units must be provided with secure and sheltered
cycle racks. Workplaces should provide facilities for cyclists; which
include lockers and showers.

6.3 PARKING PROVISION: TRANSPORT ASSESSMENTS AND TRAVEL PLANS

6.3.1 The Council will require Transport Assessments (TA) to be submitted with
planning applications for developments that are likely to have a
significant transport impact. The TA will detail matters such as the likely
fraffic impact on the local network, parking arrangements and the
availability of public fransport. The cumulative impact of any new
development at Lawrence Road will also have to be considered. The
Council’s SPG 7c: Travel Assessments, provides more detailed
guidance on the need and scope of TAs. Where a TA is required, car
parking requirements would be assessed as part of the assessment,
otherwise parking provision will be assessed in light of the Council’s
parking standards as set out in the UDP.

6.3.2 In addition, the Council will require the submission of a Travel Plan to
support planning applications above a certain threshold; or which are
likely to have a significant transport impact, or where the proposed
development is located within a sensitive area. Guidance on the
content of a tfravel plan can be found in the Council’s SPG 7b: Travel
Plans.

6.4  PEDESTRIANS

6.4.1 The environment at Lawrence Road is poor and not attractive for
walking, particularly at night. It is important to create an environment
which encourages people to walk. The proposed changes of use, and
the creation of more active frontages at street level will help achieve
this by providing natural surveillance. However, there is a need to
improve street lighting, ensure that the design of new development

37



38

Page 149

does not easily permit *"dumping’ and graffiti. The Government’s Social
Exclusion Unit notes that one of the key contributory factors towards
the fear of crime is badly-lit walking routes and waiting areas.
Improvements will be required to provide a safe and attractive
pedestrian route. (Refer to sections 7.3 and 7.4 of this document for
more details).



Page 150

okl 1
8
BUS ROUTE NO.| ORIGINATES TERMINATES
WOOD STREET STATION /
— 231 WOOD GREEN STATION UPPER WAL THAMSTOW
e — s WATERLOO NORTHUMBERLAND PARK
kY ARCHWAY STATION TOTTENHAM HALE STATION
PROPOSED ROAD SAFETY
. SCHEME (ENTRY TREATMENT, . ke
RAISED TABLE, REDUCED SPEEDS)

Warks “

%
Factary

ma | F T
S—
== 5
Lg“ z:
e
= 5
- e

i ",_._'
T_|
L]
=)

LI._|

==

I.I_‘

=

'

5 ;
[ \1)
3 CESS ™ ‘n:::vy'-'!
Warehouseg!
A\ JETs 3
i|  TURNPIKE LANE §

= | UNDERGROUND STATION
{20 MINS WALK APPROX)

Figure 8: Map showing transport access around Lawrence Road

39

7
"’4( 31%
LRy
\%b’
=, o*/




6.5

6.5.1

6.5.2

6.6

6.6.1

40

Page 151

ACCESS

Lawrence Road has good accessibility from both the West Green Road
and Clyde Road junctions, and has a wide spacious street. Any
potential re-use and development of the road will have to consider the
needs of pedestrians, cyclists and people with disabilities; and all
servicing must take place within the curtilage of each premises.

Any scheme proposed should include appropriate facilities for the
storage and collection of refuse without detriment to occupiers of the
site or surrounding properties. Draft SPG 7a: Vehicle and Pedestrian
Movement provides general guidance on refuse collection, and further
information is contained within in the code of Practice for Refuse
Storage that can be obtained from the Council’s Contract and
Construction Services.

DISABLED ACCESS

The development must be designed so that it is fully accessible to
people with disabilities and should therefore include disabled parking
bays on site in addition to other parking provision. Further guidance
can be found in the Council’'s SPG4: Access For All - Mobility
Standards.

Figure 9: Streetscape on the west-side of Lawrence Road



7.

7.1

7.1.1

7.2

7.2.1

41

Page 152

DESIGN AND CONSERVATION CONSIDERATIONS

It is important that the re-use and re-development of the buildings and
land within Lawrence Road provides a high quality, sustainable and
enhancing environment. This can be achieved through the
application of consistent urban design principles. Any development
should be set within the context of the design and conservation
parameters set out in this chapter, and comply with the policy
provisions of the UDP and London Plan.

CONTEXT AND LOCATION

The Council will require a design statement to be submitted with any
planning application. This statement should justify why a development
looks the way it does, include a site analysis and set out the context,
The statement should demonstrate how any new development relates
to the character of Lawrence Road and the surrounding conservation
areq, including existing street patterns.

The Council will seek to establish a robust urban framework, which can
support a variety of uses and adjust to a changing pattern of uses over
time. Lawrence Road already possesses a distinct dense urban
character with wide pavements, a wide road and an attractive
avenue of trees on both sides of the road. The Council will seek to
enhance the existing character of the street and establish the
principles of this urban character in its planning brief. Small building
widths are encouraged to promote diversity of built form, increase
flexibility of use and provide active street frontages with many street
enfrances.

The size, scale and density of the urban blocks should relate to the
existing street pattern and the connections with the wider area. The
southern end presents a dense urban grain with four storey blocks set
hard against the back edge of pavement. The northern end displays a
different character with higher residential blocks set around a small
park, which links through to housing at the rear. The east side of the
street includes a degree of variation with some blocks hard against the
pavement and some set back behind service yards and car parks. The
predominant character is of a dense urban grain that is softened by
the mature trees and a small park. Corners and connection routes
through the area are also very important.

BUILDING HEIGHTS, BUILDING LINES & BOUNDARY TREATMENTS

Individual planning applications may be received for different parcels
of land at the planning brief site and at different times, which will lead
tfo an ad hoc form of development and approach to design. This will
be detrimental to the appearance of the street scene and
streetscape, and adversely impact on the character of the area.



722

7.2.3

724

7.2.5

7.2.6

42

Page 153

Therefore, it is of paramount importance to ensure that a consistent
approach is applied to proposed development in respect of building
heights and building lines.

Lawrence Road is characterised by urban blocks varying between
single storey and 6 storeys. The northern end of the road comprises 6
storey residential blocks and 4 storey commercial blocks at the
southern end. However, it can be argued that the most significant
building. in architectural and design terms, is No. 28 Lawrence Road,
which is situated at the north eastern end of the brief site. This building
will be used as the focal point to dictate the maximum height of any
new development at the road. The maximum height of any new
building proposed in the planning brief site should not exceed the
height of the building at no. 28 Lawrence Road. There may be scope
for an additional floor, but this must be set back from the front facade
of the building and will be subject to a detailed assessment of design
and amenity considerations.  Also, there are residential properties at
the rear to both sides of the road and the impact of overlooking and
loss of privacy will be particularly important.

The size, scale and density of the urban blocks should relate to the
existing street pattern and the connections with the wider area. The
brief site is adjacent to the Clyde Circus Conservation Area and any
new development must be seen to co-exist harmoniously with the
conservation area, in terms of materials, design, bulk etc. This is
particularly important at the frontage of West Green Road where any
new development at the brief site will have a significant impact on the
character and appearance of the adjacent conservation areq.
However, it is recognised that the brief site has an area large enough
to form and dictate its own unique character.

The setback of buildings from the street helps define character,
determine the degree of privacy at ground floor level and
accommodate front storage or servicing requirements and provide
opportunities for greening. The dominant front building lines are
established by the existing commercial buildings situated at the east
and west side of Lawrence Road, at nos. 95 — 67 and 52 to 80. The
siting of any new buildings at Lawrence Road must not project beyond
the frontage of these building lines. On the West Green Road
frontage, any new buildings must accord with the existing building line
atno. 105-113.

The planning brief site is surrounded by residential properties and the
rear building line of any new development must not adversely impact
on these properties by reason of outlook, loss of privacy and daylight
/sunlighting. The Council’'s SPG 3b: Privacy/Overlooking,
Aspect/Outlook and Daylight/Sunlight should be referred to.

The boundary fencing /walls of any new development fronfing
Lawrence Road and West Green Road should not exceed a height of
more than 1.2m. Rear boundaries should not exceed a height of 2m.



7.3

7.3.1

732

7.3.3

74

7.4.1

7.4.2
43

Page 154

Figure 10: Street frontage on Lawrence Road

PUBLIC REALM

The design, tfreatment and management of the public realm, both
within the planning brief site and its relationship with adjoining land, is
of key significance to the successful re-use / re-development of
Lawrence Road, especially in the ability to encourage mixed usage.

With new development, there is a prime opportunity to improve the

public realm. Such improvements could include widening the
pavement, (particularly at the corners and junctions with adjoining
roads), tree planting, the removal of street planters that aftract
dumping, new high quality paving, installation of street furniture,
lighting and other security measures.

Public art can enhance a building and its environs by promoting local
character and identity, and help make a development more user-
friendly. Careful integration of art within a development and linking it to
the public realm has advantages for developers, users of the facility
and passers-by. The appropriate use of public art will be supported on
Lawrence Road.

JUNCTION OF LAWRENCE ROAD AND WEST GREEN ROAD

The corner junction of Lawrence Road and West Green Road has a
poor appearance. The pavement on West Green Road is very narrow
and the position of the bus stop, combined with the narrowness of the
footway, makes it very difficult for pedestrians to walk with any ease.
The Council will be seeking to improve pedestrian flow at this junction
and there is scope for major improvements to the public realm on West
Green Road.

Any planning approval given for either conversion or redevelopment



7.4.3

7.5

7.5.1

752

7.5.3
44

Page 155

of the site should include measures to widen and improve the footway
and prevent pedestrians being pushed into the path of oncoming
traffic. There is also an opportunity here to make improvements to the
public realm. For example, widening the pavement and re-siting street
furniture could allow trees to be planted as part of a programme of
street improvements.

The elevation of any new building fronting West Green Road should
present an active frontage to the road both in terms of use and
detailed design. There is an opportunity here to articulate the corner
junctions. Balconies here would increase the opportunities for passive
surveillance.

Figure 11:
Junction

of Lawrence Road and West Green Road
LANDSCAPE

There is a fine avenue of very mature plane trees along almost the
entire road. The tfrees provide a green canopy along the street and
make a very positive confribution to the quality of the environment in
Lawrence Road. These trees should be not be adversely affected by
any new development and new trees planted in any gaps where
appropriate. Careful consideration must to be given to the siting of
balconies at the road frontage to ensure they do not conflict with the
tree canopies.

There is a newly enhanced landscaped area at Elizabeth Place Park,
situated at the northern end of Lawrence Road. At present, the Park
has limited amenity value for residents because of its small size.
However, there may be scope for an extension to the park, which
would provide a break in the street in order to provide amenity space
for any new residential development. The possibility of extending the
park may form part of any planning obligation negotiated as part of
any new development,

Where existing buildings are to be retained, developers should be



7.6

7.6.1

7.62

45

Page 156

encouraged to green them in order to soften their appearance and
enhance the character of the street. Trees can contribute positively to
londscape character, carbon dioxide fixing, nature conservation,
urban open space and the provision of natural shading in sunny
conditions. Therefore, important frees on any development site should
be retained and new trees planted where possible. Opportunities for
greening the frontages of any new development at ground floor level
should be explored, wherever possible.

CRIME PREVENTION

The Council actively encourages development which accords with
‘Secured by Design’ principles. Natural surveillance of public spaces,
avoidance of unsighted areas / blind corners and high quality lighting
are of particular importance. All sides of a block facing the public
realm should, in part at least, be animated with doorways and
windows in order to contribute to informal security. The aim is to create
a street pattern whereby the activity is on the streets, rather than
gated communities. It is essential that the opportunity is taken to design
out crime, and provide beftter security for new and existing residents. It
is also essential to increase the level of surveillance along the street by
including balconies, roof terraces and planting proposals on the
Lawrence Road frontages. However, this may not acceptable at the
rear due to the proximity of the adjacent residential properties and the
problem of overlooking. Entrances and routes through the site should
be well defined, well lit and overlooked. Active uses, such as a mixture
of business and residential or overlooking premises are essential at
ground floor level. Hence, a vertical integration of a mix of uses is
important.

Any future development or proposals for re-use should follow the
advice set-out in the Government’s ‘Safer Places’ guidance, which
includes the following seven principles::

1. Access and movement: places with well-defined routes, spaces
and entfrances that provide for convenient movement without
compromising security.

2. Structure: places that are structured so that different uses do not
cause conflict.

3. Surveillance: places where all publicly accessible spaces are
overlooked.

4. Ownership: places that promote a sense of ownership, respect,
territorial responsibility and community.

5. Physical protection: places that include necessary, well designed
security features.



Page 157

6. Activity: places where the level of human activity is appropriate to
the location and cerates a reduced risk of crime and a sense of
safety at all times.

7. Management and maintenance: places that are designed with
management and maintenance in mind, to discourage crime in
the present and the future.

7.6.3 For more guidance developers should refer to SPG 5: Safety By Design.

7.7

7.7.1

7.7.2

7.7.3

7.8

7.8.1

7.8.2

46

In addition, developers are encouraged to licise with the Metropolitan
Police Crime Prevention Team early in the design process.

MATERIALS AND TYPOLOGY

In response to the industrial character of development on Lawrence
Road and the generous scale of the street, the following afttributes are
encouraged in development proposals.

Form

e Generous floor to ceiling heights
e (enerous window openings
e Large entrances with views info circulation spaces

Palette of Materials

Materials should be robust and of a high quality in view of Lawrence
Road’s location and function as a link between two conservation
areas.

The palette of building materials should include:

Stock brick

Stone

Concrete structural elements
Glass

SUSTAINABILITY CHECKLIST

The redevelopment of Lawrence Road must be socially, economically
and environmentally sustainable. London Plan Policy 4A.7 on energy
efficiency and renewable energy states that the Mayor and boroughs
should support the Mayor’s Energy Strategy and its objectives of
reducing carbon dioxide emissions by 20%, improving energy
efficiency and increasing the proportion of energy used from
renewable sources.

In order to reduce the environmental impact of development and
mitigate against climate change impacts, proposals for Lawrence



Page 158

Road should fully integrate the principles of sustainable design and
construction. Proposals will be expected to achieve high standards of
sustainability; and incorporate innovative design, technology and
tfechnology solutions to climate change challenges.

7.8.3 With regard to design and construction, London Plan Policy 4B.6 seeks
high standards, which are implemented through the GLA SPG (2006),
which includes the Mayor’s preferred standards on new development.

7.8.4 At the local level, Haringey’s UDP contains three policies of particular
relevance for the new development at Lawrence Road, which are:
Policy ENV9 — mitigating climate change: energy efficiency, ENV10-
mitigating climate change: renewable energy and Policy UD2-
Sustainable design and construction.

7.8.5 In line with the policies contained within the Mayor’s London Plan,
Haringey’s UDP and relevant SPGs, the Council will seek to ensure that
all new development at Lawrence Road must be as sustainable as
possible, and reduce energy and utility costs. Where relevant, the
Council will apply targets from the Mayor’s SPG on Sustainable Design
and Construction to development proposals. The following list of
points, whilst not exhaustive, should be considered:

e Energy conservation / efficiency — the design and construction of
buildings should aim fo achieve maximum energy efficiency
through the use of passive solar energy, better insulation, natural
light and ventilation.

e Renewable energy - the Council will require all major development
schemes to provide an energy assessment with their planning
application, showing on-site provision of 10% of their projected
energy requirement from renewable energy sources, where
possible.

e Water efficiency measures — all development should demonstrate a
commitment to water efficiency; including installation of low-usage
appliances
grey water recycling and rainwater harvesting.

e Sustainable Urban Drainage (SUDS) - all development should
demonstrate a commitment to well-maintained SUDS.

e Construction materials should be reused /reclaimed /recycled
wherever possible. New materials should be from sustainable sources,
with care taken not to further deplete threatened resources.

e Green roofs - ‘green’ or ‘brown’ roofs wil be encouraged,
particularly where adjacent to taller building elements. This will
have the added benefit of enhancing views from taller buildings
over the development.

47



7.8.6

48

Page 159

¢ EcoHomes - 100% of all development on plots should seek to attain
the ‘EcoHomes’ excellent standard. From April 2007, EcoHomes
standards will be replaced by a national standard ‘Code for
Sustainable Homes’, which uses a ratfing system to communicate
the overall sustainability performance of a home. All new housing
built by RSLs is required to comply with Level 3 of the Code.

¢ Non-residential development should seek to attain the '‘BREEAM’
excellent certificate rating.

e ‘Car club’ - membership should be made available to all residents
and businesses.

e Car free residential - may be appropriate at PTAL levels of 4 and
above.

e Reduced car parking - generally below the maximum UDP
standards.

¢ Controlled Parking Zones should be employed where appropriate.

o Travel plans - for all mgjor development, including residential as
part of Section 106 agreements.

e Waste and recycling facilities - all developers should seek to
engage with Haringey Council as early as possible to ensure that
adequate storage facilities are provided and functional, including
provision for bio-degradable waste. On-site composting facilities
should be provided, where possible.

e Accessibility - all future development must meet the highest
standards of accessibility and inclusion. Wheelchair accessible
housing must meet the standards set out in the "Wheelchair Housing
Design Guide’. Design and Access statements are required
showing how the principles of inclusive design, including the
specific needs of disabled people, have been integrated into the
proposed development, and how inclusion will be maintained and
managed.

The Council will require all major development schemes to provide an
energy assessment and renewable energy study with their planning
application. The assessment must report the predicted annual energy
use and carbon emissions for the site. The renewable energy study
must set out the proposals for integrating renewable energy
technologies on the site, including information on the estimated %
reduction in annual site carbon emissions that will be achieved.
Renewable energy sources include solar, wind and ground heat
source pumps, and combined heat and power plants that run on non-
fossil fuels.



7.8.7

7.8.8

49

Page 160

Planning applications should be accompanied by a Sustainability
Statement that sets out how the proposed development will contribute
to sustainable development.

As a minimum, such a statement should address the issues set out in
the Sustainability Checklist, above. Also, please refer to Refer to SPG 9:
Sustainability Statement - Including Checklist.

A set of sustainability objectives was developed as part of the
Sustainability Appraisal of this SPD. These objectives also provide a
useful indication of the areas in which new development can
contribute to sustainability.



8.1

8.1.1

8.2

8.2.1

8.3

8.3.1

8.3.2

8.3.3

50

Page 161

INFRASTRUCTURE AND ENVIRONMENTAL
CONSIDERATIONS

CONTAMINATION

No detailed ground condition surveys of the road have been
undertaken. However, preliminary investigations suggest that Nos. 70
and 72 Lawrence Road have a medium risk of contamination. This is
because a saw milling operation (1896) once occupied these sites and
hence it is regarded as being potfentially contaminated. It will,
therefore be subject to a risk-based assessment for any future
development, to evaluate the risks to future site users and local
receptors. A full desk-top study will be required, in line with the
Environment Agency’s CLR Tland, if appropriate, a remediation
strategy agreed with the Council’s Environmental Services.

Notwithstanding the above, all land previously used for industrial, ufility
or commercial uses is potentially contanimated. Therefore,
development proposals on potentially contanimated land must be
accompanied by a risk based assessment of the risks to future
occupiers and other local receptors. Policy ENV11 of the UDP deals
with this issue and SPG 8f: Land Contanimination gives more guidance.

NOISE

New development proposals must consider the impact of noise
generating uses on neighbouring residential properties. In particular,
consideration should be given to the impact of noise generation from
the commercial operators on residential properties. Development
proposals must comply with the requirements set out in PPG24: Planning
and Noise and Policy ENV6 of the UDP.

UTILITIES AND DRAINAGE

Detailed information on existing ufilities and drainage, and
consideration of further infrastructure linked to future capacity issues
should be addressed to the Council’s Building Control Service.

Preliminary investigations by Thames Water indicate that the existing
sewers beneath Lawrence Road are not of sufficient capacity to
accommodate increased levels of growth. Developers may be
required to contribute to the upgrade of infrastructure by way of a
requisition.

Thames Water should be consulted on any schemes for Sustainable
Urban Drainage Systems (SUDS). The use of well maintained SUDS will
be supported; however, poorly maintained systems may contribute



8.34

51

Page 162

towards flooding. Developers should refer to the ‘Inferim Code of
Practice for SUDS".

The impact upon the public water supply, and access to this
infrastructure  will need to be considered. Developers must
demonstrate that adequate capacity exists to serve any proposed
development, and not lead to problems for existing users. To address
this, Thames Water must be consulted at an early stage in the planning
process.



9.1.

9.1.2

9.2

9.2.1

922

52

Page 163

IMPLEMENTATION

THE APPROACH TO DEVELOPMENT

Once the brief is adopted as a Supplementary Planning Document,
the Council will use it as a basis for assessing planning applications in
order to achieve high quality schemes for the re-use and development
of the site. Given the number of landowners, owning various parcels of
land in the brief areq, it is unlikely that a single planning application to
comprehensively re-develop the whole brief site will be submitted to
the Council. However, a comprehensive approach is essential to
deliver a sustainable community and ensure that the area is
regenerated in a co-ordinated, coherent and infegrated fashion.
Therefore, an incremental planning application approach to
development will be adopted. This will allow the character of the brief
site to be changed and individual parcels of land to be developed on
an individual basis; but within a comprehensive planning framework,
and will not delay the achievement of the regeneration oufputs
required.

Planning applications submitted incrementally will be considered on
their planning merits, and required to comply with the requirements of
this document; including detailed design guidance in respect of
height, siting, density etc. The planning brief requires that the
proportion of different uses, employment and non-employment uses,
are the same for each site and that they are distributed evenly along
the entire length of Lawrence Road. This will ensure that the area is
developed in a consistent and coherent manner. The Council will resist
development proposals that do not adopt a comprehensive
approach to development and meet the vision and objectives of this
brief.  Planning proposals must deliver the required regeneration
outputs, improve the environment and provide the required
employment, housing and other community benefits.

REQUIREMENTS FOR PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Planning applications will require a range of documentation and
supporting information to enable the Council to determine the
proposals and comply with the relevant legislation and guidance.
Planning applications should also demonstrate consideration of any
future development approved and proposed on adjoining sites.

Policy UD1: Planning Statements of the UDP sets out the requirements
for planning applications. Table 2.1 of the UDP provides an indicative
list of the statements that are required for different types of
development. Further clarification is provided in the relevant Haringey
SPGs, which include SPG1a Design Guidance, SPG2 Conservation and
Archaeology, SPG4 Access for All - Mobility Standards, SPG7b Travel



Page 164

Plans, SPG7c Transport Assessment, SPG8a Waste and Recycling,
SPG8g Ecological Impact Assessment, SPG8h Environmental Impact
Assessment, SPG8i Air Quality, SPG9 Sustainability Statement - Including
Checklist.

9.2.3 The following indicative list identifies the statements that may or may
not be required for developments within the planning brief area:

53

Design and Access Statement explaining the design principles and
concepts that have informed the development and how access
issues have been dealt with.

Transport Assessment for developments likely to have a significant
fransport impact, the scope of which should be agreed at an early
stage with the Council. Planning applications referred to the Mayor
should include a Transport Assessment carried out in accordance
with TfL’s best practice guidance, and any traffic modelling in
accordance with TfL's DTO modelling guidance.

Green Travel plan and parking strategy (the study should also
address construction traffic).

Retail impact assessment, sequential and needs assessment, for
retail developments over 2500 sg. m.

Sustainability statement.

Ecological impact assessment.

Tree survey.

Environmental Impact Assessment, where required by the Town
and Country Planning Environmental Impact (Assessment)
Regulations 1999.

Environmental Statement.

Surface water flood risk assessment for sites over 1 hectare.

Energy statement.

Air quality statement, for significant impact on air quality.

A detailed sunlight/daylight assessment and microclimate report as
required.

Site history, and where appropriate a desk-top study for potentially
contaminated sites.

Remediation Strategy to address contamination and demolition
within the existing site.



924

9.3

90.3.1

9032

9.3.3

934

9.3.5

54

Page 165

¢ Waste management plan.

e Section 106 planning obligation heads of terms.
e Headlth impact assessment.

e Phasing strategy.

e Code of construction practice.

The Council welcomes pre-application discussions concerning the
scope of supporting reports regarding new build and major
applications.

PLANNING OBLIGATIONS

Planning obligations will be sought from developments where the tests
of Circular 05 / 2005 have been met. The Council will negotiate with
the applicant as to the planning obligations associated with
development in the brief area. The policy context for this includes
national policy, the London Plan, Haringey UDP and supplementary
planning guidance, in particular SPG10a: The Negotiation,
Management and Monitoring of Planning Obligations, together with this
planning brief.

The main types of planning obligations are set out below and will apply
to the consideration of planning applications for Lawrence Road. The
specific obligations will be negofiated in light of the documentation
submitted with the planning applications.

Each site should support its own site-specific infrastructure costs,
conform to the affordable housing requirement and contribute
fowards a general fund which will pool individual developers /
landowners’ contributions to help fund those elements of the physical /
social infrastructure that cannot be attributed to individual sites or
ownerships within the area.

The indicative list below is not exhaustive, as other items may come to
light in the detailed assessment of a planning application, other
assessments, and through public consultation. The planning obligations
should cover all of the identified issues in a balanced way. It is
anticipated that specific outputs will be triggered at particular stages
of development, ensuring that an appropriate phasing of
development is achieved.

The Council will assess the scale of contribution required under each of
these headings within the context of the overall package of benefits
that any scheme will deliver, and their viability:



55

Page 166

Environment - funds for environmental improvements including
improved lighting on the road, upgrading footpaths, designing out
crime, street landscaping, environmental protection and improving
the public realm.

Education - in accordance with the guidelines set out in SPG 12. It
will be necessary for contributions to be made to satisfy
educational needs generated by new housing development.

Employment - measures to secure local labour and fraining
programmes  (including  construction  web), employment
development, funds to mitigate the loss of employment generating
land. Where employment uses such as Class B1 are proposed as
part of any development, the Council will seek evidence that there
is a commitment by end users to occupy the space for a minimum
of 5 years.

Site Remediation - mitigating measures to ensure rubbish tipping
ceases on the road. If any contaminated sites are found then they
are to be dealt with according to SPG 8f.

Infrastructure — improvements to ensure the core area is capable of
comprehensive redevelopment, for example the upgrade the
sewage system.

Affordable housing - to address the quanfity, mix, tenure
proportions, fiming of delivery, and nominafion rights in
accordance with SPG 11 and the London Plan.

Health and Community facilities — particularly the provision of
primary and local health care facilities,, creche, after-school, and
other community-type facilities.

Public transport improvements — including contributions to Seven
Sisters tube station, bus service enhancements (provision and off
site route enhancement), relocation of bus stop.

Off site highway improvements — off site traffic calming, contribution
to improvements to pedestrion and cycle access, and highway
junctions.

Sustainability - sustainability and energy strategy, including
proposals for waste management.

Noise Mitigation -businesses will be required to ensure that they
provide measures to mitigate against noise, so that they do not
impact on the residential developments in the area.

Public Open Space - confribution to the maintenance and
improvement of Elizabeth Place Park, and the provision of new
public open space.



56

Page 167

e Live/work — control the use of live/work units.
¢ Mixed Uses - securing an acceptable balance of uses.
Haringey will charge a project management and administration fee as

part of any planning obligation. All legal fees will be borne by the
applicant.



10.

57

Page 168

GLOSSARY OF TERMS

Accessibility — Ability of people and//or goods and services to reach
places and facilities

Active Frontage - Relationship between the uses of the ground floor of
the buildings that frame a place or street and those people walking
past.

Affordable Housing — Housing which is attainable to buy/rent for those
people whose incomes are insufficient to allow them to afford to
buy/rent locally on the open market. The affordable housing should
achieve weekly outgoing levels appreciably below the minimum cost
of market housing and be available in perpetuity for those in housing
need.

Amenity — A positive element or elements which contribute to the
overall character of an areq, for example open land, trees, historic
buildings and the inter-relationship between all elements in the
environment,

Biodiversity — Biodiversity encompasses the whole variety of life on
earth including all species of plants and animals and the variety of
habitats within which they live.

BREEAM - Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment
Method, assesses the performance of new and existing buildings. It is a
recognised measure of best practice in environmental design and
management,

Brownfield Site — Land usually within an urban or suburban area which
has been previously developed, often for industrial uses.

Building Line — The line formed by frontages of buildings along a street.

Built Form — The existing pattern of building site coverage in relation to
property boundaries, public access ways, street frontages and other
spaces built over.

Context — The character and setfting of the immediate area within
which a building is situated or will be sited. Context will take into
account any local distinctiveness and special character.

Density — The amount of development on a given plot of land and the
range of uses. Density influences the intensity of development, which in
combination with the mix of uses can affect a place’s vitality and
viability. Density is usually expressed in number of habitable rooms per
hectare (hrh)

Facade - The face (elevation) of a building, especially the principal



face.

58

Page 169

Habitable Room - The rooms in a dwelling excluding bathrooms, toilets
and some other Spaces. Often used as a measure of density e.g.
habitable rooms per hectare (hrh)

Lifetime Homes - Lifetime Homes are ordinary homes designed to
provide accessible and convenient homes to a large section of the
population from young children to the elderly, and those with
temporary or permanent impairments. Lifetime Homes have design
features that ensure the home will be flexible enough to meet the
current and changing needs of most households.

Mixed-use - Provision of a mix of complementary uses, such as
residential, community and leisure uses, on a single site, within the
same building or within a particular area.

Planning Obligations — Under Section 106 of the Town and Country
Planning Act a ‘Planning Obligation” can be entered into regarding
the use or development of land. Obligations can be used to ensure the
environment is safeguarded and that the costs of infrastructure
associated with a particular development are met by the developer
and landowner, and not the taxpayer.

Planning Policy Guidance or Statement (PPG or PPS) — PPGs and their
replacement PPSs are prepared by the Government after consultation,
to explain statutory provisions and provide guidance to local
authorities and others on planning policy and the operation of the
planning system.

Public Realm - The spaces around and between buildings that have
unrestricted public access, including streets, squares, forecourts, parks
and open spaces.

Public Transport Accessibility Level (PTAL) - A measure of the
accessibility of any location to the public tfransport network. It provides
important information for determining what types of development,
densities and parking standards are appropriate in different locations.
For simplicity, three levels of accessibility have been defined: Low
(levels 1-2), Medium (levels 3-4) and High (levels 5-6).

Section 106 Agreement - See planning obligations

Streetscape (or townscape) — The visible impact of streets and urban
scenes, spaces, facades, enclosures, views, vegetation, materials and
finishes

Supplementary Planning Guidance - Additional advice provided by
the Council on particular topic or policy areas and related to and
expanding upon statutory policies e.g. guidance on the design of roof
extensions in a specific locality.



59

Page 170

Sustainable Development / Sustainability — Development which meets
the needs the needs of the present without damaging the ability of
future generations fo meet their needs and does not reduce the global
stock of environmental capital.

Travel Plan - Plan produced by any organisation in order to decrease
the number of people traveling to work by car, using parking charges,
car-sharing, car-pools and encouraging the use of public transport,
walking and cycling.

Unitary Development Plan - The development plan providing the land
use planning policy framework for the control of development across
the entire Borough, taking intfo account where necessary any relevant
economic, social and other considerations.



Page 171

ANNEX : CONSULTATION STATEMENT

Introduction

Consultation is critical to the success and delivery of the Lawrence Road
Planning Brief, such that significant local support can help accelerate the
momentum of implementation and transformation of the area. This appendix
outlines the consultation undertaken in respect of this draft planning brief, at
both the pre-production and statutory stages of the process.

Summary of the pre-production consultation process

The content of this draft brief was informed by a detailed process of public
consultation, which was carried out during the review of the borough’s
Unitary Development Plan and through a study of local businesses.

Unitary Development Plan (UDP) Review
e First Deposit UDP (September 2003) — Lawrence Road was designated
as Defined Employment Area 10 which sought to protect its
employment base. Following the statutory period of consultation,
representations were considered and the plan revised.

e Second Deposit UDP (September 2004) - Lawrence Road was re-
designated as Site Specific Proposal 36, which recognised the decline
in the area’s industrial use and the potential for redevelopment. The
UDP proposed that the area would be suitable for a mix of uses, which
included residential and employment.

e Adopted UDP (July 2006) — Lawrence Road was listed as Site Specific
Proposal 27 and stated that a planning brief would be prepared

Lawrence Road Baseline Business Survey (2005)

In addition to the UDP consultation, the Council commissioned a study of
local businesses. The Lawrence Road Baseline Survey was completed in May
2005. The purpose was to gather factual information regarding the
characteristics of the established business community, which would be used
in production of a planning brief. The survey attracted a very high level of
response, and concluded, amongst other things that:

e Given the high and increasing vacancy rates there was an urgent
need for regeneration.

e There was a need to accommodate high-density, mixed-use residential
and business units together with appropriate other uses.

e More confinuous use and activity was needed, which could be
achieved through the expansion of leisure uses such as bars, cafes,
restaurants and community clubs, and;

e A planning brief was required in order to secure a comprehensive,
high-quality development.

Outline of the statutory consultation strategy (May and June 2007)

In order to undertake a meaningful process of public consultation and
stakeholder engagement, the following strategy was undertaken:

60



Page 172

Draft Planning Brief and accompanying Sustainability Appraisal
available for inspection at 639 High Road, Tottenham, N17 8BD and
three local libraries

Public notice placed in a local newspaper with borough-wide
circulation

Article in Haringey People Magazine

Approximately 2,300publicity leaflets/questionnaires delivered to
properties within a defined geographical area.

Exhibition material on display at Marcus Garvey Library.

Haringey website containing the draft documents with details of how
to comment.

Publicity leaflets with covering letter sent to neighbouring boroughs,
statutory consultees, landowners, local community / amenity groups
and Ward Councillors.

Public meeting for local groups, businesses and individuals held at the
West Green Church Baptist Hall — 24th May 2007.

Consultation Responses

Approximately 250 separate written comments — both objection and support
— were received from 33 respondents; which included individuals, statutory
consultees, local businesses, developers, local environmental and amenity
groups. In addition, 95 completed questionnaires were returned. These were
designed to gauge local opinion on seven key planning issues affecting the
area. The responses to the questionnaire generally supported the views
expressed in the written comments.

Main issues raised

61

Lawrence Road has been run-down deliberately to force a change-of-
use

New development should be low-density, low rise which complements
the adjoining conservation area.

Buildings must be of high quality design, using traditional materials.

New development must address issues of sustainability

Trees must be retained with more provided.

Good quality, well managed open space, including allotments should
be provided.

Elizabeth Place Park should be expanded.

Community / social facilities should be provided on-site.

Small, independent local shops should be encouraged.

There should be more / less affordable housing.

There should be more family-sized accommodation

High specification, private housing should be constructed.

Buy-to-let should be discouraged.

Parking and traffic issues must be addressed.

Live/work should be encouraged.

An element of employment must be retained, with the amount
required set-out.

Designing-out-crime must be integral to redevelopment.

Appropriate ufilities and drainage must be provided.



Page 173

Following the consultation period, the Council considered all responses, and
amended the draft document as appropriate. The results of the public
consultation exercise, along with the amended planning brief were reported
back to Planning Committee before being presented to the Council’s
Cabinet for adoption as a Supplementary Planning Document (SPD).

A summary of all the representations received, the London Borough of
Haringey's responses and changes to the draft planning brief are set-out in a
separate document: ‘Schedule of Comments Received, London Borough of
Haringey Responses and Changes’.

62



Page 174

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 175 Agenda ltem 12

Haringey Courcil

Agenda item:

CABINET On 16™ October 2007

Report Title: Development of the Upper Lee Vision North London’s Waterside

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: Niall Bolger — Director of Urban Environment

Wards(s) affected: Northumberland Report for: Key Decision
Park, Tottenham Hale, Tottenham
Green, Seven Sisters, Bruce Grove

1. Purpose

1.1 To propose that the London Boroughs of Enfield, Haringey, and Waltham Forest
work together to develop and implement a vision led approach to the Upper Lee
Valley - North London’s Waterside, improve co-ordination of sub-regional funding
and mainstream activity and to agree a structure to undertake this.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

2.1 The adoption of improved partnership arrangements for the Upper Lee Valley will
improve the delivery and co-ordination of regeneration as well as providing a
mechanism for more effective political engagement in the process.

3. Recommendations
The Boroughs are recommended to:

3.1 Endorse the vision for the Upper Lee Valley to guide their approach to the area:

3.2 Approve participation in the co-ordinating structure as proposed in the report
including the funding outlined in paragraph 16.1.

3.3 Note that a further report on the details of the structures outlined in this report will
be dealt with using the Borough’s normal decision taking processes.

3.4 To withdraw from the Upper Lee Valley Executive board and the local economic




Page 176

partnership.

Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment V%

Contact Officer: David Hennings
Assistant Director of Economic Regeneration
020 8489 1543

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 The estimated cost of the proposed arrangement is £280k over 2 years. Haringey’s
share of this cost is £50k per annum for 2 years, which will be met from the Chief
Executive’s budget in each of the two years.

5. Acting Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 Under Part Four Section 1 of the Counc@l’s constitution, the Cabinet is responsible
for approving delegations, including frameworks for partnerships with other local
authorities.

5.2 In accordance with Paragraph 12.01 of the Contract Standing Orders the partnership
framework referred to in this report must be in writing by way of a document
prepared or on a basis approved, by the Acting Head of Legal Services.

5.3 The Acting Head of Legal Services notes the content and recommendation of this
report and confirms that there is no legal reason preventing Members from
approving the recommendations set out in paragraph 3 above.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985
Local Government access to information is needed as it is a legal requirement.

6.1 Background Papers
Upper Lee Valley: A New Vision September 2006
Report on partnership infrastructure for the regeneration and delivery for the Upper
Lee Valley May 2007
Upper Lee Valley Future Funding - January 2007

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2




7.1

7.2

7.3

7.4

7.5

Page 177

Executive Summary

The Upper lee Valley has experienced a long period of decline due to the structural
decline of manufacturing in London. Several programmes have attempted to halt
this, including substantial investment from the European Union, but those
programmes have not succeeded. In addition new opportunities such as the
Olympic in 2012 and the pressure for increased housing supply mean a new vision
for the area was needed to avoid it being changed on a site by site basis.

Through the North London Strategic Alliance the Boroughs of Haringey, Enfield and
Waltham Forest, together with the LDA and GLA have worked to develop a new
vision that can guide the future of the area.

The vision is designed to develop a longer term view of the area over a 20-30 year
time horizon but capable of being implemented incrementally as opportunities
present themselves. The purpose is to:

* halt the decline of the area

restructure the economic, transport and housing infrastructure

establish a strong image for the promotion of the area

create a new solid platform for growth

create the framework within which public and private investment decisions fit.

The vision does not duplicate any of the work currently being undertaken by
Boroughs or regionally in the various planning frameworks. It instead provides a
context and direction to guide and influence these statutory documents.

Entitling the area North London’s Waterside is part of that concept and the
objectives being proposed are set out in the detail of the report:

The delivery of the vision will require co-operation across all three Boroughs and
with funders and decision makers at a London Wide level to ensure future funding
streams are directed to making the vision happen.

As a result this proposes a new structure for partnership working in the area
which places elected members at the heart of the strategy process.

Evidence of worsening trends in worklessness across the three Boroughs,
especially in Enfield which has some of England’s highest growth rates in
incapacity benefit claimants.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3



8.1

9.1

9.2

9.3

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

Page 178

Strategic Implications

The proposed partnership for the Upper Lee Valley will provide a strong voice for
an area of north London which has declined significantly over the past 20 years,
partly because it has not captured sufficient attention, and therefore investment,
from either the public or private sectors. As a geographical area the Upper Lee
Valley straddles three local authority boundaries which have a combined
population of 750,000 - larger than most cities in the UK, but as a series of
individual sites risks being drowned out by other large-scale projects within
London. The recent Treasury-led review of sub national regeneration published in
July of this year, sets out a compelling case for economic regeneration being best
achieved at a sub-regional level. The regeneration of ULV presents a clear chance
to make the most of the area as one of London’s key Opportunity Areas. By
working collectively, the three boroughs, working with the GLA and government,
can generate the investment in transport and social infrastructure to tackle the
structural levels of worklessness and transform the area.

Introduction - the need for a new approach

The Upper Lee Valley, from the M25 to the A104 Lea Bridge Road, runs along the
edge of 3 London Boroughs and is shown on Map1 attached. The area has
endured significant and continued decline in terms of economic activity and
prosperity for at least 2 generations. This is despite being clearly identified as
falling behind the rest of London and having a major asset in the Lee Valley
Regional Park and the river frontage itself. Over the years, both Central and Local
Government have invested resources and effort into the area but, at best, these
actions have stemmed the rate of decline without really turning the tide, to the
disbenefit of both the Boroughs themselves and their citizens.

Key reasons for this lack of improvement include: a failure to recognise the need
for and achieve investment in appropriate transport infrastructure; the absence of
a clear, coordinated approach by all the public authorities which directed their
efforts; and an inability to maximise the advantage of the waterside frontage due
to land holdings in the area. The area has never been seen as a complete whole
with a defined sense of identity.

In addition to reasons in the above paragraphs, key policy developments during
the past four to five years suggested that it would be timely to have a fresh look at
the Upper Lee Valley. These reasons include:

* Sustainable Communities policy approach to housing growth which identified
the London Stansted Cambridge growth corridor as one of four corridors
nationally. The ULV has a strategic location as part of the southern tip of the
corridor which provides a policy basis for securing additional funding for
transport and other community infrastructure;



9.4

9.5

10.

10.1

Page 179

» Creation of the GLA and production of the London Plan which identified the
ULV as an Opportunity Area and Area for Regeneration;

e the Lyons Inquiry into Local Government — which identified the key role of
local authorities in ‘Place Shaping’;

e London securing the right to host the 2012 Olympics with the opportunity to
extend the regeneration of the Lower Lee Valley northward to the Upper Lee
Valley;

* Evidence of worsening trends in worklessness across the three Boroughs,
especially in Enfield which has some of England’s highest growth rates in
incapacity benefit claimants.

In addition both European and domestic, Single Programme funding rounds were
concluding with strong signals that new programmes would be significantly less in
the future. Coupled with this, the recent trend within the UK has been to allocate
funding at a local level on the basis of shared objectives (examples: Local Area
Agreements, Local Economic Growth Initiative). While this has significant merit
there is a danger that individual Boroughs can overlook geographic trends which
benefit from a sub regional approach. Finally, evidence from previous funding
rounds suggests that those areas with strong partnerships, working to an agreed
strategic vision are more successful in securing funding.

For these reasons it is considered that now is an opportune time to promote a
new initiative based on the three Boroughs being determined to lead a jointly
agreed approach. The NLSA was tasked with preparing a new vision for the Upper
Lee Valley which was presented to Borough Leaders, Chief Executives and Leads
for Regeneration in the autumn of 2006. From this as part of the ‘next steps,’
NLSA with LDA and the local authorities commissioned consultants to review
Upper Lee Valley organisational structures and propose a new one which could
commence delivery of the vision and co-ordinate regeneration funding that would
be simpler, more cost-effective and link more effectively with mainstream
organisations.

The Vision

The vision is designed to develop a longer term view of the area over a 20-30 year
time horizon but capable of being implemented incrementally as opportunities
present themselves. The purpose is to:

e halt the decline of the area
restructure the economic, transport and housing infrastructure
establish a strong image for the promotion of the area
create a new solid platform for growth
create the framework within which public and private investment decisions
fit.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



10.2

10.3

10.4

11.

11.1

11.2

Page 180

The vision does not duplicate any of the work currently being undertaken by
Boroughs or regionally in the various planning frameworks. It instead provides a
context and direction to guide and influence these statutory documents.

Entitling the area North London’s Waterside is part of that concept and leads to
the following objectives being proposed:

e make better use of and access to the unique assets of the Upper Lee Valley
improving biodiversity and promoting it as North London’s Waterside;

* reverse economic decline and create a strong platform for economic growth
using its strategic location as part of a world city;

e improve transport connections to the City, Central London and Stratford
and enhance internal connectivity.

* promote social inclusion, environmental and economic sustainability and an
improved quality of life.

* make better use of urban land enabling more housing and business.

* create an improved and sustainable housing environment and to support
community facilities.

* promote good urban design.

* promote mixed use approach in the Central Leaside area making it the
centre point and focus of the wider place.

Adoption of this vision will aid place-making both within and throughout the
area and provide a means to enthuse investors, partners and residents to fully
participate in regenerating the area. More detail is set out in the study report
and its executive summary listed in the background papers

Delivering the Vision

It is crucial that there is effective political direction involving all three Boroughs
to maintain focus and consistency of approach. Analysis of past activity shows
that expediency and spending funding allocation has sometimes been the
enemy of longer term achievement. Addressing the decline needs the highest
level political direction and coordination. It is therefore proposed that the three
Leaders with the support of their respective Cabinet Members for Regeneration
provide this direction in a Leaders’ Forum.

This group, which should only need to meet 4 times a year would provide
direction to officers and resolve all cross-Borough issues subject to the
necessary approvals required by schemes of delegation. The Leaders’ Forum
could, in time, co-opt or involve other bodies e.g. LVRPA, North London
Business and development partners as they emerge but on the basis that the
participation was of the nature of a full partner, committed to resolving issues at
the table and contributing resources to deliver the partnership.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 6



11.3

11.4

11.5

11.6

11.7

12.

12.1

12.2

Page 181

Bodies that currently sit on partnership forums but who are unable to, for
example, commit to problem resolution at the meeting would not participate
but would be involved via a consultative forum established off-line.

Working under the direction of the Leaders’ Forum the main activity of the
partnership will be delivered through the two supporting boards:

* Employment, Enterprise and Economy Board will be the clear ‘client’
committee for worklessness and business development activity in the ULV,
and to ensure that there are clear linkages into the education agenda at
both school and further and higher educational levels.

* Place Shaping Board will have the responsibility for developing and
implementing the physical and transportation elements of the Vision for the
Upper Lee Valley.

More detail on these boards is contained in the background report. There is a
staffing structure to support these groups to make sure that they work
efficiently and effectively. This work is not being undertaken by any other
bodies at the present time. '

Proposed outcomes are:

o improved partnership working between the three Boroughs;

o stronger lobbying force as a partnership;

o better co-ordination and success of funding applications based on the
agreed strategic vision;

o sub-regional approach to tackling worklessness.

o A clear delivery plan will be produced which sets out targets for delivering
the vision, inc. strategic outcomes of reducing worklessness, higher levels
of public and private sector investment, improved environment/ places, etc.

Subject to the approval of this report, details of the interim or initial structure
will be reported for approval using each of the three constituent Council’s
decision taking mechanisms.

Profile and Communications

Developing the detail behind the vision, communicating and promoting it at
regional and governmental levels will be a fundamental task for the partnership
over the next 12 - 18 months. This is essential to raise the profile and transform
the way in which national and regional policy makers think about the area.
Similarly, the vision can be a vehicle for transforming the way local people
(including members) think about their area, raising confidence and aspiration for
themselves and their children.

The vision will also need to be promoted to potential developers and major
landowners in the area to ensure that private sector interest is encouraged at

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 7



12.3

13.

13.1

13.2

13.3

13.4

14.

Page 182

the earliest stage. Indications so far suggest that the ‘market’ is very interested
in the area and developers are keen to explore ideas. For these reasons a
communications and engagement strategy will be an early product for the
partnership to agree. This will set out the tasks and lead partners’ roles to
ensure constructive and supportive engagement at all levels from community
and neighbourhood level through to national government.

Projected outcomes will include: transformation of the image of the area at
regional and national levels; change of image of the area amongst local
residents; greater interest from private sector developers.

Opening up the Lee Valley Regional Park

A core element of the new vision is about improving access to the Lee Valley
Regional Park and making the most of the Park and waterways. These are
assets which, in any other area would be seen as major selling points to attract
the interest of investors and improve the quality of life for the existing
population.

The LVRPA is a statutory body charged with managing and enhancing a
regional park set up under an Act of Parliament. This legislative format has in
the past made the Authority somewhat difficult to deal with particularly in its
geographic limitations. It has also been felt that as a regional authority it has
not focussed on building links with more local communities. This has resulted in
a lack of congruence between community and locality needs and the park
which has often limited previous attempts to regenerate the area. The
challenges of 2012 and the enduring legacy is causing the Authority to rethink
its approach and to reassess its ways of working to better meet these needs. If
it were possible for the RPA to become a full partner in the vision it would add a
significant dimension to achieving the goals. It is intended that they be
approached on a formal basis to determine a working relationship which can
evolve over time.

Similarly, British Waterways and Thames Water are key ‘players’ in the area
both as landowners and because of their responsibility for assets which have
the potential to be very attractive features of the area. British Waterways has
developed an impressive track record in regenerating other waterways in some
of the UK great cities, while Thames Water has been purchased by a new
owning company Macquarrie: involving these two organisations will be critical
to the success of the ULV.

Key outcomes will be: better engagement with the Park Authority, Thames
Water, British Waterways and other key landowners.

Transport Improvements

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 8



14.1

14.2

15.

15.1

16.

Page 183

It is widely recognised that the current inadequacies of the transport
infrastructure contribute to the lack of investment in the area. Local Authorities
include within their strategic planning frameworks a desire to encourage rail
based solutions but as yet the business case for tube extensions for example
does not show the required rate of return. In any event, the lead time for such
projects even if a go-ahead was given now mean that they would not be
operational until the far end of the time horizon. It is not intended to give up on
these longer term aspirations but in the meantime the opportunities for shorter
term improvements must be grasped and aggressively lobbied for. The
opportunities presented by the 4 tracking of the West Anglia Route using the
existing track bed are a key priority for the area and it may be that the area
could be suitable for initiatives as guided buses or a DLR type extension from
Stratford. It is believed that the usage of such investments, together with
progress on developments in the valley will help build a stronger business case
for a heavier solution so it is important to achieve staged progress rather than
wait for a solution which never comes.

Twin-tracking the West Anglia Line is a key priority for the ULV to enable
provision of metro —style services (4 x per hour) NLSA lobbying has already
contributed to the inclusion of the works in TfL’s long-term business plan and
Greater Anglia Line Route Utilisation Strategy - but funding has not yet been
secured.

Projected outcomes: Secure funding to take forward detailed proposals for
West Anglia Line upgrade; Secure funding for major station improvements,
interchanges and junctions to increase accessibility and improve connectivity of
uLv

Old Upper Lee Valley Structures

The changes in European Regional Development funding and its transfer to the
LDA mean a number of existing structures are now redundant. The Upper Lee
Valley Executive set up to co-ordinate the large objective 2 programme is not
now needed as its co-ordinating role is now replaced by the new upper lee
structure and the LDA are no longer going to have a London European
programmes committee which the executive was represented on.

The new E.R.D.F programme will no longer have a separate funding stream for
community economic development and therefore the local economic
partnership set up to manage this stream is no longer needed.

Therefore the Council is recommended to withdraw from official recognition of
these bodies to avoid confusion and duplication with the new arrangement.

Financial Implications

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 9



16.1

16.2

16.3

16.4

17.

18.

Page 184

Initially this programme of activity can be contained within a cash contribution
of around £140,000 each year, for two years split £50,000 each year from
Enfield and Haringey and £40,000 from Waltham Forest reflecting its smaller
element of the Valley. It is proposed that this level of funding be committed for
two years by which time there will be a review on the progress and added value
of the partnership before any further funding is sought.

This cash sum can be used to lever in additional funding either by match or as
a sign of commitment to other partners. In particular, a bid has been made to
the LDA for £300,000 over the two year period 2007/08 to 2008/09 so the
Boroughs contributions will match this. It is anticipated that the outcome of this
bid will be known by the end of September.

This will then provide the platform to bid for and manage funding streams from
Central Government, the LDA and the next round of European Structural Funds
2007 - 2013. For example from Communities and Local Government:

» Growth Area Funding: Provided its continuation is confirmed in CSR07, the
3 Boroughs will be eligible to apply for GAF round 3 because of their
location within the London Stansted Cambridge Peterborough corridor.
However, competition will be stiff as 29 new ‘Growth Points’ have been
added to 4 Growth Areas for which the funding was designed. NLSA has
been working with LDA on the North London Development and Investment
Framework which CLG regard as a key document in putting forward the
case for North London. The report identifies 3 key development areas:
Brent Cross/ Cricklewood to the west, liford town centre to the east and the
Upper Lee Valley in the centre.

e CLG also supports 9 ‘local delivery vehicles’ in the Growth Areas with
revenue funding. Although north London does not have such a vehicle,
other delivery organisations are able to draw down significant sums from
CLG to facilitate housing growth.

In addition, in-kind contributions from the expertise and systems of Councils
would be utilised to keep real costs down and match fund other elements.
Examples of the support most needed would be to include the projects in the
area on one of the councils traffic light monitoring systems, press campaigns
and seconding planners to work part-time on a dedicated basis to undertake
reviews across the Boroughs. This would directly contribute to Borough
programme in any event.

Further Action

As noted earlier, a further detailed report on structures will follow approval of
the principles set out in this report.

Use of Appendices

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 10



Page 185

18.1 Appendix 1: Map 1

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec

11



Map |

Page 186

.x
.
-

-
-
.

.

-

-

.

_

,, -

_

.

-




Page 187 Agenda ltem 13

Haringey Council

Agenda item:

Cabinet On 16 October 2007

Report Title: Haringey’s Greenest Borough Strategy (Draft)

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): N/A

Report of: Director of Urban Environment

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 To note the context for the development of Haringey’s Greenest Borough Strategy
and to agree a draft vision, key priorities and proposed arrangements for consultation.

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member

2.1 Haringey’s Greenest Borough Strategy (Draft) sets out a vision and identifies six
priorities for action over the next ten years by bringing together a broad and complex
area of work to tackle climate change and embed environmental sustainability into
everything we do.

2.2 The Council will use its leadership role to encourage all local stakeholders to play
their part to make a positive contribution, starting with a comprehensive consultation
process during the winter months.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the context for the development of Haringey’s Greenest Borough Strategy (Draft)
be noted.

3.2 That the vision and scope of the key priorities for Haringey’s Greenest Borough
Strategy (Draft) as summarised in paragraph 7 be agreed.

3.3 That proposals to go out to full consultation on the strategy (appended), as set out in
paragraph 10.3, be agreed.




Page 188

3.4 That following conclusion of consultation, the final strategy is re-submitted together
with an action plan to Cabinet for approval, prior to submission to Full Council for
adoption in the spring 2008.

Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment. 020 8489 4523

Contact Officer: Jon Clubb, Better Haringey Programme Manager. 020 8489 4561

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 The Greenest Borough Strategy sets out a vision and way forward to deliver the
Council’s aspiration for Haringey to become one of the greenest boroughs in London.
The Council already has a number of existing policies in place which can contribute to
helping green the borough. These projects are currently funded from a mix of
approved Council and external resources. Examples of Council funding include
investment in parks and open spaces and recycling. External funding includes TfL
(school travel plans, cycle lanes and walking) and SSCF (energy efficiency in the
home). A sustainable investment fund has also been created (£0.5m) to fund
relevant projects, which is intended to operate on a rolling basis with savings
generated by projects being re-invested into the fund to finance further projects.

4.2 However, some of the measures needed to achieve the longer term climate change
agenda are likely to have significant cost implications over and above existing budget
provisions. These will need to be fully assessed, as and when new projects are being
developed, and reported to Members for approval prior to implementation. The
strategy should be aligned with the Council’s financial and business planning
framework, so that any emerging actions can be considered as part of these
processes. Identifying and maximising external funding for greening the borough must
be a priority.

4.3 Wherever possible a joined up approach should be developed within the Council and
with our external partners in progressing any agreed actions so that resources are
most effectively utilised. The target setting framework will need to bear in mind the
potential costs and availability of resources and need to link into existing opportunities
to further the aims of greening the borough through existing or new major investment
programmes such as Building Schools for the Future (BSF), Growth Area Funding
(GAF2/3) and, potentially, Decent Homes investment when approved.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 The Climate Change and Sustainable Energy Act requires all Councils when
exercising any of their functions to have regard to the most recently published energy




Page 189

measures reports from central government.

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 Published works: The Stern Review — The Economics of Climate Change, Draft
Climate Change Bill, Building a Greener Future — Towards Zero Carbon, Waste
Strategy 2007. A detailed listed of further information (with hyperlinks) and associated
strategies is listed in appendix A.

7. Strategic Implications

7.1 Action to tackle climate change, green the borough and improve the sustainability of
Council services and functions are key drivers behind the Greenest Borough Strategy.
This is set against a national context of increased political and public concern that
action must be taken to protect the environment and address global climate change at
a local level.

7.2 A draft vision statement has been devised to frame the proposed priorities and actions:

‘We will work together to secure a clean, safe and environmentally sustainable future
for everyone living, working, visiting or studying in Haringey.”

7.3The strategy comprises six key priorities for action over a ten year time horizon. This is
underpinned by throughout with two cross cutting themes; ‘tackling climate change’,
and ‘raising awareness, involvement and patrticipation’. The key priorities are
summarised below.

Priority one: Improving the urban environment

We will create well designed, attractive, clean and safe streets, public spaces and
gateways to Haringey that celebrate a dynamic and diverse borough where there is a
real sense of belonging and pride among local people.

Priority two: Protecting the natural environment

We will protect Haringey’s natural environment by working with local people to ensure
that we preserve, improve, and increase green spaces and their use through improved
maintenance, accessibility and sustainable practices.

Priority three: Managing environmental resources efficiently

The earth’s resources are finite, but we are using and polluting them as if they were
not. We will work with everyone in the borough to take forward action to change
behaviour and choices on a number of fronts: reducing waste; increasing reuse and
recycling waste; conserving water and energy use; and minimising air and water
pollution.

Priority four: Leading by example — managing the Council sustainably

Haringey Council is committed to improving the quality of life for everyone in the
borough and must lead by example and act as a role model, to our residents and to our
business community. We will adopt best practice environmental management
standards and procurement principles in our own operations.



Page 190

Priority five: Sustainable design and construction

We will encourage developers and home owners to adopt the highest possible
standards and innovative solutions to sustainable design and construction, whilst
driving forward our own best practice projects through current investments in schools
and social housing.

Priority six: Promoting sustainable travel

We will ease congestion and reduce carbon emissions and pollutants in Haringey. Our
aim is to reduce car based journeys and encourage workers, residents and businesses
to switch to cycling, walking, public transport and other low carbon alternatives.

7.4The attached draft strategy contains further detail identifying what progress has been
made so far in each of these priority areas and scopes further potential actions for the
future. It also starts to identify the targets and measurements that will be used to track
progress and monitor success. A detailed action plan will also be developed, setting
out key targets and milestones, following further consultation.

8. Financial Implications

8.11n the short term, the Council already has a number of existing policies in place which
can contribute to helping green the borough, with relevant funding already in place.
However, some of the measures needed to achieve the longer term sustainability and
climate change agenda are likely to have significant cost implications. We will therefore
need to maximise existing funding to achieve the best possible and most
environmentally sustainable outcomes for Haringey, including whole life costing and
invest to save principals.

8.2Initiatives such as the £178 million Building Schools for the Future programme and the
potential Decent Homes investment offer an unprecedented opportunity to make
sustainable choices during design, construction and ongoing maintenance.

8.3 ldentifying and maximising external funding for greening the borough must be a priority.
We will therefore use this strategy to help us bid for additional external funds.

9. Equalities Implications

9.1 A joint equalities and sustainability impact assessment will be carried out as part of the
overall development of this strategy. We will need to consider the impact of the levels
of deprivation in the east of the borough, high levels of transience and the wide variety
of languages spoken locally. We must be mindful to provide equality in the level of
service offered to local people. The sustainability impact implied by this strategy will
also be assessed to gauge social, economic and environmental dimensions of
sustainability. Many of the proposed actions will help improve local air quality which will
be especially beneficial for people who suffer from respiratory conditions such as
asthma.

10.Consultation

10.1 Internal consultation has been undertaken within Haringey Council with both
Members and Officers via the Better Haringey Member Working Group and Better



Page 191

Haringey Stream Board respectively. Earlier scoping papers were also submitted to the
Executive Advisory Board (December 2006) and Majority Group (January 2007), whilst
senior officers have held working group meetings to drive forward the early development of
the strategy. A special workshop event was held for officers from across the Council in
June 2007 to assist with developing the vision and priorities.

10.2 The findings from other consultations have also been used to inform and shape the
draft strategy. This includes the extensive consultation undertaken during the
development of the Sustainable Community Strategy and a further consultation exercise
undertaken earlier this summer at the Better Haringey Green Fair.

10.3 The next step in this process will be an extensive external consultation process to
give all local stakeholders the opportunity to contribute their ideas, identify common goals
and contribute their views on how we will together take forward actions to protect and
improve the environment. Residents, businesses, our community and voluntary sectors
are critical to the development, delivery and success of the strategy. We will use the
following processes and forums to reach and engage with them:

. An article in Haringey People — this goes out to all households in Haringey
Web based consultation
A mail out to the community organisations database
Direct consultation with businesses
A public consultation event
Haringey Strategic Partnership theme boards
Area Assemblies
Events and discussions in schools

11. Background

11.1 Members have expressed an aspiration for Haringey to be one of the Greenest
Borough’s in London. This aspiration is threaded throughout the new Sustainable
Community Strategy, which aims to create the first green generation, and has
crystallised in two of the Council’s key priorities:

. To make Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs.
. To create a Better Haringey: cleaner, greener and safer.

11.2 The Council has recently commissioned a study to set out baseline information on
Haringey’s carbon emissions to assist with developing a climate change action plan. The
study illustrated that community heating and combined head and power (CHP) networks
provide the most cost-effective way for Haringey to achieve its carbon reduction targets -
60% reduction by 2050.

11.3 The Greenest Borough Strategy will bring together carbon reduction scenarios and a
number of different areas of work to provide an ambitious, joined-up, and outcome
focussed programme that will help the Council with its partners to secure an
environmentally sustainable future for all. The strategy will be led, managed and delivered
through the Better Haringey stream board.



Page 192

12. Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs

12.1 Greenest Borough Strategy (Draft)
12.2 Greenest Borough Strategy — appendix A [Further Information]



Page 193

Haringey’s Greenest Borough Strategy
Consultation DRAFT



Page 194

Contents

4 Foreword

5 The context

5 Introduction

5 Policy context

7 Costs and investment

8 Consultation and working in partnership

8 Consultation for the Greenest Borough Strategy
8 Using existing consultation

10 Cross-cutting themes

10 Climate change

10 Better Haringey - raising awareness and involvement
12  Our vision

13 Key priorities

14 Improving the urban environment

16 Protecting the natural environment

18 Managing environmental resources efficiently

22 Leading by example — managing the Council sustainably
25 Sustainable design and construction

27 Promoting sustainable travel

29 Equalities and sustainability impact assessment
30 Monitoring progress

31 Abbreviations and glossary



Page 195

34 Contact us

35 Appendix A — Further information



Page 196

Foreword

Protecting the environment has risen to the top of the public agenda in recent
years. Our busy consumer lifestyles have increased demand for energy, goods
and services. Yet it is now widely accepted that our actions are putting an
unsustainable pressure on the environment. We must take action today to protect
the environment for future generations.

Haringey Council is committed to leading this change. We have already signed
the Nottingham Declaration - committing us to take action to reduce green house
gas emissions. This strategy sets out further progress that the Council has
already made across a range of services and illustrates our determination to
provide excellent services and become one of the greenest boroughs in London.

However, we realise that we cannot do this on our own. We will need the help of
everyone living, working visiting or studying in Haringey to turn our vision into
reality. Therefore, we welcome your feedback on the contents of this draft
strategy and would encourage everyone to get their views known during the
consultation process.

Find out more online at www.haringey.gov.uk/greenest borough strateqgy or
email us at better.haringey@haringey.gov.uk .

Clir Brian Haley
Cabinet Member for Environment & Conservation



Page 197

The context

Introduction

Located in north London, stretching from the panoramic views at Muswell Hill and
Highgate in the west through to the open plains of Tottenham Marshes in the
east, Haringey is the cosmopolitan home to approximately 224,500 residents.
Some 190 languages are spoken here, highlighting the eclectic mix of cultures
that makes Haringey a dynamic and exciting place in which to live, work, visit and
study.

As a London borough, we have many challenges. More and more people want to
set up a home here, conduct business and get out and about. However, our busy
modern lifestyles are beginning to put pressure on the environment. The future of
the environment is the defining issue for this generation. It’s up to us to make
changes now and put in place long term solutions that will protect the built and
natural environment and encourage biodiversity - securing a sustainable, healthy
and fulfilling future for this and future generations.

This strategy is written to highlight the key environmental issues that we need to
tackle and acknowledges that it will require a co-ordinated approach with both
our partners and local stakeholders to deliver its outcomes. It also provides the
context, breadth and background for everyone in Haringey to take an interest,
understand the challenges, and get involved in becoming the first green
generation.

Policy context

Global, national, and regional

World leaders have pledged to take steps to create a sustainable future, via
commitments at several United Nations summits. This includes the Kyoto
Protocol - an international agreement setting targets for industrialised countries
to cut their greenhouse gas emissions — and agreement of Agenda 21, which
focuses action to tackle climate change locally.

The government is committed to reducing UK greenhouse gas emissions by
12.5% by 2008-2012 (compared to a 1990 baseline) as per targets set by the
Kyoto Protocol. The Draft Climate Change Bill sets out a pathway in statute to
further reduce carbon emissions by 60% by 2050. The Building a Greener Future
policy statement, published in July 2007, sets out proposals to achieve ‘zero
carbon’ housing within 10 years. The Waste Strategy for England 2007 sets out
targets to achieve by 2020 of 50% of household waste recycled, a 45% reduction
in household residual waste, and 75% of municipal waste recovered. This and
related policies such as carbon emissions trading and landfill tax have created
incentives for local authorities to encourage more sustainable practices both of
their own operations and those of the wider community and business they serve.



Page 198

The Mayor’s London Plan sets out a framework for waste management and
recycling, air quality, energy use, water efficiency and climate change.
Additionally, the London Mayor’s Green Procurement Code is designed to help
stimulate demand for products made from recycled materials.

Local

This strategy provides a framework for a coordinated approach to tacking
environmental issues in Haringey. At a local level, there is a number of plans
already in place that will all contribute to helping ‘green’ the borough. Haringey’s
Sustainable Community Strategy, adopted in June 2007, draws on the
aspirations of residents, businesses, the community and voluntary sectors to
address the biggest challenges and opportunities facing us over the next ten
years. The strategy sets out the following vision and desired outcomes:

“A place for diverse communities that people are proud to belong to”
People at the heart of change.

An environmentally sustainable future.

Economic vitality and prosperity shared by all.

Be safer for all.

Healthier people with a better quality of life.

Be people and customer focused.

The Greenest Borough Strategy will play the key role in achieving two of these
priorities; ‘an environmentally sustainable future’ and ‘people at the heart of
change, specifically:

To tackle climate change and reduce carbon emissions.

To protect the environment and finite natural resources.

To reduce waste and enable greater levels of recycling.

To improve and promote sustainable travel and tackle traffic congestion.
To develop energy efficient homes and buildings.

To engage with children and young people, encouraging our future citizens
to be the first ‘green generation’.

To continue to improve our excellent parks and open spaces.

. To increase resident satisfaction with (and for people to take a pride in) the
areas where they live.

Haringey’s Local Area Agreement (LAA) is in place to tackle some of the
borough’s most challenging problems. This agreement is between the Haringey
Strategic Partnership and Government. The Greenest Borough Strategy will help
support the achievement of specific LAA targets in relation to recycling,
improving parks and open spaces, and energy efficiency.

The Haringey Council Plan 2007/2010 reflects the Council’s contribution to
delivering the Sustainable Community Strategy through two key priorities:
. To make Haringey one of London’s greenest boroughs.

. To create a Better Haringey: cleaner, greener and safer.



Page 199

A number of actions are set out in the Council plan which cover, recycling, open
space improvements, sustainable transport, sustainable design and construction,
improving cleanliness, road safety and reducing the fear of crime.

Links to further information on major national, regional and local policies and
supporting strategies are set out in appendix A.

Costs and investment

In the short term, the Council already has a number of existing policies in place
which can contribute to helping green the borough, with relevant funding already
in place.

However, some of the measures needed to achieve our longer term aspirations
for environmental sustainability and tackling climate change are likely to have
significant cost implications over and above existing budget provisions. We will
therefore need to maximise existing funding by aligning the strategy with our
business planning framework to achieve the best possible and most
environmentally sustainable outcomes for Haringey, including whole life costing
and invest to save principles.

Initiatives such as the £178 million Building Schools for the Future programme
and the potential Decent Homes investment offer an unprecedented opportunity
to make sustainable choices during design, construction and ongoing
maintenance.

Identifying and maximising external funding for greening the borough must be a
priority. We will therefore use this strategy to help us bid for additional external
funds. Wherever possible a joined up approach should be developed within the
Council and with our external partners in progressing any agreed actions so that
resources are most effectively utilised.

We will ensure that appropriate environmental infrastructure is included in our
regeneration programmes and we will bid for this where such programmes
receive external support. A full financial evaluation and appraisal, along with the
environmental impacts of the prioritised programme will be presented in the final
strategy in 2008.



Page 200

Consultation and working in partnership

We acknowledge the priorities set out in this strategy require strong political and
managerial leadership, but that we simply won’t be effective in delivering change
without the help of the local community. The involvement of all community
sectors including the Haringey Strategic Partnership, voluntary and community
groups, residents, schools, businesses and Council staff will be essential.

Consultation for the Greenest Borough Strategy

There will be extensive consultation on this strategy to give all local stakeholders

the opportunity to contribute their ideas, identify common goals and contribute

their views on how we will together take forward actions to protect and improve
the environment. Set out below are the key elements of the process:

. Elected members are politically accountable and have a leading role to play
in setting the direction of the strategy and signing it off. Our partners on the
Haringey Strategic Partnership will be responsible for delivering parts of the
strategy and they will be integral to the development of this strategy and the
consultation process.

. The strategy will also need to take account of existing national, London-
wide and local priorities.

Residents, businesses and our community and voluntary sectors are key to the
development and success of the strategy. We will use the following processes
and forums to reach and engage with them:

An article in Haringey People — this goes out to all households in Haringey.
Web based consultation.

A mail out to community and voluntary organisations.

Direct consultation with businesses.

A public consultation event.

Via the Haringey Strategic Partnership theme boards.

Area Assemblies.

Schools.

Using existing consultation

We are also using the findings of previous consultation to develop the Greenest

Borough Strategy. When we consulted on the Sustainable Community Strategy

over the summer and autumn of 2006 you told us that:

. One of the best things about Haringey is the open and natural environment,
trees and parks.

. That the borough’s public transport is a real asset.

. A cleaner environment with less rubbish would make Haringey an even
better place to live.

. That children and young people should be a key focus of the work of the
Council and the Haringey Strategic Partnership.

The first ever Better Haringey Green Fair was held in June 2007 and we sought
the views of children and adults. The full findings of what you told us can be



Page 201

found on www.haringey.gov.uk and detailed below are the key issues arising
from this consultation.

You told us that:

. The Council should expand recycling services particularly to cover flats and
to include plastics.

The Council should ensure it follows its own advice.

Cycle lanes should link obvious areas and not peter out at key junctions.
Individuals can do more to recycle more and throw away less.

Individuals can do more to restrict their own car use.

We have used what residents told us to help inform and develop the draft
priorities contained within this strategy.



Page 202

Cross-cutting themes
Climate change

There is now a wide body of scientific evidence to support the view that climate
change is a serious and urgent issue. Globally, three of the hottest years ever
recorded have been in the last decade and the world is warmer now than at any
other time over the last 12,000 years. Extreme weather events around the world
are becoming common. Growing economic wealth has lead to excessive
generation of waste and an increasing demand on energy. The Stern Review,
commissioned by the government, gives a stark warning of worldwide economic
recession if action is not taken now.

Haringey’s residents have shown that caring for the environment matters to them
too. In the recent Better Haringey Survey, 80% of respondents said that climate
change posed a problem, with 54% saying it was a big problem.

Haringey Council signed the Nottingham Declaration in December 2006,
committing itself to preparing a plan of action to significantly reduce greenhouse
gas emissions and to work towards the government target of a 60% reduction in
carbon dioxide (CO2) levels by 2050.

An initial audit was carried out of current and potential activities, followed by the
commissioning of a formal climate change study to assess the types of measures
needed to meet carbon reduction targets. Baseline carbon emission data (2003)
reveals that CO2 emissions for the London Borough of Haringey are 968ktpa
(kiltonnes per annum). Of these 49% are from dwellings, 33% from non-domestic
buildings and 18% from transport. A 60% reduction by 2050 implies a reduction
of some 580ktpa on 2003 levels. Accounting for expected growth in the borough,
the reduction target for CO2 rises to 776ktpa.

An indicative action plan ‘Haringey Council Carbon Reduction Scenarios’ has
now been prepared. It illustrates a number of small scale short term measures
which can be taken to reduce CO2 emissions. However, the most beneficial and
cost effective solution in the long term will require investment in a community
heating network distributing hot water to buildings. This will be supplied by a
number combined heat and power (CHP) sources.

Learning from this study and indicative actions will now be integrated into the
Greenest Borough Strategy.

Better Haringey - raising awareness and involvement

The Better Haringey campaign, launched in September 2003, has been
successful in promoting improvements to the built and natural environment. The
campaign has focused on strengthening civic pride, encouraging residents,
businesses and visitors to help look after the local environment. The first ever
Better Haringey Green Fair and Better Haringey Awards, held in June 2007,

10



Page 203

celebrated everyone’s achievements and marked the starting point for a new
focus on environmental sustainability.

The Better Haringey campaign will be integral to this strategy. We will use the
strong Better Haringey branding to re-enforce our key messages to tackle
perceptions and attitudes, and foster civic pride. Actions to raise awareness and
involvement will be integrated within each of the six priorities set out in this
strategy.

11



Page 204
Our vision

“We will work together to secure a clean, safe
and environmentally sustainable future for
everyone living, working, visiting or studying in
Haringey”.

12



Page 205

Key priorities
Six priorities have been identified to help us achieve our vision over the next ten
years. These will be supported by a set of guiding principals:

. leading by example

. enabling everyone to take positive action
. acting as a custodian of the environment
. providing excellent front line services.

Priority one: Improving the urban environment

We will create well designed, attractive, clean and safe streets, public spaces
and gateways to Haringey that celebrate a dynamic and diverse borough where
there is a real sense of belonging and pride among local people.

Priority two: Protecting the natural environment

We will protect Haringey’s natural environment by working with local people to
ensure that we preserve, improve, and increase green spaces and their use
through improved maintenance, accessibility and sustainable practices.

Priority three: Managing environmental resources efficiently

The earth’s resources are finite, but we are using and polluting them as if they
were not. We will work with everyone in the borough to take forward action to
change behaviour and choices on a number of fronts: reducing waste; increasing
reuse and recycling waste; conserving water and energy use; and minimising air
and water pollution.

Priority four: Leading by example — managing the Council sustainably
Haringey Council is committed to improving the quality of life for everyone in the
borough and must lead by example and act as a role model to our residents and
to our business community. We will adopt best practice environmental
management standards and procurement principles in our own operations.

Priority five: Sustainable design and construction

We will encourage developers and home owners to adopt the highest possible
standards and innovative solutions to sustainable design and construction, whilst
driving forward our own best practice projects through current investments in
schools and social housing.

Priority six: Promoting sustainable travel

We will ease congestion and reduce carbon emissions and pollutants in
Haringey. Our aim is to reduce car based journeys and encourage workers,
residents and businesses to switch to cycling, walking, public transport and other
low carbon alternatives.

13



Page 206

Our priorities

Priority 1: Improving the urban environment

Why this is important

We know that the quality of the urban environment in Haringey is important to

you and is vital in creating a place in which people wish to live and work. From

bustling shopping centres to quiet residential areas, Haringey’s cosmopolitan

streets will be kept clean and feel safe to use, day and night. Key gateway areas
to Haringey such as road arteries and public transport interchanges must give a

welcoming first impression of a dynamic and diverse borough where there is a

real sense of belonging and pride of local people.

Our aim is to create well designed, attractive, and safe streets, public spaces and

gateways to Haringey. This means maintaining regular high quality cleansing,
with ongoing education to prevent littering, dumping, fly-posting and graffiti -

supported by a highly visible street presence to provide reassurance, deter anti-

social behaviour and prevent environmental crime. Eyesores will be routinely

tackled by working in partnership with local residents, traders and agencies to

achieve expedient and long lasting solutions.

Maintenance, development and regeneration opportunities should be utilised to
improve the streetscape through the highest standards of design, use of quality

materials, and designing out crime from the outset.

Progress being made

e Arolling Clean Sweep programme to deliver targeted community clear up
activities, events and education on a local neighbourhood basis.

« Timed waste collections introduced for businesses and flats above shops to

keep the streets clear of rubbish and odours.

« Over 1000 new litter bins and roll out of dog fouling bins to prevent littering.

« Mobile clean teams and additional litter picking services to target visible litter

and improve perceptions of cleanliness.

« Street lighting improvement programme to improve road safety and fear of

crime.
e Programme of road and pavement maintenance.

e Reassurance through Neighbourhood Wardens and joint working with Safer

Neighbourhood Teams.

« Overt and covert surveillance to deter fly-tipping and anti-social behaviour.

« Extensive eyesores programme to tackle problem sites such as railway
embankments, waterways and bridges.

« Streetscape manual to improve the design and rationalise the citing of street

furniture.
« Audit of historical street furniture and preliminary restoration works.
o Design Awards established.
« Tottenham High Road improvements scheme.

14



Page 207

What we will do

Action Timescale

Develop an improvement, investments and procurement 1 —3 years
framework for quality public realm.

Extend roll out of the Junior Wardens Programme in 1 —3years
schools to encourage citizenship and environmental
education at a local level.

Mainstream the successful ‘Clean Sweep’ programme to 1 -3 years
develop localised community capacity and involvement in
action planning and direct action.

Expand the successful eyesores programme to tackle all 1 -3 years
unsightly problem areas and to develop initiatives and
incentives to encourage responsible land ownership.

Install on a rolling basis, energy efficient street lighting 1- 3 years
across the borough.
Develop area-based recycling and streetscene 1- 3 years

improvement projects to respond to local communities
concerns (‘love your street’ projects).

Develop an improvement, investments and procurement 1 -3 years
framework for quality public realm.

Develop and implement plans for improvements to the 3- 5 Years
public realm around key public transport interchanges and
main road arteries.

Develop innovative and sustainable design options for 3- 5 years
public realm projects such as pollution absorbing road
surfaces, permeable surfaces and reducing the ‘heat
island’ effect.

How we will measure success

Increase actual performance in ‘ENCAMS’ street cleanliness scores to top
quartile performance, including industrial estates.

Increase satisfaction ratings for street cleanliness to top quartile
performance.

Increased feeling of safety both whilst being out and about or at home.
Proactive response from local stakeholders in tacking environmental
eyesores.

National recognition for best practice urban planning and design.

How you can help

Please don’t drop litter! Either use a litter or recycling bin on the street or take
your waste home with you.

Report a problem you see on-line using our handy e-form at
www.haringey.gov.uk/reportaproblem .

If you live above a shop or are a business please put your rubbish out at your
allotted time. If you are unsure what time this is just call Haringey Accord on
020 8885 7700 or email at callcentre@haringeyaccord.com .

15



Page 208

Priority 2: Protecting the natural environment

Why this is important

From the open landscape and waterways of the Tottenham Marshes through to
the ancient woodlands of Queens Wood, Haringey is home to a significant
amount of parks, small green spaces totalling 383 hectares (inclusive of all
borough and other agency managed open space), in excess of 40,000 borough
owned trees, 70 sites which offer ecological value and a diverse range of wildlife.
These areas and features provide a precious resource for local people and
visitors to escape to for relaxation, exercise and an improved sense of well-
being.

However, with an increasing urban population come increased traffic, pollution
and pressure to build new homes or develop under utilised land. Even ‘brown
field” development sites can provide a rich and varied habitat for wildlife. There is
also the threat of climate change that is likely to bring more extreme weather,
meaning we need to plan ahead to protect waterways and reduce risk of drought.
These demands can all put a strain on the natural environment by reducing the
overall number of green spaces, displacing natural habitats, and potentially
lowering the overall quality of life for local people.

We will protect Haringey’s natural environment by working with local people to
ensure that we preserve existing green spaces through improved maintenance,
accessibility and sustainable practices, and will take steps to explore the need
and demand for new open spaces. We also want Haringey to look and feel even
greener through the provision of suitable planting along highways and footpaths;
and an extensive tree planting programme — using species that are drought
tolerant and that reduce the occurrence of subsidence.

Progress being made

« Publication of Open Spaces Strategy in 2005 and 10 Park Management
Plans.

Eight nationally recognised award winning Green Flag parks.

Well established Haringey in Bloom competition.

Pilot projects under way in partnership with Groundwork.

Significant external funding secured for major improvements to Markfield.
Recreation Ground and Finsbury Park.

o User satisfaction ratings increased.

What we will do

Action Timescale

Ongoing programme of promotion of facilities and 1 -3 years
resources.
Major parks renewal programme and consolidation of the | 1 — 3 years
Green Flag programme.
Programme to improve smaller open spaces such as 1 — 3 years
pocket parks, ‘Making the Difference’ Area Assembly

16



Page 209

projects, and green areas around highways and junctions.

Investigate and secure external funding opportunities to 1 — 3 years
support the achievement of the overarching aims of this
priority.

Develop policies and strategies to improve management, 1 -3 years
engagement and protection of the natural environment and
associated infrastructure.

Enhance people focus and stakeholder involvement in key | 1 —3 years
areas — Parkforce, Friends Groups, Investment
Programming, Promotion and Procurement.

Update and strengthen the Bio-diversity action plan. 3 — 5 years
Implement sustainable working practices in land 3 -5years
management.

Review allotments infrastructure and investment. 3 —5years
Work with partners to protect and enhance waterways — 3 —-5years

particularly in relation to forthcoming Olympics
regeneration.

Review community use and management of assets / 5—-10 years
buildings and implementation of Asset Management Plan.
Explore longer term funding and procurement options. 5—-10years

How we will measure success

Further increase of resident satisfaction ratings (BVPI 119) from 72% to 77%
(London borough upper quatrtile).

Increased number of Green Flag parks from 8 to 12 by July 2010.

Sustain and increase open space in line with Local Development Framework
and Policy Planning Guidance.

Achieve top quartile performance for maintenance and presentation of parks
(BVPI 199) - target 20%.

Evidence of increased use and participation.

Securing external funding and achieving value for money.

Increasing volunteering by 5%.

Ensuring that there is a Friends group associated with every Haringey park.

How you can help

Take pride in your local park — use it and look after it. Get involved by joining
your local Friends of Park group.

Encourage wildlife into your neighbourhood by planting a window box,
participating in the annual Haringey in Bloom competition (April — June) or
putting up a bird feeder or nesting box.

Discover Haringey’s environmental and historical sites by going on the Better
Haringey Trail around the borough.

Participate in our volunteer programmes.

Tell us about your latest visit to a Haringey park by visiting
www.haringey.gov.uk/yourvisit .

17



Page 210

Priority 3: Managing environmental resources

Why this is important

The earth’s resources are finite. But we are using and polluting them as if they
were not. We are not only consuming more raw materials, water, energy and fuel
but also generating more waste that pollutes the environment. Our lifestyles are
one of the major causes of CO2 emissions and climate change. Everyone in the
borough — the council and its partners, businesses and residents — needs to
change their behaviour and choices.

This priority is about the council leading that change. It will take forward action on
a number of fronts: reducing waste; increasing reuse and recycling waste with
our partners, residents and businesses; conserving water and energy use; and

minimising air and water pollution.

Progress being made

o Two new Reuse & Recycling Centres, open seven days a week.

o Expanded bring and doorstep recycling services, with around 25% of all

household waste being recycled.
e 100% of schools recycling at least one material.

« Heavily discounted compost bins available for residents to purchase.
o Real nappies scheme has resulted in 32 tonnes of waste being diverted from

landfill.

What we will do

Actions - Waste Timescale

A new waste management service contract is to be in 1 -3 years
place, meeting the demands and expectations for

Haringey’s pursuit of excellence.

Achieve equality in coverage of domestic recycling 1 -3 years
services across the borough.

Maximise participation in recycling services through 1 —3 years
awareness raising campaigns.

Reduce contamination of recycled materials through 1 —3years
education activities.

Increase the number of re-use schemes in operation. 1 — 3 years
Develop on street recycling bins for commuters to include | 1 — 3 years
glass, plastic bottles and paper.

Introduce a trade waste recycling service. 1 — 3 years
Ensure that local shops reduce the number of plastic bags | 1 — 3 years
they produce.

Deliver waste audits to businesses to reduce municipal 1 -3 years
waste.

Finding alternatives to landfill/incineration for non- 3 -5 years
recyclables.

Help create local markets for recycled materials. 5—-10 years

18



Page 211

Actions - Energy Timescale

Environmental Resources.

Agree carbon reduction targets for the Council and the 1 —3years
borough.

Promotion of sustainable energy targets into all Council 1 —3years
business plans.

Create an energy fund for ‘eco-grants’ to support projects | 1 — 3 years
that reduce carbon emissions in the borough.

Provide energy audits to homes and businesses. 1 — 3 years
Develop promotional literature and guidance on how to 1 —3 years
reduce energy in the home and at work.

Develop partnerships with energy services companiesto | 1 — 3 years
enhance promotion of energy saving within the borough.

Increase use of renewable energy in the borough, and by | 1 —3 years
the Council.

Improve the borough’s lighting stock to energy efficient 1 —3 years
models.

Set up an ‘energy action zone’ to promote lifestyle 1 -3 years
changes in a defined area.

Develop environmental awards/incentives to promote 1 -3 years
‘green’ choices to businesses in the borough.

Offer residents, schools and businesses energy 1 -3 years
monitoring devices to increase awareness of energy

usage.

Develop a good practice ‘eco-home’ in the borough to 1 -3 years
demonstrate to residents how homes can be retro-fitted

with sustainable improvements such as energy efficiency

and ‘water smart’ measures.

Develop a schools education programme on 1 -3 years

Actions — Air & Water Timescale

Offer subsidised water butts to promote water 1 -3 years
conservation

Offer water saving devices for toilet cisterns. 1 — 3 years
Develop a water quality strategy for the borough. 1 — 3 years
Develop an air quality strategy for the borough. 1 — 3 years
Mapping exercise of air pollution trends in the borough. 1 —3 years
Promotion of air pollution information and forecasts e.g. 1 -3 years
‘London air’ project

Creation of ‘clean air’ zones in the borough through traffic | 1 — 3 years
management.

Develop partnerships with Thames Water and the 1 -3 years
Environment Agency to allow for better management of

water courses in the borough.

Promotion of green roofs to improve rainwater 1 —3years

19



Page 212

management, improvement of air quality, reductions in
‘heat island’ effects, and provide habitats for wildlife.

Promote sustainable drainage systems, such as natural/
permeable surfaces and soak-aways.

1 -3 years

Promotion of better water management in the home to
prevent pollution e.g. use and safe disposal of detergents,
pesticides, car oil, grease.

1 -3 years

Mapping exercise to determine the flooding risks in the
borough — a Strategic Flood Risk Assessment as required
by PPS25.

1 -3 years

Develop a flood management plan for the borough.

1 —3 years

How we will measure success

o Reduce households waste to 345kg per person by 2010/11 and to 340kg per

person by 2015/16.

o Reach a target of 35% of all domestic waste recycled or composted by

2010/11, and 45% by 2015/16.
Number of waste audits carried out.
Number of compost bins distributed.

Number of energy audits carried out.

Flood risk in the borough identified and mapped.

How you can help

Re-use carrier bags when you visit the supermarket.
Dispose of hazardous waste responsibly.

Give unwanted gifts and clothes to charity.

Install a water-saver in your toilet cistern.
Use energy efficient bulbs.
Turn lights off when you leave a room.

Turn down the thermostat on your heating system.
Install loft and/or cavity wall insulation in your home.
Draft proof windows and doors in your home.

Use ‘grey water’ from the home in your garden.

Install a water butt to capture rain water in your garden.

Tonnes of waste diverted from the waste stream through re-use projects.
Number of schools implementing energy efficiency measures.
Number of water butts and water-saving devices distributed.

Number of energy efficient light bulbs installed — wattage saved.

Reduce your waste buy choosing goods with less packaging.

Try making your own compost using garden waste or food scraps.

Don'’t leave electrical items on standby — turn off at the plug.
Unplug mobile phone chargers when you are not using them.

Wash your car with a bucket and sponge rather than a hose.
Fix dripping taps and turn off the water when you brush your teeth.

20



Page 213

Plant vegetation which is well adapted to a drier climate so you don’t have to
water your garden as much.

21



Page 214

Priority 4: Leading by Example — managing the Council sustainably

Why this is important

Sustainable development recognises that economic growth cannot continue, if
the cost is a poor quality environment and social injustice. These beliefs are not
based purely on ‘feel-good’ factors, but sensible and long-term business planning
practices, which recognise our current needs and our obligations to future
generations.

Haringey Council is committed to improving the quality of life for everyone in the
borough and must lead by example and act as a role model, to our residents and
to our business community.

The Council is responsible for procuring a large number of goods and services,
and operates a large portfolio of municipal buildings. By managing our offices
and services responsibly and by adopting sustainable procurement principles we
can “do our bit” and help improve local environmental quality, preserve global
eco-systems and minimise damaging effects to the climate.

We will adopt best practice environmental management standards and
procurement principles, which will ensure we are better placed to support the
Sustainable Community Strategy, make efficient use of resources and achieve
best value, supporting wider social, economic and environmental objectives, in
ways that offer real long-term benefits.

How will we do this?

To deliver these improvements senior managers and members will provide
visible leadership and put in place governance processes, which enable
environmental, social and economic issues to be considered equitably and leads
to a culture where employees and other stakeholders believe sustainable
development is a core Haringey value.

We will become more efficient and do more with less, for example using less
energy, water, paper, timber, aggregates and transportation, reducing waste and
recycling more.

We will use our spending power to buy goods, which develop markets for
recycled, fairly traded, grade A appliances, biodegradable, and other
environmentally preferable supplies and include innovative technologies and
renewable fuels in specifications wherever possible. We will also encourage
main suppliers and contractors to provide training for and employ local people,
and use local small — medium enterprises (SMEs) and black and minority
enterprises (BAMEs).

Progress being made
« New electronic energy billing administration process, eliminating paper
invoices, and providing detailed energy consumption information.

22



Page 215

All paper for photocopying is produced from 100% post consumer waste —
achieve at nil cost.

Council has signed the Mayor’s Green Procurement Code, and now only
purchases recycled paper.

Small — medium businesses and black and minority ethnic businesses
included in procurement processes.

Fair trade and healthy choice snacks provided in vending machines on
Council premises and fair trade tea and coffee provided at Council meetings.
Recycling from Council premises includes, paper, cans, plastic cups,
cardboard and toner cartridges.

Initiated a £0.5 million Sustainable Investment Fund available for services to
make long term improvements, which they can pay back from the savings

generated.

e New IT system, with lower consuming monitors and base units.

« Contract set up for reuse of redundant Council IT equipment, using a local

community enterprise firm.

« 100% of the borough’s street lighting is from green energy sources (£500K

worth of electricity per annum).

« All corporate buildings are powered by energy sourced from low carbon

technology.

What we will do

Action Timescale

Embed an integrated management approach to corporate
social responsibility and improving our environmental
performance, across strategy, policy, financial and
operational activities. This could include assessing the
feasibility of achieving ISO14001 accreditation for the
Council, or other accredited Environmental Management
System.

1 year

Encourage an organisational culture where environmental
resources are valued and sustainable development is
understood.

1 -3 years

Develop and implement a corporate solution for the
disposal of assets.

1 -3 years

Calculate a baseline of the Council’s energy consumption
/ carbon footprint — and agree reduction targets.

1 -3 years

Install automated meter reading equipment, upgrade to A
rated appliances and use energy conservation equipment
and processes in key Council properties to reduce energy
use by 10% by 2010.

1 -3 years

Reduce the waste we produce in our buildings and
increase our recycling rates by 10% by 2010.

1 -3 years

Develop markets for environmentally preferable products,
by increasing procurement of recycled and fair trade
products, such as stationery, street furnishings and

1 -3 years

23



Page 216

uniforms by 10% by 2010.

Pilot low energy street lighting. 1 —3 years

Allocate capital funding for energy efficiency projects for 1 —3 years
the Council’s buildings.

Develop a carbon trading scheme for the Council. 1 — 3 years
Install ‘grey water’ systems for Council buildings 1 —3 years
sewerage.

How we will measure success

Achieving at least 10% of goods and services purchased by the Council as
recycled or fairly traded by 2010.

Reduce energy consumption in Council managed buildings by 10% by 2010.
Increase the variety and volume of waste materials collected from Council
premises by 10% by 2010.

Ensuring measurable improvements by integrating environmental
management into our performance indicators, communication, decision
making and risk management processes.

Ensuring staff understand the importance of improving their impact on the
environment and using resources more efficiently.

Reduction in carbon emissions as a Council -10% by 2010.

Percentage of the Council’s energy procured from renewable sources.
Improve energy efficiency of local authority owned dwellings (as measured
by BV 63, CPA H11). Improve the average ‘SAP’ rating from 66 (2006/7) to
71 by 2009/10.

How you can help

Choose re-usable products rather than disposable ones.

Choose products with a high recycled content.

When buying white goods, choose at least ‘A’ rated appliances to save
money, energy and water.

Switch off electrical equipment, not standby, when not in use.

Don’t buy more than is necessary and re-use or recycle, rather than throwing
away.

Consider environmental issues alongside other issues, like money.

24



Page 217

Priority 5: Sustainable design and construction

Why this is important

Haringey is growing. New housing developments, schools, workspaces, shops
and municipal buildings are planned as we regenerate the borough. Record
levels of funding have been announced to transform Haringey’s schools through
the Building Schools for the Future (BSF) programme, and it is expected that
major funding will be secured to improve social housing to the Government’s
‘decent standard’ by 2010. Haringey has also been set significant targets to
increase the number of new homes to be built in borough in the medium to long
term. All this will have to be set against the context of expected changes to
climate — buildings will not only need to be kept efficiently warm in the winter, but
also remain cool in the summer.

These development, refurbishment and regeneration projects present a unique
opportunity to secure an environmentally sustainable future for Haringey. The
way in which buildings are designed and constructed have a direct and indirect
impact on natural resources, climate change, the quality of our lives and our
immediate and wider natural environment. Buildings which integrate the
principles of sustainability create better and healthier living and working
environments and are cheaper to run in the long run. Energy efficient homes help
reduce the number of households that are classified as fuel-poor and are critical
for achieving UK’s climate change objectives. We will encourage developers and
home owners to adopt the highest possible standards and innovative solutions to
design and construction, whilst driving forward our own best practice projects
through current investments in schools and social housing.

Progress being made

« Haringey’s 6th Form Centre has achieved excellent BREEAM rating for
sustainable design.

Haringey planning policies for sustainable design and construction.
Haringey design awards to celebrate best practice for sustainable design.
Landlord accreditation scheme, setting decent standards for tenants.
Campaign to reduce incidence of fuel poverty.

Thermal imaging project to map energy efficiency of buildings.

Guidance for ‘Greening Your Home’ has been published.

Planning approval for a combined heat and power plant in Hale Village
development.

What we will do

Action Timescale

Identify existing good practice in all sectors and 1 — 3 years
disseminate information.
Design Awards for sustainable buildings. 1 — 3 years

Renewable energy and Combined Heat and Power (CHP) | 1 —3 years
options to be explored for all key regeneration sites, such

25



Page 218

as Haringey Heartlands.

Request energy statements for all major new build 1 —5years
proposals.

Define a green building standard for all Council owned 1 — 3 years
office refurbishments and new build (linked to construction
procurement).

Evaluate current national and regional initiatives for 1 -3 years
sustainable design and funding opportunities.

Publish a guide for energy efficiency and renewable 1 — 3 years

energy in conservation areas.

Develop incentives and projects for existing private sector | 1 — 3 years
housing.

Target the private sector to encourage basic sustainability | 1 —3 years
measures such as home insulation or renewable energy
installations (e.g. solar panels).

All BSF schools to be exemplars. 3 —5years
Develop at least one showcase BSF project. 3 — 5 years
Develop at least one showcase housing association 3 —5years

project and a model house for sustainable design.

Develop at least one zero carbon development in Haringey | 3 — 5 years
by 2013.

Feasibility into developing local Electricity Supply 5—-10 years
Company (ESCo) / Combined Head and Power (CHP)
plants.

How we will measure success

. Number of new developments with renewable energy options.

. Number of large scale schemes with energy statements.

. Number of large schemes with water saving measures.

. Number of BSF projects with energy reduction /renewable energy
measures.

. Number of successful referrals for fuel poverty reduction scheme such as
‘hear to help’ and warm front.

. Percentage improvement of energy efficiency of all buildings by 2017
against 2007 baseline.

. National recognition for best practice sustainable construction.

How you can help

« Take basic steps to keep your home warm in the winter through loft, door
and window insulation.

« Make sustainable home improvements by using the ‘Greening your home’
guide available on-line at www.haringey.gov/greeningyourhome .

« Switch to energy efficient light bulbs and save £10 per bulb each year on
your electricity charges.




Page 219

Priority 6: Promoting sustainable travel

Why this is important

We are using cars too much to move around. More people than ever now own
cars and often use them even for short journeys. This is inefficient on fuel,
causes high carbon emissions, reduced air quality, congestion on roads and
parking pressures. It often makes the environment unsafe for pedestrians and
cyclists, and also means more ‘hard’ surfaces — roads, car parks, paved over
front gardens — which are less able to absorb heavy rainfall.

Our aim is to reduce car based journeys and encourage workers, residents and
businesses to switch to cycling, walking, public transport and other low carbon
alternatives. Sustainable travel options will be considered for all new
developments and we will work with businesses on travel plans. Cycling, walking,
public transport, car sharing and car clubs will be promoted and made more
attractive. We will also promote improved technology, efficient vehicles,
alternative fuels, and install on street electric vehicle charging points.

Progress being made

« Provision of cycling and walking maps.

« Extensive campaign to deliver personalised travel plans to residents.

« Revised parking charges policy based on vehicle carbon emissions and level
of car ownership.

o Consolidation of municipal buildings to Wood Green campus to reduce staff
travel to meetings.

o Set up of a bike pool for Council staff.

« Purchasing of electric pool vehicles for Council staff.

o Carrying a Council motion to declare that Members and Officers will no
longer travel by air on Council business within mainland Great Britain,

or when representing the Council in Paris or Brussels.
« Steps taken for increasing the use of information technology, such as video
conferencing, to reduce the need to travel.

What we will do

Action Timescale

Reducing car use
Implement a comprehensive staff travel plan, including 1 -3 years
flexible working, improved council facilities for showers /
locker rooms, recommendations for staff car and essential
car user permits and introduction of departmental oyster
cards.

Develop travel plans with partners/businesses based on 1 -3 years
council model.
Travel/accessibility plans for all major new developments. | 1 — 3 years
Expansion of differential charging related to car CO2 1 —3 years
emissions.

27



Page 220

Implementing car clubs / hire schemes. 1 —3 year
Car free days. 1 —3year
Public and community transport

Public transport campaigns and advice. 1 — 3 years
Improve bus routes, including cross borough. 1 — 3 years
Improved public transport interchanges. 1 —3years
Development of community transport. 1 —3 years
Cycling

Cycling training programmes, advice and publicity. 1 —3 years
Network of safe cycle routes and secure parking. 1 — 3 years
Cycle sharing schemes/buddy schemes. 1 — 3 years
Walking

Pedestrianised streets. 1 — 3 years
Walking audits of our streets and improvements plans. 1 — 3 years
Increased Home Zones/20mph zones. 1 — 3 years
Network of accessible safe walking routes. 1 — 3 years
Investment in pavements and street lighting. 1 — 3 years
Cleaner / efficient vehicles

Research on-street electric charging points. 1 — 3 years
Purchase electric cars for Council business. 1 — 3 years
Research into alternative fuel and technologies for Council | 1 — 3 years
fleet.

Review contracts for coach, minibus and taxi hire. 1 — 3 years
Council fleet management — procurement of alternative 3 —5years

technologies.

How we will measure success

« Reduction of percentage of staff travelling to work by car compared to 2007

baseline.

Modal shift from car to others forms of travel.

Road accident reductions.

Percentage of borough 20mph zones.

Number of businesses/partners with green travel plans.
Number of new developments with green travel plans.

traffic.

How you can help

« Get an oyster card and enjoy cheaper travel on public transport.

o Leave your car at home for short journeys and walk or cycle whenever

possible — it’s also good for your health!

Improved air quality measured by x % reduction in pollution caused by road

28



Page 221

Equalities and sustainability impact assessment

In developing this strategy we will pilot a combined equalities and sustainability
impact assessment. The assessment will be published on-line and summarised
within the final draft of this strategy.

We will need to consider the impact of the levels of deprivation in the east of the
borough, high levels of transience and the wide variety of languages spoken
locally. We must be mindful to provide equality in the level of service offered to
local people. We must also consider the impact of improved air quality on people
with respiratory conditions such as asthma.

The sustainability impact implied by this strategy will also be assessed to gauge
social, economic and environmental dimensions of sustainability.

29



Page 222

Monitoring our progress

Governance arrangements

Day to day monitoring of progress, tracking of risks and issues and realisation of
benefits will be maintained by the existing Better Haringey Stream Board — a high
level officer body within Haringey Council, under the direction of the Better
Haringey Member Working Group. Highlight reports and performance outturn will
be published as part of the regular programme monitoring and performance
monitoring reports to the Council’s Cabinet.

This strategy will also be adopted by the Haringey Strategy Partnership (HSP).
As a partnership of the main organisations in Haringey, the HSP is well placed to
tackle the priorities in this strategy collectively. The main partnership is supported
by thematic partnership boards that focus on specific areas of activity. Therefore,
the Better Places Partnership which focuses on a broad range of environmental
issues will fulfil this monitoring role on behalf of the HSP.

Action planning

This strategy sets out our vision and priorities for action over a ten year time
horizon. Some of these actions are achievable in the short term — others will
require thorough feasibility assessments before any significant investment is
made.

In order to track implementation during the lifetime of the strategy, we will publish
an action plan to be updated and republished yearly, detailing each action and
who is responsible, together with an update on progress made. It will also be an
opportunity to take account of new or emerging priorities and actions and how
they will be addressed.

30



Page 223

Abbreviations and Glossary

Abbreviations

BSF Building Schools for the Future

CcOo2 Carbon Dioxide

CoNEL College of North East London

ENCAMS  Charity formerly known as ‘keep Britain tidy’

ESCo Energy Supply Company

GAF Growth Area Fund

HfH Homes for Haringey

HMO houses in multiple occupation
HSP Haringey Strategic Partnership
ROC renewable obligation certificates
Glossary

Bio-diversity - the variety of life on our planet, measurable as the variety within
species, between species, and the variety of ecosystems.

Brown field - a brown field (development site) is land which has been previously
developed, excluding mineral workings or other temporary uses. Concentrating
development on brown field sites can help to make the best use of existing
services such as transport and waste management and clean up contaminated
sites, and assist environmental, social and economic regeneration.

Building Schools for the Future (BSF) - the biggest single government
investment in improving school buildings for over 50 years. The aim is to rebuild
or renew every secondary school in England over a 10-15 year period.

Carbon Dioxide (CO2) - A gas present in the atmosphere to the extent of more
than 0.03% by volume and playing an important role in the greenhouse effect. It
is absorbed by plants and exhaled by animals.

Climate Change - refers to the variation in the Earth’s global climate or in
regional climates over time. It describes changes in the variability or average
state of the atmosphere over time scales ranging from decades to millions of
years. These changes can be caused by processes internal to the Earth, external
forces (e.g. variations in sunlight intensity) or, more recently, human activities.

Combined heat and power - a fuel-efficient energy technology that puts to use
the by-product heat that is normally wasted to the environment.

ENCAMS (Environmental Campaigns Limited) — an environmental charity set

up to create effective action by targeting groups to achieve a sustained
improvement in local environmental quality and reduce anti-social behavior.

31



Page 224

Fair trade — the guarantee that disadvantaged producers in the developing world
are getting a better deal.

Greenhouse gas - any gas that absorbs infra-red radiation in the atmosphere.
Greenhouse gases include water vapour, carbon dioxide (CO2), methane (CH4),
nitrous oxide (N20), halogenated fluorocarbons (HCFCs), ozone (O3),
perfluorinated carbons (PFCs), and hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs).

Groundwork — Groundwork UK is a registered charity that works alongside
communities, public bodies, private companies and other voluntary sector
organisations to deliver projects and programmes — including environmental
improvements that create cleaner, safer, greener neighbourhoods.

Growth Area Fund (GAF) — funding supplied by central government to enable
the growth of housing development on key regeneration sites to help reach home
building targets.

Haringey Accord — Haringey’s waste contractor.

Haringey Strategic Partnership - aims to improve public services and address
the key issues in the Borough through partnership working. The Council joined
with local public agencies, community groups and businesses to create the
Haringey Strategic Partnership (HSP) in April 2002.

Homes for Haringey — The name chosen for Haringey’s ALMO (Arms Length
Management Organisation). The organisation has managed the Council’s
housing since April 2006.

Houses in multiple occupation (HMO) - a house, or a flat, which is occupied by
two or more households. This includes houses which have been converted into
flats. The most common categories of HMO accommodation are the bedsit type
and hostel/bed and breakfast properties. Houses which have been converted into
self-contained flats are also HMOs.

Landfill - A method for final disposal of solid waste on land. The refuse is spread
and compacted and a cover of soil applied so that effects on the environment
(including public health and safety) are minimized. Under current regulations,
landfills are required to have liners and leachate treatment systems to prevent
contamination of ground water and surface waters.

Open space - Undeveloped land or common areas in a planned community
reserved for parks, walking paths or other natural uses.

32



Page 225

Renewable obligation certificates (ROC) - Contain information of how
electricity was generated, who generated it, and who eventually used it. For each
MWh of green electricity an energy company generates they receive one ROC.
These can be traded with companies who have failed to meet their ROC
obligation.

Sustainability — In an environmental context, this refers to securing rising
standards of living (e.g. goods, services, construction, transport), whilst
protecting and enhancing the environment.

Travel Plan — A proposed route of travel that utilises more environmentally
friendly forms of transport, such as walking, cycling and public transport.

Well-being - The well-being or quality of life of a population is an important
concern in economics and political science. It is measured by many social and
economic factors. A large part is standard of living, the amount of money and
access to goods and services that a person has.

33



Page 226

Contact Us

For queries and questions regarding the consultation draft of the Greenest
Borough Strategy, please contact the Better Haringey team:

Email: better.haringey@haringey.gov.uk
Telephone: 020 8489 4561
Fax: 020 8489 4591

You can also find out more online at:
http://www.haringey.qov.uk/greenest borough strategy.htm

Useful contacts

Help us make a Better Haringey by reporting environmental problems.

Rubbish and Recycling 020 8885 7700

Reporting graffiti 0845 073 1979

Problem vehicles 0845 073 1234

Problem street lights 0500 236 458

Road repairs 020 8489 1335

Parks Customer Care 020 8489 5662

Note sure who to talk to? 020 8489 0000 (switchboard)
Minicom 020 8489 2088

Or why note go on-line and report a problem at:
https://eforms.secure.haringey.gov.uk/ufs/ufsmain?formid=REPORT A PROBLE
M

34



Page 227

Appendix A — Further information

This appendix sets out an index of further information on national, regional and

local policies which either impact on or contribute to the draft Greenest Borough
Strategy. Hyperlinks are provided to take you directly to the strategy concerned
or a contact email address where a document is not available on-line.

Relevant policies:

Planning White Paper 2007 — Planning for a Sustainable Future
http://www.communities.gov.uk/publications/planningandbuilding/planningsustain
ablefuture

Climate Change and Sustainable Energy Act 2006
http.//www.opsi.gov.uk/acts/acts2006/pdf/ukpga 20060019 en.pdf

The Stern Review — The Economics of Climate Change http://www.hm-
treasury.gov.uk/independent reviews/stern review economics climate change/
stern review report.cim

Draft Climate Change Bill
http.//www.defra.qov.uk/corporate/consult/climatechange-bill/

The UK Biodiversity Action Plan
htto://www.ukbap.org.uk/GenPageText.aspx?id=54

Waste Strategy 2007 http.//www.defra.gov.uk/environment/waste/strateqy/

Eddington Report (Transport)
htto://www.dft.gov.uk/about/strateqy/eddingtonstudy/

Green Procurement Code
http://www.london.qov.uk/mayor/environment/waste/green procurement code.js

p

Building a Greener Future — Towards Zero Carbon Development
consultation
htto://www.communities.qov.uk/archived/publications/planningandbuilding/buildin

ggreener

Meeting the Energy Challenge: A White Paper on Energy (May 2007)
http.//www.dlti.gov.uk/enerqy/whitepaper/page39534.html

Regional context:

35



Page 228

Biodiversity Duty — Guidance for Local Authorities
http.//www.defra.gov.uk/news/2007/070522b.htm

Draft Local Transport Bill
htto://www.dft.qov.uk/pgr/regional/localtransportbill/

The Mayor’s Transport Strategy
htto://www.london.qgov.uk/mayor/strateqies/transport/index.jsp

Greener London — the Mayor’s State of Environment Report for London
htto://www.london.qgov.uk/gla/publications/environment/soereport/soe _summary.

paf

Water Matters: The Mayor’s Draft Water Strategy
htto://www.london.qgov.uk/mayor/environment/water/docs/la-draft-water-

strateqy.pdf

Carbon Reduction Commitment for Local Authorities
http.//www.defra.qgov.uk/environment/climatechange/uk/business/crc/index.htm

Towards the Mayor’s Housing Strategy — Consultation paper
http.//www.london.gov.uk/mayor/housing/strategy/index.jsp

The Mayor’s Climate Change Action Plan
http.//www.london.qov.uk/mayor/environment/climate-change/ccap/index.jsp

The London Plan http://www.london.gov.uk/mayor/planning/strateqy.jsp

Haringey context:

Sustainable Community Strategy 2007-16
htto://harinet.haringey.qov.uk/index/community _and leisure/hsp/sustainablecom
munitystrateqy.htm

Sustainable Development: Local Agenda 21 action Plan
htto://harinet.haringey.qov.uk/council/strateqiesandpolicies/localagenda2i.htm

Narrowing the Gap: Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy 2002-12
htto://harinet.haringey.qov.uk/index/council/strateqgiesandpolicies/neighbourhoodr
enewalstrateqgy.htm

Unitary Development Plan
htto://harinet.haringey.qgov.uk/index/housing and planning/planning-
mainpage/udp-2.htm

36



Page 229

Air Quality Management Area: Action Plan
htto://harinet.haringey.qgov.uk/air _quality management area action plan-
oct _04.pdf

North London Joint Waste Strategy — Mayor’s Draft September 2004
htto://harinet.haringey.qgov.uk/index/environment _and transport/refuseandrecycli
ng/refuse.htm

Regeneration strategy — economic.regeneration@haringey.gov.uk

The Recycling Strategy — recycling@haringey.gov.uk

37



Page 230

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 231 Agenda ltem 14

1% Floor South, River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood Green, London N22 8HQ
Tel: 020 8489 1713 Fax: 020 8489 1251

www.haringey.gov.uk !
Haringey [ eIRT,
Agenda item:
The Cabinet On 16 October 2007

Report Title: Cabinet Response to Scrutiny Review on Improving Road Safety in
Haringey

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable):

Report of: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Key Decision

1. Purpose

1.1 This report provides a Cabinet response to the recommendations from the Overview
and Scrutiny Committee on the scrutiny review on Improving Road Safety. It sets out
the recommendations of this review, provides a Cabinet response and a detailed
action plan to take forward the agreed recommendations.

2. Introduction by Executive Member

2.1 Road safety is a very important issue in Haringey and we have made have great
improvements in accident reduction in recent years. | welcome this review's
contributing to furthering this work. This report details my response to the
recommendations of the review and provides a detailed action plan to take them
forward.

3. Recommendations

3.1 That the Cabinet welcomes the report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on
Improving Road Safety in Haringey.

3.2 That Cabinet agrees the attached response and proposed action as set out in
Appendix 1.

Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment §j

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 1



Page 232

Contact Officer: Beverley Taylor, Assistant Director of Streetscene

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 A mix of internal and external funding is currently available for road safety projects
within Haringey. The Council has agreed a specific capital investment programme for
road safety measures amounting to £200k per annum for the last two years and
£100k for the current year. There is further investment approved for borough roads
and street lighting that has impact on road safety. The Streetscene PBPR contains a
specific road safety capital bid of £400k for 2008/09, which will be considered as part
of the capital budget process. The main source of external funding for road safety
type projects is from TfL. This years allocation amounts to over £1 .5m and includes
local safety schemes, 20mph Zones, school travel plans, travel awareness and road
safety education and training. The effective use of these resources has resulted in
reductions to road accidents in recent years.

4.2 Most of the recommendations are agreed and can be implemented within existing
resources. However, two are agreed subject to funding becoming available and these
cannot be implemented until funding, either internally or externally, is clearly identified
and agreed.

5. Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1 The Head of Legal Services Comments only on recommendations 3 and 4
(Maximising external funding opportunities) There is a statutory power in Section 93
Local Government Act 2003 for charging a person for discretionary services where no
other power is available and a person agrees to pay. Accordingly, where a developer
has a road safety issue in a development proposal identified and agrees to pay for
the design of mitigation measures this may be settled at an early stage. Thisis in
addition to the agreement for works where statutory powers to charge exist.

5.2 There is a new procedure for Planning Application forms to be introduced with effect
from 1 April 2008 and extensive changes to the Town and Country Planning (General
Procedure Development) Order 1995 which governs the application procedure. A
report will be submitted to the Planning Committee when the details have been
published. It is suggested that recommendation 4 be considered at that time

5.3 The proposed action in response to recommendation 3 is supported

6. Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.1 The following background papers have been used in the preparation of this report:

» __Improving Road Safety in Haringey, Overview and Scrutiny Committee report 30

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2



Page 233

July 2007
e Haringey Council Plan 2007/10

6.2 For access to background papers or any further information please contact John
Lapping on 0208 489 1714.

7. Strategic Implications

7.1 Improving road safety is a Council Plan priority with action agreed in the next three
years to 2010 to maximise 20 mph and School Travel Plan schemes as part of our
Local Implementation Plan, and targets set to reduce by 30 the numbers of people
killed and seriously injured on our roads. This target reflects the Mayor of London’s
target and is also a CPA performance indicator.

7.2 The review by Overview and Scrutiny has made a wide range of recommendations
aimed at improving the Council’s work on road safety and delivering this casualty
reduction target.

8. Financial Implications

8.1 Where recommendations of the scrutiny review are agreed and currently have no or
inadequate funding, these will be addressed either as part of the Council’s financial
planning process or wherever possible through bids for external funding.

9.  Legal Implications

9.1 No specific implications identified.

10.  Equalities Implications

10.1  Road safety is an important issue in addressing inequality. National research has
shown that accidents tend to be higher amongst more vulnerable group and are linked
to deprivation. These patterns are reflected in Haringey’s pattern of accidents and
casualties.

11. Consultation
11.1  The scrutiny review included consultation with a wide range of stakeholders.

12. Background

12.1 A Scrutiny Review on Improving Road Safety in Haringey was set up in January 2007
and completed in June 2007. The primary focus of the review was to look at the
challenges facing the Council and its partners in the delivery of road safety solutions
both in terms of engineering safety solutions and training and education initiatives.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec



12.2

12.3

12.4

12.5

13.

13.1

Page 234

The detailed objectives of the review were:

e To determine whether the Council was meeting the government and London
Mayor’s targets on road safety. :

e To gain a better understanding of the work currently undertaken by the
Council and its partners.

e To reduce the number of killed and seriously injured (KSIs) road casualties in
Haringey.

e To assess the Council's partners’ and stakeholders’ understanding of the
government's targets and their implications for Haringey.

e To determine whether Haringey Council and Transport for London are
providing and allocating resources to the best effect with particular regard to
initiatives aimed at reducing road accidents resulting in high severity
casualties.

* To assess the Council's effectiveness in ensuring that potential external
funding is maximised wherever possible particularly the use of Sections 106
and 278 Agreements.

e To learn of new and transferable initiatives, which are not currently used in the
borough and which may help to reduce the number of high severity casualties
and help to inform any future road safety activities.

The review collected a wide range of evidence from different sources including
Transport for London, who currently provide funding primarily for traffic safety schemes
and road safety education, training and publicity; the Highways Service who deliver the
traffic engineering schemes and road safety education; the Borough Fire Commander;
Children and Young Peoples Services, local schools and Living Streets Haringey.

The review recognised that road safety success is usually measured by progress in
achieving casualty reductions and, generally, the Council has been successful in
moving towards meeting the casualty reduction targets. However, the review also
concluded that finding solutions is not always easy. Road safety is a complicated topic
involving a range of agencies, including judicial, educational, health and enforcement,
different areas of delivery including education, engineering and enforcement and many
facets of human behaviour.

The detailed recommendation of the review are set out in Appendix 1, together with a
suggested response from the Cabinet and proposed further action with timescales. Of
the 17 recommendations, only one, Recommendation 6, is not agreed and that is the
proposal to transfer funding of the school crossing patrol service to Children’s and
Young People’s Services. One is part agreed and two more agreed subject to funding.
If agreed by the Cabinet, the proposed action will be taken forward as part of the
Streetscene Business Plan in 2008/9.

Conclusion

Road safety is an important council priority and the Scrutiny Review report has
provided a useful contribution to taking forward action on this topic. It is recommended
that the Cabinet welcome the contribution of the review and agree the response and
action plan in Appendix 1.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 235

14. Use of Appendices

14.1  Appendix |: Action Plan for Implementing the Scrutiny Review on Improving Road
Safety in Haringey.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec



Page 236

99x3 AjUQ Jequispy / saipog [ewlo ajejdwe 1 podeay

suljIno /
1eULIOf DISEq 84} S1lIM
% sy1o8loid esnLioLd

Asenuep

10} paijdde aq |jim
Buipuny 4i1 pesodoud
S1 1 yoiym Joy s1osfoud

{Airenuue) sunp 0 18y B spdwion

Hels sRep Buluiel) pue wWes] ue|d [8ABI] 141 ayl yum
$HU| 8S0j0 N0 YBNOIY} pensIyoe s Siy ) “swiWRIBoId
UB|d [9ARIL JNO U0} Buipuny 3zzG3 feuoippe

UE paIndes aAey am JeaA siy| “JesA [eosyy ayy Buunp

PeINdss si Bulpuny [euOIPPE 1By} 8SED 8} USYO Si |

“Jesh yoes Jo yolep

Ul enp st yoiym ‘meinai ue|d [eAei| Jooyos Ajesk sieyy
Pe1e|dWwos dABY S|00YDS JBYE |1I3UN PIg Pe|iElep B ul
Ind 01 sjqissod jou si 1 ‘Spiq Ue|d [9ABL] [00YOS Yum
‘JenemoH "Arenigs4 Aq pele|dwiod S| suoISSILGNS 10}
aullINo ey} ssweyds sjoefoud/subledweo BuifpAo pue
Bunyiem ‘seounosa. uoneonp3 Alsjes peoy ‘seuocz
ydwioz ‘sewsyog Ajejes [0 "8l S8SED JSOW U]

190140 uoiebnsaAul JUSPIoOE pelesIpep
e Aojdwe 0} painoes s1em S80IN0S8) J| SUOISSILGNS
pajie1ep ajow Jwgns o} 8jqissod aq JeAnsmoy pinom 3

‘Pojieiap uel)) Jsyied sAleolpul

8Je 9b€js S|y} Je SUOISSILUGNS 8L *[19UNOY) By} UO
pasoduwl seulipesp sy} 198W PUB SUOISSILIGNS Buipuny
Ue|d uoiejuswisiduwl) [eoo uo 1y Aq pesede.d
S0UBPING 8U} 0} BI8YPE SISOIYO [10UNOY) “pealbe ey

‘wies] Ajojes peoy au UIyIM painusp!

$82In0osal [euoiippe au} Buiojdws Joj spuny jusioiyns
89Npo.d piNoo Sy “1SNgod pue Ajswi ale sjuswINoop
PIq 8y} ainsue 0} ejendoidde se s1e91y40 1o} pepiroid

9Q pinoys uoddns pue Buute] "sssoo.d jeussiul S, |IoUNoo
U1 Jo} Alenige4 Ul UOISSILUGNS IO} SUIINO/JBULIO) oiseq
8U} 8}lim O} Lels pue ssiuoud Asy) Jesh yoes Jo Aenuep
ul “Buipuny 417 4o} wigns o} esodoud Asyy Yolym Joj
s108/04d 4O 381 B 8)1IdW0D pinoys wes | Ajejes peoy sy
(‘8unr) 1esk olwepeoe sy JO LE)S Buiuuibeg 11 Aq 108
Buippiq Joy s|geisWw} fenuue syj 0} slaype SJI8o140 1By

V/N

“UONOB JByuNy ON

uonoe pasodoiy

aeosaw |

'60/800¢

40} pspiwigns useq sey 000°00Y JO pIg peses.ou)
J8Uuny B pue 000‘00z3 PanieDal aABY oM Sieah

884y} snoinaid ey} Buung sseooud 186pnq jenden
U1 Jo Lied se pejesojje ussq sey Buipun4 ‘peAsIyoe
SI9M UOIONPa. JUSPIoo. Jo) s18bie) sS4 ay) eeiby

asuodsal 1auigen

"uonoeg

A19jeS PEOY BUI UIUM PBUIE}RI 8q SPIEME SNUO]
[eroueul Aue Jeyy ansue pinoys jsuiqe) ey sjeb.e]
Paydl8lIS YSdT PaAsIyoe Sey Justupiedsp 8y} Jsup\

UOIEPUSLUWIOSaY

Aebuuey u A1ayeg peoy Buinoidwi uo Mainay Auiniog eyl Jo suoEpUSIWOISI By} Bunuewse|dwi 1oy uelq uonoy

ANO XIAN3ddV



Page 237

/ 99x3 AluQ Jaquisy / selpog |ewlo :ayejdws 1 Hoday

186 am usuypp “JeoIO | evel pinod uosied awes 84} 1Y} 8084811 8suss Ayejes peo. |je Bulfeulpio-02 o} ANjigisuodsal
Asjes peoy Jowunp SXBW PINom }f Jooyos auy) Ulyum sanssi Ajajes yum ‘uoidwiey)d Ajsjes peoy e se 19e 0}
€ SJBUILIOU O} S|o0yds | pue ylesH 1o} sjqisucdsal uos.ed e aaey Apesije uosied ejendoidde ue e1UILLOU SIBUOBS | PESH |1V (e)
10} poYSE aney S|O0Y0s 1sow 8onjor4d Ul ‘sisliew yons uo
om JaysismeN Aejes | seipoq Buluienob pue sieyoes) peay alepuew 01 ‘1ey) aunsus pinoys
/0 48quiens( PEeOY 1X8u sy} uj (B) | Aoyine eAey 10U S8OP Jo108IIQ U} Blilumeaiby (8) $82IMIeS s,81d0ad BUNOA %9 UaIp|IyD 4O J0198a(] a8y S

" Juswesibe uonoes siy; 0}
USAIB 8 PINOYS SUONEISPISUOD JefILIS PUB BaJE UE Uj
Aisjes peos soueyus 0} pasn aq Osfe ued suoleBgo

901 uonoVeg se yons Buipuny Jo S82IN0S JsLYiO ‘eale
8y} ul A19Jes peoJ 8oUBYUS O} SBINSEaW JSYI0 pUE Buipuny
‘PalepIsu0d ussq sey JO JusWisSeSSE PUB BLLIOJINO 8y} JOHUOW O} SYILOoW Z|
SUOIIRIBPISUOD 1 1 WiUOoS 0} UoRoes e Uleluod pinoys suopeoldde | Jsyje pemelral pue paojid 8 1SNW SIY| "pPalepIsuod usaq
901 pue Ile ey} pes.be s| ) Juswidojersp pesodoid Sey Jusweaibe g/ g UoNOsS B Jsyjaym Uo juswipedaq
8/¢ uoioeg apnjoul 8Ul JO ainjeu sy} Ag psuluLIBlep s! Juswas.ibe Buiuueld sy} wouy JusWiWoo oyoeds e aney pjnoys
/0 48queds( | o1 suopeojdde esiney 8.¢ UORD8S e I0j psau sy} ybnoyyy ~eauby | esujwiwos Buiuueld 8y} aJojeq Buiob suonesydde e jey ¥
"PBAJOAUL e Bulpun;
10 sunowe weosyubis ‘saleyos pajuswsidul
alaym sisdojsnsp Alrerued uo syuswiAed uo Buiyneyep Jadojensp
L0 Jequiedeg | wouj SpuUOq isenbay B JO JUSA® 8U] Ul PaINses 8q 0] spuny sjqeus
{IM 4otym puoq e epiaoid o} siedojensp Buuinbe.
"SHIOM 8Q |lim am JueoliubIS aq O} Ajeyjl| SI 8/Z UOI08S B
JO ®duUBApE Ul SXIom | yBnouyy Juswesinbal Buipuny sy sisym syuswdoanap "8oi1oeId SIy)
8/2S 104 sisdojansp Jofew 104 "usxeuspun Buleq SyIom Jo eouBADE woJ} einpedsp ou e 1snw aJey] ‘Aemybiy suyy o} SHIOM
wioly Buipuny ur sseooud g/ z uoioes ayi ybnouyy siedojensp 1041800 8}91dwo? 8y} Jeaq siedojeAsp Jey] 8NsuUs 1SN
Buiobup Le1go 03 snuiuo) wios4 Buipuny sureiqo Juswipedsp 8y "eaiby Juswipedep sy} uswealBy 8/ g U008 0} 80USI8)8. UUM e

'suoissiwugns Buipuny 1sngou
JO JuswdojeAsp 8U] U JUBISISSE 0} PepusiE oABY

ajeosauul | uonoe pasodoid asuodsal j8uiqe) UOIIEpUSWIWIODaY | "ON




Page 238

08x3 AJUQ Jequis / selpog [ewo :ejejdws | podoy

10 Jequieoe(g

"90IAIBS
joared Buissoio jooyos
j0 A1anijep U0} 8oInIeS

so|dosd BunoA
pue s, usIpliyD sy}
pue sAemybiH yum
SUOISSNOSIP 48yLNn-

S| ®dIAl8s siUy Buipinoid jo 1500 [enuue ay]

"90INIOS

ayjoue 01 sjol U} Jaysuel) 0} ajeldoidde palspisuod
10U SI i 1X8JU09 Siy} U] "01e seulepING pue ssipoq
[euoleU 0} ssaooe ‘sdnoib snooj Jo diystequiaw

9"l dnoub Ajejes peoy pue oyjel) sy uiypm

9OIAIBS 8y} Bujuuni Joy esiyedxe ay] “pasibe joN

"901AIBS SIU} Jo Auanijep 1o} sAemybiH yum

luswealBe |aAs] 8oIMISS B a1e)0BaU pjnoys OUm seoialeg
sejdoad Buno pue usipjiyn syy 0} paiisjsues) aq
PInoys eotntes joued Buisso.o jooyos auy Jo Bulpuny ay L

‘pojussidul
8Je SuoiepUSLILIODSS
jeul sainsus sebeuey

Ajjiqeureisng

pue Buieqjiem

"sajousbe PaAjoAUl B yim

Buisiel| pue syuswinoop ABsjesis uo Bunuswiwios

8Q pinoys Jabeuew Ayjiqeuieisng pue Buieqgjiopm
dY1 8sed 8y} oq Apealie pinoys siy| "eaiby p)

‘Juswinoop Buiobuo

UE S| 415 Ue Se [eyA s AUNUUOD Jey} epew [jom
Sl jujod 8y} J8AemMOoH “jusied OSBISNYIUS U UoAe
10 ‘sioutsnob Jo iieyo syy aq pINoo 3| "uBld [oABL|
Aiejes peoy sy jo Juswdolarsp sy uo Speg)

‘PajusLWs|dul 81 SUOITEPUSWILLODS. 8Y) JBU)
Buunsus io} Ayjigisuodsai/meiniono oibsiesns e aARy
pinoys Jebeuew Ayjqeureisng pue Buisqiiep au g

BuIoBuO ‘paiinbel se mainal AjesA
’ 8y} Jeyl ainsus Oym uosiad 8y s| Joyoes)} pesp oy 1By} 9sed 10 UB|d [9AB1} |00YOS Byl Huwigns uoidwey) A1ajes
0} enunuog (p) | eyl sAemfe jJou si 3l 1y} palou 3q pjnoys jj "eaiby () PEOY |0042s 8y} 8insus PINoys Jayoes} pesH oy
pajusweldwl ussq sey ueld [9ABI} |JOOYDS & aJ8ypy (9)
JeaA uspns
yoes judy/yotep A1one Joy suoisses Ajejes peos anissaibold pue
udy/yose Ul 1No paliies Apealje pauue|d Joj SWil WININSLIND siow dn aAIb pjnom
‘ 8le smainey (0) | sjooyos jeys Aeyiun si uoijeonp3 yjesH jeioog ‘Aiajes peou jo aieme aie sebes Aoy je uepnis
pue Jeuosisd pue diysuszijiy uiyim yum jjesp si Asone Jeyy ainsus 0} sj|00Yos UIYIM yopeonps
'S|ooyos ul uoieonpe | Aleyes peou ispym “Aiejeg peoy 0] psjonsp aq o} Aajes peou jo swiweifoid aAissaibo.d pue
Aisjes peou ssijeulo} SWI WNNdLIND aJow alinbai pinom siy) eaiby (q) pauueld e esijeuwlio} 0} padojerep 8g pjnoys Aoljod v (q)
03 Aoijod e Buidojensp
10 Aupgissod "sanss| Ajejes peoJ wesJjsurew
odlL syebnsenul (q) | ssedwoous 0y papuedxs aq piNoo siyl S80IN0Sa
MaU JO 8sn sy} 0} Bunelas ( | 3SNY) Bulures | ‘Alessusb ssausieme Kojes
HEIS JO Jsquuswt | 8d1AIeS ) Ino Aued Apeauje sieolO Ajejes peoy PeOJ Ul paulen 8q pinoys uoidweyy Alefes peoy
peleoipap sy} yum 81 JaYidym 01 se usAIb ©q pinoys uoleIepISuon
astel| |[Im am saldal 'sanss| Ajejes peoy Joy Ajjigisuodsa ‘uopyeanps Ajejes peoi jo Aiejiep Buipnjou soljnioe
aleosawl} uonoe pesodoid asuodsal jsuiqe) uonepuswiwossy | "oN




Page 239

99x3 AJUQ Jaquiapy / saipog lewiod :ajejdwoa] poday

80 Jequwaldeg

siejeyjioe; se Bupoe
8.0SY yum sjidnd

0} JoAjlep ueD sjooyos
yolym obeyoed e
8onpoud pue jeusiew
slgejiene yoleasal

0} p8su e sj 8oy

"Sj00y9os

Jojuss 20| 01
|eLISTeW [eUOnEONPS
41 sleuitessig

"3191YdA B JO |043u09 Ul Buieq

pue BuiALIp ejes se yons senss| 0} ajeja. 01 BunoA

00} 8SiN0Y 40 8le pue BP0 SSOIO UsaIB 8y} SB Yons
seiferelis Buisso1o INoge uies| 0} pjo 00} SaAjgswWaY]
episuod Asy | uoneonps Ajejes peol jo swiey ul yum
abebus o1 dnoib abe ynoiyp Ajsnouojou e sie dnosb
abe Jeak G| 0} g1 8y} Jey} Jeremoy pajou aq pinoys

"sjooyos

101Uss 10| InoyBno.ly) Wey) sreulussSIp pue
feulew siy) Buiess eq jIm opn "sI8yl0 pue Ty Aq
dnoub abe siy} 4oy padojensp Buleq aue sjelsiew mapN
"800¢ 404 pue siesh o814l I1SE| 8U} 10§ g pUe 7 SiEak
10} speoJ Jesu usym ainssaud 1eed pue Ayjqisuodsa.
30 Senssi ay1 Yum [eap yoiym sdoysxiom uoneonpg
ul adlesy] s .uopuoT Joj podsuei] jo sbejueApe use}
OS[E SABY S\ "JUBLLIUOIIAUS [O0YDS IOJUSS MaU Jiay}

ur suonenyis Aleges peoJ yum [esp o) seibajeins pue
SlIMS 8y} ut 8auy) sbeys Aey| 01 om] ebels Asy wioly
Buinow s1e oym sjdoed Bunok dinbs 0} paubisep

81e yolym Jeah Aiens sjeuslew UolisuBL Sj00YOS
19440 s180140 AJojes peol s j1ouno) sy "eaiby

'siebeuss} awooaq Asyy

Usym uo pjing 03 uoieanps Ajsjes peoJ Ui UoRBPUNO) Wil
€ posu oym ybnoioq sy ur sjdosd BunoA jo juswnep
U3 03 89 J0U PINOYS SIY} JSASMOH “|oAd] [EO0] 18 PadIous
-8 pue pajuswie|dliod aJe subledwed jeuoneu jey; pue
dno.b ebe sif G| 01 z| uo $8SN20} uoneonps Algjes peol
10} sapoud yeuy) yeyy sunsus sisoO Alojes peoyY 1ey|

'$90.IN0S8) jeuoippe

841 puny piNOM SJAD J8uisym uo (SJAD) 8oinies
ss|doad Buno pue usipyn sy; pue sAemyBiH
usemieq payoeal eq pjnoys juswesibe ue psynuspl
8Je S1921j40 sjolied BUISSOIO J0) SUOIEOO] JayLNy J|

"SH08YD

840 pue shonns eyis ‘sjuswissesse ysu ‘sajod
‘swioyiun 81 Juswdinbe ‘Buiures; pue JuswiunIoa
SPpNjout S1800 8y | "JOSIAIBANS BUO PUE $J9DIYO [oled
Buissoio g jo yuswiAojdue sy Joj seuees S} 1500
Siu3 Jo Auiofew sy 1eBpnq Ajejes peoy pue oyjes|
8y} Aq pepuny Ajjuaiing si siy| MGL 13 Alerewixoidde

a|eosawi |

uoljoe pasodoid

asuodsal jauige)

uoljepUAWIWIOIaY

‘ON




Page 240

ol

99x3 AJUQ Jaquwispy / saipog [ewo :eleldwa | podey

BuoBup

go L]

Spig 40 s1oeloid mau
U0 SJ801J0 01 Xoeq
pesy sbunesuu Jayjo
pue Ody] Buipusye
S19014JO By} ainsuy

800¢ Idy Aq pasijn
8¢ 1snw Buipuny

'sesng Bupijjem

dn 18s 0} 744 WOl
Buipuny Joj pig saey
Jeui sjooyos yum

"sbulieswl dnoin UoPUOT UONEBIDOSSY
819010 A1e4eS PEOY S8ijLIoYINY (2207 84}
spusie Alieinba. os|e Jepes Wes | Alejes peoy auy |

‘saijlunuoddo

Buipuny simny pue sonoe.d 187 UO uonewLIoUI
ure1qo o} 8doos sislo yoiym Jeoiyo Ayoland S.0dv1
SU} MOU sl J8oI0 Al8jeS PeOY [1I9UN0D W "DdY T

e} Buipuale s1eo1o Yyum Aueinbes 19w 0} JojjIounoo
pajeulLIou 8y} 4oy dn Jes 8] |im sBujesiy “pesiby

JOOUDS WO} PUE O} [9ARI] 8|gBUIBISNS
8.ow Buibeinoous u selj OS[e SBLWBYIS YINs JO

enjea ay] “Aleyes peos Buiroidwil 1. pswie Ajsjos 10u
a1e sawsyos snq Bupjiep “sesng Bupjiem ysijgelsa
0} sjooyos esayl yum buibebue sie wes) ue|d jorel |
|00Y2S 8y "sasnq Bupfiem dn jes 0} 1 wouy Buipun;
B1X® 10} PIg aAey yolym ybnolog sy ul sjooyos

V1 8le aisy] "Jedl0 pejeolpsep e aAey Jebuo| ou

1M INQ Wes | ueld [9AR4] [O0YDS 8} UIUIM 8nuiuoD

"018 spiq Jo sjoeloud

M8U AU UO SJ82140 0} YoBqpPa8) PINOYS Buipusye
seAelussaldal 8y "Alejes peos Ul jselsiul Ue ypm
[ENPIAIPUL 8UO pue JedllO Al1ejes peoy auo “Jojj1ounod
P8108|e BUO ‘AJlIoyIne Yyoes Woij SeAeussaidel

881y} IO} SMOJ|e pUB UOIINIISUOD S) PamaIns. Afjusda.
SEY JIJUNOY UoHUBABId JUBPIOOY UOPUOT 8y} "8Inisans
€ 9pinoid ejenidosdde aiaym 1o sbunssu pusne

S9IPOQ [BUIBIXS UO |IoUN0Y 8y} Jussaidal 0] pejeullou
useq 8ABY OUYM SIOJJIDUNOD JBYL 84NSUS [10UN0)) 8y |

‘SaLByos A1ejes

PEOI 8AJOBYJS 8I0W UO 8i8Umasis Josye Jeyeq o} 1nd

©Q PINOYs $82IN0S8. PUB BLUIL J8JIJ0 JBYIBYM JSPISUOD
PINOYS 931AI8S 8Y} JOABMOH "PBABIYJE 10U S| SWBYDS SNng

Ot

800z |1udy abebus 03 snunuon i sesnq Bupjiem jo uopowoid sy} “psaiby Buniiepn ey} Joy 196.e1 au i PBUIBOUOD JOU S| joued sy 6
800¢ Iudy Joy sieoiyjo
pooysnoqubieN
Q¢ 1oy dn
198 ueeq sey Bujurelj "sjuesbiias spooyinoqybiau
PuUB s,0°S"d Ag Uexeuepun usaq eAey ybnotog
8U} JO seale SNOLBA Ul SINOge[eMm SWOS "SaAIBIIUI "eale Jivyy Ul sjodied
Alefes peos epim ybnoioq siojdxs 0} sjuesabisg Buissouo |ooyos jje yum siseq jeuviojuiienbal e uo
‘SWes} 89ljod | spooynoqubiaN Jejes yum Bunesw e useq Osje sey | e1eojunwwoD Asu yeyy ainsus osje pinoys Asy] "s|ooyos
spoowinogybieN | eJay] swes} soljod 8U} 824N0S8J PUE UleJ} O} Buidiay AJepuooeg uj 182110 U 8ABY OYM JIUN S|O0YDS Jsjes sy
Je4eg 8oinosal oQ [lIM pue SIedIYO SPOOUINOqUBIeN Jojes yim 1ol | WOy SI801I0 Uim Ajesod om pue Buiures) A}sjes peos ul
8002 |udy pue uen dieH | Apesie sey wes) Alojes peOY S,)1I0UN0Y By | "paaiby | panjoAul 8q sWwes| 801104 spoouynoqyBleN i8feS B8y} TRy !
ajeosawil | uonoe pasodold asuodsau jsuIqe)n UOIEPUSLUWIODaY | "ON




Page 241

Ll 99x3 AjUQ Jaquis / seipog lewioH :sjedwa ] podoy
"swiwesBold uonejuswsiduw 8y} JO IX8IU0D
8U1 ul lesodo.d sy jo Anjiqises) ey 18PISU0D 0}
‘fesodoud SOIAISS UINOA 8y} yum sstef jim dnods) Ajejes peoy
SIul Jo Aujiqisesy ey | pue oiyes) sy uiypm sieol0 A1ejes peoy s, [1ouno)
8PISUOD O] ®oIMBS | 8y "uonesiueblo pue suoljouny S1l JO maInsl Jofews e 'SSousleme A1afes PeoJ 8pNjoUl 0] PaUSPIM
800¢ idy WINOA uum aster | Bunuswsidwi Ajusuno s) solnieg UINOA 8y "paaiby 84 PINoys #d1A8S YINOA AsBulieH syj jo nwss ey | e1
‘sjuedioned
40 Bj0. pue BoUBIBIB. ‘siseq Ausuenb
O swie) sa.by € UO p3jnpayos 8q pjnoys sbunesyy ‘dnoux Asjes
PEOY pue dljjed] S[louno) aui pue isni| asen Asewiid
‘sbunesiu "dnoub ABereng Aebulien ‘eoinieg seidosy BunoA pe usippiyn ‘esineg
Apispenb pjoy 8yl Uiyum syuedioiied Jo sjol sy} pue eousislel JO | 8duEINqUIY ‘8dIAI8S 8Nosey pue sl ‘991j0d ueljodoliapy
SUWis} JO uoieIspISUoD spnjoul Jim Buizesuw [emul uy ®Ul WoJy seAlejuesaidal spnjoul Isnw dnoib ey
'dnoun | 'sBunesw sy jo uoneoo] pue Aousnbeuy ey uo spew | pebueie usiA Aue puelie o3 sseubuljm SIY psjeoipul sey
ABsrens Asjeg 8Q [Iim suorsioe( ieyiebo) ind Bureq s) syuedioied IBUO 8U | "SSLIOLINE J8UJO HSIA PUB 8SIEl| PINOYS SI80140
peoy ui syuedioied aAnoedsoud Jo sy v “diysisupey S8%B|d 1oueg | pewlioy useq sey dnoub sy 80UQ "dnouy) ABsjeng Alejeg
800¢ dy 10 18)| 98By U3 4O ped aq 0} dn 18s oq |jIM dnous) siy | ‘poaiby PEOY 8u} ustigelse-a1 0} sdajs exe) Jauigeo sy Jey )

800¢ Arenuep

ajeosauwl |

'Sjooyos

J8Y10 0} swsyos

N0 |04 ‘uoienjens jo
synsal uo Buipusde(

awsyos 10ud
40 10 jjoJ sjqIssod Joy
801104 Unm ebebuy

‘|BwIByos
10)1d s1eNnEA]

uonjoe pasodoid

‘Ueld [9Aei] [00L0Sg
a1 Ui payblublY si 1t uaym sensst Buipsads noge
uonewuojul Alddns ueo wes] Alejes peOoY s, jiounon
8y ‘Aemybiy a3 uo oyjes; dojs 03 pesu B SEIEI]
Agassym syuswsie sey pue senssi DljeJ} UO $8SNO0Y
U Se 89110d 8y} Aq usALp AjLewid eq pjnoys aweyos
SIUL "yolessal 0] swies} spooyinoqybiau Jejes e

0} USAIB usaq sABY SBBJE JBLI0 Ul SeWBYDs JBjIUIS uo
uoneuwLo| "ybnoioq ey} 4o} sweyos e Buisijeuo) o3
MSIA B UIM JopesT wes] Alejeg peoy s, |1ouno)) ey
pue spooyinoqublsN Jejes oy siqisuodsa. ojoadsuy
8U} usamieq oe(d UsME] BARY SUOISSNOSI(] "pesiby

asuodsal jsuiqen

‘oljes) Buipsads yum

S$8Nss| palodas 8ABY OYM S|O0YOS O} BLIBYDS B} N0 jlod
01 UaAIb 8Q PINOYS UOREIBPISUOD By BUET HeH sy
U} PUE SPISPOOAA Ul SIBALIP YIM SABAINS 19NPUOD 0}
UBJpIIYo j100yos asn o} ewisyos jojid ey Bugreniens Jeyy

UolEPUBWILIODaY

; . Q:G ,_ u mmgmbw ‘. m&mwvmom

 semgenuI s|qesesUBA puE moN

L

“ON




Page 242

¢l

98x3 AlUQ Jequisy / salpog jewo :ajejdwie | yoday

'sesng L
Ylm w@c_uwmrc uosiel|

Jejnbeai 1e sdojs snq
oWloeds Buipiefai
SUIBOUOD asiey

Jeun|o
198418 Alessaosuun
8AOWaI 0] i

JenbaJ ploy em “Jaremon ‘sdojs sSNq JO UOI1es0)

U} Joj ejqisuodsai aie 4| ‘9ouepINBd UMO S, )|

Aq peousnyur st dojs snq sjbuis e e Buiddoys sasng
JO JequInu 8y "Buissouo suelysepad Jo Jequinu

pue psads sy 03 swwi} uBW USBIB s)SNipe Ji e Ly
leuonippe mojfe sbuissouo uynd teme ‘Ajajes peo.
U1 $s010 0} uosied abeioAe Uk Jo} BN JO B1BWISS
ue sepnjoul sjeubis oijed Jo ubisep ey “sjeudoidde
dlaym Jsnn|o yons Buronpeal 03 JUsLLLIWOD

B S8pnjoul yoiym aouepinb ubisep edeosiesils
pajdope Ajjuesad sey )1 “4e1n|o 19841S Alesseosuun

‘PaABIYOE 8 PINOD JBUM JO sjdWEXS UB SB Je)Nn|o 19811S
Jo [eAOWB1 BU1 SPNJOUI SIOM]BU PBOJ S, 4] UO SYIOM Jey|

-18INSUS O] 4L yum A1@sojo siom skemybiH

JEL} spusliwooal jsued ay] ‘peoy SIslsIS UsAeS

Z0SY pue (8104 YINos/ypou ) gLV ey} 03 SjusWedUBYUS
Buipnjour 1omyeu peos S, 741 UO N0 palLED aq |m

Buiobup woJ) yoddns yeeg SAOWaJ 0} 74| wouy poddns Xess |jim ap “pesiby Sjuswisoueyus Aj9jes peol ey spuessiepun jsued ay 1 9l

"6/800¢ 40} Buiuueld sseuisng
943 JO Lied se passalppe 8q |jIM puUB 8ouBUSIUBW
sAemybiy psuued Joy 196pnq [ejdes 8 jlounon ey
01 108[qns s| seulj Jo} soURLBIUIBW JBINBBJ peuue|d
"1eBpng ‘Burpuny jo Aujigejene
jeudes soueusiuey 84} 01 108lgns ydwipg spim-ease JO 8ouBApE
pauueid shemybiH Ul S|00Yos spisino seuoz yduwigg 4o} sjesodoud
0 ped se sBupyiew uswa|dul Jjim 8m UOIIPPE U "UOISSILLGNS Buipuny
peo. JO eouBULUIBLU UBld uoljejusus|dul 18207 [enuue ayy ybnouyy
Buiobuo Apuspy L1 woyy AjreaidAy ‘Buipuny feussixs jo Aupigeene

8U} Uo spuadap siy; uo ssaibold ‘seljensed "souBUsIUBW JeNBs.

'seuoz 1USpIode PEOI 8oNp8. 0} sjebie) yesw o1 ybnolog | oy s|npayos e ul peoeyd pue paubis Alies|o ‘pajuredas sq

ydwipg 1o Buipuny | ey} INoyBNOIY} SBUOZ ydwog Buipusixe 01 pajuWIWOoD pINoys sbupiew Buisixs Jey ] "sjooyos punose sowiByos
BuiobuQ | oy Aidde o} enunuon Sl jlounog ey “Buipuny oy 109lqns ‘pesiby

£00¢ 18403100

"islis|smau
K1ees peo. 1xau
Ul 8lsyos asIUsApY

MIOM JO uoljedlidnp uou ainsus oy AeBulieH

18y1eg yum sstel| |im pue swayos syj Buiyoiesss
Apusnino ale 18010 AjejeS PEOY “Jens|smau Ajoses
PBOJ 18U 8y} Ut 8LWIBYDS SIU} 9SILSADE 0] Papus)ul
S11] "aWayds 1e01O A19feS Peoy JOIUNp S, L Yum
perewebiewe aq Ajises pinoo swwisyos siy| "paaiby

CQEON O] JUBLUUIWICD S 1| 800Ul lsulged eyl 1ey

"dnoub sbe siy; Buowre sseusieme

Alejes peou spnjoul 01 uspim pinous swweiboid

U1 JO swife sy} 1ey) spuswiwooal jeued ay] “uoneoldnp
jo seaje e1ebau 0} AebulieH Jeneg yum osre)) pinoys
dnour) Ajejes peoy pue oiyes| Sjuspnis om] ebels

Aoy Buowe sssusieme [BjUSLLILOIIAUS 8slel o} swweibo.ig
SuspJep Jolunf ey psyoune sey AsbuiieH Jepeg

142

a[eosawl |

uoljoe pasodoid

asuodsal jauigen

UOHEPUSWIWODaY

“ON




Page 243

1992

99x3 AJUQ Jequisy / saipog |ewio ”Qm_a_.cm 1 podeay

"SUONOLIISB.
Bunpyred uonoun|
1O uonoNPoAU

'60/800¢ 40} ssesoud Buuued
196png sy Ul papnioul si siy | ‘8lqejieae Bujwiooaq
Buipuny Aresseosu sy 03 19elqns pessesboid Qg ueo

"SIBO |HVYINS AQ Meem sed Aep ; inoy pz e uo Buipuny
418S 99 ||Im JusWSI0ju] "Pale|dLIoD SUOOUNI/SIBUIOD
%001 sey ybnoioq sy j1jun sseiboud pue spiem
PaALIdSP 1SOW 8y} UM HE)S PINoys SyJom jeoisAuyd 'siseq
o100} Ag UONEDO] [BBWSDAId B UO 10U PUE UOROE BUO Aq
palejdwioo s| ybnolog sjoym au 1o} ss900.d jebaj ay 18]
Buunsus ‘ybnoioq sy) ssoloe SisuI00/suoioun| 18 sauy|
MmojjeA s|qnop jo uononpoiul eyl Aejep noypm e3eidwion

8002 |udy Joy Buipuny Ajuep uonepuswIwodsi sty “Buipuny o} 108lgns ‘pasiby pInoys juswiiedap ay} 1By} SpUSIWLIODa) [suey ot | A
"dois 8|buls B Je sesnq UsABS 10 XIS IO Bunrem jou sie
Sis||eAed] 1ey) os Jede aoue)sip sawos paoed ase sdojs
SNq Jeuy) ainsus 01 usAIb aq osfe pinoys uoije.sapisuon
"Ajojes peou
S} SS010 0 sw sjdule usAlb aue suelisepad 1Y) yons
sdojs snq Jejnoed o) 8q pinoys sybif oyyen Jo Buiseyd ey; sjqissod alaym eyl
UOHE[S. Ul PasIel SUISdUOD puB PasSNIsIp aJe Senss|
dojs snqg yoiym e sesng 41 yum sBuleew uosie)
aleosawi | uonoe pssodoid asuodsai jpuiqen UoHBpUBLLIWOISY | "ON




Page 244

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 245 Agenda Iltem 15

Haring

APPENDIX A

REPORT TEMPLATE

Agenda item: [NO.]

Cabinet On 16.10.07

Report Title: Homes for Haringey Performance Report April — August 2007

Forward Plan reference number (if applicable): [add reference]

Report of: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment

Wards(s) affected: All Report for: Information

1. Purpose (That is, the decision required)

1.1 The report provides an update of the progress made in relation to key targets and
objectives and summarises the main issues discussed at the Quarterly Performance
Monitoring Meeting of 4th October 2007

1.2 This report covers the period from April 2007 to August 2007. As such it will
therefore include a combination of both quarterly and monthly data to bring it up to
date following the rescheduling of the August 2007 quarterly meeting.

1.3 A full copy of the report is available in the Member's Room at the Civic Centre

2. Introduction by Cabinet Member (if necessary)

2.1 This performance report on HfH for the year up to the end of August very much
mirrors the May 2007 Audit commission inspection report which awarded 2* to the
ALMO.

2.2 In the period HfH consistently delivered excellent Estate services and Home
Ownership services.

2.3 Most of HfH customer contact indicators — phones, complaints and members
enquiries have consistently improved over the last 12 months and are above target
for the year. The only exception to this is phone performance in the call centre which
fell in July and August.

2.4 While currently below target rent collection rates have risen and HfH have undertaken
a series of exercises to reduce arrears. There has been a marked increase in the use
of NOSPs to promote payment.

2.5 Repairs performance has been more consistent but many of the indicators are just




Page 246

below target for the year.

2.6 A major concern is voids. The number of voids has reduced over the last 12 months
but the validation process for re-lets has been taking longer than expected affecting
re-let times. A business process redesign has been undertaken to address this issue,
the findings of which will be reported in October to the Voids Improvement Group.

2.7 The Council and HfH recognise that performance needs to continually improve. HfH
have recognised this in their business plan and have a priority project “taking
performance forward”. One part of this is developing local scorecards for each
customer facing team so that performance is given the same prominence across HfH.

3. Recommendations
3.1 The content of the report be noted.

Report Authorised by: Niall Bolger, Director of Urban Environment UM

\Y

Contact Officer: Carl Bradley, ALMO Liaison and Consultation Officer
Tel: (020) 8489 4454 e-mail: carl.bradley@haringey.gov.uk

4. Director of Finance Comments

4.1 The Director of Finance has been consulted on this report and is part of the regular
monitoring process. The overall Housing Revenue Account provisional outturn
position is projecting an underspend of £420k against the approved budget as agreed
by the Council in February 2007. The net surplus arises because rent and service
charges income is projected to be above budget mainly resulting from a 53™ rent
week falling into 2007/08, but this is partly offset by additional costs pressures which
have emerged, such as increased bad debt provision to give a net projected surplus
of £420k .

4.2 The latest forecast position for the Capital outturn is an under spend of £783k as
reported by HfH to their board. The capital programme contains a level of over
programming of £1.345m (6.8% of confirmed resources). The current projected
underspend represents an under utilisation of this allowance, which will be addressed
as part of the normal processes of the management of the capital programme to
ensure that full or near full spend is achieved by the end of the year.

4.3 | am concerned that the rent collection rate is still lagging below the target of 97.5%
for the year and may translate into arrears that could become un-collectable and also
require increased bad debt provisions as indicated above. Although in recent months
performance has improved, focus should remain on improving collection rates to
achieve the target and also reducing the arrears position. The report indicates that
action is being taken to address this issue.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 2



Page 247

4.4The Medium Term Financial Strategy report presents the HRA financial plans for the
next five years and highlights areas of concern in terms of underlying expenditure and
income pressures. Options to address these will need to be considered by H4H in
conjunction with the Council as part of the budget planning cycle for 2008/09 to
2010/11. Additional income and/or cost savings will need to be identified to maintain
balances at prudent levels, considered by me to be not less than £4m over the
planning period.

4.5The outcome of some of the value for money reviews will result in cost savings being
required to be made by the Council, which is in addition to the savings proposals in
the budget process. These will need to be dealt with on an individual basis as and
when they arise.

5 Head of Legal Services Comments

5.1.  The Head of Legal Services has been consulted in the preparation of this report,
and makes the following comments.

5.2. Under the terms of the management agreement (the agreement) signed by the
Council and Homes for Haringey (HfH), HfH is required to periodically provide
qualitative and quantitative information to the Council on a quarterly basis.

5.3.  The agreement sets out the type of information which has to be provided, namely:
e progress towards achieving a two star and three star service
» progress of the delivery plan, including contribution to corporate objectives
e updates on customer satisfaction

The Head of Legal Services advises that the contents of this report adequately addresses
the headings above.

6 Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

6.4Homes for Haringey Quarterly Performance Monitoring Meeting Reports October 07
6.5Housing Revenue Account Statement

6.6 Capital Account Statement

6.7 Homes for Haringey Business Plan

6.8 Management Agreement

6.9 Service Level Agreements

7 Strategic Implications

7.4 Akey element of the Housing Strategy is the successful delivery of the decent
homes standards, providing decent homes for all tenants and regenerating the
borough. In the client role it is therefore important that these strategic aims are met and
the regular monthly and quarterly meetings are the tools by which this is measured.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 3




Page 248

8 Financial Implications

8.1 There are financial implications arising from some of the key performance indicators
performing below target. Income collection rates and voids are the two giving most
concern. The financial impact has to be managed within the agreed HRA financial
plans.

8 Legal Implications

9.1 As the contents of the report are for information only, there are no specific legal
implications which arise, save to say that in order to preserve the continued existence
of HfH, it is important that when performance issues arise, adequate plans are put in
place to address the situation, which are then monitored by both the Council and HfH.

9 Equalities Implications

9.1 Improvements to tenants’ homes and environment will enhance living conditions of
those who experience disadvantage because of their gender, race and ethnicity,
disability, sexual orientation, age and faith.

10 Consultation
10.1 Not applicable

11 Background

11.1 Homes for Haringey’s performance is formally monitored by way of monthly and
quarterly meetings. The format of the monthly meetings has recently been enhanced
by the council to ensure a focus on key performance areas where there are concerns
and to give the council a more detailed opportunity to ‘drill down’ into the detail.
However it should be noted that this approach is not to ‘micro manage’ the organisation
but for the council to understand the reasons why performance may have fallen.

12 Performance Report for the period April 07 to August 07
This report will provide information on outcomes for Best Value indicators on Income
Collection, Re-lets and Repairs as well as information on other local key performance
indicators. The highlight of the reporting period is that HfH have achieved 2* in the May
2007 Audit Commission inspection, which means that they are now eligible for Decent
Homes funding. However HfH are still awaiting the outcome of their bid for Round 6
Decent Homes funding from CLG. A decision on this bid is expected later this year.

13 Performance indicators

14.1 Income Collection
Income collection indicators are showing an improvement. Overall collection rate
(BVB6A) is currently 97.29% up from 96.53% at March 2007. The target for 2007/08 is
97.5% “

HfH have put in place several action plans to address the increase in rent arrears and
the recommendations in the recent Audit commission inspection. There are specific

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 4



Page 249

plans in place to focus on tenants owing between 7 — 20 weeks rent with the objective
of reducing the number of tenants owing more than 7 weeks arrears.

While still not achieving target, there has also been a slight decrease in the number of
tenants with 7+ weeks in arrears in August. The current figure is 15.64% or tenants
owing 7+ weeks arrears while in July the figure was 15.8%. The target for the year is
10%.

As a result of two rent exercises completed in July and August, 270 additional NOSPs
were served — reflected in the % increase for July and August as shown in the graph
below. The percentage of tenants evicted for rent arrears, while still under target (0.8%
for the year) is the highest figure this year at 0.62% in August.

BVéé6c - % of tenants in arrears with NOSPs

20%

16% /

Target - 15%
14% /

. /

10%

L 4
p
L

& *______‘,_/‘\-‘

6%

4%

2%

0%

Aug-06 Sep-06 Oct-06 Nov-06 Dec-06 Jan 06 Feb-06 Mar-06 Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07 Jul-07 Aug-07

14.2 Re-lets
Performance on most voids indicators failed to achieve their targets in the period. The
year to date figure for void turnaround is 37 days against a target of 27 days (see graph
below). However rent loss from voids was within tolerance levels. The number of voids
has decreased from 277 in August 06 to 213 in August 07.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 5



Page 250

Average void fumaround in calendar days

45

) \ /—*———0\,//

25

Target 27 days - down is good

0

AUg-06  Sep-06  Oct06  Nov-06 Dec-06 Jan0é  Feb06  Mar-06  Apr07 May-07  Jun07 Jul-07 Aug-07

Actions being taken to address performance on these indicators include:

e Recruiting to vacant posts in all services.

* A business process redesign exercise was undertaken of the Allocations and
Letting process and will be presenting findings on 11" of October to the voids
improvement group. As a result of this project action has been taken to address
delays in the verification process by verifying the data of those likely to be rehoused
in the next few months. This is an interim measure pending the presentation of the
findings.

e Astrategy is being developed to address the issue of hard to let properties and will
be presented to the October Voids Improvement Group

e A system for more effective matching of lets to Older People went live on 27
September 2007.

14.3 Repairs
Most indicators are below target but indicators such as % of non emergency
appointments made and kept and the % of urgent repairs completed within government
time limits, though below target, improved in August. The PI for Aids and Adaptations
has performed above target.

One of the main reasons that repairs are not being carried out within target is that a
large number of overdue roofing and fencing jobs from June and July were undertaken
during August. This came about as a result of the inclement weather for roofing
problems and supply problems with fencing.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 6



Page 251

% of specificed urgent repairs completed in target

100%

98%
Target - 97%

6% ’
249, /\ [\ — /\\ -

/N /AR YA

TN \ /
V

. N/
N

|

86%

84%

82%

80% T ; - T - ; - : t - -
Aug-06 Sep-06 Oct-06 Nov-0é Dec-06 Jan 0é Feb-06 Mar-0é Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07 Jul-07 Aug-07

Percentage of aids and adaptations orders completed in target

100.0%

90.0% /\
e A=
N N NS

70.0%

60.0%

50.0%

40.0%

30.0%

20.0%

10.0%

0.0%

T T T

Oct-06 Nov-06 Dec-06 Jan 0é

T T T T

Aug-06 Sep-0é Feb-06 Mar-06 Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07 Jul-07 Aug-07

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec




Page 252

15.0 Local Performance indicators

15.1 Customer Contact
Many of HfH's customer contact Pls continued to perform well with HfH phone
performance above target in year to date.

As shown in the graph below the percentage of calls answered within 30 seconds by
Customer Services fell between June and August.

The reasons for this dip in performance is the result of an increase in the volume of
calls during July and August which is due in part to the inclement weather with

increased calls about roofing, drains and gutters. The figures show that in August there

were 2,500 more calls than in July and approximately 40% higher than the monthly
average over the last year. There were also additional calls regarding tenancy
management, estates service or income collection. HfH are working with Customer
services to understand what these relate to.

% of phone calls answered in 15 secs (HfH) or 30 secs (call centre from Apr 07)

100%

0%

80% ~
Target - 70%

70%

60%

——~ Cali centre |
b anduliel /

50%

/ T~

40%

30%

20%

10%

/

/

~/

0% T : i ; ; T : T T
Aug-06 Sep-06 Oct-06 Nov-06 Dec-06 Jan0é Feb-06 Mar-06 Apr-07  May-07  Jun-07 Jul-07  Aug-07

The percentage of callers seen within 15 minutes at Customer Service Centres
achieved target in July and August but remains below target for the year to date.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec



Page 253

% of visitors o Customer Service Centres seen in 15 minutes

100%

20%

80%
Target - 70%
70%

50%

>
0%

30%

20%

10%

0% . T . . t T
Aug-06 Sep-06 Oct-06 Nov-04 Dec-0é Jan 06 Feb-06 Mar-06 Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07 Jul-07 Aug-07

15.2 Stage 1 and Members Enquiries
Complaints and members enquiries performance has dipped slightly in July and
August, but performance is still above target for the year.

% of stage 1 and stage 2 complaints answered within target

100% /\
0%

80% / N/W

Torge‘r 80%

70%

60%

—&—-Stage 1 complaints

50%
\ / -8~ Stage 2 complaints
40%

30%

20%

10%

0% T T T T T T T T 7 T
AUg-06 Sep-06 Oct-06 Nov-06 Dec-06 Jan06 Feb-06 Mar-06 Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07  Jul-07 Aug-07

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec



Page 254

7% of Members enquiries answered within target

100%
. R SN

- — o —~

T\ /

N/

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0% g g y : ; . : : -
Aug-0é Sep-06 Oct-06 Nov-06 Dec-06 Jan0é Feb-0é Mar-06  Apr-07 May-07 Jun-07  Jul07 Aug-07

15.3 Homes with Valid Gas Certificate
There was a slight drop in performance during August with 97.8% of propertied having
a valid gas certificate. The figure for the year to date is 97.8%. There are a
considerable number of appointments for the first two weeks of September which
should improve the figures.

16.4 Home Ownership
HfH achieved 100.07% collection rate against a target of 100% on this quarterly
indicator.

15.5 Estate Services

HfH continued to perform well on this indicator achieving target both monthly and
quarterly on 3 out of 4 indicators. The remaining indicator is just below target.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 10



100%

98%

96%

94%

92%

0%

88%

Page 255

% of estates rated as excellent or good by ESMs

/T \

/ /‘ﬂrgef 95% N N—""

/

Aug-06 Sep-06 Oct-06 Nov-06 Dec-06 Jan0é Feb-06 Mar-0é Apr-07 May-07 Jun07 Jul-07 Aug-07

15.6 Tenancy Management

Tenancy Management indicators were below target although there was a significant
increase in cases during August. The number of cases due for completions (58) was
almost 60% higher than the monthly average with HfH’s caseload increasing from 16
due in July to 38 due in August. It is worth mentioning that the actual number of cases
due each month is relatively small and a few missed can have a significant impact on
performance. Where staff shortages were contributing to performance on this joint
indicator the recruitment process has begun. Temporary staff have been appointed to
cover the vacant posts.

Welcome visit performance fell in August but has improved substantially over 2007/08.
In August 31 visits were due, 25 were completed with 21 being completed within the 6
week target. As with ASB there is a relatively small number of visits due each month
and a few missed visits can have an impact on performance. It is also worth
remembering that it can be sometimes difficult to arrange a visit with the new tenant
within 6 weeks due to personal commitments of new tenants. Where this happens the
visit is shown as late and will contribute to the year to date indicator but missing the 6
week indicator.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 11



Page 256

Welcome visits completed in fimescales

» + > — \
80 i .

70

40

%M%%% . / - ZCompleted

40

30 =

20

Aug-06  Sep-06  Oct-06 Nov-06 Dec-06 Jand7 Feb-07 Mar07 Apr-07  May-07  Jun07  Juk07  Aug-07

15.7 Invoice payment
Performance on this indicator remains below target and has fallen. With 79% of
invoices paid on time against a target of 92%. HfH have broken down overall
performance and included in team scorecards. HfH expect improvements from October
2007.

16.0 Finance

Revenue

HfH report and underspend of £420,000 for the Housing Revenue Account (HRA) as a
whole across the year. A further breakdown is provided below of the three accounts
that make up the HRA.

Company Accounts (Owned and managed by HfH)

» At the moment HfH forecast that they will spend £54m for the year against planned
full year income of £53.6M. This will revert to green once the budget is updated.

e Forecast income for the year is green, as HfH will be earning more than planned
£54 against a planned income of £53.6m. The year to date is shown as amber as
HfH has earned £15.1m against a planned £17.9m — budget profiles may need to
be amended.

» External repairs contractor expenditure is within plan. This indicator will be
amended to “repairs client expenditure” once the contract is awarded, and if
awarded in-house a separate “contractor expenditure” indicator will also be shown.

* As with forecast expenditure, the number of Budget Owners within budget
indicators are shown as red will reduce once the budget is updated.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 12



Page 257

Managed Accounts (owned by the council and managed by HfH)

The overall position of the Managed budgets is an underspend of £1.074m. This

underspend incorporates:

» Forecast additional rent and service charge income of £2.432m. The excess income
forecast is largely as a result of a 53" rent week falling into 2007/08. Normal
practise is to feed the extra week in to the accounts as the days fall in the financial
year, this forecast is based on taking an additional part of the benefit in 2007/08.
While this offsets budget pressures in the current year, in following years only
£1.234m additional resource will be available to offset ongoing costs. This will be
addressed in the forthcoming financial planning report.

e Forecast increase in Provision for Bad Debt of £0.382m

o Budget pressures of £0.621m

Retained Accounts (owned and managed directly by the council)

The forecast outturn position of the retained accounts is an overspend of
£1.285m. This forecast overspend incorporates:

e Budget pressures of £0.115m

e Anincrease in Management Fee payments of £1.168m

Risks

In terms of the Company Accounts the major risks relate to repairs contractor spend
and single/equal pay status. In the managed accounts the major risk in financial terms
relates to income collection rates.

Capital
HfH forecast a small underspend of £783,000 against confirmed resources. A prudent

level of over programming has been agreed to maximise the use of available resources
in year. A total allowance of £1,345,000 has been applied (6.8% of confirmed
resources). The current projected underspend represents an under utilisation of this
allowance, which will be addressed as part of the normal processes of the
management of the Capital Programme.

Medium term financial strateqy

The Medium Term Financial Strategy is updated each year in order to provide an on-
going financial plan for the Housing Revenue Account. As the level of subsidy and
rental levels are controlled by central government the only flexibility available is within
the expenditure items or additional income. One of the purposes of the Medium Tern
Financial Strategy is to ensure that the Housing Revenue Account is financially viable.

In order to maintain balances at a prudent level (considered by the Chief Financial
Officer to be not less than £4m over the planning period) Homes for Haringey in
conjunction with the Council will need to identify additional income or reductions in
expenditure from the levels shown in the updated Medium Term Financial Strategy.
This MTFS report highlights areas of financial concern and considers options to
address these.

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 13



Page 258

17.0 Response to Recommendations of Audit Commission inspection
In May 2007, the Housing Inspectorate of the Audit Commission completed a
two-week on-site inspection of Homes for Haringey. Together with an analysis
of documents provided in advance of the on-site period, the Inspectorate
provided a report on their findings.

The report scores Homes for Haringey as a two star (Good) service with
promising prospects for improvement. The report also contained a series of
recommendations that HfH will need to address.

The recommendations in the report to improve the service further are:
e Improve the Aids and Adaptations Service to physically disabled residents
» Improve access to services and standards of customer care
* Improve the performance of tenancy management
e Improve the management of the capital and repairs programme

HfH in partnership with the council have developed a detailed action plan with
timescales to address these recommendations.

Financial implications of Audit commission recommendations

Many of these activities have already been identified in this years HfH team plans and
will therefore not lead to additional costs. Where additional costs are identified as

part of the proposed actions these will be built into the standard budget monitoring and
compensatory savings found in order to fund them.

It should be noted that some of the recommendations of the Audit Commission may
lead to additional costs in respect of the Council and not Homes for Haringey or the
HRA. (This especially applies to the recommendation to improve the Aids and
Adaptations service.) Where these lead to savings for either Homes for Haringey or the
HRA these will be used to fund any costs arising from the recommendations as
outlined above.

18.0 Value for money Reviews
As part of the inspection process HfH undertook a series of VfM reviews of all support
services received from the council. As part of this review HfH have given notice on the
following services with effect from 1% April 2008.

¢ Noise

e Part of Human Resources (recruitment, advice and consultancy, HR
support, policy and strategy and new start)

* Call centre element of customer services (in line with repairs procurement)

e Abandoned vehicles

 Procurement (for part of this service, mainly advice and support elements
and will be recruiting a procurement manager)

¢ Graduate trainee scheme

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 14



Page 259

» Project management part of Policy and Performance (unless an hourly rate
or project by project charge is agreed)
» Waste management (refuse collection element)

There will also be TUPE implications for the Council which have been addressed in the
VFM reviews.

19.0 Business Plan 07/08 Update
HfH have developed 17 priority projects to help them deliver their business plan.
Most of these projects did not start until June due to the Audit Commission
inspection. The recommendations from the Audit Commission inspection will be
incorporated into HfH business planning process. Progress on 14 of the 17 projects
is on target. The remaining 3 projects — Learning Organisation, Repairs Operations
and Managing Estates performance and information framework have some slippage
but are being managed. The are currently showing Amber status under the RAG
system.

20.0 Conclusion

20.1 The highlight of this reporting period has been the achievement of 2* by HfH in the
May 2007 Audit Commission inspection.

20.2 HfH have continued to perform well on Estate Services, Aids and adaptations, and
home ownership indicators.

20.3 Many of HfH customer contact indicators continued to perform well. Compilaints and
member services dipped slightly in July and August but are above target for the
year.

20.4 Income collection indicators are showing an improvement.

20.5 Tenancy management indicators are below target. Performance on welcome visits
fell in August but has improved over the period April to August 2007.

20.6 Action plans have been developed to address areas where improvement is needed
e.g. income collection, reviewing the allocation and lettings process.

20.7 The Council will continue to monitor performance through the monthly and quarterly
performance meetings.

21.0 Use of Appendices / Tables / Photographs
21.1 [List any Appendicies and their titles]

Report Template: Formal Bodies / Member Only Exec 15



Page 260

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 261 Agenda ltem 16

Haringey Council

Agenda Item

The Cabinet On 16 October 2007

Report title: URGENT ACTIONS TAKEN IN CONSULTATION WITH CABINET
MEMBERS

Report of: The Chief Executive

1. Purpose

To inform the Cabinet of urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Cabinet
Members.

The report details urgent actions taken by Directors in consultation with Cabinet Members
since last reported. Iltem number 2 (2007-8) has not previously been reported.

2. Recommendations

That the report be noted.

Report authorised by: Ita O’'Donovan, Chief Executive

Contact officer: Richard Burbidge

Telephone: 020 8489 2923




Page 262

4. Access to information:
Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

4.1  Background Papers
The following background papers were used in the preparation of this report;

Executive Member Consultation Forms
Those marked with ¢ contain exempt information and are not available for public
inspection.

The background papers are located at River Park House, 225 High Road, Wood
Green, London N22 8HQ.

To inspect them or to discuss this report further, please contact Richard Burbidge
on 020 8489 2923.




Page 263

19bpnqg s,wea] 10108 Alejun|op Buipung
a1e10dion oyl ulyum Bulurewsal ‘ybnosog ayl ul yiom dibalesls syl 9109 uoIeId0SSY
SpJemO] UOIINQUIU0D B YIM YHYD dpiaoid 10U pIp pue 82IAI8S 8Jed BuisnoH ynay Aeouneq "1 SOAIIN23X]
Aep Jiay} jo ped jou sem yoym ‘00/' |3 4O Juelb ey} o} [eaosddy Ysui vdvO £0'60'81 £0'60'81 £0'60'81 L fo) C
lapea]
/1aquIB|y
aAnNnoax3 on3
Aq panoidde 1010341q Aq ul paAIadal
uoisioaq 9Nl ajeq panoidde ajeq aleq ajeloyoaliqg ON

¢ Aq pejousp ate sw.o) Jdwox]

80 -200¢ — S3HNA3IO0Hd ADNIOHN HIANN NIMVL NOILOV ‘I




Page 264

Japear]
Jaquiapy
8AIINdax3 ON3
Aq panoidde 1010341q Aq ul paAIadal
uoisioaqg ML aleq panoidde ajeq aleq ajelo10alig ON

¢ Aq pejousp ate sw.o) Jdwox]

80 -200¢ — S3HNA3IO0Hd ADNIOHN HIANN NIMVL NOILOV ‘I




Page 265

uoisioaqg

SlL

Japear]
Jaquiapy
9AIIN2aX3
Aq panoidde
aleq

O3
1010211 Aq | Ul paniadal
panoidde ajeq aleq

ajelo10841q

ON

¢ Aq pajousp aJse swio} 1Jdwax]

80 -200¢ — S3HNA3IO0Hd ADNIOHN HIANN NIMVL NOILOV ‘I




Page 266

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 267 Agenda ltem 17

MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2007

Councillors *Adje (Chair), *Diakides, *Meehan and *Santry
*Present

Also Present: Councillor B. Harris

MINUTE ACTON
NO. SUBJECT/DECISION BY

PROC18] MINUTES (Agenda Item 4)
RESOLVED:

That the minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2007 be | HLDMS
approved and signed.

PROC19., HEALTHY ALLIANCE BUDGET, ENFIELD & HARINGEY JOINT
INDEPENDENT SECTOR HIV PREVENTION PROGRAMME (Report of
the Assistant Chief Executive — Policy, Performance, Partnerships and
Communication - Agenda ltem 6)

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to a waiver of Contract Standing ACE-
Order 6.05 (Requirement to Tender) in accordance with waiver | PPPC
requirements set out in Contract Standing Order 7 in
connection with the contract for the provision of HIV
prevention services.

2. That approval be granted to an extension of the contracts with ’F’;ggé
the existing providers, for a period not to exceed 12 months
from September 2007 based on those agreed for 2006/07 as
follows —

Ethiopian Community Centre (UK):

Pan African & Caribbean Primary Prevention £137,000
Pan African & Caribbean Secondary Prevention £ 49,000
PACE:

Outzone (young gay men’s services) £ 41,500

African HIV Policy Network:
Community HIV Network £ 27,880

PROC20. SOCIAL SERVICES SPOT CONTRACTS - OUTCOME OF
BENCHMARKING EXERCISE (Report of the Director of Adult, Culture




Page 268

MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2007

and Community Services - Agenda Item 7)

At this juncture we were informed that Mary Hennigan (Assistant Director
— Adults) would be retiring from the Council’'s service at the end of
September. We asked that our thanks for the service she had given our
Committee be placed on record.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and, in the future, benchmarking
information be included in the annual reports on Social Services
Spot Contracts submitted to our Committee every September.

DACCS

PROC21.

MARKFIELD PARK IMPROVEMENTS - AWARD OF CONTRACT TO
CONSTUCTION CONTRACTOR (Report of the Director of Adult,
Culture and Community Services - Agenda Item 8)

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted in principle to the appointment of T
and B (Contractors) for the construction of a café in Markfield
Park based on the agreed maximum price for the contract set
out in Appendix A to the interleaved report.

2. That authority to agree the final price of the contract be
delegated to the Director of Adult, Culture and Community
Services in consultation with our Chair and the Cabinet
Member for Leisure, Culture, and Lifelong Learning.

DACCS

DACCS

PROC22.

CONSTRUCTION OF NEW HARINGEY MORTUARY (Report of the
Director of Urban Environment - Agenda Item 9)

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

We noted that the latest firm overall project costs were £3.149 million,
i.e. £769,000 above the currently approved total budget of £2.380 million
including fees. We also noted that it was proposed, subject to the
agreement of the Cabinet, to fund £390,000 of this overspend from a
projected under spend in the Urban Environment Directorate’s budget
while the remaining balance of £379,000 would be a first call against the
capital receipts provision for the current and the next financial year
allowing for any slippage.




Page 269

MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2007

We were informed that GAF funding accounted for £1.5 million of the
budget for this project and that this element had to be spent by the end
of this financial year.

We were also informed that officers would pursue with English Heritage
the question of a financial contribution towards the cost of railings at the
site.

RESOLVED:

1. That, subject to Cabinet agreeing the funding, approval be
granted in principle to award the contract for the main
construction work (Phase 2) for the new Haringey Public
Mortuary situated at The Lodge, Church Lane, Tottenham to
Mulalley and Co. Ltd. based on the agreed maximum price set
out in the Appendix to the interleaved report.

2. That authority to agree the final price of the contract be
delegated to the Director of Urban Environment in consultation
with our Chair and the Cabinet Member for Enforcement and
Community Safety.

DUE

DUE

DUE

PROC23.

WAIVER REPORT FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR
HARINGEY CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE IN NEED (Report of the
Director of the Children and Young People’s Service - Agenda ltem 10)

RESOLVED:

That approval be granted to a waiver of Contract Standing Order
6.05 (Requirement to Tender) in accordance with waiver
requirements set out in Contract Standing Order 7 in connection
with the contract for the provision of services for Haringey children
and young people in need.

DCYPS

PROC24.

AWARD REPORT FOR THE PROVISION OF SERVICES FOR
HARINGEY CHILDREN & YOUNG PEOPLE IN NEED (Report of the
Director of the Children and Young People’s Services - Agenda ltem 11)

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

We noted that the reconfiguration of the three services provided as part
of the contract was expected to generate efficiency savings to the
Council of £33,000. However, our attention having been drawn to
variations in the contract value within the two year period we asked that
the Acting Director of Finance and the Head of Procurement investigate
whether or not further savings were achievable.

ADF/
HPr




Page 270

MINUTES OF THE CABINET PROCUREMENT COMMITTEE
TUESDAY, 4 SEPTEMBER 2007

We also asked that the contract be monitored six monthly with a view to
identifying possible cost reductions.

RESOLVED:

That, in accordance with Contract Standing Order 11.03,
approval be granted to the award of the contract for the provision
of services to Haringey children and young people in need to
NCH Children’s Services Ltd. for a period of two years from 1
October 2007 to 30 September 2009 at a cost not exceeding
£925,000.

DCYPS

PROC25.

BUILDING SCHOOLS FOR THE FUTURE - EDUCATIONAL ADVICE
FRAMEWORK (Report of the Director of the Children and Young
People’s Services - Agenda ltem 12)

Details of the contracts which were set out in the Appendix to the
interleaved report were the subject of a motion to exclude the press and
public from the meeting as they contained exempt information relating to
the business or financial affairs of any particular person (including the
Authority holding that information).

During the course of our deliberations, reference was made to a recent
report by the House of Commons Education and Skills Committee on the
Building Schools for the Future scheme and the Cabinet Member for
Children and Young People indicated that she would arrange for officers
to provide Members of the Cabinet with a briefing paper on issues raised
in the report.

RESOLVED:

1. That approval be granted to the appointment of the following
providers to the Building Schools for the Future Education
Advice Framework Agreement -

e Capita
e Place Group
e Education London

2. That authority to award specific contracts under the
Framework Agreement in excess of £250,000 be delegated to
the Director of the Children and Young People’s Service in
consultation with the Cabinet Member for Children and Young
People.

Cllr.
Santry/
DCYPS

DCYPS

DCYPS

CHARLES ADJE

Chair




Page 271 Agenda ltem 20

Document is exempt



Page 272

This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Minutes
	7 Programme Highlight Report - End August 2007
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 07_Programme Highlights - August 2007 - Appendix

	8 The Council's Performance - August 2007
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 08_Council's  Performance - August 2007 - Appendix

	9 Cabinet Response to Scrutiny Review of IT Services Project Management
	10 Admissions to Schools - Approval to Consult
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 1
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 2
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 3
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 4
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 5
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 6
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 7
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 8
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 9
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 10_Admissions to Schools - Appendix 10

	11 Draft Lawrence Road Planning Brief (SPD) & Sustainability Appraisal
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 11_Lawrence Road Planning Brief - Appendix

	12 Development of the Upper Lee Vision North London's Waterside
	13 Haringey's Greenest Borough Strategy
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 13_Haringey's Greenest Borough Strategy - Appendix

	14 Cabinet Response to Scrutiny Review of Improving Road Safety in Haringey
	15 Homes for Haringey Performance Report April - August 2007
	16 Urgent Actions Taken in Consultation with Cabinet Members
	Cabinet_2007.10.16_Agenda Item 16_Urgent Actions - Appendix

	17 Minutes of Sub-Bodies
	20 Minutes

